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Executive Summary 

On 21 April 2019, Easter Sunday, suicide terrorist 

bombings that took place in three churches and three 

hotels in Sri Lanka killed around 277 people (including 8 

suicide bombers) and wounded more than 400 people as 

per the information provided by Police Headquarters. At 

least 40 foreign nationals and at least 45 children were 

reported to be among the dead. Investigators identified 

Zahran Hashim, one-time leader of the National Thowheed 

Jamaath, as the main suspect behind the execution of these 

co-ordinated attacks. Subsequent to the attacks, incidents 

of ethnic violence and tension targeting the Muslim 

community occurred in several parts of the country.  

40 Members of Parliament representing the UNP, UPFA, 

ITAK and JVP presented a resolution in Parliament 

requesting the appointment of a Parliamentary Select 

Committee (PSC) with the resolution passed in Parliament 

on the 22nd of May 2019 without a division. 

The PSC held 24 sittings from May to October 2019 and 

heard evidence from 55 persons. The present report is 

endorsed by all members of the PSC.  

The PSC makes several findings and recommendations 

in the report. Below are key findings:  

Following the attacks, evidence emerged that prior 

intelligence information was available regarding the 

impending attack but that it was not acted upon. The PSC 

notes that intelligence information related to the attacks 

was first received by the Director, SIS on 4th April 2019 but 

there were delays from his end to share it with the relevant 

intelligence and security personnel. The Director, SIS was 

called by name by the then Secretary MOD to brief the ICM 

on 9th April 2019 but failed to do this by saying he would 
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send a written update on the intelligence received. This, the 

PSC notes is a major failure from the Director SIS, the lead 

in the intelligence apparatus who had received pride of 

place at the ICM and NSC. The PSC also notes the failure on 

the part of the SIS to act up on the subsequent intelligence 

information received after the explosion on 16th April 2019 

in Kattankudy. The PSC notes that the Director SIS bears the 

greatest responsibility. This is compounded by the fact that 

since 8th April 2018, a full one year before the incident, he 

had in writing to the IGP requested for the shutting down 

of investigations by others into Zahran, which resulted in 

the SIS becoming the sole investigator into Zahran.  

PSC also observes that the SIS missed a series of events 

that should have alerted the state security apparatus to the 

impending attacks and demonstrated to them the 

importance of the intelligence information received. This 

was in the context of intelligence already known on Zahran 

and his allies including police reports on him and arrest 

warrants issued on him dated March 2017. Other incidents 

since 2018 (described in detail in the findings) demonstrate 

how the lead intelligence party should have been more 

vigilant and taken steps to keep the ICM, NSC and other 

relevant parties informed. This failure by the SIS has 

resulted in hundreds of deaths, many more injured and 

immeasurable devastation to Sri Lanka and Sri Lankans and 

that must not be treated lightly. The PSC makes this 

observation considering attempts made to shield the 

culpability of key individuals and the need to hold all 

individuals responsible without further delay.  

The PSC further notes, that whilst the greatest 

responsibility remains with the Director SIS, others too 

failed in their duties. Within the security and intelligence 

apparatus, the Secretary MOD, IGP, CNI and DMI failed in 
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their responsibilities. All were informed of the intelligence 

information prior to the Easter Sunday attacks but failed to 

take necessary steps to mitigate or prevent it.  

The PSC makes a very serious finding in terms of the 

status of the state intelligence apparatus, where 

intelligence information known to a few was not shared 

with relevant parties. The PSC also observes that further 

investigations will be needed to understand whether those 

with vested interests did not act on intelligence so as to 

create chaos and instil fear and uncertainty in the country 

in the lead up to the Presidential Election to be held later in 

the year. Such a situation would then lead to the call for a 

change of regime to contain such acts of terrorism. 

Coincidently or not so coincidentally, the security situation 

and fear would be unleashed months away from the 

Presidential Election. The PSC also notes that this occured 

in the context of changes in the leadership in the Sri Lankan 

Army and DMI in 2019. These are extremely serious 

observations that can impact the democratic governance, 

electoral processes and security of Sri Lanka and must 

require urgent attention.  

In addition, the PSC observes that the President failed 

in numerous occasions to give leadership and also actively 

undermined government and systems including having ad 

hoc NSC meetings and leaving out key individuals from 

meetings. Whilst the fissures in Government were evident 

in 2018, amplified with the Constitutional Crisis, these also 

impacted the security apparatus. Several others are listed 

in the report as having failed in their duties including the 

Prime Minister and State Minister for Defence and the 

Attorney General’s Department.  

An important finding of the PSC is the need for 

structural and legislative reform which are discussed in 



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 4 ) 

detail in the report. A critical introduction would be an 

independent and robust National Security Council with a 

National Security Advisor, essential in addressing evolving 

security challenges. The PSC also highlights the need for 

legislative reforms in several areas such as initiatives to 

counter fake news and responsible reporting, work in the 

education sector, the need for greater Parliament 

oversight, among others.  

The PSC also makes note of the rising extremism in Sri 

Lanka. Evidence received by the PSC indicates that Zahran 

started a campaign to radicalise Muslim youth and motivate 

them to use violence to achieve their ends post March 2018 

attacks on Muslims in Digana. However, investigations to 

date have not shown any evidence that Zahran had direct 

links with the ISIS. PSC observes that several people of 

Kattankudy and several local Muslim groups made 

complaints against Zahran as early as 2013/2014 to the 

authorities. Testimony also showed that investigations had 

commenced into some of his speeches and activities. The 

rise in extremism was also in the backdrop of increasing 

levels of Islamaphobia.  

The PSC also observes increasing levels of Wahabism 

and Arabization in parts of Sri Lanka in recent years. A 

physical change had taken place in recent years in 

Kattankudy town with the emergence of Date-Palm Trees 

and Arabic lettering on public sign boards. The Batticaloa 

campus buildings also prominently display Arabic 

architecture and landscape, making it drastically different 

to any university building in the country. Evidence received 

by the PSC indicates that Arabization commenced and was 

fostered in Kattankudy by Hon. M.L.A.M. Hizbullah. The PSC 

notes that the spread of Wahhabism and the Arabization of 

Kattankudy contributed to the growth of extremism in the 
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Islamic community especially in the East and must be 

further investigated.  

The PSC also notes that several politicians made 

comments subsequent to the Easter Sunday attacks which 

were inflammatory and irresponsible. The PSC notes that 

speeches that incite hate and racism, by politicians, religious 

leaders and others, are extremely dangerous and must be 

independently investigated and individuals held to account. 

Inaction will only exacerbate the impunity and contribute to 

further hate and fear in Sri Lanka.  

The PSC recommendations are included in a separate 

section towards the end of the report.  
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Timeline 

2011 Then Governor of Western Province, Hon. Alavi 

Moulana said in newspaper interviews that there were 

armed extremists operating in Kattankudy 

2013 The magazine 'Thowheed' denigrating those of other 

faiths first published by NTJ 

2013/ 2014 Information of the existence of the organization NTJ 

(testimony of CNI, Mr. Sisira Mendis).  
 

Extremist groups came into the TID’s radar around 

2013/2014. With information of a group called the Sri 

Lanka Thowheed Jamaath which drew inspiration 

from the Tamil Nadu Thowheed Jamaath. This group 

later spilt into several groups and the NTJ was born. 

“At that time, they were an extremist group but there 

was no violent extremism during that time. There were 

some incidents where there was infighting among 

these groups but that was all at that time (testimony of 

DIG Mr. Nalaka de Silva) 

2013/2014 Former Governor Hon. Azath Sally says that he had 

informed the then Defence Secretary (Rajapaksa) on 

several occasions, about the threat posed by extremist 

elements including the breakaway National Thowheed 

Jamaath (NTJ) (testimony of Hon. Governor Sally) 

2013/2014 ACJU had been warning the authorities since 2014 

about the dangers posed by Muslim extremists (ACJU 

testimony) 

2013/2014 Hira Foundation and Batticaloa Campus Pvt. Ltd. 

established (testimony of Hon. Governor Hizbullah) 

2015 Sufi Musliims of Kattankudy complained to Former 

Commandant of the Army- Eastern Province, Major 

General Lal Perera of harassment against them. "He 

summoned Zahran and warned him to refrain from 

attacking other religious groups. But the National 

Thowheed Jamaath continued to attack us." (testimony 

of Mr. Sahalan) 
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August 2015 Zahran signed an agreement with Hon. M. L. A. M. 

Hizbullah during the parliamentary election campaign 

(testimony of Hon. Azath Sally) 
 

Former Governor of the Eastern Province Hon. M. L. 

A. M. Hizbullah said he met Zahran Hashim in 2015 

and he was not a ‘terrorist’ at that time. Zahran was a 

leader of a religious group and he summoned all 

candidates who contested the district for a meeting 

6 October 

2015 
Mr. Karunasena Hettiarachchi, former Secretary, 

Ministry fo Defene, spoke about Zahran for the first 

time in a National Security Council meeting 

mentioning the need for new laws to counter violent 

extremism 

2016 Zahran had come under regular surveillance of TID 

from 2016 as it was becoming apparent that he was 

moving towards violent extremism. Telec-

ommunication Regulatory Commission (TRC) as well 

as Sri Lanka CERT was informed to take measures to 

block these sites as well as inform Facebook about the 

inflammatory contents (testimony of DIG Mr. Nalaka 

de Silva) 

2016 CTJ General Secretary, Mr. Abdul Razik testified that 

he had informed Terrorist Investigation Division (TID) 

about National Thawheed Jamaath (NTJ), Chief 

Zahran in 2016. 

2016 

December 
Zahran preached against Catholics and distributed 

leaflets condemning the Christmas and calling on the 

people not to celebrate Christmas. 

2016/2017 Sufi Muslims made 11 complaints to Kattankudy 

police on Zahran and NTJ 

March 2017 Clash between two Muslim groups in Kattankudy; one 

group which was headed by Zahran attacked Sufi 

Muslims in the area 
 

Several arrests made following the clashes. Among 

those who escaped were Zahran, his brother Rilwan 

and Army Mohideen. Army Mohideen had maintained 

links with the Army and was known as an informant of 

the Army (testimony of OIC, Mr. Wedagedara) 



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 8 ) 

 
Governor, Hon. Sally claims that he called in public to 

arrest Zahran Hashim on a TV program in March, 

2017. 
 

Mr. Uwais, who represented the Federation of 

Kattankudy Mosques and Muslim Institutions revealed 

that his federation had warned authorities on multiple 

occasions over Zahran’s extremist activities 

27 March 

2017 
Sufi Moulavi K. R. M. Sahlan said that his organisation 

had submitted a written complaint against Zahran’s 

call for the killings of people of other faiths to the 

President’s Office. Sahlan said that the copies of the 

same complaint had been sent to the Prime Minister’s 

Office, the Office of the then Justice, Minister - Hon. 

Wijeyadasa Rajapakse, Minister of Law and Order – 

Hon. Sagala Ratnayake, State Minister of Defence – 

Hon. Ruwan Wijewardene, Inspector General of 

Police, Attorney-General’s Department, and Director, 

Terrorist Investigation Division DIG Nalaka de Silva. 

15 May 

2017 
A report was summoned on Islamic extremist from the 

Chief, SIS to brief His Excellency the President at the 

NSC (testimony of Mr. Waidyaratne) 

7 June 2017 A file was prepared and forwarded by TID to the 

Attorney-General’s Department, requesting that legal 

action be taken against NTJ. TID-DIG Mr. Nalaka De 

Silva had recommended the proscription of the NTJ 

June 2017 Letter from Al Haj Abdul Jawadh Alim Waliyyullah 

Trust signed by a Moulavi named K. R. M. Sahlan 

received by AG's Department detailing NTJ violence 

in Kattankudy  

22 June 

2017 
AG's Department informed the IGP to update them on 

all investigations on the NTJ. "But we never received 

any update from the Police. At that time, I did not know 

the TID was also carrying out an investigation about 

Zahran and the NTJ,” (testimony of DSG Dileepa 

Peiris) 

2017 Islamic school textbooks published by the Ministry of 

Education prescribe death sentence for those who give 

up Islamism (testimony of Mr. Rishwin Ismath) 
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2017 SLTJ gave CID and TID, CDs containing extremist 

speeches Zahran made where he called for the 

establishment of an Islamic State in Sri Lanka and also 

the killing of non-Muslims (testimony of Mr. Hisham 

SLTJ) 

2018 Mr. Nilantha Jayawardane briefed the NSC about 

Zahran  

26 February 

– 10 March 

2018  

Digana anti-Muslim riots. After this, Zahran’s actions 

started moving towards violent extremism. There was 

a surge in his social media activities and he was 

moving from extremism to violent extremism. He was 

using Facebook and websites to incite Muslim youth 

towards extremism (testimony of DIG Nalaka de 

Silva) 

8th April 

2018 
Director, SIS writes to the IGP to stop the TID 

investigation and for the SIS to lead investigations 

May 2018 SDIG Ravi Seneviratne informed by the IGP of the 

incident of destroying Buddha statues in Mawanella 

and he requested that a team of CID men be deployed 

for investigations. "We identified two main characters 

Saadiq and Saajid. We followed them. We had 

information that they were engaged in clandestine 

activities. On 26th January 2019 we found that Saadiq 

and Saajid had links to Zahran. Thereafter we searched 

for him." (testimony of SDIG Ravi Seneviratne) 

July 2018 Terrorism Investigation Division (TID) obtained an 

open warrant from the Colombo Magistrate’s Court as 

well a blue notice from Interpol in July 2018 in order 

to apprehend Mohamed Zahran 

October 

2018 
After TID sent letters to TRC and SLCERT to inform 

them about Zahran Hashim, SLCERT responds that 

they cannot block his social media accounts and asks 

TID to approach the social media company directly 

7 October 

2018 
Last NSC attended by the Prime Minister and State 

Minister for Defence  

17 October 

2018 
SLCERT assist TID to compile a report to be submitted 

to Facebook on Zahran Hashim. TID also requests 

information such as Hashim's ID, IP address etc. 
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23 October 

2018 
IGP Jayasundere excluded from NSC meetings since 

October 2018 

25 October 

2018 
Arrest of TID-DIG Mr. Nalaka de Silva over alleged 

VIP assassination plot. "When I took over, those in the 

TID were not all that well informed of Islamic 

extremism. They were concentrating on the LTTE and 

I was the one who brought in the possibility of the new 

threat and guided them and sent men on overseas 

training" (testimony of DIG Nalaka de Silva) 

26 October 

2018  
Constitutional Crisis commences  

30 October 

2018  

Mr. Hemasiri Fernando appointed as Secretary of 

Defence. Neither the NTJ nor its activities were 

discussed at any of the NSC meetings he attended, 

while a large amount of time was devoted to discuss 

trivial issues. ”I remember there was a long discussion 

on a fishing issue and possible terrorist attacks using 

drones. Makandure Madush was also discussed at 

length” (testimony of former Secretary to Ministry of 

Defence, Mr. Hemasiri Fernando). 

November 

2018 
Report sent to the IGP by the TID on NTJ 

30 

November 

2018 

The murder of two on-duty police Constables at 

Vavunativu, Batticaloa 

3 January 

2019 
Moulavi Rizwi of the ACJU revealed that he, along 

with other ACJU representatives and former Govenor 

of Western Province, Hon. Azath Salley had met then 

Secretary to Ministry of Defence, Mr. Hemasiri 

Fernando on 3rd January 2019 and handed over a CD 

containing extremist speeches in Tamil made by Easter 

Sunday attacks mastermind Zahran Hashim 

17 

January 

2019 

Four arrested with explosives, detonators in 

Wanathawilluwa 

February 

2019 
Zahran, Rilwan and Army Mohideen were no longer in 

the Kattankudy area. "In February, 2019, too, our 

officers checked and reported that those persons were 

not there" (testimony of IP Mr. Kasthuriarachchi) 
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19 February 

2019 
Final National Security Council meeting before the 

Easter attacks. Wanathawilluwa incident referred to 

but not discussed at length 

10 March 

2019 
Minister Hon. Kabir Hashim’s Coordinating Secretary 

injured in a shooting  

March 2019 Mr. Hisham (SLTJ) stated that they had provided 

information to army intelligence about one and a half 

month before the Easter Sunday attacks that Zahran 

was traveling in a Prado vehicle and holding secret 

meetings in Nintavur, Akkaraipattu. At the time, he 

was still evading arrest over his role in a clash with Sufi 

Muslims in Kattankudy in March, 2017. 

12 March 

2019 
Attroney-General summoned the police, for a meeting 

to discuss Zahran’s matter, in response to the TID’s 

request, made in June 2017. 

04 April 

2019 
Director, SIS Mr. Nilantha Jayawardane receives first 

intelligence report of a potential attack. He 

subsequently shares this information with CNI, Mr. 

Sisira Mendis 

08 April 

2019 
CNI, Mr. Sisira Mendis forwarded the letter to IGP 

09 April 

2019 
At the Coordination Meeting the Secretary of Defence 

wanted to take the latest intelligence report but the 

Director, SIS informed of following up with a letter. 

IGP sent the letter.  

IGP forwarded letter to Senior Deputy Inspector 

General-Criminal Investigations Department, Special 

Task Force, Deputy Inspector General - Western 

Province, Special Range.  

11 April 

2019 
Media report of the SIS having briefed the President on 

the intelligence information received 

16 April 

2019 
Explosion of a motorcycle at a remote location in 

Kattankudy 

18 & 19 

April 2019  
Reports of possible activity by associates of Zahran, 

but there were no specific details, and no warning of 

an imminent attack (testimony of IGP Jayasundere) 
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19 April 

2019 
SIS informs DMI of the intelligence information. This 

is the first reported instance where SIS briefs DMI of 

the intelligence  

20 April 

2019 7.30pm 
Director, SIS called IGP Mr. Jayasundere and said the 

following day would be dangerous and something 

would happen. IGP conveyed that warning to all 

relevant Senior DIGs. Former Secretary to Ministry of 

Defence said he, too, had been given similar 

information by the Chief, SIS on 20th April 2019, who 

urged him to also speak to the IGP on the matter. “I 

called the IGP, by which time he had been informed by 

the SIS Chief as well,”  

21 April 

2019 6.45 

am 

Director, SIS said again that something dangerous 

would happen on that day. IGP again informed relevant 

junior officers 

21 April 

2019 8.00am 
Chief, SIS called former Defence Secretary and asked 

him how many Methodist Churches are in Colombo, 

saying that attackers are likely to target these churches 

and not the Catholic ones. “I told him I am a Buddhist 

and I don’t know, but I would check with someone and 

get back to him. I got some information and told him, 

but within a few minutes I heard that there had been a 

bomb explosion at one of the hotels,” (testimony of 

former Defence Secretary, Mr. Hemasiri Fernando) 

21 April 

2019 
Easter attacks 

22 April 

2019 
First National Security Council meeting after the 

Easter attacks.  

Emergency declared  

May 2019   Violence is seen in parts of Western and North-

Western Provinces  

21 May 

2019 
TID-DIG Nalaka de Silva released on bail  

22 May 

2019 
Appointment of Parliamentary Select Committee  

23 May 

2019 
Sittings of Parliamentary Select Committee on Easter 

Attacks commences  
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Background 

Easter Sunday Attacks  

On 21st April 2019, Easter Sunday, suicide terrorist bombings that 

took place in three churches and three hotels in Sri Lanka killed 

around 277 people (including 8 suicide bombers) and wounded more 

than 400 people as per the information provided by Police 

Headquarters  (Appendix 6) At least 40 foreign nationals and at least 

45 children were reported to be among the dead. Investigators 

identified Zahran Hashim, one-time leader of the National 

Thowheed Jamaath, as the main suspect behind the execution of 

these co-ordinated attacks. The attacks also resulted in a few incidents 

of ethnic violence and tension targeting the Muslim community in 

several parts of the country. Following the attacks, evidence emerged 

that prior intelligence information were available regarding the 

impending attacks but that it was not acted upon. In this background, 

a Select Committee of Parliament was appointed by a unanimous 

resolution to investigate and report on the attacks.  

Terms of Reference of the PSC 

The resolution dated 05 May 2019 submitted with the signatures 

of 40 Members of Parliament, included in the Order Paper of 

Parliament on 22 May 2019 to appoint a Parliamentary Select 

Committee to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 

2019, was approved by Parliament on 22 May 2019 with 

amendments. 

The amended resolution is given in Appendix 2 of this Report. 

Nomination of Members to the Committee 

In terms of the motion approved by Parliament, the Hon. Speaker 

nominated the following Members of Parliament to the said Select 

Committee of Parliament with the Hon. J.M. Ananda Kumarasiri, 

Deputy Speaker as its Chair, and such nominations announced in 

Parliament were included in the Hansard of 23 May 2019. 
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Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon. (Dr) Kavinda Heshan Jayawardena 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathi Wickremaratne 

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran 

The relevant extract of the Hansard of that day is given in 

Appendix 3 of this Report. 

Nomination and substitituion of Members to the Committee 

The Hon. (Dr) Kavinda Heshan Jayawardena resigned from the 

membership of the Committee.  Hon. (Dr.) Rajitha Senaratne was 

nominated to fill such vacancy.  In addition, Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda 

Jayatissa also was nominated by the Hon. Speaker to serve on the 

Committee.  Such nomination and substitution of Members was 

announced to Parliament on 24 May 2019. 

The relevant extract of the Hansard of that day is given in 

Appendix 4 of this Report. 

Opening of the Sessions of the Committee to Media 

The Hon. Leader of the House of Parliament on that day, made a 

request that the meetings of this Select Committee be opened to 

media.  The Hon. Speaker announced that the power to taking a 

decision to open a Session of a Committee, has been given to the 

Chair of such Committee, and hence steps can be taken accordingly. 

At the initial round of discussions had by the Members of the 

Select Committee, the Committee decided to open the meetings of the 

Committee to the media where appropriate, especially where the 

national security would not be compromised.  

As such, the Committee decided to request the Director General 

of Government Information to inform all media institutions to cover 

the hearing of evidence at the Committee that is opened to the media 

if the Committee so decides.  
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At the same time, the Committee also decided to request the 

Chairman of the Sri Lanka Rupavahini Corporation cause all the 

proceedings of the Committee which would be opened to the media 

to be recorded electronically and make it available to Parliament. 

Mr. Tikiri K. Jayathilake, Assistant Secretary-General, and Mr. 

Jagath Gajaweeraarachchi, Director (Legislative Services), held a 

briefing shortly before the First Meeting of the Select Committee 

convened on the 23rd May 2019 for hearing evidence from witnesses, 

to all the media representatives who had arrived at the Parliament 

Complex. 

As hearing of evidence in a Select Committee of Parliament is 

open to the media for the first time in the history, the matters relating 

to transmitting facts with transparency, impartiality and moderation 

as expected by Parliament in reporting facts, were explained in detail. 

Further, the attention of the media representatives was drawn to 

transmitting facts without undue editing so that the public would be 

able to gain an understanding of the discussions or submissions made 

in the Committee as they were, when telecasting or broadcasting the 

matters relating to hearing of evidence of the Committee. 

Further, arrangements were made to draw the attention of the 

media to the repercussions they would have to encounter if a false or 

an unduly edited transmission of the proceedings of the Committee is 

reported at any time. 

Dates of the Committee. 

The Committee held its meetings on the following days. 

23rd of May 2019 

29th of May 2019 

04th of June 2019 

06th of June 2019 

11th of June 2019 
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13th of June 2019 

18th of June 2019 

20th of June 2019 

26th of June 2019 

28th of June 2019 

10th of July 2019 

24th of July 2019 

25th of July 2019 

26th of July 2019 

31st of July 2019 

01st of August 2019 

06th of August 2019 

20th of August 2019 

14th September 2019 

20th of September 2019 

Minutes of the Select Committee of Parliament are given at the 

end of this report. 
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Meetings of the Committee 

First meeting held on the 23rd of May 2019 

Your Committee met in Committee room 7 of Parliament at 5.30 

p.m. on 23rd of May 2019 and commenced its proceedings. 

The Chairman of the Committee made an explanation of the 

relevant Standing Orders and the provisions relating to the 

proceedings of the Committee. The Chairman who stated that he 

would not be able to attend a number of future meetings owing to an 

urgent essential matter, nominated with the concurrence of the 

Committee Hon (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramarathna to chair the 

Committee in his absence. 

The Committee decided that the Quorum of the meetings of the 

Committee shall be 04 members. 

The Committee decided to publish notices in public newspapers 

and the Parliamentary website in all three languages in order to make 

the people aware of the matters of the Committee and to offer them 

an opportunity to make submissions, on that day. 

The newspaper notices published in the three languages are given 

in Appendix 5 of this report.  The list of names of the 

people/organizations made written submissions is given in 

Appendix 9. 

Moreover, the Committee decided to request the Secretary to the 

President to provide a copy of the report of the Special Investigation 

Committee appointed by the President to inquire in to this and report, 

to the Committee. 

The Committee also decided to summon the persons who the 

Committee would deem necessary, before the Committee to testify 

verbally, after examining the written representations made to the 

Committee. 
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Second meeting held on the 29th of May 2019 

General S.H.S. Kottegoda, the Secretary to the Ministry of 

Defence, Mr. Sisira Mendis, Chief of national Intelligence had been 

summoned before the Committee to testify. 

The Committee further discussed at its meeting about opening the 

oral examination of witnesses to the media and decided to open only 

the examinations of witnesses at the Committee to media. At the same 

time, the Committee decided that examination of witnesses at the 

Committee that is opened to the media shall be broadcast live over 

media. 

Thereafter, all mass media representatives who had come to report 

the proceedings of the Committee were granted permission to enter 

the Committee Room and set up their camera equipment. 

At the same time, all mass media representatives were directed 

not to use mobile phones when the Committee proceedings were open 

for media and to leave their mobile phones outside when they entered 

the Committee Room. 

First, the terms of reference of the Committee were read out in all 

three languages for everyone’s information. 

At the same time, the criteria that the Committee expected to be 

followed in broadcasting the proceedings of the Committee over 

media were explained by the Chairman. 

The Chairman explained that in conducting the business of the 

Committee, action would be taken to adhere to the fundamentals of 

national security enshrined in the Constitution of the Republic of Sri 

Lanka and to follow the guidelines for divulging information ensured 

by the Right to Information Act. 

Then the Committee commenced hearing the witnesses. The full 

record of evidence from the witnesses is given at the end of this report. 

• General S.H.S. Kottegoda, Secretary to the Ministry of 

Defence and 
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• Mr. Sisira Mendis, Chief of National Intelligence  

testified before the Committee on this day. 

Third meeting held on the 04th of June 2019 

On this day, - 

• Former Head of the Terrorist Investigation Division of the 

Police Department, Mr. Nalaka de Silva testified. 

After concluding the hearing, the opinion of the Attorney General 

contained in a letter sent by the Attorney General in response to a 

letter from the Secretary to the President that had been mentioned in 

a letter sent to the Committee by the Hon. Speaker was brought to the 

notice of the Committee. In that the Attorney General had stated that 

the proceedings of the Committee could have an adverse impact on 

the cases pending in courts. 

The Committee agreed to write to the Hon. Speaker informing that 

the Committee would conduct its business very prudently so that 

current investigations and proceedings or national security are not 

prejudiced. 

Fourth Meeting held on the 06th of June 2019  

• Inspector General of Police, Mr. Pujith Jayasundera and 

• Former Secretary to the Ministry of Defence, Mr. Hemasiri 

Fernando 

testified before the Committee on this day. 

Fifth Meeting held on the 11th of June 2019  

• Former Governor of the Western Province, Hon. Azath Salley 

• President of All Ceylon Jamiyyathul Ulama, Ash – Sheikh 

Mufti M I M. Rizwe and 

• Member of the Kattankudy Mosque Federation and Muslim 

Institutes, Mr. Abusali Uwais 
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testified before the Committee on this day. 

Sixth meeting held on 13th June 2019  

• Secretary to the Ministry of Public Administration and 

Disaster Management Mr. J.J. Ratnasiri, and  

• Former Governor of the Eastern Province Hon. M.L.A.M. 

Hizbullah  

testified before the committee on this day.  

Seventh meeting held on 18th June 2019  

• Officer in Charge of the Kattankudy Police Station Mr. M.P. 

Kasturiarachchi,  

• Former Officer in Charge of the Kattankudy Police Station 

Mr.A.B. Wedagedera, and 

• Secretary of Al-haj Abdul Jawath Alim Waliyullah Trust Mr. 

K.R.M. Sahlan 

testified before the committee on this day.  

Eighth meeting held on 20th June 2019  

• General Secretary, Ceylon Thawheed Jama’ath Mr. Abdul 

Razik, and  

• President of Sri Lanka Thawheed Jama’ath Organization 

Mr. A.K. Hisham and  

• Mr. Rishwin Ismath  

testified before the committee on this day.  

Ninth meeting held on 26th June 2019  

• Commander of the Sri Lanka Army Lieutenant General 

N.U.M.M.W. Senanayake,  

• Secretary of the Ministry of Industry and Commerce, Mr. 

K.D.N. Ranjith Asoka, and  
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• Director-General of the Industrial Development Board 

Mr. P.L.U. Rathnamalala  

testified before the committee on this day.  

Tenth meeting held on 28th June 2019  

• Member of Parliament Hon. Rishard Bathiudeen, 

• Mr. M.H.M. Fahim, Private Secretary and brother of former 

Minister of Posts Hon. A.H.M. Haleem, 

• Director General of the Board of Investments, Mrs C.P. 

Malalgoda, 

• General Manager of Bank of Ceylon Mr. Senarath Bandara, 

and  

• Secretary of the National Police Commission Mr. D.M. 

Samansiri Dissanayake 

testified before the committee on this day.  

Eleventh meeting held on 10th July 2019  

• Member of Parliament Hon. Dayasiri Jayasekara, 

• Secretary to the Ministry of Education Mr. M.N. Ranasinghe, 

• Commissioner General of Educational Publications 

Mr. Jayantha Wickremanayake, and  

• Senior Deputy Inspector General of Police of the Eastern 

province Mr. Kapila Jayasekara 

testified before the committee on this day.  

Twelfth meeting held on 24th July 2019  

• Director of Criminal Investigations Department and Terrorist 

Investigation Division Senior Deputy Inspector General of 

Police Mr. Ravi Seneviratne,  

• Director of Criminal Investigations Department Mr. Shani 

Abeysekara,  
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• Officer in charge to Counter Terrorism and Investigation 

Division Mr. T.R.K.R. Pathirana, and  

• Director of Terrorist Investigation Division Mr. Waruna 

Jayasundara  

testified before the committee on this day.  

Hearing of evidence was temporarily suspended and the 

Committee was adjourned.  

Thereafter, since the hearing of evidence of the next witness was 

crucial to national security, the Committee decided to hold the hearing 

in camera and met at the Parliamentary Committee Complex located 

at Rajamalwatta Road, Battaramulla at 7.00 p.m. and continued the 

hearing until 1.00 a.m. the following day.  

There-  

• the Head of the State Intelligence Service, Senior Deputy 

Inspector General of Police Mr. Nilantha Jayawardana  

testified before the Committee. 

Thirteenth meeting held on 25th July 2019  

• The Commandant of the Special Task Force Mr. M.R. Latif,  

• Former Commander of the Army in the Eastern Province, 

Retired Major General Lal Perera, 

• Advisor of the Ministry of Defence and former Inspector 

General of Police Mr. N.K. Illangakoon, 

• Secretary of the Ministry of Law and Order, Mr. Pathmasiri 

Jayamanna, and  

• Chief Executive Officer of Bodu Bala Sena Mr. Dilantha 

Vithanage 

testified before the committee on this day.  
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Fourteenth meeting held on 26th July 2019  

• Governor of the Central Bank Dr. Indrajith Coomaraswamy,  

• Director, Finance Intelligence Unit of the Central Bank, Mr. 

D.M. Rupasinghe, 

• Director, Foreign Exchange Department of the Central Bank.  

Mr. R.R. Jayaratne,  

• The Attorney-General President’s Counsel Hon. Dappula De 

Livera,  

• Additional Solicitor General, President’s Counsel 

Mr. Sumathi Dharmawardena,  

• State Cousel, Attorney-General’s Department Mr. Abdul 

Malik Azeez,  

• Mr. K.M.D. Anuradha – Who submitted a written 

representation to the Committee 

testified before the committee on this day.  

Fifteenth Meeting held on 31 July 2019 

• Lieutenant General N.U.M.M.W. Senanayake, Commander of 

the Sri Lanka Army, and 

• President’s Counsel Kapila Waidyaratne, the former Secretary 

to the Ministry of Defence. 

testified before the committee on this day.  

Sixteenth Meeting held on 01 August 2019 

• Mr. Dileepa Peiris, Deputy Solicitor General, Attorney 

General’s Department, 

• Mr. Azard Navavi, Deputy Solicitor General, Attorney 

General’s Department, and 

• Mr. Jagath Vishantha, Senior Superintendent of Police, 

Director – Counter-Terrorism Investigation Division  

testified before the committee on this day.  
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Seventeenth Meeting held on 06 August 2019 

• Hon. Ruwan Wijewardane, Non-cabinet Minister of Mass 

Media, and State Minister of Defence,  

• Hon. Sagala Ratnayaka, Minister of Ports, Shipping and 

Southern Development and former Minister of Law & Order, 

• Hon. R.M. Ranjith Madduma Bandara, Minister of Public 

Administration, Disaster Management and Livestock 

Development and former Minister of Law & Order,  

• Hon. Ranil Wickremesinghe, Prime Minister and Minister of 

National Policies, Economic Affairs, Resettlement and 

Rehabilitation, Northern Province Development and Youth 

Affairs 

gave evidence before the committee on this day.  

Eighteenth Meeting held on 20 August 2019 

• Hon. Justice Vijith K. Malalgoda, President’s Counsel, Head 

of the special committee appointed by the President to 

investigate and report the Easter Sunday attacks,  

• Mr. N.K. Illangakoon, Member of the special committee 

appointed by the President to investigate and report the Easter 

Sunday attacks, and 

• Mr. Padmasiri Jayamanne, Member of the special committee 

appointed by the President to investigate and report the Easter 

Sunday attacks. 

gave evidene before the Committee on this day. 

The Committee, having observed that the evidence of H.E. 

Maithripala Sirisena, the President of the Democratic Socialist 

Republic of Sri Lanka, who was the Minister of Defence at the time 

these incidents took place, would be very helpful and important in 

preparing the final report of the Committee, decided to make a request 

to H.E. the President to give the Committee an opportunity for that. 
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Nineteenth Meeting held on 14 September 2019 

Members of the Committee discussed the matters to be included 

in their Report to be presented to Parliament. 

Twentieth Meeting held on 20 September 2019 

On this day the Committee met His Excellency the President at 

the President’s House and had discussions with him. 

After this discussion, the Committee met at the Parliament 

Complex and decided to finish obtaining evidence, to prepare the 

report of the Committee, and to prepare a draft report and to meet 

thereafter and consider that draft report.  

Consideration of the Draft Report of the Committee 

The Committee met on the following dates and considered its 

report in detail: - 

24 September 2019 

04 October 2019 

08 October 2019 

18 October 2019 

After lengthy discussions with all Members of the Committee, the 

Report prepared with the consensus of all members is appended. 
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REPORT 

Thowheed Jama’ath Organizations in Sri Lanka  

The word “Thowheed” means oneness of God. It therefore 

emphasises the concept of monotheism in Islam. There are several 

Thowheed movements in Sri Lanka.  Sri Lanka Thowheed Jamath 

(SLTJ) came into being on the 24th of March 2005 and was based in 

Colombo. SLTJ had around 82 branches operating island-wide. It is 

closely associated with the Tamil Nadu Thawheed Jamath 

organization.  

The National Thowheed Jamath (NTJ) was formed in or around 

2016 by Zahran Hashim, the mastermind responsible for carrying out 

the terrorist attacks on the 21st April 2019.  

On the 23rd of September 2018, a group headed by Abdul Razeek 

broke away from the NTJ due to internal issues and formed a different 

organization called the Ceylon Tawheed Jamath (CTJ). The CTJ 

operates around the country and has around 63 branches island-wide.  

The Emergence of Zahran Hashim and National Thawheed Jamath 

(NTJ) 

In 2006 Zahran Hashim established an organization called 

“Dharul Athar” in Kattankudy. He started making radical speeches in 

or around that time. In or around 2010 he began making speeches in 

Tamil to entice youngsters and convert them to extremist ideology.  

His attempts to register “Dharul Athar” Organization under the 

Urban Council was prevented by the people in Kattankudy by giving 

letters to different authorities. He was subsequently expelled from 

“Dharul Athar” in or around 2016, after which he started the National 

Thawheed Jamath (NTJ).  In 2017, Zahran’s activities reached its 

peak in Kattankudy, where he targeted and started a campaign against 

people with different ideologies. On the 10th March 2017, Zahran’s 

organization clashed with certain individuals from the Sufi sect. It 

was reported that Zahran and his followers used knives, clubs, swords 

and pelted stones injuring several people. Though several arrests were 

made, Zahran and his brother Rilwan absconded. A case was filed in 
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the Magistrate’s Court of Batticaloa bearing case number 

276/B/2017. Other suspects arrested were kept in remand custody for 

about 8 months and were subsequently given bail by the High Court.  

Two of these suspects were suicide bombers who later carried out 

attacks on the 21st of April 2019.  

Evidence received by the PSC indicates that Zahran started a 

campaign to radicalise Muslim youth and motivate them to use 

violence to achieve their ends. Initially this project did not have much 

success, but after the attacks on Muslims in Digana in March 2018, 

he was able to recruit many by using that incident and the Aluthgama 

incidents of 2014 to embrace the Islamic State of Iraq and Syria 

ideology. He preached that in order to counter the Buddhist 

extremism the Muslim youth must take up arms. This is when it 

started to move towards violent extremism. There was a surge in his 

social media activities inciting Muslim youth. Zahran started 

endorsing the activities of the ISIS and was promoting its ideology 

through social media and his website. However, investigations to date 

have not shown any evidence that he had direct links with the ISIS.  

Several testimonies before the PSC demonstrated that the people 

of Kattankudy and several local Muslim groups made complaints 

against Zahran as early as 2013/2014 to the authorities. Testimony 

also showed that investigations had commenced into some of his 

speeches and activities.  

In November 2018, two Policemen on duty in Vavunatheevu, in 

Batticaloa were killed.  

In December 2018, some members of Zahran’s group destroyed 

Buddhist statues in Mawanella. Following that act of vandalism, 

interrogation of suspects led to an 80 acre-coconut cultivation in 

Wanathawillu in Puttalam, where CID uncovered a large cache of 

explosives buried in the plantation. The cache included 125 kilo 

grams of urea nitrate 99 non-electric detonators, and a range of 

equipment including notes on making explosives (page 767).   

Later in mid-March 2019, Mohamed Razak Taslim, the 

Coordinating Secretary of Highways and Investment Promotions 
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Minister, Hon. Kabir Hashim was shot at a point -blank range at his 

residence in Dhanagama Mawatha, Kandy by two assailants. Taslim 

had helped the CID investigation to nab the Mawanella attackers. 

On the night of the 16th of April 2019 an explosion took place in 

Palamunai, Kaththankudy, where a Motor Cycle (actually a Scooty) 

was destroyed. Subsequent investigations revealed that this was a dry 

run to test timers and detonators.  

Constitutional Crisis in October 2018  

The PSC notes that the constitutional crisis in 2018 must be 

referenced at the outset as this had a direct bearing on the governance 

and security situation in Sri Lanka. The following is a brief outline of 

the events commencing since 26th October 2018:  

• On the 26th of October 2018, Hon. Mahinda Rajapaksa was 

sworn in as the Prime Minister by His Excellency the 

President Maithripala Sirisena. On the same day the President 

by a letter addressed to Prime Minister Hon. Ranil 

Wickremesinghe informed him that he had been removed as 

the Prime Minister. Prime Minister Hon. Ranil 

Wickremesinghe responded to President Sisirena and asserted 

that he continues to be the lawful Prime Minister of the 

Country.   

• On 27th October 2018 Parliament was prorogued.   

• On 29th October, 126 Members of Parliament wrote to the 

Speaker requesting for Parliament to be reconvened. On the 

same day, 12 Members of Parliament were sworn as Cabinet 

Ministers.  

• On 30th October, the Speaker urged His Excellency the 

President Sirisena to reconvene Parliament.  

• On the 9th of November 2018, the crisis reached its peak as the 

President issued a Gazette notification dissolving Parliament.  

• On the 12th of November 2018 twelve fundamental rights 

petitions were filed in the Supreme Court of Sri Lanka 
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challenging the President’s decree of dissolving Parliament 

and calling snap elections. The Supreme Court made an 

interim order suspending the operation of the President’s 

decree, which resulted in the Parliament holding a sitting on 

14th November 2018. Subsequently, on the 13th of December 

2018, the Supreme Court of Sri Lanka declared the dissolution 

of Parliament to be unconstitutional.  

• On 14th November 2018, a No-Confidence Motion against 

Hon. Mahinda Rajapaksa was passed in Parliament.  

• On 15th November, chaos reigned in Parliament when the 

Speaker attempted to take a vote.  

• On 16th November, amidst further chaos, the Speaker entered 

the Chamber with police protection. Standing Orders were 

suspended and a vote of No-Confidence was passed against 

Hon. Mahinda Rajapaksa.  

• On 23rd November, a writ application by 122 Members of 

Parliament challenging the authority of the Hon. Mahinda 

Rajapaksa government was filed in the Court of Appeal.  

• On 3rd December 2018, the Court of Appeal issued an interim 

order to prevent the Hon. Mahinda Rajapaksa government 

from holding office.  

• On 12th December, Parliament passed a Vote of Confidence 

on Hon. Ranil Wickramasinghe saying that he commands the 

majority support in Parliament.   

• On 13th December, the Supreme Court in a 7-0 judgement held 

the purported dissolution to be unconstitutional and thus null 

and void.  

• 16th December 2018, Hon. Ranil Wickramasinghe took oaths 

again as Prime Minister.   

The Committee observes that the political fallout of the 

constitutional crisis and the bitter fight between the country’s leaders 

had contributed to the decline of the security apparatus in the country. 
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National Security Council (NSC) and Others  

The National Security Council is the apex national security 

decision-making body and is headed by the President of Sri Lanka. 

The meetings are usually attended by the Prime Minister, State 

Minister for Defence, CDS, heads of the three forces, IGP and the 

heads of respective intelligence services. According to the testimony 

by the former Defence Secretary, Mr. Hemasiri Fernando, the 

Secretaries to the Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Foreign Affairs 

and Ministry of Law and Order also attended the meetings. Secretary 

to the President and Secretary to the Prime Minister also attended. 

• There is no Law that provides for the framework of the NSC 

but testimony before the PSC indicated to the Gazette issued 

by former President Her Excellency the Chandrika 

Bandaranaika Kumaratunga (marked 1W3)  

• The PSC was informed that the meetings are called by the 

Secretary, MOD at the instruction of the President.  

• During the war, the NSC met at least once a week. In the post 

war context, the meetings were less frequent with ad-hoc 

meetings in recent months.  

• According to the testimony before the PSC, His Excellency 

the President Sirisena had requested Mr. Kapila Waidyaratne, 

then Secretary, MOD not to invite the IGP after 13th 

November 2018. Testimony also indicated that President 

instructed Mr. Hemasiri Fernando, former Secretary, MOD 

not to invite the Prime Minister, the State Minister for Defence 

and the IGP (during the Costitutional Crisis, Hon. Mahinda 

Rajapaksha also was not invited). 

• The testimony indicated that four opposition Members of 

Parliament attended NSC meetings in 2019 – Hon. Dayasiri 

Jayasekera, MP, Hon. Thilanga Sumathipala, MP, Hon. 

Mahinda Amaraweera, MP and Hon. Lasantha Alagiywanna, 

MP. 
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The Intelligence Coordinating Meeting is held every Tuesday to 

discuss security and intelligence issues. A pre-meeting is held every 

Monday to discuss issues for the Tuesday meeting.  According to the 

testimony provided by the Director, SIS there is an order dated 

26.04.2016 from the then Secretary, MOD (Mr. Karunasena 

Hettiarachchi) which directs CNI to hold the pre-meeting every 

Monday prior to the weekly ICM on Tuesday.  

The same testimony provided that an order dated 26.07.2018 from 

the then Secretary, MOD (Mr. Kapila Waidyaratne) directed CNI to 

inform the Secretary to the President on matters pertaining to national 

interest. The meeting was chaired by the Secretary of Defence. The 

meeting would be attended at the working level and comprised of the 

CDS, Deputies of the three forces, IGP, CNI, SIS, DMI.  TID was 

included when the IGP requested the then Secretary, MOD, Mr. 

Kapila Waidyaratne to include (page 170).  

At this meeting the pride of place would be for the SIS to brief. 

On 9th April 2019, the meeting was chaired by the then Secretary, 

MOD. This was a critical meeting as it was the first meeting after 

intelligence information reached regarding potential attacks. At this 

meeting, the Secretary, MOD requests the Director, SIS on the issue 

in question with the SIS saying he will send a note. If the matter was 

discussed, steps may have been taken to prevent the Easter Sunday 

attacks. 

The Findings Section will discuss in detail events leading upto the 

Easter Sunday attacks and subsequent developments.   

According to evidence placed before us, the Easter Sunday attacks 

took place in the following places and times: 

8:45 a.m.  Catholic Church of St. Sebastian in 

Negombo 

8:45 a.m.  Catholic Shrine of St. Anthony in Kotahena,  

Kochchikade 

8.47 a.m.  Hotel Kingsbury, Colombo   
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8.54 a.m.   Hotel Shangri-La, Colombo  

9:10 a.m.  Zion Church in Batticaloa  

9.12 a.m.   Hotel Cinnamon Grand, Colombo  

1.30 p.m.  The Tropical Inn, Dehiwala 

2.25 p.m. Housing Complex, Dematagoda  

The NSC met immediately after the explosions. According to Mr. 

Hemasiri Fernando’s testimony, the President had requested the 

Secretary of Defence and the Secretary to the President not to attend 

a meeting called by the Prime Minister. 

The Three Member ad-hoc Committee appointed by the President  

The President appointed a three-member Committee to look into 

the Easter Sunday attacks (referred to as the ad hoc Committee). The 

Committee was headed by Supreme Court Judge Hon. Vijith 

Malalgoda, former IGP Mr. N. K. Ilangakoon and former Secretary 

to Law and Order Ministry Mr. Padmasiri Jayamanne. The ad-hoc 

Committee was initially appointed for two weeks and was 

subsequently given three further weeks with the Committee providing 

two interim reports and a final report to the President.  

The PSC heard testimony of the three members on 20th August 

2019 and was informed that the work of the Committee was 

completed on 31st May 2019 and the final report handed to the 

President on 10th June 2019. The PSC was informed that the ad hoc 

Committee was not established under any law and therefore had no 

legal standing. 

Article 110 (1) of the Constitution states that, “A judge of the 

Supreme Court or Court of Appeal may be required by the President 

of the Republic to perform or discharge any other appropriate duties 

or functions under any written law.” 

Given that the above provisions are to ensure the independence of 

the judiciary, the PSC is of the opinion that the appointment of Justice 
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Hon. Malalgoda to this ad hoc Committee was not desirable and 

should not be treated as a valid precedence. The PSC, nevertheless 

decided to receive evidence from the members of this Committee 

since they had the benefit of evidence from key personalities taken 

immediately after the attacks.  

The PSC notes that the ad hoc Committee was able to examine 

evidence within a matter of days of the attacks and speak to many 

individuals who were involved with law and order, security, 

intelligence and others who responded to the attacks. The PSC notes 

that much of the PSC findings collaborates with the findings of the 

Committee.  

Some of the key findings from the ad hoc Committee relevant to 

the PSC are:  

• The ad hoc Committee informed of several lapses in the 

intelligence and security sector such as lapses in the Police 

Department and the intelligence services (page 1302).  

• The ad hoc Committee found several lapses in the Police 

including police who were apparently on duty on 21st April 

2019 and subsequent changes in record books/falsifying 

records, lapses with instructions given after receiving 

intelligence and the intelligence shared. (page 1305).  

• The findings include that there were several teams working on 

intelligence and there was no proper coordinated approach to 

share intelligence and to be connected (page 1303).  

• The ad hoc Committee also had noted that there were delays 

and lapses in sharing intelligence information received on the 

attacks and steps taken by the relevant authorities to address 

the intelligence. (page 1310)  

• They also noted the delays since receiving information of the 

explosion on 16th April 2019. They noted that by 18th April 

information of the explosion was available and information 

was available of possible attackers by then. Lack of action at 



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 34 ) 

this time with crucial intelligence information received is a 

clear lapse of those responsible (page 1311).  

• The ad hoc Committee also noted that the Minister for 

Defence was in the country on 9th April 2019 when the first 

intelligence information was shared with key individuals but 

none had briefed the President of the intelligence received 

(page 1331).  

The ad hoc Committee also noted the lapses from specific 

individuals and named the IGP, CNI and Secretary, MOD in their 

testimony to the PSC.  

Failures of the Secretary, MOD - They noted that the Secretary, 

MOD had failed in his duty as he had not informed the President who 

was also the Minister of Defence of the intelligence that was received 

(page 1319). They also found that the Secretary, MOD should have 

informed the Minister of Defence to call a meeting of the NSC which 

was also not done (page 1319-20). The Secretary, MOD should have 

instructed the relevant officials including the IGP and security forces 

(pages 1329/1334). 

Failures of the IGP - The Committee also noted that the security 

of the political leadership had not been informed of the intelligence 

received. The PSC was informed that the Director, President’s 

Security and the Director, Prime Minister’s Security were not 

informed of the intelligence received and that this should have been 

done by the IGP. Intelligence should also have been shared with 

Senior DIGs and others in the Police which was the responsibility of 

the IGP (page 1335). The Committee reported that they had 

questioned the IGP to this lapse and he had informed that he had 

expected the DIG in charge of STF to inform (page 1323).   

The ad hoc Committee also informed that the attitude of the IGP 

was that he had sent the note on the 9th April to the relevant 

individuals and that his position was “I have done my part. By saying 

that “FNA”, I have finished my part. I expected the other people to 

convey other things, I am the IG that is all I do” (page 1323).   
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The Committee also noted the delays in action from the IGP. The 

first intelligence report was received by the IGP on 9th April 2019 but 

he had not taken any steps until 19th April 2019. The Committee noted 

that the IGP had sent it back asking for further investigation and 

reporting back but necessary action had not been taken (page 1324).   

Failures of the CNI- The ad hoc Committee also noted that the 

CNI did not have the needed knowledge and expertise in intelligence 

and thus failed to understand the gravity of the intelligence 

information received. They also noted that Director, SIS was aware 

CNI did not have this knowledge and had taken advantage of this 

situation (page 1324). The Committee also noted that the CNI should 

have got the intelligence information analysed through his office 

which he had failed to do (page 1327). The Committee also noted that 

the CNI did not respond as needed when the intelligence information 

was received including not responding to messages and calls (page 

1326).  

The ad hoc Committee also found another lapse was with the 

political leadership nor the Security Commanders being informed of 

the intelligence information (page 1323).  

The Committee had noted there were problems within some of the 

existing intelligence agencies such as the SIS and DMI and that may 

have prevented the Director, SIS from sharing the intelligence 

information at the 9th April 2019 meeting (page 1330).  

The Committee had made the recommendation to introduce 

legislation with the State Intelligence Service and to have one 

independent intelligence service (pages 1302-1303). The new law 

should address how intelligence is gathered, how it is discussed, who 

it should be shared with, and who should be part of the discussions 

(page 1304).   

The Committee also noted that some politicians had known of the 

potential attacks (page 1313). This despite the President, Prime 

Minister, security force Commanders not being informed. 
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They also noted that there should be one ministry for all religions 

in Sri Lanka (page 1302).   

Whilst the ad hoc Committee did not look into whether there 

should be a separate Ministry for Law and Order, one Committee 

member - Mr. Padmasiri Jayamanne - indicated to the PSC that a 

separate Ministry of Law and Order should exist (page 1306).   

Comments by the PSC on the findings of the ad hoc Committee 

are discussed later in this report 
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Findings 

This section will discuss the testimony received before the PSC 

and categorised according to the following sections: -  

1. Security & Intelligence Framework and Issues;  

2. Despite the rise in religious extremism especially in places 

such as Kattankudy, sufficient action was not taken to monitor 

or control it;  

3. Rise of Religious extremism and inaction of the State in 

controlling it fed into the growth of Islamic extremism;  

4. Prior warnings and complaints made by several people were 

not acted upon;  

5. Lack of trust and coordination between law and order agencies 

such as the Police and the Attorney-General’s Department 

which resulted in Inter and Intra Institutional Communication 

Gaps;    

6. The spread of Wahhabism and Arabization of Kattankudy;  

7. Are there allegations levelled against any Member of 

Parliament, Governors or any other persons; and 

8. Culpability.   
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1. Security & Intelligence Framework and Issues  

This section will discuss the following issues: -  

i. Present framework to gather and share intelligence  

ii. Intelligence sharing in the lead upto Easter Sunday 

attacks.   

iii. Intelligence received in April and action taken.   

iv. Haphazard Security and Intelligence Sharing and Action  

v. Lack of Strategic Vision Expertise and Preparedness. 

vi. Politicisation of the Security and Intelligence Sector.   

vii. Failures 

viii. Concerns in relation to the involvement of some in the 

intelligence network with serious ramifications on the 

politics and future of Sri Lanka 

ix. Need for a New Framework and Structural Reform  

The attacks of Easter Sunday and subsequent revelations indicate 

failures in the existing political, security and intelligence 

establishments. The PSC received testimony from several who spoke 

of the present framework in place and practices in terms of gathering 

and sharing of intelligence and steps in place for action to counter 

security threats. This section of the report will discuss these issues in 

detail and highlight areas where the PSC notes are failures and 

requiring attention.  

1.1.  Present Framework to gather and share intelligence  

The PSC was informed of the structures in place to gather and 

discuss security and intelligence information. The PSC was also 

informed of measures in place to act on intelligence reports which will 

also be discussed in this section. 

The PSC was informed of several structures in place and require 

attention when discussing security and intelligence gathering and 

sharing. The following were highlighted as three that require 

attention: -   
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1. The Intelligence Coordinating Conference (ICC)  

2. The Intelligence Coordinating Meeting (ICM)  

3. The National Security Council (NSC)  

The PSC was informed that the Intelligence Coordinating 

Conference (ICC) is held every Monday if there were serious issues, 

the Intelligence Coordinating Meeting (ICM) held every Tuesday 

to discuss security and intelligence issues. The Intelligence 

Coordinating Conference is a pre-meeting held every Monday to 

discuss issues and in preparation for the Tuesday meeting of the 

Intelligence Coordinating Meeting.  

The PSC was informed that the agenda for the meeting was sent 

via Whatsapp the day prior to the meeting but no information was 

available to indicate how the agenda was set and whether there were 

any follow up actions taken from previous meetings. The inference 

indicated to the Secretary, MOD, taking the lead in organising the 

three meetings listed above. According to the testimony of Director, 

SIS, the CNI sets the agenda for the ICM meeting (page 862) and an 

agenda sent via Whatsapp. But he also said that meetings were erratic 

(page 866) and that at some meetings an agenda was not shared prior 

to the meeting as was the case at the meeting held on 2nd April 2019.  

According to the testimony provided by the Director, SIS, an 

order dated 26.04.2016 from the then Secretary, MOD (Mr. 

Karunasena Hettiarachchi) directs the CNI to hold the ICC every 

Monday prior to the weekly ICM on Tuesday if there are serious 

issues.  

The same testimony provided that an order dated 26.07.2018 from 

the then Secretary, MOD, Mr. Kapila Waidyaratne directed the CNI 

to inform the Secretary to the President on matters pertaining to 

national interest.  

The meetings of the ICC and ICM are attended at the working 

level and comprised of the CDS, Deputies of the three forces, IGP, 

CNI, SIS, the three Commanders and the DMI.  The TID was included 
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when the IGP requested the then Secretary, MOD, Mr. Kapila 

Waidyaratne to include.   

The relevant verbatim is appended below:- 

“පූජිත් ජයසුන්දර මහතා : සාමාන්‍යයෙන් Security Council එයේ 

වුවත්, Intelligence Coordinating Meeting වුවත් ආරම්භෙ යවන්යන් 

Director SIS කරන්‍ detailed presentation එයකන් .ඒක තමයි 

ආරම්භෙ සහ පදන්‍ම යවන්යන් .ඒකත් එේක තමයි ඊළඟට DMI එකට 

ෙන්යන් .then comes the CDS, the three Service Commanders and 

at last me but Coordinating Committee එයේ ආරම්භෙත් ඒකමයි .

එතැනින් පසේයසේ Service Commanders එේකත් කථා කරලා Army, 

Navy, Air Force යවන්‍ම කථා කරන්‍ ඒවාත් තියෙන්‍වා .Then our 

Special Branch and TID .ඒකත් මම කිෙන්න්‍ ඕන්‍ෑ .TID එක ඒයේ 

තිබුයේ න්‍ැහැ .Director TID Mr. Nalaka De Silva එතැන්‍ සිටියේ 

න්‍ැහැ .but I with the permission of the Secretary .මම එයහම 

අරයෙන්‍ Mr. Kapila Waidyaratne කථා කරලා I brought Director, 

TID also to that forum. That is Intelligence Coordinating Meeting 

එකත් යෙන්‍ාවා .යමාකද එොයේ output එකත් අවශ්‍ය නිසා.”   

According to the testimony of the Director, SIS, the ICM meetings 

were also not regular. According to his testimony (page 861) there 

were only 6 meetings out of 26.  

The National Security Council (NSC) is the apex body mandated 

with intelligence and security issues in Sri Lanka. According to 

Gazette No 1081/19 issued on 27th May 1999 under Section 5 of the 

Public Security Ordinance by then President Her Excellency (Mrs.) 

Chandrika Bandaranaike Kumaratunga the NSC is “charged with the 

maintenance of national security with authority to direct security 

operations and matters incidental to it”. (Marked 1W3)  

The Gazette goes on to list the composition of the NSC with the 

President as Commander in Chief of the Armed Forces to head it and 

comprising of a Minister or more than one Minister of the Cabinet 

nominated by the President, Deputy Minister of Defence, Secretary to 

the President, Secretary to the Ministry of Defence, Chief of Defence 

Staff (CDS), Commander of the Army, Commander of the Navy, 

Commander of the Air Force, Inspector General of Police (IGP) and 

the Director General, Internal Intelligence.  

The same Gazette provides for the office of CDS and provides 

that the Commanders of the tri-forces and the IGP will come under 



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 41 ) 

the command of the CDS and that he will advice the NSC on 

‘operational capability and preparedness of the armed forces and the 

police and that he will also implement directions issued by the 

President and the NSC’.  

The NSC has expanded from what was gazetted in 1999 to what 

now also include in addition to the above the Prime Minister, Minister 

for Law and Order, CNI, DMI, Secretaries to the Ministry of Foreign 

Affairs and Ministry of Finance. Some were invited for specific 

meetings depending on the need. Post the Easter Sunday attacks the 

Senior DIG-CID is also invited to the NSC.   

The PSC received testimony by several respondents which 

indicated setbacks with the operations of the NSC. They included ad-

hoc and irregular meetings, key individuals not being invited to 

meetings, Members of Parliament in opposition being invited, failures 

with information sharing and not having a clear follow up process. 

These will be discussed in detail below.  

According to testimony received, as a practice in recent years the 

pride of place at these meetings would be for the Director, SIS to give 

an intelligence briefing. This is a key point that must be highlighted 

as there was through practice a dependence on the SIS to take the lead 

on intelligence gathering and sharing. The PSC comments on the role 

of the SIS in terms of the developments in the lead upto the Easter 

Sunday attacks later in the report.  

Testimony received also indicates that the present Director, SIS 

had regular access to the President. This must be contrasted by limited 

access to the then Secretary, MOD (Mr. Hemasiri Fernando) who 

conveyed that at times he had to wait for up to three hours to meet the 

President. The PSC was also informed of several instances where the 

President was first informed of intelligence by the Director, SIS and 

the impression given to senior officials that the President and the 

Director, SIS had direct and regular communications (page 228). The 

access of the present Director, SIS to the President and the pride of 

place the SIS has received with intelligence briefings has alleviated 

the office above others involved in intelligence gathering. The PSC 
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was also informed that the SIS took the lead in intelligence gathering 

from foreign sources and hence they were expected to play the lead 

role in an instance where intelligence was received from external 

sources, as was the case in the lead up to the Easter Sunday attacks. 

The PSC will comment later in this report on the practice of 

depending on the SIS for briefings in the context of expertise within 

the SIS, expertise elsewhere and what was needed in terms of security 

challenges in Sri Lanka and globally.   

1.2.  Intelligence sharing on the lead up to Easter Sunday Attacks 

The sequence of intelligence gathering and sharing must be noted 

to clearly understand what transpired soon after the initial intelligence 

of potential attacks was received. 

Testimony received by the PSC demonstrates that intelligence 

teams were aware of the potential threats by Zahran, his associates 

and the NTJ prior to the Easter Sunday attacks. Testimony also 

indicates to several intelligence agencies being aware of increasing 

extremism in Sri Lanka and the role of Zahran and his associates in 

this regard.  

According to the Director, SIS and others, intelligence 

information was received on the radicalization and potential threats 

from such groups since 2015 (This is also discussed later in the 

report). According to the testimony of the Director, SIS, a list was 

provided by the SIS on 31st October 2017 of 94 individuals who had 

been radicalised (page 864). Another list was given in February 2019 

with 129 names. A person named Jameel was on top of this list and 

the list was shared with the Police. The TID had questioned Jameel in 

2018 and released him. Jameel was one of the suicide bombers. 

According to the Director, SIS, out of the 94 in the 2017 list, 6-7 

persons were dead and 54 arrested (page 864).  

The TID informed the PSC that social media posts of Zahran and 

his associates were sent to the Attorney-General on 07.06.2017 

followed by a second letter on 12.06.2018 (page 816). The TID only 

received a response from Attorney-General on 12.03.2019 asking for 
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more information in gaps in the information sent. The present report 

discusses this later in the report.  

On 08.04.2018, the Director, SIS writes to the IGP asking to halt 

the investigations conducted by TID (Marked 3W1). 

On 04.05.2018 the TID had first reported against Zahran in the 

Colombo Magistrates Court (page 817). An open warrant was 

obtained in 09.07.2018 (page 817 and 843) after looking at social 

media posts. The warrant was sent to the Facebook office but there 

was no response (page 817).  

The CID was first aware of Zahran’s role on 26th Janaury 2019 

with reports of meetings happening on extremism and it was then that 

CID commenced their investigations (page 780).   

There were reports of his presence in different areas but no 

concrete information was available at that time of a specific location 

(page 768). CID teams were sent to Pasikuda, Kattankudy, Nuwara 

Eliya, Kuliyapitiya and other places where CID received information 

Zahran was present. It was around this time information was shared 

that the group communicated using the “Threema” app and it was 

difficult to find out more due to this technology. Since February, the 

CID was looking for Zahran (page 769)  

On 17.10.2018 the TID sent a letter to TRC, CERT to block FB 

pages of Zahran (page 841) but this was not successful.  

On 30th November 2018 two police constables were killed in 

Vavunathivu, Batticaloa and it was first suspected to be the work of 

former LTTE cadres. It was later discovered that this incident was 

linked to Zahran’s group.  

In December 2018, a Buddha statue was attacked in Mawanalla.  

Minister Kabir Hashim’s coordinating secretary was shot in the 

head after this on March 2019.  

In a search operation, arms belonging to the two policemen killed 

in November 2018 and a T56 machine gun were recovered in 

Wanathavillu. Four persons were arrested in Wanathavillu and it was 
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then the CID realised that Zahran’s group had a link in the November 

and December incidents. (pages 778/802)  

In February 2019, a ban on foreign travel for Zahran was obtained 

from the Mawanalla Magistrate.  

On 28.02.2019, the TID visited Kakunugolla where Zahran’s 

wife’s house was located (page 845). CID had by then created a 

network to monitor and arrest Zahran and TID was asked to withdraw 

from the case. 

Testimony by both the CID and TID indicated that post ethno 

religious attacks in Digana in March 2018, the extremist speeches of 

Zahran increased online and he portrayed the Muslim community 

being under attack by Buddhist clergy. (page 771)  

TID had requested for an increase in manpower in December 2018 

from the IGP but this was not provided possibly linked to the arrest 

of Mr. Nalaka de Silva.  

Senior DIG-CID informed the PSC that they discussed and shared 

information with the SIS since January 2019 (pages 769/770).  

Zahran and associates were discussed at the intelligence meetings. 

The Director, SIS informed that the 19th March 2019 meeting had 

discussed the “Activities of Mohamed Kasim Mohamed Zahran, 

leader of the NTJ” (page 866) when an unidentified agency had said 

that Zahran had fled the country to which the Director, SIS had 

vehemently denied.  

1.3.  Intelligence received in April and action taken  

The following sequence of events in April is important to 

understand the steps taken by the intelligence and security structures 

in the lead upto the Easter Sunday attacks.   

The Director, SIS informed the PSC, on 2nd April 2019 that he did 

not think he briefed on Zahran (page 867) and there were no related 

action points/follow up (page 868). This showed a lack of proper 

follow up in intelligence meetings despite several intelligence teams 

being privy to potential threats.  
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The Director, SIS informed the PSC that he received intelligence 

from his sources on 4th April 2019 via Whatsapp but the identity of 

his source was not revealed to the PSC. He confirmed that he had got 

similar information in writing on 5th April 2019. This had resulted in 

him calling a meeting of his officers and the information received was 

discussed.  

According to the Director, SIS, it was on 6th April 2019 that he 

discovered that surveillance was undertaken since 2015 as there had 

been discussion of killing non-believers, foreigners and not to drink 

Coca-Cola. (page 860) Head, CNI also confirmed with the PSC that 

surveillance was there since 2015 (page 64).   

The first person the Director, SIS had informed was the CNI on 

the intelligence received. This was on 7th April 2019 where the 

Director, SIS had asked for instructions (page 868). No one else was 

informed till then. Head, CNI informed the PSC that he was given the 

intelligence information on the morning of 8th April 2019 (page 67). 

He further states that he (CNI) informed the Secretary, MOD on 8th 

afternoon regarding the intelligence information and suggested that it 

be given to the Police. The Secretary, MOD had, according to CNI, 

informed him to send the intelligence information to the Police. He 

was unable to meet the Secretary, MOD on 8th morning as the Indian 

Defence Secretary was visiting Sri Lanka (page 68).   

On the 9th April an ICM was scheduled and according to Director, 

SIS, there was no agenda sent on the 8th for the meeting on the 9th 

April 2019 (page 868).  

Despite this statement, the Agenda for the 9th April 2019 meeting 

is marked “4W4”. Agenda Item 2 is listed to be a briefing by the 

Director, SIS on the “Current Security/Intelligence Update”. Director, 

SIS says that this agenda was not shared with the participants. ( page 

872)  

On 9th April 2019 the ICM met for the first time after the 

intelligence information was received. The meeting was chaired by 

the then Secretary, MOD. According to Director, SIS, the meeting 

was attended by Commanders of the three forces and all investigating 
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agencies including DMI. His testimony and testimony of others 

confirmed that CID was not present at this meeting. The TID was 

present only becsause the Director, TID was at the MOD on that day 

and the IGP had taken the Director to the meeting. This was a critical 

meeting as it was the first meeting after intelligence information was 

received by the SIS regarding potential attacks.  

It was at this meeting the CNI showed the document dated 7th 

April 2019 to the Director, SIS. The response of the Director, SIS was 

as follows:  

“Mr. Nilantha Jayawardena:  Once I entered the room - I 

sit next to the Chief of National Intelligence - he showed me my 

paper saying, “Nilantha, your paper”.  I will tell you the exact 

words I said in Sinhalese. I said, “සර්, ඕක තාම සර් ළඟද? ඕක 

යලඩේ. ඇයි ඕක තිො ෙත්යත්? තාම මුකුත් කයළේ න්‍ැද්ද? ඕක 

කිෙන්න්‍”. “න්‍ැහැ, මම Secretaryට කිව්වා” කිෙලා ඔහු කිව්වා. He 

said, “I have briefed the Secretary”. “Fine. සර් මම ඕකට අද 

report එක හද හද ඉදලා ආයව්. මම ගිහින් report එක අත්සන් 

කරන්‍වා. ඕක ෙවන්න්‍” කිෙන්‍ එක මම කිව්වා.  

Then, at the conference, he said “සර්, නිලන්තයේ-” කිෙලා. 
Then, the Secretary asked, “Nilantha, what is happening?” I 

said, “Sir, I am preparing a special report. I will be sending it to 

the IGP and the CID directly today”. (Page 821) 

The Director, SIS in his testimony to the PSC states that “I 

expected him to act on it” (page 829) when he realised the seriousness 

of the report that was sent. He repeats this later in his evidence (page 

831) “I do not want to put the blame on the CNI. But I expected him 

to do it. That was the information stage of the piece of paper I had 

with me….”  

“I expected the CNI to have a special meeting on Monday. 

Because, there is a written order for the CNI by the former 

Secretary, Defence that whenever he gets some information on 

national security to have a special meeting with the Heads to 

discuss it before the Tuesday’s meeting. I normally send the 

Deputy Director, SIS in order to discuss the ground level 

matters”. (page 871)    

This is critical since the Director, SIS was aware early on that it 

was a serious matter but he only informed the CNI about it and did 

not brief the 9th April 2019 meeting nor anyone else. He also goes on 

to add that he expected a Monday meeting to be called where he 
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would have sent his Deputy Director. At no point does he feel he 

should have either personally called for the Monday meeting 

considering the serious nature of the intelligence or requested for such 

a meeting. He subsequently admited that on the Monday (8th April 

2019) the Indian Defence Secretary was visiting Sri Lanka and this 

may have been the reason for the meeting not to be held (page 871).   

After discussing agenda items, the Secretary, MOD requested the 

Director, SIS to give an update on the intelligence received. He had 

said: “Nilantha, what is happening?” (pages 862/869).   

To this the Director, SIS had said he will send a note with details-  

“Sir, I am preparing a special report. I will be sending it to 

the IGP and the CID directly today” (page 862). And adds “I will 

recheck it and send” (page 869).   

It must be noted here that according to the testimony received by 

the PSC, the Secretary, MOD, the senior most civilian administrator 

in the defence establishment was not directly informed of the 

intelligence information received by the Director, SIS. The Secretary, 

MOD till then was only informed of the intelligence information 

received by the CNI. This despite the fact that the SIS reports to the 

Secretary, MOD. 

Throughout his testimony to the PSC, the Director, SIS said he 

expected the CNI to discuss the intelligence information received at 

the ICC to be held on the Monday (page 870) to which meeting he 

would have sent the SIS, Deputy. The Director, SIS insisted in his 

testimony that coordination remained with the CNI, and SIS was not 

expected to coordinate.  

He says this but goes on to say that SIS has a better way of 

collecting information insinuating that they are the best prepared in 

terms of intelligence - 

“But, you know other people also try to get information from 

various sources. But, I think in that aspect, we have a better 

mechanism of eliciting or collecting information because of the 

nature we operate. We have more of a secret operation” (page 

870).   
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The above comment is an admission by the Director, SIS that the 

SIS may have been best prepared to receive information. In the 

present instance, he only chose to inform the CNI of the intelligence 

information received. He also does not brief the 9th April meeting 

despite having the intelligence information and even when called for 

by name to speak on it.  

Furthermore, evidence by the CNI indicates that at the ICM on 9th 

April 2019 the Director, SIS says he had informed the IGP of the 

intelligence information prior to the ICM. (page 72)  

“ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා :එතයකාට කිව්වා ,
යපාලිසේපතිතුමාට කිෙලා තියෙන්යන් කිෙලා? 

සිසිර යමන්ිසේ මහතා: “කිෙලා තියෙන්යන්” කිෙලා කිව්වා. මම 
කිව්වා, මම යම්ක යපාලිසේපතිතුමාට යොමු කරන්‍වා කිෙලා. එො 
කිව්වා, ඉදිරිපත් කරන්න්‍ කිෙලා. 

ෙරු (ආචාර්ෙ) ජෙම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න්‍ මහතා: ඒ රැසේීයම්දී සාකච්ඡා 
වුයේ න්‍ැද්ද? 

සිසිර යමන්ිසේ මහතා: න්‍ැහැ. 

ෙරු (ආචාර්ෙ) ජෙම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න්‍ මහතා: එතයකාට ආ රේෂක 
යේකම්තුමා යමාකද කිව්යව්? දැන් ඔෙතුමා කිව්වායන්, ආරේෂක 
යේකම්තුමාටත් ඔෙ කිව්වා කිෙලා - 

සිසිර යමන්ිසේ මහතා: ඔව්. එතයකාට ආරේෂක යේකම්තුමා 
එතැන්‍දී කිව්වා, “ඕක දැන් මම කිෙලා යන් තියෙන්යන්. ඊළඟට විසේතර 
කරන්න්‍” කිෙලා කිව්වා. එච්චරයි සර් මම ෙත්ත action එක. 

ෙරු (ආචාර්ෙ) ජෙම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න්‍ මහතා: යමාකේද කිව්යව්? 

හරිෙට පැහැදිලිව කිෙන්න්‍. 

 සිසිර යමන්ිසේ මහතා: මම යම්ක කිව්වාම, ආරේෂක 
යේකම්තුමා කිව්වා, “යම් information එක නිලන්තත් මට කිෙලා 
තියෙන්‍වා”යි කිෙලා. ඒ - 

ෙරු (ආචාර්ෙ) ජෙම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න්‍ මහතා: ආරේෂක යේකම් 
කිව්වා? 

සිසිර යමන්ිසේ මහතා: ඔව්. 

ෙරු (ආචාර්ෙ) ජෙම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න්‍ මහතා: IGP යමාකද කිව්යව්? 

සිසිර යමන්ිසේ මහතා: ඇත්තවශ්‍යෙන්ම යපාලිසේපතිතුමාත් 
එතැන්‍ හිටිො. මම හිතන්යන් න්‍ැහැ, යපාලිසේපතිතුමායේ අවධාන්‍ෙට 
ඒක යොමුවුණා කිෙලා. එයහම න්‍ම් ඒ යව්ලායව් අවධාන්‍ෙ යොමු 
කරන්න්‍ තිබුණා. 

ෙරු (වවදය) න්‍ලින්ද ජෙතිසේස මහතා: න්‍මුත් SIS ප්‍රධානිො 
සාමාන්‍යයෙන් යපාලිසේපතිවරොට එම  යතාරතුරු කිෙන්‍වාද? 
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සිසිර යමන්ිසේ මහතා: SIS ප්‍රධානිො යපාලිසේපතිතුමාත් එේක 
සම්ෙන්ධ යවන්‍වා, සර්. 

ෙරු (වවදය) න්‍ලින්ද ජෙතිසේස මහතා: ඒ කිෙන්යන් SIS 

ප්‍රධානිොත් යකළින්ම යතාරතුරු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොට ෙවන්‍ 
අතයර්, යපාලිසේපතිවරො හරහාත් ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොයේ 
අවධාන්‍ෙට ෙම් යතාරතුරු යොමු කරන්‍වා ඇති යන්? 

සිසිර යමන්ිසේ මහතා: මම ඒ ෙැන්‍ කිෙන්න්‍ හරිෙටම දන්යන් 
න්‍ැහැ සර්.  

ෙරු (මහාචාර්ෙ) ආශු මාරසිිංහ මහතා: ඔෙතුමා අර “eyes only” 

කිෙන්‍ ලිපිෙ  යපාලිසේපතිතුමාට යොමු කළාට පසේයසේ, යපාලිසේපතිතුමා 
එම ලිපිෙ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් ඔෙතුමා එේක සාකච්ඡාවේ කළාද? 

සිසිර යමන්ිසේ මහතා: න්‍ැහැ. මමත් එේක සාකච්ඡා කයළේ න්‍ැහැ.  

ෙරු (මහාචාර්ෙ) ආශු මාරසිිංහ මහතා: එම ලිපිෙ 
යපාලිසේපතිතුමාට ලැබී තියෙන්යන් කවදාද? 

සිසිර යමන්ිසේ මහතා: 09 වැනිදාම හවස. 

ෙරු (මහාචාර්ෙ) ආශු මාරසිිංහ මහතා: 09 වැනිදාම හවස. 

ෙරු (වවදය) න්‍ලින්ද ජෙතිසේස මහතා: 08 වැනිදා හවස යන්ද? 

ෙරු (මහාචාර්ෙ) ආශු මාරසිිංහ මහතා: 09වැනි දා හවස. 

සිසිර යමන්ිසේ මහතා: 09 වැනිදා.”  (page 72)  

This indicates that the IGP was sent the intelligence information 

prior to the ICM on 9th April 2019 but also did not raise or discuss it 

at the meeting.  

It must also be noted that the Director, SIS has said in his 

testimony to the PSC that he gave extensive briefings in prior 

meetings on intelligence updates. The past practices of giving 

briefings and having the pride of place at intelligence meetings to give 

such updates are indicators that the SIS had a specific responsibility 

to brief on intelligence information received. In the 9th April 2019, the 

Director, SIS was specifically requested by the Secretary, MOD to 

brief on the intelligence information received to which he responded 

by saying he would send a note to the IGP and CID. Thus, he had two 

opportunities to brief. The first was when his was to give an update 

according to Agenda Item 2. The second was when the Secretary, 

MOD called on him by name. Both instances he remained silent on 

the intelligence information received. At no point did he convey to 

anyone else other than the CNI that the intelligence information was 
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of a serious nature. This despite his own admission to the CNI that 

this intelligence information was of a serious nature (“Oka Ledak”). 

From the testimony provided, the Director, SIS failed by not taking 

all necessary measures to keep the intelligence and security apparatus 

of Sri Lanka informed of the intelligence information received.    

The PSC also heard evidence from the Army Commander who 

was at the ICM on 9th April and stated that no information of the 

intelligence information was shared at the meeting and that the 

military could have taken appropriate steps to prevent attacks if 

intelligence was shared. The Army Commander also informed the 

PSC that he only found out the intelligence information after the 

attacks which the PSC notes is a serious issue. The PSC notes that the 

SIS should have briefed the ICM and also shared the intelligence 

information with its counterparts in the intelligence sector including 

the DMI so that a collective effort could have been made to address 

the intelligence information received.   

On 9th April 2019 the Director, SIS had sent the IGP, with copies 

to CNI and CID, a letter marked “TOP SECRET” (marked 4W2) 

giving the details including the below- that Zahran Hashim of the 

National Thowheed Jamaat (NTJ) and his associates are planning to 

carry out a suicide attack in Sri Lanka and that they were to target 

some churches. It was also conveyed that the Indian High 

Commission in Sri Lanka was to be a target. No dates were given as 

to when the attack was to be carried out. It goes on to state that the 

modes of attack may include Suicide Attack, Weapon Attack, Knife 

Attack or Truck Attack. Individuals who are likely team members of 

the planned suicide attack include- Zahran Hashim, Ja Al Quithal, 

Rilwan, Saji Moulavi, Shahid, Milhan and others.  

The Director, SIS also informed the PSC that he informed his 

team in the East of the intelligence received. (page 874)  

On 9th April 2019, the CNI sends the IGP a letter marked “TOP 

SECRET- EYES ONLY” (marked 4W1) where he refers to 

information received from the Director, SIS. On the same day, the 
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IGP made a note on the letter marked 4W1 and sends it to DIG-WP, 

DIG-STF, Senior DIG-CID and DIG Special Range.   

Director, TID informed the PSC that he had received the 

intelligence information on 10th April 2019 and had instructed his 

officers to arrest Zahran and others. He had also informed Facebook 

to block Zahran’s page on the same day and received a response from 

Facebook on 12th April 2019 which resulted in the page being blocked 

on 15th April 2019.   He had also informed on 11th April his office in 

Kalmunai on this intelligence. According to testimony received, the 

TID officers had also visited several areas during the period 14th, 15th 

and 16th April 2019 in search of Zahran and associates. (pages 840-

841)  

The PSC notes here that despite the intelligence information being 

available of potential security threats, there was no ICC or ICM 

meeting called in the following week to 9th April which was on 16th 

April 2019. The PSC also notes that no NSC meeting was called at 

any point between receiving the intelligence information and the 

Easter Sunday attacks.  

The PSC also notes that the Secretary of the MOD was only 

briefed by the CNI prior to the 9th meeting and that others who 

received the intelligence after the 9th meeting also failed to inform 

him. The Secretary, MOD is only informed again on 17th April 2019, 

this was after the explosion in Kattankudy.  

The PSC notes that the lapses in communication and keeping the 

senior most official at the MOD informed are failures that require 

attention.  

On 17th April 2019, the Director, SIS received intelligence 

information from his team in the East to the following (pages 872/ 

873) “Sir, there is a complaint in the Police”.  

“Mr. Nilantha Jayawardena: After the 09th of April, I made 

it a heading, “Information of an alleged plan of attack.” Why I 

used the term, “alleged” was because we use that term in our 

intelligence.  Some say, but we do not have proof.  So, that is why 

I used the term, “alleged plan of attack.” Why I attach this 

information sheet is to attract the attention of the reader. Once I 
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took over, I have put caveat also not to disseminate. And after this 

we were doing our investigations and on the 09th itself I reported 

that.  We do not have specific information to prove that there is a 

definite plan to attack churches and the Indian High Commission. 

But by looking at the background of these people – I dictated a 

Sinhala report.  Normally possibilities cannot be ruled out in 

English terms.  හැෙැයි මාන්‍සික තත්වෙ කිව්වා  .“ යමයහම එකේ 

ෙැන්‍ රාජය  බුද්ි යසේවෙට දැන්‍ට - I think I used the word, 

වර්තමාන්‍යේ නිරීේෂණෙ යන්‍ාවන්‍ න්‍මුත්, සහරාන් යේ පසු හැසිරීම්, 

පසු යද්වේ ෙලන්‍ යකාට අන්‍යාෙමිකෙන් මරලා උතුම් ජිහාඩ්ෙේ 

කරන්‍  මාන්‍සික අිංෙෙ තියෙන්‍වා ” කිෙලා.  

And I gave the details because in the information sheet they 

said, “Jal al-Quital and Rilwan”, but these are the same people. 

Jal al-Quital and Rilwan are the same people- brother of Zahran. 

So, I sent that report and I sent my officers to Eastern sector.  We 

alerted my men on the ground. We were doing inquiries and we 

were gathering information.   Then on the 17th my people from 

that area said, “Sir, there is a complaint in the Police.” I asked, 

“What sort of complaint?” It was about 7.30 p.m. in the evening, 

I got this call on the 17th. He said, “සර් ,යපාි පිපිරීමේ ව යේ” 

කිෙලා. I said “ෙන්න්‍ .ගිහින් ෙලන්න්‍.” කිෙලා. And they said, 

“හිතා ෙන්න්‍ ෙැරි විදිහට කෑලි කෑලි කැිලා.” කිෙලා. Then we 

started inquiries.   අපි ඉසේයසේලා ෙලන්‍ යකාට, this had happened 

in 16th around 9.20 or 10.10 at night.   So, nobody had been there.  

It was rainy day. Thunderstorms had been there.  There is an 

army camp near that place.  It is a land bought by British person 

from another; he has a background.   So, I said, “You find some 

details.” Then we got the chassis number of the motorcycle.  So, 

we go the chassis number; then we found the owner – a lady. I 

said – “Speak to that lady.” It became a semi - because we 

understood; we have this information;”  (page 872/873)   

On the same day, the Director, SIS is informed of the motorcycle 

explosion in Kattankudy the previous evening (16th April 2019). The 

incident was first reported to the local police and only after was it 

reported to the intelligence teams.  

The Director, SIS sent images of the explosion to the Secretary, 

MOD via Whatsapp and followed by a call to brief him (page 873). It 

was when seeing the images that the Director, SIS discovered the link 

to Wanathavillu and the missing ammunition.    

On 18th April 2019, Director, SIS had sent a special report to the 

IGP and CID saying that the explosion is linked to Zahran and it is a 

dry run. (page 874)  
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On 19th April 2019, Director, SIS calls IGP and says “සර් යම්ක 

ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙේ”. He had then said that the matter should be given to the 

CID.  

On the same day, Director, SIS had called, Senior DIG-CID, Mr. 

Ravi Seneviratne and said “You have the people…IGP wanted me to 

tell you” (page 874).   

On 19th April 2019, Director, SIS informed DMI “There is an 

incident like this. You have to act fast. Tell your people” (page 874). 

This seems the first attempt where the SIS informed the DMI of the 

intelligence information received.  

On the same day, Director, SIS had called Director, TID- “You 

have to take this seriously, because this is definitely a blast. This is 

Zahran’s activity. We cannot take it lightly” (page 874).  

It should be noted here that the Director, SIS took the initiative, 

post the 16th April 2019 explosion to reach out to the Secretary-MOD, 

IGP, CID, DMI and TID. This is in stark contrast to his actions in the 

previous week when he said that he expected the CNI to communicate 

with others and even chose not to brief the ICM on the intelligence 

information received. With the information on the explosion, the 

Director, SIS chose to bypass the CNI and directly liaised with others. 

The PSC notes the difference in action by the Director, SIS between 

first receiving the intelligence and after the explosion on 16th April 

2019.  

The PSC also notes that the Army Commander in his evidence 

stated that he had only found out the intelligence information after the 

attacks occurred. The Director, SIS though states he had 

communicated the intelligence information on 19th April to the DMI. 

If the statement of the Director, SIS is correct, there was a 

communication gap between the Army Commander and DMI.  

On 20th April 2019, the Director, SIS received via Whastapp a 

message from his source.  

He sends a message to his sources on the lines of,  
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“Zahran Hashim of NTJ of Sri Lanka and his associates have 

a plan to carry out and Itishad attack- suicide attack- in Sri 

Lanka. It is further learnt that they have conducted a dry run and 

caused a blast with the explosive laid motorcycle at Palamunai 

near Kattankudy in Sri Lanka on the 16th as part of their plan”. 

(page 876)  

The response from the source was:  

“It is learnt that they are likely to carry out their attack in 

Sri Lanka at any time on or before 21.04.2019. they have reported 

the selected eight places include a church and a hotel where 

Indians inhabiting a large number. Further details awaited” 

(pages 876-877)  

The Director, SIS informed the PSC that he passed the message 

to Secretary, MOD, IGP, CNI and called them to follow up. The IGP 

had directed him to inform the CNI, Senior DIG- CID, Senior DIG-

WP. He also claimed he informed STF during this period (page 875).   

Despite the dry run in Kattankudy on 16th April 2019 and 

intelligence information available of the potential attack, the Director, 

SIS did not inform the DIG- Eastern Province nor did he inquire from 

anyone else whether to keep the relevant security apparatus in the area 

informed.  

On 21st April 2019 morning around 8.27 a.m., the Director, SIS 

received a message that said the following:  

“Respected Sir, good morning. They are likely to operate 

between 0600 hours and 1000 hours today. For your kind 

information, Sir” “One of their targets is a Methodist Church, 

Colombo.” (page 877)  

At this time the Director, SIS had immediately called DIG-WP 

and admitted he had left aside protocol by not first informing his 

superiors. (page 877)  

“Mr. Nilantha Jayawardena:   I saw that. It was on the 20th 

at 16:53. As per the reliable input, “Zahran Hasheem of National 

Thowheed Jama’ath of Sri Lanka and his associates have a plan 

to carry out an Itishad attack - suicide attack - in Sri Lanka. It is 

further learnt that they have conducted a dry run and caused a 

blast with the explosive led motorcycle at Palamunai near 

Kattankudy in Sri Lanka on the 16th as a part of their plan”. This 

is our debriefing to my sources. So they confirmed my view. The 
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input further states, “It is learnt that they are likely to carry out 

their attack in Sri Lanka at any time on or before 21.04.2019. 

They have reported the selected eight places including a church 

and a hotel where Indians inhabiting a large number. Further 

details awaited.”  

So, once I got this, I spoke to them. I told them to debrief the 

source and come back to me. So, we had a chat on this matter. 

Again, the second source also confirmed it to me at 5.30. But, by 

that time, I have sent it.  

Then, I have specifically requested the Secretary, “Sir, I have 

told the IGP. Will you also talk to him?” Then, he sent me a text 

message saying, “Discussed with IGP on your advice.”  

Then, at 8.27 in the morning, I got further information from 

my source. This is what I got.  “Respected Sir, good morning. 

They are likely to operate between 0600 hours and 1000 hours 

today. For your kind information, Sir.” Then, he asked me, “Sir, 

any updates?” Then, again he sent- 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake: What is it about? 

Hon. M. A. Sumanthiran: He got another input on Sunday 

morning.  

Mr. Nilantha Jayawardena: I got the above information 

from a source on the 21st morning at 8.27. The source further 

said, “Sir, one of their targets is a Methodist church, Colombo”  

Then, without following the protocol, I called several 

officials. My first call was to Mr. Munasinghe at 8.27.  

Hon. M. A. Sumanthiran: DIG, Western Province.  

Mr. Nilantha Jayawardena: I have changed my order 

because action needed from the- 

Hon. M. A. Sumanthiran: The protocol had to be forgotten 

and you had to go direct.  

Mr. Nilantha Jayawardena: Yes, I had to go directly to the 

ground commanders. At 8.28, I told Mr. Munasinghe, “සර් 
ෙහන්න්‍ plan එකේ තියෙන්‍වා  .ෙලලාද තියෙන්යන් ? Duty දාලද 
තියෙන්යන්?”   

Then, at 8.30, I called the IGP, the second in command. I told 

him, “Sir, I told this to the DIG, CID”  

Then, I talked to the Secretary, Defence at 8.32 and said, 

“සර්, යමයහම යදෙේ තියෙන්‍වා  .Methodist church එකකට 
ෙහන්යන් කිෙන්‍වා .Methodist churches මම යහාෙන්‍වා .I have my 

friends. I will also look for Methodist churches.” (page 877)  

He followed up the call with calls to the IGP and Secretary, MOD.  
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The PSC notes that the Kollupitiya OIC visited the Methodist 

Church and requested the service to be halted but the service 

continued.  

Director, SIS informed that at 9.30 a.m. he went to the MOD. 

Several politicians were apparently at the place. He had left the place 

when he learnt that there maybe 2 more attacks. 

He claimed he briefed the President on the attacks around 

1.30/2.00 p.m.  

At no point in the lead up to the attacks was the political leadership 

informed by anyone in the security and intelligence apparatus. This 

was during a period between 4-21 April 2019 (period of 17 days) 

when some in the intelligence, security and law and order apparatus 

was aware of intelligence received and the explosion on 16th April. 

The President was out of Sri Lanka and in his absence the Prime 

Minister was not kept informed of the intelligence. 

The NSC met after the explosions. According to Mr. Hemasiri 

Fernando’s testimony, which is appended below, the President had 

requested the Secretary to Defence and the Secretary to the President 

not to attend the meeting called by the Prime Minister.   

“Mr. Hemasiri Fernando: No, Sir. That was out of the 

question because I was not an independent Secretary. I had to get 

instructions from the President for every little thing and I was not 

ready to talk to the Prime Minister although I thought it is deemed 

fit. And even when the Prime Minister called for some kind of a 

security meeting at Temple Trees-  

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: After the incident - 

Mr. Hemasiri Fernando: On the same day.  

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: But after the incident? 

Mr. Hemasiri Fernando: Yes, after the incident. The 

Secretary to the President and the Defence Secretary were 

advised by none other than the President of this country, not to 

go.” (page 226) . 
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1.4  Haphazard Security and Intelligence Sharing and Action  

The PSC notes that despite the structures in place, there were 

failures in sharing urgent information with the necessary parties that 

resulted in delayed action.  

The sequence of events leading to the Easter Sunday attacks 

indicate that despite some intelligence available regarding the 

radicalization of some individuals and some events that had a bearing 

on the security situation, this was not connected with other 

intelligence that was gathered by the different intelligence teams. 

Information also notes that the TID carried out investigations on 

Zahran and associates based on social media posts but the CID was 

only aware of Zahran and associates and their role in recent incidents 

in January 2019. The PSC is unaware if information was shared prior 

to January 2019.   

The information from the ground after the 16th April explosion 

indicated that there was a connection to the Wanathavillu incident. 

The Director SIS had noted that 99 detonators had been recovered 

from Wanathavilluwa and that one was missing from the 100 pack. 

What is not clear is how much of this information was conveyed to 

others in the intelligence and security sector.  

The PSC also notes that the investigations into Zahran and the 

NTJ conducted by the TID faced problems after the arrest of the then 

Director, TID in 2018. By this time the CID had also commenced 

investigations into Zahran. It was reported in the evidence that the 

CID and TID were both investigating Zahran and as a result the TID 

was told to withdraw. (page 785)  

There were also failures with the law and order authorities and the 

Attorney-General’s Department with information received. 

Information indicates to TID having sent files to the AG’s Department 

in 2017 and 2018 but only receiving a response in 2019 where the 

Department requested for more information (this will be discussed 

later in the report).  
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The PSC notes that the intelligence information received on 4th 

April 2019 was of a very serious nature and the categorisation of it as 

‘Top Secret’, ‘Top Priority’ indicate to such. The PSC is intrigued as 

as to why the Director SIS did not share this intelligence information 

at the ICM held on 9th April 2019 when others at the ICM could have 

been briefed of the nature of the intelligence information and a 

discussion had as to action needed. Instead, the Director, SIS says that 

he will send a note to the IGP. This is a glaring error on the part of the 

Director, SIS.  

The sequence of events provided above demonstrate that despite 

the intelligence information being available, the Director, SIS failed 

to report to others and when asked at the 9th April 2019 meeting, failed 

to brief those present at the ICM. His reason on expecting the CNI to 

brief does not stand in light of the serious nature of the intelligence 

information and having been given an opportunity to brief the ICM. 

The PSC also notes that the Director, SIS subsequently took action on 

his own initiative without waiting for the CNI to inform others. Thus, 

the reason given by the Director, SIS of expecting the CNI to brief 

others does not stand in light of his subsequent actions.  

The subsequent letters marked 4W1 and 4W2 were dispatched on 

9th April 2019 to specific individuals in the security and intelligence 

structures. A notable failure of not sharing intelligence information at 

this stage with the military and with the political leadership must be 

noted.  

Following the explosion on 16th April 2019, the Director, SIS took 

his own initiative to inform relevant security and intelligence 

operatives rather than wait for instructions. Despite the Director, SIS 

saying he was informing people on the ground, neither the Director, 

SIS or IGP had informed the DIG Eastern Province on intelligence 

received.  

The Prime Minister and the State Minister for Defence both 

informed the PSC that neither was informed of the intelligence at any 

point prior to the Easter Sunday attacks. The PSC notes that this is a 

serious failure considering the fact that the President left for an 
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overseas trip on 16th April 2019. In the absence of the President, the 

Prime Minister and the State Minister for Defence should have been 

kept informed of intelligence received.  

There was no meeting called for of either the ICC, the ICM or 

NSC after 9th April 2019 and this is a serious lapse considering the 

nature of the intelligence information received and following the 16th 

April 2019 explosion.  

The PSC also notes that despite the role played by the SIS in 

intelligence gathering, the Director, SIS admitted to never sending 

any information in writing to the Secretary, MOD (page 883).  

The PSC also notes that the SIS and DMI are the two lead 

intelligence gathering entities in Sri Lanka and the Director, SIS in 

his own evidence indicated that the SIS is the lead in receiving 

intelligence from external sources. Hence, the SIS had the duty to 

share the intelligence information received on the 4th April with DMI. 

The Director, SIS did not share this information directly with the DMI 

nor did he share it at the ICM on 9th April 2019. This is a failure in 

the part of the SIS. The Director, SIS also did not immediately share 

intelligence information received after the 16th April explosion and 

only felt information should be shared with the DMI on 19th April 

2019. This was more than two weeks after receiving the first 

intelligence information. This is a major failure on the part of SIS.  

Testimony also indicates to the ad-hoc nature with meetings of 

the NSC. Whilst the period during the war and immediate post war 

resulted in regular NSC briefings due to the security threats and issues 

requiring attention, testimony indicates that the NSC did not have 

regular meetings. The PSC was not given reasons as to the failure to 

have regular NSC meetings. The PSC was also noted that the reliance 

was on the President to call the NSC meeting. None in the security 

and intelligence deemed it fit to advice the President to have regular 

meetings and revisit the working methods in the NSC.  

It is now apparent that despite the 1999 Gazette which provided 

for the constitution of the NSC, the attendance at the NSC was 

determined solely by the President with no reasons given for the 
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exclusion of key members who should be part of security and 

intelligence briefings such as the Prime Minister, State Minister for 

Defence and IGP.  

Testimony also indicated to the lack of a concrete structure in 

place to inform of meetings and follow through on action points. No 

written minutes were taken and there is no known record of follow up 

points.  

There is also concern as to how the agenda is set and the lack of 

planning and preparation for these important meetings. Testimony to 

the PSC indicates that the Secretary, MOD taking the lead role in 

setting the agenda and informing of meetings. The PSC notes that the 

Secretary is a civil servant who is the chief administrator of the 

Ministry of Defence. She/he may not always have the expertise to 

understand intelligence needs and plan ahead. With the evolving 

security threats and need for comprehensive planning and 

preparation, it is essential that reforms are undertaken to strengthen 

and reform the NSC, other structures and to also recruit staff who are 

able to focus full time on coordinating intelligence and security issues 

and initiate follow up action.   

Testimony also indicated that Zahran and associates had no 

known links to external groups (page 782).   

The CID also informed that the attacks were rushed and that 

evidence is now available to show that Insaf started to put together 

the explosives only on 20th April. It was also reported that the group 

was divided in carrying out the attacks and only decided to proceed 

after the Wanathavillu arms recovery and arrests. There was also a 

sense that the attacks needed to happen as they may get caught before 

then. (pages 781-782)  

Chief Inspector (CI) Mr. A. B. Wedagedara, who was Officer-in-

Charge (OIC) of the Kattankudy Police from August 1, 2014 to July 

28, 2017 stated that there was no co-ordination between the TID and 

the Kattankudy Police station   

“ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා: බුද්ධි අංශය පපාලීසිය තුළින්ද 
වැඩ කරන්පන්, නැත්නම් ස්වාධීනව කටයුතු කරනවාද?   බුද්ධි අංශපේ 
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DIG නාලක ද සිල්වා වාපේ අය පම් අවස්ථාපේ ඔබතුමන්ලාත් සමඟද 
කටයුතු කප ්, එපහම නැත්නම් ස්වාධීනවද?  

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා : අපිත් එක්ක සම්බන්ධ වුපේ නැහැ 
සර්.  

ගරු (වවදය) රාජිත පස්නාරත්න මහතා: අඩුම ගණපන් 
තමුන්නාන්පස් වාර්තා ක ාද පපාලිස් මූලස්ථානයට, පමවැනි සිුවීම් 
එකින් එක එනපකාට?  එපහම පන් බුද්ධි අංශය දැන ගන්පන්. 
ඇත්තටම පම්වා ඔක්පකාම කැටි කරලා ඒ පවලාපේ 
තමුන්නාන්පස්ලාට අවපබෝධයක් ගන්නට බැහැ, ප්‍රාපද්ධශීය වශපයන් 
තිපබන පපාලීසිවලට. ඒක ගන්නට ඕනෑ පපාලිස් මූලස්ථානපයන්, 

බුද්ධි අංශ හරහා.  නමුත් තමුන්නාන්පස්ලාපේ කරුණු යවන්න 
ඕනෑපන් එතැනට.  

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා: බුද්ධි අංශ ක්‍රියාත්මකවීපම්දී දවසින් 
දවස, සතිපයන් සතිය, මාසපයන් මාසය, මාස තුපනන් තුන, මාස 
හපයන් හය බුද්ධි අංශ වාර්තා ඒ විියට යනවා.  අපපත් වදනික 
සිුවීම් සම්බන්ධ වාර්තා යනවා සර්.   

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා : ස්ථානාිපති වශපයන් ලිඛිතව 
යවනවාද?  

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා : යවනවා සර්.”  (page 413)  

He also stated that the TID did not inform the Kattankudy 

Police Station to conduct an inquiry regarding Zahran and his 

people  

“ෆීල්් මාර්ෂල් ගරු සරත් ප ාන්පස්කා මහතා: TID එයකනුත් 
සහරාන්ට විරුද්ධව “B” Report අරවා යම්වා දමලා තියෙන්‍වා යන්. ඒ 
ඔෙතුමන්ලා කරපු එකමද? යවන්‍ එකේද?  

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා: අ යේ එක.  

ෆීල්් මාර්ෂල් ගරු සරත් ප ාන්පස්කා මහතා: 
කාන්තන්කුිවලින් කරපු එක.  

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා:  ඔව්. 

ෆීල්් මාර්ෂල්  ගරු සරත් ප ාන්පස්කා මහතා:  TID දුන්න්‍ 
යතාරතුරු අනුවද ඒක කයළේ? 

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා: න්‍ැහැ. 

ගරු එම්.ඒ. සුමන්තිරන් මහතා: ඒ සිද්ිෙට පසුව විතරයි ඒක 
කරලා තියෙන්යන්? 2017 මාර්තු මාසයේ සිද්ිෙට පසුව විතරයි යන් 
උසාවිෙට කරුණු වාර්තා කරලා වයරන්තු ලො ෙත්යත්?  

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා: ඔව්. 

ගරු එම්.ඒ. සුමන්තිරන් මහතා: ඊට ඉසේයසේලා යමාකුත් කයළේ 
න්‍ැහැ යන්. 

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා: න්‍ැහැ. එයහම කරලා න්‍ැහැ.   
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ගරු එම්.ඒ. සුමන්තිරන් මහතා:  ඊට ඉසේයසේලා  TID යහෝ යවන්‍ 
අිංශ්‍වලින් යතාරතුරු ලො දුන්න්‍ාද, යම් අෙ ෙැන්‍ යසාො ෙලන්න්‍ 
කිෙලා.  

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා: න්‍ැහැ. මට යකායහන්වත් 
යතාරතුරු ලො දීලා න්‍ැහැ.”   

(page 424)  

Eastern Province Senior DIG Mr. Kapila Jayasekera stated that 

there was no information communicated to him by the State 

Intelligence Services and he was not aware of any intelligence 

received on this.    

“ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා: එදා වන පකාට ඔබතුමා යටපත් ඉන්න 
පපාලිස් නිලධාරින් කරපු විමර්ශන තමයි බුද්ධි අංශයට වාර්තා වුපේ? 

නැත්නම් බුද්ධි අංශය එතැනට ආවාද? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා: නැහැ. 

ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා: රාජය බුද්ධි පස්වා  -State Intelligence 

Service- ප්‍රධානියා 2019.04.18 දින පපාලිස්පතිතුමාට වාර්තා 
කරනවා. එය දීර්ඝ වාර්තාවක්.  දැන් ඔබතුමා කියාපු ඔය සිද්ධධීන්, 

අනාවරණය වූ කරුණු, විපශ්ෂපයන් අර පජරා් යසස් ද සිල්වා කියන 
නමැත්තාපේ නමට තිබුණු වාහනය පිළිබඳ විස්තර, පම් ඔක්පකෝම 
සහිතව නිලන්ත ජයවර්ධන, පජයෂ්ඨ නිපයෝජය පපාලිස්පති, රාජය 
බුද්ධි පස්වාව,  දීර්ඝ වාර්තාවක් යවනවා පපාලිස්පතිතුමාට. ඔබතුමාට 
එතුමා එක්ක- 

කපිල  ජයපස්කර මහතා: එතුමා එක්ක සම්බන්ධතාවක් තිබුපේ 
නැහැ. අපට රාජය බුද්ධි පස්වපයන් ඍජුවම පතාරතුරු පදන්පන් නැහැ.  
පපාලිස්පතිතුමා හරහා තමයි සියල්ල සිු පවන්පන්. 

ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා: නමුත්, ඔබතුමාපේ බලප්‍රපද්ධශය යටපත් 
සිුවන සිුවීමක් පිළිබඳව පමපහම විස්තරාත්මක ලිපියක් එතුමා 
පපාලිස්පතිතුමාට යවා තිපබනවා. එහි සහරාන් හෂීම් පිළිබඳව, 

National Thowheed Jamath පිළිබඳව කරුණු කියනවා. ඉතින් ඒ 
පවලාපේ National Thowheed Jamath පිළිබඳව, ඔබතුමා පම් 
සිද්ධියට සම්බන්ධ-  

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා: දැන පගන හිටිපේ නැහැ.  

ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා: එතපකාට විමර්ශනය කප ් පවනත් CID 

team  එකක් පනාපවයිද? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා: නැහැ, නැහැ. මූලික විමර්ශනය අපි -
පපාලීසිපයන් - කප ්. ඒ කියන්පන්, chassis numbers පහායා ගන්න 
එක, ඊට පස්පස් RMV එපකන් check කරලා අයිතිකරු පහායා ගන්න 
එක, අයිතිකරුවන්පගන් ප්‍රකාශ සටහන් කර  ගන්න එක. ඒ අතපර් 
තමයි දැන ගත්පත් පම්ක අපරාධ පරීක්ෂණ පදපාර්තපම්න්තුවට පයාමු 
ක  යුතු පගානුවක්, විමර්ශනයක් කියන එක. ඒක මම 
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පපාලිස්පතිතුමාට දැනුම් දීලා ඒ කටයුතු ඉක්මනින් ක ා. එපහම 
නැත්නම්, ඒ පගාල්ලන් පරීක්ෂණයක් කරපගන යමින් පවතින එකක් 
නම් අනිවාර්යපයන් ඒක අදා  කරපගන ඉක්මනින් සැකකරුවන් 
පසායා ගැනීපම් පහසුව තකා ඒ කටයුත්ත ක ා. 

ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා: State Intelligence Service එපක් ලියුම 
දාලා තිපබන්පන් 2019.04.18.  Local police පස්වය කරපු පම් 
විමර්ශනපේ පතාරතුරු අරපගන, පම් පිළිබඳ අපනකුත් පතාරතුරුත් 
එක්ක සසඳා බුද්ධි පස්වාව දීර්ඝ වාර්තාවක් යවා තිපබනවා 
පපාලිස්පතිතුමාට. එතපකාට බුද්ධි අංශපේ සම්බන්ධතාවක් ඔබතුමා 
එක්කත් තිබිලා නැහැ. එපහම පන්ද? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා: ඔේ, විපශ්ෂපයන් මමත් එක්ක  බුද්ධි 
අංශ සම්බන්ධතාවක් නැහැ.  

ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා: න්‍මුත්, ඔෙතුමායේ පාලන්‍ෙ ෙටයත්  
තියෙන්‍  ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ ඔෙතුමායේ නිලධාරින් කරපු පරීේෂණවලින් 
අන්‍ාවරණෙ වූ කරුණු තමයි වාර්තා කර තියෙන්යන්? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා: එයහමයි.  

ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා : එතයකාට යකායහාමද SIS එකට යම් 
යතාරතුරු ෙන්යන්? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා : ඒක ෙැන්‍ SIS  එයේ යජයෂේඨ නියෙෝජය 
යපාලිසේපතිවරොයෙන් අහන්න්‍ ඕන්‍ෑ. 

ෆීල්් මාර්ෂල් ගරු සරත් ප ාන්පස්කා මහතා : SIS එයේ branch 

එකේ ඔෙතුමායේ මූලසේථාන්‍යේ න්‍ැද්ද? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා : න්‍ැහැ. අයේ ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ SIS එයේ 
සාමාජිකයෙෝ, නිලධාරින් ඉන්න්‍වා.  හැම ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍ෙේ භාරවම ඉන්න්‍වා. 
අපිත් එේක යන්‍ායවයි හුවමාරු යවන්යන්. රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ 
අධයේෂවරො එේකයි.   යමාන්‍වා යහෝ වියශ්‍ේෂ යදෙේ තියෙන්‍වා න්‍ම් 
අපට යපාලිසේපතිතුමා හරහා තමයි එන්යන්. (page 756) 

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා: ඔෙතුමාට national Intelligence 

යහෝ surveillance යහෝ NIB යතාරතුරු  මුකුත් ආයව් න්‍ැහැ, යම් 
ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ ෙමේ යවන්‍වා කිෙලා? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා: න්‍ැහැ, එයහම ආයව් න්‍ැහැ. එයහම ආවා 
න්‍ම් ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් කටයුතු යකයරන්‍වා යන්. 

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා: මුකුත් ආයව් න්‍ැහැ? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා: න්‍ැහැ. මයේ කාලෙ තුළ සම්ූර්ණයෙන් 
සාමකාමීයි. 

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා: එයහමන්‍ම් යම් යවනුයවන් රයේ 
හරි ජාලෙේ තියෙන්‍වාද? යම් යද් වුණාට පසුව අපි ෙලලා කිෙන්‍වා, 
යම්ක කාලෙක සිට පටන් ෙත්ත යදෙේ කිෙන්‍ එක. අපට එන්‍ 
යතාරතුරු අනුව යම්ක දවයසන් දවස වර්ධන්‍ෙ යවලා පිපිරීමේ ඇති 
වන්‍ යතේ යම්ක යවලා තියෙන්‍වා. යපාලීසියෙන් යම් සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් 
කිසිම යතාරතුරේ ලැබුයේ න්‍ැහැ? 
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කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා: යම් දේවා ලැබිලා න්‍ැහැ; සිද්ිෙ වුණු 
දින්‍ෙ දේවා. 

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා: පසුවිපරමේ හැටිෙට ෙැලුයවාත්, 

එතැන්‍ දුර්වලතාවේ යන්‍ායවයිද තියෙන්යන්? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා: න්‍ැහැ. පසුවිපරයමන් ෙැලුවාම, ඒයේ 
සම්ෙන්ධතාවන් තියෙන්‍ යොඩේ අෙ අපි අත් අඩිංගුවට අරයෙන්‍ 
තියෙන්‍වා. ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් දැන්‍ට නීතිමෙ කටයුතු ක්‍රිොත්මක 
කරන්‍වා.  

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා: “පසුව” කිෙන්‍ එක යලයහසියි. 
බුද්ි යතාරතුරු අනුව  යම් සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් කිසිම යදෙේ දැන්‍ෙන්න්‍ 
ලැබිලා න්‍ැත්න්‍ම්, අයන්‍ේ යපාලිසේ සේථාන්‍ හාරසිෙෙත් යම් වායේම 
කටයුතු කයළාත්, අපි යොයහාම භොන්‍ක තත්ත්වෙේ තුළින් යන්ද 
ෙමන් කරන්යන්? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා: අපි උත්සාහ කරන්න්‍ ඕන්‍ෑ වර්ධන්‍ෙ 
කරෙන්න්‍.”  

 (pages 761-762)  

OIC of the Kattankudy Police, Mr. M. P. Kasthuriarachchi stated 

that he did not receive any prior intelligence before the 21st April 2019 

attacks. 

“ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා:  Inspector, යම් 
කමිටුව ඉදිරිපත් වූ සාේි අනුව අයේේ මාසයේ 08, 09 වන්‍ විට සිදුවිෙ 
හැකි විශ්‍ාල වයසන්‍ෙේ පිළිෙඳව, ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාරෙේ පිළිෙඳව 
ආරේෂක අිංශ්‍වලට පැහැදිලි යතාරතුරු තිබුණා. ඒ 08වැනි දා යහෝ 
09වැනි ෙන්‍ දින්‍වලින් පසුව යහෝ 21වැනි දා අතර ඒ ආසන්න්‍යේදී 
සහරාන්යේ base එක හැටිෙට සැලකිෙ හැකි කාත්තන්කුි ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ 
යපාලිසේ සේථාන්‍ාිපති හැටිෙට ඔෙව වියශ්‍ේෂයෙන් alert කිරීමේ, 
දැනුවත් කිරීමේ යහෝ කිසිම යදෙේ කරලා තිබුයේ න්‍ැහැ කිෙලා තමයි 
ඔෙතුමා කිෙන්යන්.  

එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා:   කිසිම දැනුම්දීමේ කර තිබුයේ 
න්‍ැහැ. 

ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා:  21වැනි දා යම් සිදුීම 
සිදු වන්‍තුරු ඔෙට ඉහළින් සිටි කිසිම නිලධාරියෙකුයෙන් ඔෙව 
වියශ්‍ේෂයෙන් දැනුවත් කිරීමේ, alert කිරීමේ සිදු වුයේ න්‍ැහැ. 

එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා:   යකරුයේ න්‍ැහැ. 

ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා:  යම් සිද්ිෙට අදාළව බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ 
යතාරතුරුවලින් ප්‍රභූ ආරේෂක අිංශ්‍ දැනුවත් කරලා තිබුණා කිෙලා දැන් 
ආරිංචි යවන්‍වා. වියශ්‍ේෂයෙන්ම සහේරාන් කිෙන්‍ තැන්‍ැත්තා හා ඔහුයේ 
අනුොමිකෙන් ආවරෙම්පති න්‍ැත්න්‍ම් කේලි ෙන්‍ ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍වලට 
ගිහින් රහසිෙතව තමන්යේ බිරින්දෑවරු හමුීයම් ක්‍රිොදාමෙේ රාත්‍රී 
11න් පසු සිදු යවන්‍වා කිෙලා බුද්ි යතාරතුරු ලො දී තියෙන්‍වා. 
ඔෙතුමාට ඒ පිළිෙඳව යමාකේ යහෝ ආරිංචිෙේ ලැබුණාද? 
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එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා: ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් කිසිම 
යතාරතුරේ ලැබුයේ න්‍ැහැ. 

ගරු (වවදය) නලින්ද ජයතිස්ස මහතා:  ඔෙතුමා කිෙන්‍ හැ ටිෙට 
නිල වශ්‍යෙන් ඉහළ නිලධාරින් හරහා යම් යතාරතුරු ඔෙතුමාට වාර්තා 
යවලා න්‍ැහැ? 

එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා:   න්‍ැහැ. 

ගරු (වවදය) නලින්ද ජයතිස්ස මහතා:  න්‍මුත්, යම් බුද්ි 
යතාරතුර නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපතිවරු හරහා ඒ ඒ අිංශ්‍වලට දැනුම් 
දුන්න්‍ාට පසුව ඒක රයේ සමාජ ජාලාවලත් සැරිසරන්න්‍ පටන් ෙත්තා. 
ඒ ෙැන්‍ ඔෙතුමාට අවයෙෝධෙේ ඇති කිෙලා මා හිතන්‍වා. අඩු තරමින් 
ඔෙතුමායේ ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍ෙට සම්ෙන්ධ කිහිපයදයන්‍කුයේ න්‍ම් තමයි සඳහන් 
යවලා තිබුයේ. ඒ ෙැන්‍වත් ඔෙතුමාට ෙම් දැනුවත්භාවෙේ 
තියෙන්‍වාද? 

එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා:  21වැනි දා සිදු වන්‍ ක්‍රිොව 
සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් කිසිම යතාරතුරේ ලැබුයේ න්‍ැහැ; කිසිම යතාරතුරේ 
අන්‍ාවරණෙ වුයේ න්‍ැහැ.  

ගරු (වවදය) නලින්ද ජයතිස්ස මහතා:  යම් සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් බුද්ි 
අිංශ්‍ යහෝ යවන්‍ත් ආරේෂක අිංශ්‍ යතාරතුරු යසාො ෙැලුවාද, ඒ 
පිළිෙඳව ඔෙතුමාට- 

එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා:  බුද්ි නිලධාරින්යේ යතාරතුරු 
සාමාන්‍යයෙන් අප යවත ලො යදන්යන් න්‍ැහැ.”  

(pages 386-387)  

1.5  Lack of Strategic Vision, Expertise and Preparedness  

The security and intelligence apparatus played a critical role 

during the war with the culmination of the military victory in May 

2009. The PSC does not have the mandate to comment on the nature 

of operations during this period. A critical examination is needed 

though as to the priorities of the security and intelligence apparatus in 

a post war context. The primacy of national security is generally 

accepted and is provided as a restriction on some of the fundamental 

rights guaranteed in the Constitution of Sri Lanka. The steps taken or 

the inaction in the lead up to the Easter Sunday attacks needs to be 

examined in terms of what the vision and priorities are in a post war 

context and the positioning of the security and intelligence apparatus.  

The failures that resulted in the Easter Sunday attacks and 

resulting deaths and devastation has left an immeasurable mark in Sri 

Lanka and among Sri Lankans. The Easter Sunday attacks and 

subsequent security challenges, violence, fear, apprehension and 
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uncertainty are reminders of Sri Lanka’s violent past. It is also a stark 

reminder to many that security challenges are evolving and responses 

must be robust and up-to-date.  

The ad-hoc Committee that looked at the attack found that lapses 

had taken place and that reforms are needed (discussed above). The 

PSC agrees with this finding. What is evident from the testimony 

before the PSC is that the present security and intelligence structure 

requires urgent attention with a comprehensive review undertaken to 

revamp systems and preparedness.  

Testimony received before the PSC also indicates to a lack of 

strategic vision within the security and intelligence apparatus. This is 

largely contributed by the lack of necessary expertise required to 

understand evolving threats and challenges and how a post war 

country should be prepared in terms of global and national dynamics.  

The PSC also notes that testimony received demonstrate to a lack 

of expertise in intelligence gathering among key individuals 

responsible with this key task. For example, the PSC notes that they 

are unaware of the training and expertise of the Director SIS in 

relation to intelligence gathering and action that was required upon 

receiving sensitive intelligence. If individuals with the necessary 

expertise were heading such key positions, there is a possibility that 

steps to mitigate and prevent may have been taken early on. This is 

also in the backdrop of the admission by some of not having the 

necessary expertise or training (page 94).   

The PSC also received testimony highlighting to the lapses in the 

state of security preparedness in the country prior to the Easter 

Sunday attacks. Information received from the Muslim community 

including people from Kattankudy and other areas indicated to the 

growing radicalization of Zahran and others. We have discussed this 

aspect elsewhere in the report but it is important to acknowledge the 

alertness of the Muslim community and responsibility they took by 

informing the relevant authorities. It is unfortunate that this 

information was not sufficiently addressed by the relevant officials.  
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The PSC also notes that some in the intelligence and security 

apparatus were lax in the response to information received from the 

community as well as intelligence reports from what has been termed 

‘sources’. PSC notes that some in the intelligence community took 

measures to monitor activities of specific individuals and 

organisations but this must be contrasted by the inaction and delays 

by others.  

The PSC notes that sections of the intelligence and security 

apparatus suffered from inertia and lacked the full understanding of 

the scale of the threat. Here, senior personnel who were privy to the 

intelligence failed to fully grasp the nature of the threats and take all 

necessary action. The PSC notes that the first intelligence information 

was received on 4th April 2019 and the ICM was held on 9th April 

2019. There was also a meeting the President called on 8th April 2019 

with senior officials in the Police. The intelligence information 

received on the 4th April was not discussed at either the 8th April 

meeting or the 9th April 2019 meeting. The PSC also notes that the 

SIS only shared intelligence with DMI on 19th April 2019, more than 

two weeks after receiving the first intelligence information. Time was 

short for a response when the exact nature of the 16th April 2019 

explosion was finally known and more intelligence was received of 

impending attacks. The lack of expertise in dealing with intelligence 

and the inability to mobilise security measures in a short time was 

evident when examining the events leading upto the attack. An overall 

review of the structures demonstrates that, despite several early 

warning messages, inertia and a lack of preparation was present. This 

is further compounded by the haphazard nature of meetings, 

information sharing and follow up action.  

In contrast, Zahran and his associates were able to act fast and be 

agile. As noted by TID, “Zahran was always a few steps ahead” (page 

847).   

The PSC notes a glaring problem of the absence of a strategic 

vision and identification of priorities within the present global and 

national security context. This coupled with other reasons listed in 

this section resulted in a significant lacuna in preparedness.  
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The PSC received evidence to demonstrate that the SIS and DMI 

are both important parties in intelligence gathering in Sri Lanka with 

the SIS taking the lead in receiving and liaising with external sources. 

Whilst the SIS took the lead, it is expected that intelligence 

information received should be shared with counterparts in the 

intelligence community and superiors being kept informed of new 

intelligence information and any other developments. The PSC notes 

that the SIS failed in both these areas. The Director SIS did not brief 

the ICM on 9th April 2019 and according to his own evidence only 

informed the DMI on 19th April 2019, more than two weeks after the 

first intelligence information was received.  

The PSC notes the need to initiate a process where Sri Lanka 

identifies security priorities, undertakes a comprehensive assessment 

of present capacity and expertise and explores areas that require 

attention including financial and technical resources and expertise. 

This could be led by the defence establishment with a newly reformed 

NSC playing a lead role in such an exercise with the involvement of 

all relevant line ministries and others.  

There is also a significant lack of trust and coordination between 

the various intelligence agencies and law enforcement agencies which 

resulted in inter and intra institutional failures. Despite there being 

some instances where intelligence information was shared, this was 

not a consistent practice. This was evident in the delays from the AG’s 

Department to respond to files sent by the TID in 2017 and 2018.  

The PSC also notes major communication gaps within the 

political, security and intelligence realm. The example of the Director, 

SIS not sharing information at the intelligence meeting on 9th April 

2019 and not keeping the political leadership briefed is an indicator 

of this.  

Another is that the DMI was only informed of the intelligence 

information later with none of the security commanders being briefed 

of the intelligence information received. This despite all being present 

at the 9th April 2019 meeting. The President when giving evidence 

before the PSC was critical of the DMI. The President stated that 
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despite the manpower of 7000 persons, the DMI was unable to obtain 

and share intelligence on the Easter Sunday attacks.   

“ජනාිපති අතිගරු වමත්‍රීපාල සිරිපස්න මහතා :රාජය බුද්ි 

යසේවයෙන් වායේම, හමුදා බුද්ි අිංශ්‍යෙන් .හැෙැයි, අපි කන්‍ොටුයවන් 

කිෙන්න්‍ට ඕන්‍ෑ, ලිංකායව් හමුදා බුද්ි අිංශ්‍යේ 7,000ේ ඉන්න්‍වා .
යරජියමන්තු 7ේ තියෙන්‍වා .න්‍මුත්, යම් සිද්ිෙ ෙැන්‍ අකුරේවත් 

වාර්තා යවලා න්‍ැහැ .එතයකාට ඒ යොේයලෝ කයළේ යමාකේද කිෙන්‍ 

එකත් ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙේ .7,000ේ ඉන්න්‍වා; යරජියම්න්තු 7ේ .න්‍මුත්, යම් 

සිදුීම පිළිෙඳව කිසිම යදෙේ න්‍ැහැ .මම දැේකා, හිටපු හමුදාපතිවරො 
යම් යත්රීම් කාරක සභාවට ගිහින් කිෙන්‍වා, බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ෙ එොට වාර්තා 
යන්‍ාකරපු එක ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙේ කිෙලා .බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ එොට යන් තියෙන්යන් .

රයේ යලාකුම බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ෙ  - 7,000ේ - හමුදාපතියේ යන් .එතයකාට, ඒ 

7,000 යමාකේද කයළේ?” (page 1355);  

“ජනාිපති අතිගරු වමත්‍රීපාල සිරිපස්න මහතා :  හමුදායව් 

7,000ේ ඉන්න්‍වා, බුද්ි අිංශ්‍යේ .යම් ෙැන්‍ ඇලපිේලේ-පාපිේලේ 

වාර්තා යකරුයව් න්‍ැහැ යන් .දැන් යම් 21 සිද්ිෙ  - ඔෙතුමා ඒ යවලායව් 

හිටියේ න්‍ැහැ, යමතැනින් එළිෙට ගිහින් .අපි ඒ ෙැන්‍ කථා යකරුවා .
යුද හමුදා බුද්ි අිංශ්‍යේ 7,000ේ, යරජියම්න්තු හතයි .ඔෙතුමා 
දන්න්‍වා .අයේේ 21 සිද්ිෙ පිළිෙඳව ඔෙ වන්‍ාතවිේලුව, මාවන්‍ැේල, 

න්‍ැ යඟන්‍හිර යවච්ච සිද්ි ඔෙ ඔේයකෝමත් යවලා  - හැෙැයි, හමුදා 
බුද්ි අිංශ්‍යෙන් කිසිම යදෙේ වාර්තා වුයේ න්‍ැහැ, අයේේ 21ට කලින් .

හමුදාපතිවරො කිෙන්‍වා, “යම්ක මම දැේයේ mobile phone 

එයකන් ” කිෙලා.” (page 1360)  

The PSC notes that the Director SIS says he informed the DMI on 

19th April 2019 of the intelligence information received. The Army 

Commander in his evidence to the PSC noted that he only found of 

the attacks after the first explosion. This indicates to gaps in 

communication within the intelligence apparatus and also to possible 

intelligence gathering, both of which are very serious and require 

further attention. The PSC is surprised that the DMI with a strong 

presence on the ground and with its informants was not able to gather 

intelligence. This is also noted in connection to informants such as 

Army Mohideen who was based in Batticaloa. Army Mohideen (full 

name Mohamed Mohideen) was one of the individuals listed by the 

Kattankudy police in their arrest warrant made to the Magistrate on 

16th June 2017 in connection with violence incited by Zahran and 

others. Official documents demonstrate that Zahran, Rilwan and a few 

others were on the radar of the police. Intelligence groups being 

unaware of developments on the ground is surprising considering the 

information available.      
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The ad-hoc Committee noted the tensions between the SIS and 

DMI and this being a reason as to why the Director SIS did not share 

intelligence information at the ICM on 9th April 2019. The PSC notes 

that this is not an excuse for not sharing intelligence information 

received in a timely manner. The PSC is also aware of the blame that 

is being passed against different parties, based on either evidence or 

as to deflect from the culpability of those who failed in the tasks that 

resulted in the Easter Sunday attacks. The PSC has arrived at its 

findings after deliberating for several months and hearing evidence 

from diverse individuals and section on culpability discusses in 

details failures of specific individuals.  

The PSC notes that the DIG Eastern Province not being informed 

of intelligence information prior to attacks is another failure in 

communication. This said, the PSC is aware of the information the 

Kattankudy police had on Zahran and that the local police was aware 

of the explosion on 16th April 2019. Hence, while there was a 

communication failure to inform the DIG Eastern Province of the 

intelligence information received, the PSC notes that the DIG of the 

area should have also informed of the explosion to his superiors.  

There were also significant communication gaps in the political 

leadership with His Excellency the President leaving out the Hon. 

Prime Minister and State Minister of Defence from the NSC. This is 

further compounded by direct instructions by His Excellency the 

President to senior administrators not to attend any meetings called 

by the Prime Minister. The PSC also notes that the President did not 

take action to appoint an acting Defence Minister when he travelled 

overseas and there was no acting Defence Minister on the day of the 

Easter Sunday attacks with no measures in place in the event of an 

emergency.  

The Secretary, MOD and the IGP both failed in their 

responsibilities as neither informed the political leadership upon 

receiving the intelligence information from SIS.  

The PSC notes that the lack of communication and trust has been 

an issue not only between the various institutions but also within 
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various departments and units within the same institution. The current 

mechanisms in Sri Lanka barely satisfy the need for intra-intelligence 

cooperation, being even more inappropriate for inter-agency (law 

enforcement-intelligence) cooperation. The lack of trust between 

agencies when it comes to intelligence sharing seems to be massive 

set back in the security structure in the country.  

The PSC believes that though certain top officials from some 

intelligence agencies understood the gravity of the impending danger, 

they did not realise the gravity fully to inform the other agencies and 

take coordinated measures to prevent the Easter attack.  

The PSC also note the testimony of the State Minister for Defence 

where he noted concerns of the stability of the Ministry of Defence, a 

critical point made that requires attention. His testimony reiterated 

what several had said in terms of the ministry and the ad-hoc nature 

of decision making. This is a very serious comment of the lead 

ministry handling security and intelligence issues which confirms the 

need for a comprehensive review and reform.  

1.6   Politicisation of Security and Intelligence Sector  

The PSC notes in addition to the lapses in the intelligence security 

sector, increased politicisation in the structures and systems in place 

is evident. For example, the Secretary, MOD is the highest civilian 

individual in the security apparatus and should have regular contact 

with the President and should be able to communicate with the Prime 

Minister if the President was unavailable. Since the constitutional 

crisis of 2018, the access by the Secretary, MOD to the President was 

limited. Testimony indicates that the President had regular contact 

with the Director, SIS than the Secretary, MOD.  

Further, the instructions by His Excellency the President not to 

invite the Prime Minister and State Minister of Defence is a direct 

breakdown of communication and the ability to work together by the 

two parties in Government. Leaving out key political leaders from 

security and intelligence briefings was used as a political tool by the 

President. This breakdown is further compounded by the President 

instructing senior administrators not to attend meetings called by the 
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Prime Minister. This is unacceptable and has contributed to present 

challenges in governance and security in the country.  

The PSC also notes that Members of Parliament of the UPFA 

Opposition attended NSC meeting as opposed to the Prime Minister 

and State Minister of Defence. There were no known security reasons 

for the Members of Parliament to attend the NSC. A reformed NSC 

must include all relevant security and intelligence teams and relevant 

political leaders at meetings with the decision as to who to invite not 

be at the discretion of one individual.  

The PSC also notes the incident where the then TID Director was 

arrested. It was based on a complaint made by one Mr. Namal Kumara 

on an alleged assassination plot against the President. This specific 

incident contributed to weakening the intelligence operations 

underway on Zahran and associates and such events in the future must 

be handled in a manner that will not hamper intelligence and security 

operations. 

The above show the political developments that ultimately had a 

bearing on the security and intelligence apparatus in Sri Lanka.  

1.7   Failures 

The findings of the PSC point to multiple levels of failures that 

contributed to the Easter Sunday attacks. These are examined below.  

The PSC notes that if the matter was discussed at the April 9th 

meeting, steps may have been able to be taken to prevent the Easter 

Sunday attacks. This was confirmed by several who gave evidence 

before the PSC. Questions must be asked as to why the Director SIS 

did not deem it fit to brief the meeting when the security and 

intelligence apparatus was present and was slow in sharing 

intelligence information with the relevant subsequent to the ICM and 

after the 16th April 2019 explosion.  

The PSC notes that the IGP and Secretary, MOD should have also 

raised these issues with His Excellency the President and Hon. Prime 

Minister considering the serious nature of the intelligence 

information. The testimony of the IGP and the then Secretary, MOD 
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(Mr. Hemasiri Fernando) indicate that they had assumed the SIS 

would have directly briefed the His Excellency the President as this 

was the practice. Assuming the Director, SIS would convey the 

information to the His Excellency the President is a failure in the part 

of the IGP and Secretary, MOD as they were aware of the serious 

nature of the intelligence and should have taken all steps to ensure the 

political leadership was informed. At neither point prior to the attacks 

did they inform the Hon. Prime Minister in the absence of His 

Excellency the President.  

The PSC notes that both the IGP and the then Secretary, MOD 

failed in their duties of not following up on whether the President and 

the Prime Minister were informed of the intelligence received and 

whether extra steps should have been taken.  

But the PSC is also aware that due to the practice established by 

His Excellency the President and the Director, SIS of regular 

communication bypassing the Secretary, MOD, the onus was on the 

Director, SIS to keep the relevant individuals informed. This special 

arrangement between the President and the Director, SIS must require 

further scrutiny and the disregard towards established channels of 

communication and structures.    

Another failure is the inaction to keep the Prime Minister abreast 

of these developments. The testimony received by the PSC indicates 

that since October 2018, the Prime Minister was deliberately kept out 

of meetings and not provided any information. This can be attributed 

to the political fissures in government but is not an excuse and is a 

serious failure. Whilst the President can be blamed for much of these 

failures, responsibility also lies with senior officials who should have 

insisted on the Prime Minister being briefed. This is compounded 

during instances when the President is overseas.  

A major failure is the ineffectiveness of the NSC that is due to 

lack of strategic vision and operational failures. Whilst the NSC has 

a critical role in security issues as seen over the decades, testimony 

indicates that the Easter Sunday attacks may have been prevented if 

steps were immediately taken when intelligence information was 
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received and if the NSC had regular meetings with all the relevant 

parties present.  

A critical point gathered from the testimony is that key individuals 

who should have been part of the NSC were not invited since October 

2018 to meetings on the specific instructions of the President.  

The PSC has also gathered that whilst the blame remains with the 

President for ordering specific individuals who were relevant for NSC 

discussions to be not invited, responsibility also remained with key 

individuals for not raising this. For example, PSC noted that the Prime 

Minister was aware of the NSC meetings as he was previously briefed 

by the then Minister for Law and Order. The PSC also note that at no 

point prior to 21st April 2019 did he question the President as to why 

he was left out of the NSC nor did he keep the Parliament informed 

of this. Similarly, the State Minister for Defence, Hon. Ruwan 

Wijewardene could also have raised the fact that he was left out of 

these meetings. Thus, whilst the PSC holds the President responsible 

for not including the relevant individuals in the NSC meetings, the 

Prime Minister and other politicians also had the duty to raise these 

issues in Cabinet meetings and in Parliament.  

The PSC notes that that the breakdown of communication 

between the President and the Prime Minister had a direct bearing on 

the security structures and systems in place. The last meeting of the 

NSC attended by the Prime Minister and State Minister for Defence 

was on 7th October 2018. The constitutional crisis commenced on 

26th October 2018 and both were subsequently not invited to NSC 

meetings. The Prime Minister in his testimony informed that prior to 

October he was kept informed of some security developments via the 

Minister for Law and Order but this is no substitute for being part of 

the NSC and being regularly briefed of intelligence and security 

issues.  

The President also undermined existing structures and 

communication channels which resulted in weakening systems and 

preparedness. The PSC takes the view that the ad-hoc nature of NSC 

meetings and composition, which seems largely influenced by the 
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President than any coherent security plan, contributed to the 

breakdown.  

The PSC also notes that the President failed to appoint an acting 

Minister for Defence when he left Sri Lanka on 16th April 2019 and 

this left a vacuum. This failure is directly attributed to the President.  

The PSC also notes that the President gazetted the Police under 

the Minister for Defence in 2018, a direct result to the constitutional 

crisis in October-December of that year. The PSC notes here that this 

is a direct breach of the Nineteenth Amendment to the Constitution 

and this has wide constitutional implications. The implications of this 

move are discussed below in the section on culpability.   

The communication channel between the President and the 

Director, SIS also lead to other key individuals in the security system 

being left out and undermining of established structures of 

communication. At the same time, the PSC notes that the established 

structures of communication need reviewing and should be revamped 

with the intention of being effective and better prepared.   

The PSC also notes that the position of the Secretary, MOD has 

had five individuals fill in the position within the duration of this 

government. Two of the individuals who held the post of Secretary 

informed of the ad-hoc decision making in terms of security issues 

with limited steps taken to have coherence and coordination. The PSC 

notes that the position of the Secretary, MOD is the highest 

administrator position in the defence establishment and must be held 

by a person with expertise in security matters and administration. The 

position must also be occupied by someone who has access to the 

President and the Prime Minister and other relevant ministers and 

officials.  

Neither on 9th April 2019 nor subsequently was the DIG Eastern 

Province informed of the intelligence. This despite the explosion on 

16th April 2019 in Kattankudy. The note by the IGPs (marked 4W1) 

nor anyone else gave such direction. The PSC finds that the IGP and 

others who had the intelligence information failed in this regard. This 

is a failure from the IGP and others but the PSC also notes that DIG 
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Eastern Province should also have known of the explosion 

considering the local police were aware of it.  

The PSC discusses culpability of specific parties later in the 

report. 

1.8   Concerns in relation to the involvement of some in the intelligence 

network with serious ramifications on the politics and future of Sri 

Lanka 

The evidence before the PSC demonstrates to lapses from several 

quarters and a lack of preparedness and planning. These have been 

discussed above and are further discussed in the section on 

culpability. The PSC notes that the lapses alone did not lead to the 

events of 21st April 2019. The PSC has examined the evidence before 

it and reached the conclusion that intelligence and other parties with 

a vested interest took steps over the years that culminated in the tragic 

events of 21st April 2019. The PSC lists these below and calls for 

immediate investigations into the role and action of specific parties. 

• The PSC received testimony from several who pointed to the 

increased arabization and wahabism in the East (discussed 

below) and the resulting tensions in the community. The PSC 

notes the rise in attacks against moderates and the Sufi 

community. The PSC was informed that the Sufi Muslims 

made complaints to the Kattankudy Police Station since 

2013/2014 regarding the extremist conduct and behaviour of 

Zahran and his group. Based on this a case was filed in the 

Batticaloa Magistrates Court bearing case No P 897/2014 on 

the 27th of October 2014.  

• Zahran’s violence reached its peak on the 10th of March 2017 

when a group of Sufis were attacked by him and his followers 

with swords near the Aliyar Junction injuring many from the 

Sufi sect. Case No B276/ 2017 was filed by the Police on 

behalf of the victims. 09 persons from the NTJ were arrested 

subsequent to the incident. However, Zahran, his brother 

Rilwan and Army Mohideen absconded and went into hiding. 

The PSC raises the question how Zahran, Rilwan and others 
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could abscond when there was an arrest warrant against them 

and when there were ongoing investigations into increasing 

levels of extremism.    

• Zahran signed agreements in the lead upto elections with local 

politicians including former Eastern Province Governor Hon. 

Hizbullah. Despite information on Zahran’s activities and 

movements, there was no arrest were made and questions must 

be raised as to whether Zahran had the support and patronage 

of some politicians and intelligence.  

• In the letter dated 9th April 2019 from Director, SIS to the IGP 

(Marked 4W2) names several individuals including Zahran, 

Rilwan, Milhan and Army Mohideen, the latter identified as 

someone who was with the Army. In the same letter, Director, 

SIS gives specifics as to where Rilwan and Army Mohideen 

resides. The letter also specifics about Army Mohideen hiding 

in Pasikudda and that he visited his wife and kids every Friday 

evening in Kattankudy. It is unclear why this information was 

not shared with the ICM held on the same day and local police 

in the East not alerted. It is also of interest that no arrests were 

done when addresses of some suspects was known and 

indicated in the letter.  

• There is also evidence that the DMI had a presence on the 

ground in the Eastern Province and their informants kept them 

informed of activities. One informant was Army Mohideen 

who was listed in an arrest warrant by the Kattankudi police 

as early as 2017, and was known to be associated with Zahran. 

He is also listed in the letter discussed above (Marked 4W2). 

It must be questioned as to why the DMI who had a strong 

network on the ground was unable to or chose not to inform 

the necessary parties of possible unrest on the ground and of 

the activities of Zahran and his allies including Army 

Mohideen. In this, the PSC notes the criticism by the President 

towards the DMI. The PSC also notes the findings of the ad 

hoc Committee which indicated to tensions between the DMI 

and SIS which may have prevented the SIS from sharing 
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information at the ICM. The PSC questions whether this was 

the only reason for intelligence not being shared or some in 

the intelligence apparatus chose not to divulge critical 

intelligence information.  

• Another worrying aspect is that the then Army Commander 

Mr. Mahesh Senanayake informed the PSC that he was 

unaware of any intelligence information in relation to the 

attack. This is contrary to the evidence by the Director, SIS 

who mentioned he shared intelligence information with DMI 

on 19th April 2019. The PSC questions the reasons for the 

DMI for not keeping the Army Commander informed of such 

intelligence information. This must also be explored further to 

ascertain whether the DMI briefed anyone else, in the military 

or outside. These are extremely serious issues that must 

require further investigation. This also comes in the 

background of changes in the military and military 

intelligence in 2019 with the appointment Lieutenant General 

Mr. Shavendra Silva as Chief of Staff, SLA and subsequently 

Army Commander and the reinstratement of Major Mr. 

Prabath Bulathwatte in to the military intelligence.  

• The PSC was also informed that the TID had carried 

investigations into Zahran for several years and was 

monitoring the activities of Zahran and others. This was 

known to others in the security and intelligence apparatus. The 

PSC notes a letter from Director, SIS dated 8th April 2018 to 

the IGP (marked 3WI) where he requests the investigations 

conducted by TID to be stopped due to the sensitive 

information that is being collected and that it maybe 

prejudicial to the investigations conducted by SIS. Annexed 

with it is a letter from the IGP to Mr. Pathmasiri Jayamanna, 

Secretary to Ministry of Law and Order dated 10th April 2018. 

In this letter, the IGP informs the Secretary of the information 

received from Director, SIS. The correspondence from the 

Director, SIS demonstrates that the SIS was to lead in 

intelligence in this area and requested the stop the 

investigations by the TID. The PSC is unaware why the TID 



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 79 ) 

who was conducting intelligence gathering was asked to stop 

other than what has been indicated by the SIS. Such a request 

by the SIS leads to the assumption that the SIS will take on all 

surveillance on the matter and keep superiors and the ICM and 

NSC informed. This connects to the SIS receiving the pride of 

place at ICM and NSC meetings. The fact that SIS failed to 

inform the necessary parties must be contrasted with this 

specific request in 2018 and the inability to keep relevant 

parties informed of subsequent intelligence.  

• The PSC is surprised that despite witnesses and evidence on 

the ground including the reports filed by the Kattankudy 

police, arresting Zahran and others was not done in 2017, 2018 

or 2019. This raises questions whether he enjoyed the 

protection and patronage of some in the intelligence apparatus 

and/or politicians in the area.  

The above incidents must be examined further as to why 

individuals who had critical intelligence information did not share 

such information in a timely manner that may have helped mitigate or 

prevent the Easter Sunday attacks. This must be examined in the 

backdrop of political upheavel in Sri Lanka. For example, the 

Constitutional Crisis in 2018 and other events demonstrated the 

fissures in government. For those involved in intelligence and 

security, it was also apparent that NSC meetings were irregular and 

ad hoc with no real direction or leadership given. Evidence before the 

PSC also demonstrated that the President deliberately undermining 

existing structures and systems with communication and access 

limited with key individuals. It was also at a time when the Director, 

TID was arrested and the IGP was left out of NSC meetings. This is 

in a context where the SIS had requested the shutting down of ongoing 

investigations. What was also notable is the direct access the Director, 

SIS had with the President, unprecedented in comparison to others in 

the intelligence apparatus.   

Questions must be asked as to objectives and impact of these 

developments and the end result. Shutting out key entities ensures 

control over intelligence information. Inability to arrest persons who 
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had an existing warrant against them must also be examined. This is 

compounded by the fact that information was known of the 

whereabouts of some of these individuals. This was also at a time 

when growing unrest was evident from specific individuals and their 

allies. In such a context, the increase in the number of threats and 

violence targeting Muslim groups in 2018 should not be viewed in a 

vacuum. Evidence before the PSC now demonstrates that the hate 

speech from Zahran increased soon after the violence in March 2018 

and there was surveillance of such activity by some in the intelligence 

apparatus.  

In such a setting, some pertinent questions must be asked- Were 

attempts made by sections in the intelligence community with the 

possible support from some politicians to undermine ongoing 

investigations, prevent arrests of alleged perpetrators and not share 

valuable information? Was the unrest and communal violence since 

2018 a way to exacerbate the uncertainity and create further fear 

among communities, especially the Muslim community? Was this to 

demonstrate the lack of control by the Sirisena-Wickramasinghe 

government and to amplify calls for a change of regime?  

This is also in a setting where incidents of violence and increase 

communal tensions would take place in the lead upto Presidential 

elections in late 2019 and Parliamentary elections in 2020 disrupting 

every day life and instilling fear and apprehension among 

communities, especially among the minorities. The Easter Sunday 

attacks and subsequent communal violence in parts of Sri Lanka 

witnessed new levels of fear among the public and criticsm towards 

the political leadership and security establishment. It was also a time 

when calls emanated for a change of regime. These cannot be taken 

as coincidental and must be investigated further. It is also paramount 

to question the role of some sections in the interlligence apparatus and 

their attempts to shape security, the electoral process, political 

landscape and the future of Sri Lanka.  

1.9   Need for a New Framework and Structural Reform  

The PSC notes that the present framework is not a viable model 

considering the novel and evolving security challenges confronting 
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Sri Lanka. The PSC recommends the prompt introduction of 

structural and legal reforms necessary to combat new and existing 

challenges and to ensure that the country is prepared to combat any 

future security threats.  

The PSC recommends the creation of a secretariat for the NSC 

which comprises of a National Security Advisor and his/her staff who 

should be mandated to organize regular meetings, follow up on action 

points etc. The recommendations section discusses this in further 

detail.  

The testimony and evidence before the PSC also raises questions 

as to whether the NSC has the necessary expertise for the work at 

hand. At present the composition is based on ex-officio or political 

calculations rather than expertise. This will need to be reviewed to 

ensure that the NSC has the inclusion of subject specialists who can 

assist in its work.  

Attention must also be on a strategic vision vis-a-vis security of 

Sri Lanka, evolving security challenges and measures required to 

mitigate and prevent future threats. This at present is lacking in the 

NSC and should be corrected.  

The lack of a structure and vision for the NSC has impeded its 

work and effectiveness. The PSC is of the view that the President, as 

the head of the NSC, has contributed to the haphazard nature of 

meetings and lack of effectiveness of the NSC. This is largely 

contributed by the NSC being at the whim of the President where no 

regular meetings were called. The PSC was also informed that only a 

few hours notice was given when meetings did take place, raising 

questions of preparation needed for meetings of such nature.   

The President’s political and personal issues have also contributed 

to his decisions in relation to the NSC such as when he did not want 

the Prime Minister, State Minister for Defence and the IGP to attend 

meetings. Another example is when the President invited opposition 

Members of Parliament to attend NSC meetings but not ministers in 

Cabinet. Another example was on 21st April 2019 when the President 
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was abroad and when the Prime Minister had called for a meeting 

where the President had ordered senior officials not to attend.  

The PSC also notes that the level of trust and coordination 

between the various intelligence agencies is at a very low point that 

has resulted in agencies working in silos and not sharing relevant 

intelligence information with each other in a structured manner. 

Whilst noting that each agency will have its specific processes of 

gathering and analysing intelligence, the testimony received indicates 

that an opportunity was missed by intelligence agencies to utilize 

information received to prevent the Easter Sunday attacks. The 

breakdown of coordination was also evident in the lead up to the 

Easter Sunday attacks, especially when it became apparent that there 

was a genuine danger of attacks.  

The PSC notes that legislative and structural reforms are urgently 

needed to address the security and intelligence sector reforms. 

Legislative reforms will need to address the establishment of a new 

framework including a revamped NSC with a clear mandate where 

they are able to monitor, coordinate and respond to emergencies and 

threats. 

Legislative reforms are also needed to provide the law and order, 

security and intelligence sectors with the necessary power to monitor 

and counter threats. The present legal framework is insufficient to 

address the global and national security challenges and it is critical to 

introduce a legislation to combat terrorism that addresses the relevant 

areas that require attention. The PSC notes that such a law will need 

to be studied and introduced in a transparent manner and is based on 

international standards and oversight.  

The PSC also notes that there is a lacuna in terms of oversight 

over the NSC. Considering the role it can and must play, there should 

be Parliamentary oversight to ensure the work of the NSC is effective, 

timely and accountable. Other countries have similar practice to 

ensure the smooth function of the NSC and Sri Lanka must address 

this without further delay (pages 1236-1237).   



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 83 ) 

This must be noted in the background of Article 33A of the 

Constitution which states that the President is responsible to 

Parliament “for the due exercise, performance and discharge of his 

powers, duties and functions under the Constitution and any written 

law, including the law for the time being relating to public security”.  

2. Despite a rise in religious extremism, there was no 

action taken to monitor or control it 

This section will briefly comment on testimony received on some 

forms of extremisms present in Sri Lanka- namely Islamic extremism 

and Buddhist extremism- with relevance to the subjects before the 

PSC.  

2.1 Islamic Extremism  

For the purpose of this report, the phrase ‘Islamic extremism,’ is 

used with reference to practices of a segment of the muslim 

community that pose challenges to harmonius co-existence of 

different peoples’ groups in the country. 

For the past two to three decades, a version of Islam that supports 

extremism began to spread in Sri Lanka mainly in the Eastern 

Province centering Kattankudy. In the evidence given by various 

individuals before the PSC it is observed that intelligence community 

was aware of the growth of religious extremism much early on and 

had taken certain measures to monitor it. However, these measures 

were not adequate to counter the Easter Sunday attacks. 

The PSC observes that Zahran and the National Thowheed 

Jamaath (NTJ) Organization responsible for the Easter Sunday 

attacks had been in operation in the Kattankudy area since around 

2013/2014. The followers of the organization initially had intra-faith 

tensions, including with Sufis, whom they called defectors. However, 

these later escalated into violence. In or around 2016, Zahran 

preached against Catholics and distributed leaflets condemning 

Christmas and calling on people not to celebrate Christmas.  
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As early as February 2017 the TID under Mr. Nalaka De Silva 

established a separate Research and Analysis Branch to monitor 

extremism growing in the Sinhala /Muslim communities and LTTE 

threats. This unit monitored social media and various websites on a 

daily basis and kept track of spread of the ISIS ideology in the 

country. They specifically monitored Zahran and NTJ’s conduct on 

social media. Reports were compiled containing findings and sent to 

the IGP on a frequent basis. It was also revealed to the PSC that the 

TID in or around 2017 made a formal request to ban the NTJ 

Organization but there was no reported action taken on it. Relevent 

verbatim is appended below: -  

“නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: අපි සහරාන් ෙැන්‍ විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ෙ කරයෙන්‍ 
ෙද්දී 2016, 2017 වර්ෂෙ යවන්‍යකාට, - ඒ ෙැන්‍ මම පසුව කිෙන්න්‍ම්.  
ප්‍රතිවුහෙත කිරීම අනුව අපි LTTE පැත්තත් ඩෙසේයපෝරාව පැත්තත්, 

මුසේලිම් අන්තවාදෙට අදාළවත්, සිංවිධාන්‍ාත්මක අපරාධ කේලි 
සම්ෙන්ධවත් විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ කටයුතු කරයෙන්‍ ෙන්න්‍ ආරම්භ කළා. ඒ 
ඔේයකාම කරන්යන් යපාලිසේපතිතුමන්ලායේ නියෙෝෙ මත. 
සහරාන්යේ කටයුතු සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ෙ කරන්‍යකාට අපට 
යපනී ගිෙ එකේ තමයි දවස ෙණයන් ඔහුයේ websites, ඔහුයේ 
Facebook එක  monitor කරන්‍ එක. ඒ සඳහා යවන්‍ම කේඩාෙමේ 
යොමු කරලා ඒක කරන්‍වා.  

ඉදිරි කාලයේදී ඔෙතුමාට මම රහසිෙතව කිෙන්න්‍ම්, අපි ඒක 
කයළේ යකායහාමද කිෙලා. ඒ අනුව අපට යත්රුණා, ඔහු ප්‍රචේඩ 
අන්තවාදෙ කරා ෙන්‍වා කිෙලා. ඒ අනුව තමයි මම තීරණෙ කයළේ, 
ඔේයකෝම එකතු කරලා කාන්තන්කුිවල වුණු සිදුීමත් පාදක 
කරයෙන්‍- 

ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා: කාන්තන්කුිවල 
වුණු සිදුීම යමාකේද? 

නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: මයේ මතකයේ හැටිෙට, 2017 වර්ෂයේ 
ඔහු සහ තවත් මුසේලිම් පිරිසේ අතර ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙේ ඇති යවලා එෙ ෙැටුමේ 
දේවා දුරදිෙ ගිො. ඒ ෙැටුම ප්‍රකාරව යපාලීසියෙන් ක්‍රිොමාර්ෙ ෙත්තා. 
අයන්‍ේ පාර්ශ්‍ේවෙ යපාලිසේපතිතුමාට පැමිණිලි කරලා තිබුණා. ඒ 
පැමිණිේල සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් යපාලිසේපතිතුමා මාව දැනුවත් කරලා මට 
කිව්වා, ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් යසාො ෙලන්න්‍ කිෙලා. කාන්තන්කුි 
යපාලීසියෙන් යකායහාමත් යම් ෙැන්‍ යසාො ෙලන්‍වා. න්‍මුත් මටත් 
යසාො ෙලන්න්‍ කිව්වා. ඒ පැමිණිේලත් පදන්‍ම් කර ෙනිමින්, අයේ ළඟ 
තිබුණු අන්තර්ජාල සහ අයන්‍ේ සිෙලු කරුණු පදන්‍ම් කරෙනිමින් 
ICCPR Act එක ප්‍රකාරව ෙරු අිකරණෙට කරුණු වාර්තා කළා.   

*** 

නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: යකාළඹ මයහසේත්‍රාත් අිකරණයේ අිංක 
08 උසාවිෙට. TID එකට තිබුයේ යකාළඹ මයහසේත්‍රාත් අිකරණයේ 
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අිංක 08 උසාවිෙ. අපි ඒයකන් ඉේලා සිටියේ open warrant එකේ. 
යමාකද, අපි සහේරාන් යසාෙන්න්‍ පටන් ෙත්තා. ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍ කිහිපෙකම 
සහේරාන් හිටියේ න්‍ැහැ. න්‍ැ යඟන්‍හිර පළායත් හිටියේත් න්‍ැහැ. යවන්‍ත් 
පළාත්වල ඉන්න්‍වා කිව්වාට ඒ පළාත්වල හිටියේත් න්‍ැහැ. අපි අනුමාන්‍ 
කළා, ඔහු රට පැන්‍ලාද දන්යන් න්‍ැහැ කිෙලා. ඒ අනුව තමයි open 

warrant එකේ ෙත්යත්. යමාකද, ඊට පසේයසේ INTERPOL එයකන් 
Blue Notice ෙැනීම වායේ ඊළඟ ක්‍රමයව්දවලට ෙන්න්‍ ප්‍රධාන්‍ වශ්‍යෙන් 
open warrant එකේ පාදක කරෙන්න්‍ ඕන්‍ෑ. ඒකයි open warrant 

එකේ  ෙත්යත්. අපි එතැනින් තමයි ඉතිරි ෙමන්‍ ආරම්භ කයළේ. 

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා: ඔෙ දැනුවත් වුණා, සහේරාන් කිෙන්‍ 
පුද්ෙලො ෙන්‍ ෙමන්‍ රටට ඔබින්යන් න්‍ැහැ කිෙලා.   

නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: ඔව්. ඔහු Facebook එයකන් සහ 
websitesවලින් ප්‍රචේඩ අන්තවාදෙට මිනිසුන් කැඳවමින් තමයි හිටියේ.  

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා: යම් ෙැන්‍ යපාලීසියේ අයන්‍ේ 
අෙත් දැනුවත් කළාද? 

නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: සෑම සඳුදා දින්‍ෙකම සති වාර්තාවකින් 
යපාලිසේපතිතුමාට ෙවන්‍වා.  

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා: යම්ක න්‍තර කරන්න්‍ කිෙලා 
කිව්යව් න්‍ැහැ. යම් වායේ වැඩ පිළියවළ න්‍තර කරන්න්‍ කිව්වාද? 

නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: යපාලිසේපතිතුමා අපට මුලදීම කිව්වා, ඔෙ 
කටයුතු කරයෙන්‍ ෙන්න්‍ කිෙලා. අපි ඒ කටයුත්ත දිෙටම කරයෙන්‍ 
ගිො. වියශ්‍ේෂ යදෙේ, උදාහරණෙේ ෙත්යතාත්, ජාතික ආරේෂාවට 
තර්ජන්‍ෙ වන්‍ ආකාරෙට සහරාන්යේ Facebook එයකන් video එකේ 
යොමු කර තියෙන්‍වා න්‍ම්, අපි අනිවාර්ෙයෙන් යපාලිසේපතිතුමාට ඒක 
ෙවන්‍වා. යපාලිසේපතිතුමාට එදාම ෙවන්‍වා. යමාකද, එතැනින් ඔබ්ෙට 
ගිහිේලා දැනුවත් කරන්න්‍.    

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: Now, you said that you all 

monitored his website and all of those.  

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes. Can I explain it without the media, 

so that I could explain it freely? I do not want -  

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes. That is why we went to the extent 

of taking an open warrant against him.  We put all those things 

to the court domain so that we could get the open warrant. 

Especially after the Digana incident in 2018, his actions started 

moving towards violent extremism. That is why I took that action.        

***  

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake: So, after the open warrant came 

on 02nd July, 2018, from then onwards, was he missing? 

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes. When we started checking on him, 

Sir, basically to summon him for questioning and then go for an 

arrest, we could not find him in Kattankudy, Kuliyapitiya, 
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Kurunegala and other areas where we knew he was roaming 

around. We were doing phone analyses also. But, we could not 

find him. Then, we opted to go for the open warrant so that we 

could inform the INTERPOL to trace him abroad, if he had gone 

abroad because we had the doubt that he had gone abroad 

through illegal means. When we checked his passport, the 

passport did not mention about any foreign travel during that 

period. But after this incident, through the media, I got to know 

that this person was in India at that time. I do not know whether 

it is true or not, but, through the media reports, I got to know that 

he was in India. Maybe, he had gone there in an illegal way. 

However, we got the open warrant and then, we went to the extent 

of taking a Blue Notice. Before the Red Notice, we have to get the 

Blue Notice.      

Hon. Rauff Hakeem: But, you know, there was also a case 

filed against him by the Kattankudy Police for the knife attack in 

Kattankudy itself.  

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes, Sir.  

The Hon. Rauff Hakeem: So, he had gone into hiding then 

itself. 

Mr. Nalaka de Silva:  After that incident. 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake: Then, your “B” Report came 

thereafter. It it? 

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes, thereafter because that incident 

occurred in 2017.   

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: Is the Blue Notice with the 

INTERPOL?  

Mr. Nalaka de Silva:  Yes, with the INTERPOL.  There are 

ten notices.  Before we get the Red Notice, we have to find out 

whether that person is available in a country.  So, the Blue Notice 

will give that notice to say, “Yes, this person is present in this 

country.”  Then, we can take up the matter with the Red Notice.   

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake:  So, Zahran is one person that 

you basically spotted.  Is it?  

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes. 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake: Were there any others that you 

zeroed in on or you were on the trail of? 

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: In this regard, the NTJ, Zahran and 

also his gang were also on the scanner, but I cannot remember 

the names or anything now.  We started with the SLTJ Abdul 

Razik and them, but they were not going on a violent path.  That 

was in 2013-2014.  But, following Zahran’s social media 
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campaign, I knew that he was going towards violent extremism 

and then, towards terrorism also.  That is why I wanted him to be 

arrested under the ICCPR Act or any Act at that time.” (pages 

121-124)  

The PSC notes that from the evidence presented by various 

witnesses it is observed that Zahran openly made public speeches in 

Kattankudy on several occasions (09.12.2016, 17.02.2017, 

02.03.2017) against non-Muslims and preached to his followers that 

all non-Muslims must be killed. Yet there was no action taken to 

prevent these recurring hate speeches.  

The committee identifies that the following witnesses who gave 

evidence before the committee regarding the rise of extremism 

especially in Kattankudy area: -  

• Former Governor of the Eastern Province, Hon. M.L. 

A.M. Hizbullah stated that Zahran and his organization was 

repeatedly given loudspeaker permits by the Police in 

Kattankudy even though he repeatedly used it to spread hate 

speech at meetings. The relevant verbatim is appended 

below: -  

“එම්.එල්.ඒ.එම් හිස්බුල්ලා මහතා:  ඔව්. ඒක සිද්ධ වුයේ 
කාත්තන්කුිවල තියෙන්‍ මීරා ොලිකා ජාතික පාසයේ.  මම තමයි 
එතැන්‍ට chief guest යලස ගියේ.  එතැන්‍, ඒ girlsලායේ සිංසේකෘතික 
වැඩසටහන්‍ේ; dance programme එකේ තිබුණා. Girlsලා ඒ dance 

programme එකට සහභාගි වුණාෙ කිෙලා, පාසල ඉසේසරහා රැසේීම් 
දමලා ඒ විදුහේපතිට ෙැහුවා.  එොයේ අම්මාට තාත්තාට ඒ ඔේයකාටම 
ෙැහුවා, සහරාන්. ඊට පසේයසේ යම් අෙ යපාලීසිෙට ගිහින් එොට විරුද්ධව 
complaint දැම්මා.   

ගරු (වවදය) නලින්ද ජයතිස්ස මහතා: ෙැහුවාෙ කිෙන්යන් අත 
ඉසේසුවාද?  

එම්.එල්.ඒ.එම්. හිස්බුල්ලා මහතා:  න්‍ැහැ, න්‍ැහැ. ෙැන්න්‍ා.   

ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා: Loudspeaker දමලාද 
ෙැන්යන්?  

එම්.එල්.ඒ.එම්. හිස්බුල්ලා මහතා:  ඔව්. Loudspeaker දමලා, ෙරු 
මන්ත්‍රීතුමනි.  

ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා:  Permits අරයෙන්‍, 

loudspeaker දමලා,- 

එම්.එල්.ඒ.එම්. හිස්බුල්ලා මහතා:  යපාලීසියෙන් permits 

අරයෙන්‍ එො meetings ලැහැසේති කරන්‍වා. ලෑහැසේති කරලා කිෙන්‍වා, 
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විදුහේපතිතුමාට, මට - අපි ඔේයකාටම තමයි.- ෙණින්‍වා. හැම 
රැසේීමකදීම මට ෙණින්‍වා.  විදුහේපතිට, ඔේයකාටම එො ෙැන්න්‍ා.   

ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා:  ඔහු ප්‍රසිද්ියේ 
වවරී භාෂණයේ යෙදුණා,  නිල වශ්‍යෙන් ලොෙත් loudspeaker 

permits ඇතිව?  

එම්.එල්.ඒ.එම්. හිස්බුල්ලා මහතා:  ඔව්.  

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne: He was involved 

in hate speech.  

Mr. M.L.A.M. Hizbullah:  Yes, involved in hate speech 

within the religion. යවන්‍ ආෙමේ ෙැන්‍ කථා කරන්යන් න්‍ැහැ .අයේ 

ආෙමට තමයි ෙණින්යන් . 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne: And armed with 

loudspeaker permits issued by the police. 

Mr. M.L.A.M. Hizbullah:  Yes, issued by the police.” (Page 

346)  

• Mr. Fahim M. Hashim, Private Secretary to the Minister 

of Muslim Religious Affairs, (Hon. M. H. A. Haleem) 

pointed that there are no proper vetting process to monitor 

madaras and give license for preaching. There are limitations 

in the Wakfs Acts that’s needs to be addressed in order to give 

room for this.  The relevant verbatim is appended below; - 

“Mr. M.H. Fahim:  Sir, in this regard, we have done some 

work in the past.  Unfortunately, we could not get fruitful results.  

Basically, now, I think, most of the people are talking about the 

Madrasas, its syllabus and also, the preaching at the mosques.  

We do not have a proper system to do a vetting process of these 

people.  We should have a proper training for these people and 

have a vetting process and give licences for preaching. So, we 

will have a control over Wakfs Board.  

So, in this regard, we had a meeting with All Ceylon 

Jamiyyathul Ulama also in January this year to train people.  

But, also we have a limitation in the Wakfs Act in certain ways.  I 

would like to point out these Madrasas.  We have widely spoke 

about it.  Those do not come under the Wakfs Act; most of the 

Madrasas are not under the Wakfs Act, Those have been 

registered in the Department.  So, there is no mechanism to 

monitor that.  

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake:  The Department means “in the 

Ministry.”  
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Mr. M.H. Fahim:  Yes, in the Department under the Ministry 

of Muslim Affairs. “(Page 682)  

• OIC of the Kattankudy Police, Mr. M.P. 

Kasthuriarachchi, Inspector of Police, stated that 

Information regarding the training programmes conducted by 

Zahran.  Relevant verbaim is appended below: -   

“එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා:  ෙරු සභාපතිතුමනි, ඔහුයේ 
යද්ශ්‍න්‍ාවලට තමයි මිනිසේසු වශී යවලා තියෙන්යන්. යවන්‍ කිසිවේ නිසා 
යන්‍ායවයි. අත් අඩිංගුවට ෙත්  64යදන්‍ාම මයේ නිල කාමරෙට 
යෙන්‍ැේලා අපට එක යතාරතුරේවත් දුන්යන් න්‍ැත්යත් ඇයි කිොලා 
ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ කළා. එයහම කයළාත් මරණවා කිව්වාලු. 64යදන්‍ාම මරණවා 
කිව්වාලු. මම ඇහුවා, යමන්න්‍ යමයහම යදෙේ සිද්ධ යවන්‍වා කිෙලා 
යපාලීසිෙට ලියුමේවත් දැම්යම් න්‍ැත්යත් ඇයි කිෙලා. න්‍මුත්, යම් ෙැන්‍ 
කිෙන්යන් න්‍ැහැ කිෙලා ඒ යොේයලෝ දැි මතෙක ඉඳලා තියෙන්‍වා. 
ඒ යොේයලෝ එම දවසේ තුයන්‍න් පළමුවැනි දවයසේ කරන්යන්, practice 
of weapons, pistol සහ T-56. යදවැනි දවයසේ යෙේල කපන්‍ හැටි, 
මරණ හැටි කිො යදන්‍වා. තුන්වැනි දවයසේ සහරාන්යේ යද්ශ්‍න්‍ාව. යම් 
ෙැන්‍ කිෙන්යන් න්‍ැහැ කිෙලා දිවුරුම් යදන්‍වා. එයහම කිෙලා තමයි 
එළිෙට එන්යන්. 

ෆීල්් මාර්ෂල් ගරු සරත් ප ාන්පස්කා මහතා: සාමාජිකෙන්යෙන් 
දිවුරුම් අරයෙන්‍ තියෙන්‍වායන්. ඔහුයේ මතෙ යවනුයවන් ජීවිතෙ ූජා 
කරන්න්‍ ලැහැසේතියි කිෙලා දිවුරලායන් එතැන්‍ ඉන්යන්. 

එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා: පැහැදිලිවම ඔව්, ෙරු 
සභාපතිතුමනි. 

ෆීල්් මාර්ෂල් ගරු සරත් ප ාන්පස්කා මහතා: එතැන්‍යි 
භොන්‍කත්වෙ තියෙන්යන්. 

එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා: අපි අහන්‍කේ කිසිම යකයන්‍ේ 
කිසිම යතාරතුරේ දීලා න්‍ැහැ. කිසිම යතාරතුරේ අන්‍ාවරණෙ කයළේ 
න්‍ැහැ. ඊට පසේයසේ අපි එතැන්‍ට ගිො. අපි කේටිෙ එතැන්‍ට එේකයෙන්‍ 
ගිො. එක සිද්ිෙේ තමයි, එතැන්‍ට ගිෙ කාටවත් එතැන්‍දී කථා 
කරන්න්‍වත් ෙැහැ. එතැන්‍ යවන්‍ම නීතිෙේ තියෙන්‍වා. මම කවුද, යමො 
කවුද කිෙලා කථා ෙහ කරලා කිසි යකයන්‍ේ හඳුන්‍ාෙන්න්‍වත් ෙැහැ. 

ෆීල්් මාර්ෂල් ගරු සරත් ප ාන්පස්කා මහතා: ඒවා 
ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්යේ ක්‍රිොමාර්ෙයන්. 

එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා: ෙරු සභාපතිතුමනි, ඊට අමතරව 
“අබූ” කිෙන්‍ යකාටසත් එේක න්‍මකුත් දීලා තියෙන්‍වා. 

ෙරු (වවදය) න්‍ලින්ද ජෙතිසේස මහතා :  ඒ දවසේ තුයන්‍න් පසේයසේ 
ඒක න්‍ැවත continue යවන්‍වාද? 

එම්.පී. කසේතුරිආරච්චි මහතා:  න්‍ැහැ, දවසේ තුයන්‍න් ඉවරයි. 

ෙරු (වවදය) න්‍ලින්ද ජෙතිසේස මහතා :  නුවරඑළියේ කේටිෙ 
යවන්‍ම, හම්ෙන්යතාට කේටිෙ යවන්‍ම? 
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එම්.පී. කසේතුරිආරච්චි මහතා :  ඔව්, එකම යද්ශ්‍න්‍ාව. “ෙොන්” 
කිෙලා කිෙන්‍ යද්ශ්‍න්‍ාව. ඒයකන් තමයි brainwash එක යදන්යන්.”. 
(page 403-404)  

• Former Director of the Terrorism Investigation Division 

(TID) DIG Mr. Nalaka De Silva stated that he and his team 

at the TID were collecting evidence about Zahran and the NTJ 

since 2013/2014. The relevant verbatim is appended below: -    

“Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Then I was the Deputy Director in 

charge of Counter Terrorism and Counter Extremism; in 2013 - 

2014.  That is why I was selected to the TID by the former IGP, 

Mr. Illangakoon.  යම් පුද්ෙලෙන් සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් අන්‍ාවරණ වුණා. 
අපි ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් බුද්ි යතාරතුරු රැසේ කරන්න්‍ ආරම්භ කළා. 
ඔවුන්යේ උත්පත්තිෙ ෙත්යතාත්, තමිේන්‍ාඩුයව් තමයි තවුහිද් ජමාත් 
සිංවිධාන්‍ෙ තිබුයේ. ඒ අනුසාරයෙන් ශ්‍රී ලිංකා තවුහිද් ජමාත් 
සිංවිධාන්‍ෙ පිහිටුවායෙන්‍ ගිහිේලා, එතැනිනුත් කැිලා ගිහින් ඒ 
අනුසාරයෙන් තමයි ජාතික තවුහිද් ජමාත් සිංවිධාන්‍ෙ කැඩලා තිබුයේ. 
එතයකාට සහරාන් සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් ඒ කාලයේදී අපට දැන්‍ ෙැනීමට 
ලැබුණා. අපි ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් බුද්ි යතාරතුරු රැසේ කරයෙන්‍ ආවා. 
න්‍මුත් අන්තවාදෙේ තිබුණාට ප්‍රචේඩ අන්තවාදෙේ තිබුයේ න්‍ැහැ.  
Violent extremism එකේ තිබුයේ න්‍ැහැ. අපි ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් තමයි 
විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ෙ කරයෙන්‍ ගියේ. බුද්ි යතාරතුරු රැසේ කයළේ. ඒවා ෙැන්‍ අපි 
අවධාන්‍ෙ යොමු කරයෙන්‍ සිටිො. 

ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා: ප්‍රචේඩ අන්තවාදයේ 
උපත යකායි කාලයේද සිදු වුයේ? 

නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: ඇත්තම කිෙන්‍වාන්‍ම් ප්‍රචේඩ 
අන්තවාදෙේ ලිංකායව් මුසේලිම් ජාතීන්ට අදාළව න්‍ම්  ආයව්. යම් 
යෙෝම්ෙ ප්‍රහාරත් එේක. ඊට ඉසේයසේලා ෙම් ෙම් යපාි යපාි යද්වේ 
තිබුණා, ඒ ඒ කේඩාෙම් අතර ඒ යද්වේ තිබුණා හැර,  ඒක 
ප්‍රචේඩත්වෙට වර්ධන්‍ෙ ීයෙන්‍ ආයව් ඊයේ යපයර්දා සිදුීමත් එේක. 
ඊට අමතරව දිෙන්‍ සිදුීම වායේ යද්වේ ප්‍රචේඩ අන්තවාදෙ කිෙලා 
ෙන්න්‍ පුළුවන්. ඒකට තමයි නීති පද්ධති තියෙන්යන්. ඒ අනුව අපි 
ක්‍රිොත්මක වුණා. තියෙන්‍ යලාකුම කර්තවය තමයි අන්තවාදෙ ප්‍රචේඩ 
අන්තවාදෙටත්, එතැනින් ත්‍රසේතවාදෙටත් ෙන්‍ එක පැවැත්ීම. ඒක 
තමයි ප්‍රධාන්‍ම කර්තවය විෙ යුත්යත්. ඒ කර්තවය තමයි අයේ රාජකාරිෙ 
විෙ යුත්යත්. එතයකාට එම රාජකාරිෙ තමයි බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ෙ සහ ත්‍රසේත 
මර්දන්‍ යකාේඨාසෙ සහ අයේ TID එකත් කරයෙන්‍ ආයව්. ගිෙ 
අවුරුද්යද් UN එයකත් Interpol එයකත් රැසේීම්වලට මම රටවේ 
හෙකට ගිො. ඒ අෙයේ ප්‍රධාන්‍ම මාතෘකාව තමයි අන්තවාදෙ, ප්‍රචේඩ 
අන්තවාදෙටත්, එතැනින් ත්‍රසේතවාදෙටත් එන්‍ එක වැළැේීම. ISIS 

වුණත්, අන්තවාදයෙන්, ප්‍රචේඩ අන්තවාදයෙන් ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ දේවා 
ගිහිේලා තමයි එම තත්ත්වෙට ඇවිේලා තියෙන්යන්. හැම එකකම 
උපත ඒ විිෙට තමයි එන්යන්. ඒ උපත වුණාට අවසාන්‍ තත්ත්වෙට 
ෙන්‍ එක යකායහාම හරි වළේවන්න්‍ ඕන්‍ෑ. ඒක වැළැේීම තමයි බුද්ි 
අිංශ්‍වලත් ත්‍රසේතවාදී විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාසයේත් ූර්ණ වෙකීම යවන්න්‍ 
ඕන්‍ෑ. ඒ අනුව අපි ඒ සිංවිධාන්‍ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ෙ කරයෙන්‍ 
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ගිො. මට ඒ තරම් මතකෙේ න්‍ැහැ. යකයසේ යවතත් මම ත්‍රසේතවාදී 
විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාසෙ භාරව ආවාට පසුව, හිටපු යපාලිසේපතිතුමන්ලා 
යදයදන්‍ායේම අවසරෙ මත, මට පුළුවන් මේටමට යම් කර්තවය 
ත්‍රසේතවාදී විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාසෙ තුළ ඉදිරිෙට කරයෙන්‍ ගිො. SIS එයේ 
හිටපු නිලධාරිොයෙන් පසුව භාර ෙත්ත යකන්‍ාත් ඒ විිෙට කරයෙන්‍ 
ගිො. මමත් TID එයේ  රාජකාරි කරයෙන්‍ ගිො. මට යත්රුණා, මයේ 
දැනුමත්, මයේ expertise එකත් මත, අනිවාර්ෙයෙන්ම යම්ක TID 

එයේ කරයෙන්‍ ෙන්න්‍ ඕන්‍ෑ කිෙලා.” (page 120)   

Mr. Nalaka de Silva further stated that hate speeches in social 

media by NTJ was monitored by the TID.  Relevant verbatim is 

appended below: - 

“නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: ඔේ. සහරාන්පේ videos බලද්ධදි මට 
පත්රුණා ඔහු  යන්පන් ISIS පැත්තට තමයි කියලා. ඔහු ISIS එකත් 
එක්ක connection එකක් තිපබනවා කියලා මට පත්රුණා. ඒ ISIS 

කරන ක්‍රියාකාරකම් සාධාරණීකරණය කරමින් ඔහු video message 

එක දානවා, “පම්ක පහාඳයි. පම්ක පහාඳයි” කියලා. ඒ, එක පැත්තක්. 
අපනක් පැත්ත තමයි, ඒ ISIS එපක් තිබුණ websitesවල යන ඒවා 
ඔහුපේ website එපක් පහෝ Facebook එපක් ප  කරනවා. ISIS 

website එපක් තිපබන ඒවා ඔහුපේ Facebook එපක් ප  කරනවා 
කියන්පන් අනිවාර්යපයන්ම ඒ පැත්තට ගිහිල්ලාපන් සර්. ඒ ඔක්පකෝම 
එකතු කරලා තමයි අපි තීරණයකට ආපේ ඔහුව අත් අඩංගුවට ගන්න 
ඕනෑ කියලා.  

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා: තවම ISIS  ක්‍රියාව ඔහුපේ 
ක්‍රියාදාමපයන් තමයි දාන්පන්. ISIS එක ඔහු සමඟ direct link එකක් 
තිපබනවා කියලා පහායා ගන්න පුළුවන් වුණාද?  

නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: නැහැ. මට ඒ අවස්ථාපේදී පහායා ගන්න 
බැරි වුණා.  

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා: ඒ වාපේ පිටරට ආයතන පමපහ් 
සම්බන්ධකම් තිබුණා කියලා පවනත් පතාරතුරු තිබුණාද?  

නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: බුද්ධි අංශපයන් දැනුවත් කරන්න ඇති. 
පපාලිස්පතිතුමාට පුළුවන් අපනක් පතාරතුරු පහායා ගන්න. මම 
අපනක් ආයතනත් එක්ක directly සම්බන්ධ පවන්න යන්පන් නැහැ. 
අවශය වුපණාත් සාකච්චඡාවලදි අපි අනිවාර්යපයන්ම හුවමාරු කර 
ගන්නවා. උදාහරණයක් විියට ගන්නවා නම්, අඟහරුවාදා වාපේ,- අපි 
හුවමාරු කර ගන්නවා. නමුත්, ලිඛිතව හුවමාරු කිරීපම්දී මම protocol 

එක පරිදි තමයි යන්පන්.  

ගරු (මහාචාර්ය) ආශු මාරසිංහ මහතා: දැන් ඔබතුමා 
සමාජජාලවල,- සහ්රාන්පේ Facebook account එක monitor 

කරනපකාට ඒ Facebook account එපක් සමහර පවලාවට ඔහුට 
හිතවත් විපද්ධශගත සංවිධානවල links තිබුණා. “Likes” තිබුණා. ඒවා 
හරහා analyse ක ාද? 

නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: අනිවාර්යපයන්. 
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ගරු (මහාචාර්ය) ආශු මාරසිංහ මහතා: ඒ අනුව පම් ජාතයන්තර 
සංවිධාන ජාලපේ සම්බන්ධතා පිළිබඳ ඔබට analyse කරගන්න 
පුළුවන් වුණාද ? 

නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: අනිවාර්යපයන්. 

ගරු (මහාචාර්ය) ආශු මාරසිංහ මහතා: ඒ සම්බන්ධව ඔබතුමා 
පපාලිස්පතිතුමාව දැනුවත් ක ාද? 

නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: ඔේ. “Likes” පමච්චචර තිපබනවා, 
sharings පමච්චචර තිපබනවා කියලා ඒ වාර්තාවල දානවා. 

ගරු (මහාචාර්ය) ආශු මාරසිංහ මහතා: ඒ sharings පිටරටින් ආපු 
sharings කියලා ඒවා පවනස් විියට දානවාද? 

නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: ඔව්. යවන්‍සේ  විිෙට දාන්‍වා. අපි ඒ 
වාර්තායව් දාන්යන් යමන්න්‍ යම්ක යමො අද publish කරලා තියෙන්‍වා. 
යම්ක යමච්චර ප්‍රමාණෙේ share  කරලා තියෙන්‍වා. එොයේ 
Facebook එයේ friendsලා යමච්චර ප්‍රමාණෙේ ඉන්න්‍වා කිෙලා ඒ 
friendsලා සම්ෙන්ධව යවන්‍ම දාන්‍වා. ඒ අෙ ෙැන්‍ත් අපි විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ෙ 
කරන්‍වා කිෙලා ඒ වාර්තායව් සඳහන් කරන්‍වා. සමහර අවසේථාවලදී 
සතය න්‍මින් යන්‍ායවයි යන් ඉන්යන්. අසතය න්‍ම්වලින් ඉන්යන්. 
එතයකාට ඒක යහාො ෙන්න්‍ යපාි මහන්සිෙේ යවන්න්‍ ඕන්‍ෑ. 

ගරු (මහාචාර්ය) ආශු මාරසිංහ මහතා: සහේරාන්යේ සතය න්‍මට 
අමතරව අසතය න්‍මින් යපනී සිටී සහරාන්යේ යවන්‍ත් fake Facebook 

accounts තිබුණාද? 

නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා: මට මතක හැටිෙට  Facebook accounts 

යදකේ තිබුණා. සහේරාන්යේ න්‍මින් එකේ තිබුණා. තවත් න්‍මකින් 
තවත් එකේ තිබුණා. Websites එකේ යහෝ යදකේ තිබුණා. මම 
monitor කරපු විිෙ ෙැන්‍ ඉදිරියේදී සර්ට කිෙන්න්‍ම්.”  (page 131)  

Mr. Nalaka de Silva also stated, a “Research and Development 

Unit” was established within the TID to monitor NTJ  

“නාලක ද සිල්වා මහතා  :මම ඉතිහාසෙ පිළිෙඳ යපාඩ්ඩේ 

කිෙන්න්‍ම්  .ත්‍රසේතවාදී විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාසෙ භාරව මම  2015 

යපෙරවාරි  27 වැනි දා අවාට පසු හිටපු යපාලිසේපති, එන්.යේ .

ඉලිංෙයකෝන් මහත්මො පැහැදිලිව මට කියූ එකේ තමයි ,මට තියෙන්‍ 

පුහුණුව සහ දැනුම උපයෙෝගී යකාට ෙනිමින් ත්රසේතවාදී විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ 
යකාේඨාසෙ න්‍ව මාවතකට අරයෙන්‍ ගිහින් එහි කරන්න්‍ ඕන්‍ෑ සිෙලු 

පරිවර්තන්‍ කටයුතු සිදු කරමින් අභිමාන්‍වත්ව අරයෙන්‍ ෙන්න්‍ කිෙලා  .
ඒ අනුව, මම මුලින්ම බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ෙේ සේථාපන්‍ෙ කළා  .ඉන්පසුව, 

විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ අිංශ්‍  03 ේ න්‍ැවත අලුතින් සේථාපන්‍ෙ කළා  .තිබුණු ඒවා 
අවලිංගු කර අිංශ්‍  03 ේ සේථාපන්‍ෙ කළා  .පළමුවැනි අිංශ්‍ෙ ,LTTE 

ත්‍රසේතවාදී සහ ඩෙසේයපෝරා කටයුතු සම්ෙන්ධයෙන්  .යදවැනි එක, 

සහේරාන් ඇතුළු ISIS අන්තවාදී සිංවිධාන්‍ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන්  .සිිංහල, 

මුසේලිම් යහෝ ඕන්‍ෑම යකයන්‍කු  .තුන්වැනි එක, සිංවිධාන්‍ාත්මක අපරාධ 

සම්ෙන්ධයෙන්  .ඒ කිෙන්යන්, පාතාල ක්‍රිොකාරකම් සම්ෙන්ධයෙන්  . 



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 93 ) 

ඊට අමතරව ,Research and Development Unit එකේ මම 

ආරම්භ කළා  .ඒකට මම යපාලිසේපතිතුමාට කිො මෑතකදී අලුතින් 

නිලධාරින් ෙත්තා  .න්‍මුත්, ඊට කලින් සිටින්‍ නිලධාරින් භාවිත කරමින් 

social media එක monitor කරන්න්‍ මම පටන් ෙත්තා  .යමාකද, social 

media එයකන් තමයි අපට තර්ජන්‍ෙ තිබුයේ  .ඒ තර්ජන්‍ෙ අපි 

හරිොකාරව හඳුන්‍ා ෙන්න්‍ social media monitor කරන්න්‍ ඕන්‍ෑ  .ඒ 

අනුව තමයි social media monitor කරන්න්‍ ෙත්යත්  . 

යමහිදී ෙම් අයුරකින් මයේ න්‍ඩුවට අෙතිෙේ යවන්න්‍ ඉඩ 

තියෙන්‍වා  .යමාකද, මම යහාර Facebook accounts හදලා තිබුණාෙ 

කිො මට එක යචෝදන්‍ාවේ යෙන්‍ාවා  .යහාර Facebook accounts 

හැදුයව් යවන්‍ යමාකටවත් යන්‍ායවයි, යම්වා monitor කරන්න්‍.   

යමාකද, මයේ න්‍මින් සහරාන්යේ account එයේ friend යවන්න්‍ මට 

ෙැහැ.  පළමුවැනි යද් ඒකයි.  යදවැනි එක තමයි, ඔවුන් යකාපමණ 

advanced ද කිව්යවාත්, informantsලා ආශ්‍ේරෙ කිරීයමන් ,මම කරපු 

විමර්ශ්‍න්‍වලින් මම අන්‍ාවරණෙ කර ෙත්ත යදෙේ තමයි ,friend 

request එකේ දමපු ෙමන්ම ඒ පුද්ෙලො කවුද කිො ඔවුන් මුලින්ම 

ෙලන්‍වා  .ඔහුයේ IP address එක ආදී යතාරතුරුවලින් ඔහු කවුද කිො 
ෙලන්‍වා.  ඒ තරම් ඔවුන් advanced.  ඒකට උදාහරණෙේ ෙත්යතාත් ,

TID එක ඇතුයළේ තියෙන්‍ dongle එයකන් යහෝ Wi-Fi එයකන් යහෝ 

ගිෙ ෙමන් TID කිො IP address එක වදින්‍වා.  එතැනින්ම friend 

requests සිෙේල ඉවරයි.  එතැනින් එහාට න්‍ැවත යමාකුත් කරන්න්‍ 

ෙැහැ.  Friend වුණත් අපට කිසිම යදෙේ ෙලන්න්‍ ෙැරි යවන්න්‍ ඔවුන් 

ඒක සකසේ කරයි.   

TID එකට ෙන්න්‍ පුළුවන් සිෙලු advanced equipment අරයෙන්‍ 

තමයි ඒවා කරන්යන්.  ඒක තමයි අපි R&D Unit එයකන් කරයෙන්‍ 

ගියේ.  2017  ,20 18 වර්ෂ යවන්‍යකාට ඒ ක්‍රිොවලියෙන් පැහැදිලිවම 

ඔහුයේ ෙමන්‍ යත්රුම්යෙන්‍ තමයි අපි open warrant එකට ගියේ.  

ඇත්තම කිෙන්‍වා න්‍ම් ,අපට ඕන්‍ෑම යව්ලාවක question කරන්න්‍ ඔහු 

summon කරන්න්‍ පුළුවන්.” (pages 133-134)   

2.2 Rise of Buddhist extremism  

In the past two to three decades a version of Islam that supports 

extremism began to spread in Sri Lanka mainly in the Eastern 

Province. More recently with the rise of Buddhist extremism in the 

country, the Islamic extremism moved towards violent extremism and 

appears to have escalated to terrorism that ultimately resulted in the 

Easter Sunday attacks.  

The PSC observes that there is a growing trend of Islamophobia 

in the country in the past few decades. Several attacks on the Muslim 

minority community were reported starting from Mawanella riots in 

2001, Aluthgama riots in 2014, Gintota riots in 2017 Ampara and 

Digana 2018 and in parts of the North Western Province in May 2019. 
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These riots resulted in Muslim homes and businesses being burned 

and vandalized and few deaths reported. However, the PSC is not 

aware of some arrested persons involved in these riots being 

prosecuted or convicted to date. The ongoing victimization by certain 

extremists in the Buddhist community of an already vulnerable 

community over the years fed into the growth of radicalization and 

extremism in the Muslim community as per the evidence.  

In 2012, a Buddhist extremist group, Bodu Bala Sena (Buddhist 

Power Force or BBS), was created to promote Buddhist nationalism 

among the majority Sinhalese community. Several attacks against 

mosques and anti-Muslim campaigns as well as attacks on churches 

and Christians have been attributed to the BBS since then. However, 

there has been no action taken regarding the conduct of the 

Organization. In addition to the BBS, there are other groups and 

individuals who have incited hate and racism and been allegedly 

involved in some of the incidents discussed in this section.  

In June 2014, Muslims and their properties were attacked in the 

towns of Aluthgama, Beruwala and Darga Town in the Kalutara 

District by Sinhala Buddhist extremist mainly believed to be 

supporters of the BBS. It is believed that at least four people were 

killed and around 80 injured in the riots that lasted two days. Several 

Muslim-owned shops and places of worship were set ablaze. PSC 

noted that the then Government failed to protect the vulnerable 

Muslim community in the area and Police and the STF took little or 

no action in controlling the situation. The PSC is not aware if any 

perpetrators responsible for the violence, deaths and destruction being 

indicted or prosecuted to date. The growing demonization of Muslims 

by religious extremists in society over the last few years is 

contributing to their radicalization. This is compounded by the 

impunity with which alleged perpetrators operate, with several 

alleged perpetrators continue to advocate hate with no evidence of 

being held accountable for their action.  

Despite the change of Government in 2015, the attacks against 

Muslims and Christian religious places continued coupled with the 

increasing calls to boycott Muslim businesses. The initiatives to target 

https://www.ohchr.org/EN/NewsEvents/Pages/DisplayNews.aspx?NewsID=14812&
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Muslims in Sri Lanka was fuelled by the growing rhetoric of the 

Muslim population increasing to replace the Sinhalese as the majority 

community in Sri Lanka and the economic rivalries. This was 

compounded by global trends of Islamaphobia.  

In March 2018, rioting in Kandy District began in Udispattuwa 

and Teldeniya, later spreading to Digana, Tennekumbura and other 

areas. It was sparked when a middle-aged truck driver of Sinhalese 

ethnicity was assaulted by four Muslim youth following a traffic 

accident. The truck driver died of his injuries four days later. On 5th 

March Sinhalese mobs began attacking Muslim properties in the 

region, resulting in widespread damage to property. The violence 

against the Muslims in Digana that erupted on 5th May 2018, spread 

like wild fire for next two days and sporadic incidents took place till 

9th May 2018. The mobs attacked dozens of Muslim business and 

houses and Mosques. It is reported that at least two people lost their 

lives due to the clashes. In this instance similar to the Aluthagama 

there were reports of inaction by the Police and the STF. There were 

also instances of complicity of law and order officials in the attacks.  

The PSC observes that the marginalization of Muslims and 

widespread Islamophobia since the end of the civil war may have 

contributed to Muslim youth being more prone to the process of 

Islamic radicalization. Testimony received by the PSC also indicates 

to Zahran increasing his activities on social media soon after the 

Digana violence in 2018 with posts highlighting the discrimination 

faced by Muslims and the exacerbating Sinhala Buddhist extremism. 

Some of the intelligence agencies testified before the PSC to noticing 

an increase in such rhetoric post March 2018 which had gained 

traction with Muslim youth.  

The PSC also received testimony to the events subsequent to the 

Easter Sunday attacks including communal violence in parts of the 

Western and North Western Province in May 2019. Testimony also 

noted the arrest of Dr. Shafi Shihabdeen, in Kurunagala and the 

allegations of forced sterilization. The relevant verbatim appended 

below: -   

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Udispattuwa
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Teldeniya
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Digana
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Tennekumbura
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“ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා: මෑතකදි ඔබතුමාපේ CID වාර්තාව 
කුරුණෑගල මපහස්රාත් උසාවියට ඉදිරිපත් ක ා. Dr. Shafiපේ 
ප්‍රශ්නපේදී. එහි පිටු 200ක වාපේ විශාල වාර්තාවක්- 

ජී. ශානි අපේපස්කර මහතා: පිටු 210ක වාපේ.    

ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා: පිටු 210ක වාපේ වාර්තාවක්. ඒ 
විමර්ශනපයන් පසුවත් ඔබතුමන්පේ නිලධාරින් කිහිපපදපනකුට 
එවැනි තර්ජන ඇතිවුණා කියා වාර්තා පවලා තිබුණා. 

ජී. ශානි අපේපස්කර මහතා: ඔේ. ඒ ප්‍රශ්නය විමසීම 
සම්බන්ධපයන් ඉතා ස්තුතිවන්ත වනවා. එක් නීතිඥ මහත්මපයක් 
ඇවිත් මාධයය මඟින් විමසා සිටියා “එම කාන්තාවන්පේ පැපලෝපීය 
නාලය test කරන්පන් ශානි අපේපස්කර සහ රුවන් ගුණපස්කරද?” 

කියා. එපහම test කරන්න මම VOG පකපනක් පනාපවයි. මම වවදය 
විදයාව ගැන කිසි පදයක් දන්පන් නැහැ. නමුත්, පම් විමර්ශනපයන් පසු 
මහාචාර්යවරු කිහිපපදපනක්, විපශ්ෂඥ වවදයවරු කිහිපපදපනක් 
එක්ක සාකච්චඡා කර ඒ පගාල්ලන්පගන් ඒ සම්බන්ධ යම් දැනුමක් ලබා 
ගත්තා. 

සාමානයපයන් අපිට විවිධ පැමිණිලි එනවා. එක අවස්ථාවක ගුවන් 
යානා එන්ජින්වලට යකඩ කැබලි ඇතුල් කරලා පරික්ෂණයක් ආවා. 
අපි එතැනදි Emirates එකට කිේවා, “අපි ගුවන් යානා එන්ජින් ගැන 
දන්පන් නැහැ. අපට පමහි ක්‍රියාකාරිත්වය ගැන දැනුමක් ලබා පදන්න.” 
කියා. ඊට පසු අපි සති පදකක ගුවන් යානා එන්ජින් සම්බන්ධ 
පුහුණුවක් ලබා ඒ විමර්ශනය පබාපහාම සාර්ථකව ක ා.  

ඒ වාපේ ඉස්සරපවලා සිපස්රියන් සැත්කමක් කියන්පන් 
සාමානයපයන් දරුපවක් ලැපබන්න ඉන්න මවකපේ ගර්භාෂය කපා 
දරුවා එළියට ගන්නවා කියන දැනුම තිබුණා. ඊට අමතරව පම් 
සිුපවලා තිපබන්පන් පමාකක්ද කියා අපි අිකරණ නිපයෝගයක් අනුව 
පත් කර ගත් මේඩලයක් -  ප්‍රධාන අිකරණ වවදය නිලධාරි, 

පසායිසා පරෝහපල් නාරි හා ප්‍රසව විපශ්ෂඥ වවදයවරපයක්, කාසල් 
පරෝහපල් ප්‍රසව සහ නාරිපේද විපශ්ෂඥ වවදයවරපයක් -  ඇතුළු 
කේඩායමක් පත් කර ගත්තා. ඒ අය සමඟ සහ ඊට අමතරව 
professorsලා කිහිප පදපනක් සමඟ කථා කර ඒ පතාරතුරු දැන 
ගත්තා. ඔබතුමා විමසුවා වාපේ විමර්ශන නිලධාරින්ට පම් විමර්ශන 
කරපගන යන්න බැරි තත්ත්වයක් ඇවිත් තිපබන්පන්. පම් වාපේ 
අපහාස කරන්න ගියාම, ඒවාත් අනියම් මාර්ගපයන් තර්ජන කිරීම්. 

ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා: ඔබතුමාපේ නිලධාරින් උසාවිපේ 
ඉදිරිපත් වුපේ ඍජුවමද,එපහම නැත්නම් රජපේ නීතීඥවරු එක්කද? 

ජී. ශානි  අපේපස්කර මහතා: මුලින්ම තවත් විමර්ශන නිලධාරින් 
සමඟ සහකාර පපාලිස් අිකාරි තිපස්රා මහතා ඉදිරිපත් වුණා. ඊට 
පස්පස්  නීතිපති පදපාර්තපම්න්තුපේ නිපයෝජය පසාලිසිටර් ජනරාල් 
තුසිත් මුදලිපේ මහතා සහකාර පපාලිස් අිකාරි තිපස්රා මහතා සමඟ 
පැමිණිල්ල පවනුපවන් අිකරණපේ පපනී සිට කරුණු දැක්වූවා.”   

(page 810)  
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The following witnesses gave evidence before the Committee 

regarding the impact rise in Buddhist extremism had in the growth of 

Islamic radicalization.  

• Former Director of the Terrorism Investigation Division 

(TID) DIG Mr. Nalaka De Silva Provides information that 

after the Digana incident on March 2018, Zahran’s actions 

started moving towards violent extremism  

“Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: We do not need to know how you 

did it. I am just asking the question because these things have 

come in the public domain. Only those who understand Tamil 

have seen those in social media, others have not seen it and the 

content of what he says also, I think, a lot of people have not seen 

because it is in Tamil. He is basically complaining about the 

Buddhist extremism against the Muslim people and calling on the 

Muslim youth to rise up against that.  

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes. That is why we went to the extent 

of taking an open warrant against him.  We put all those things 

to the court domain so that we could get the open warrant. 

Especially after the Digana incident in 2018, his actions started 

moving towards violent extremism. That is why I took that action.  

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: In the “B” Report, did you 

mention those videos? 

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes, Sir, and we have submitted those. 

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: You submitted the videos also to 

the court Is it? 

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes.  

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampthy Wickramaratne: Could we have the 

“B” Report number? 

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Sir, I cannot remember anything 

because I am not privy to these things now. That is why I said if 

you can summon the former Director of TID, Mr. Jagath 

Nishantha, he has all the documents. He can come and give it to 

you. He is already working at the same place now.  

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampthy Wickramaratne:  Mr. Jayasundara?  

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Mr. Jayasundara came in after I was 

remanded, Sir. But before him, there was SP Jagath Nishantha. 

He is still there at the TID now. He has all the documents. He has 

all the files and he can explain these to you.  

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: Anyway, all those have already 

been submitted to court?  
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Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes. We had to inform the court in such 

a way, Sir, that the court would be satisfied that he has to be 

issued with an open warrant.   

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake: DIG, do you think that Digana 

incident was also a part of his doing? 

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes. After the Digana incident, his 

social media activities increased.  

Hon. Rauff Hakeem: No, what the Hon. Minister is asking 

is about the particular incident that triggered the Digana 

incident, where four persons chased after an auto driver and 

killed him. Were those people involved with Zahran? 

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: No, that was an isolated incident, Sir.  

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake: That was an isolated incident.  

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: But, he used the Digana violence 

to motivate the Muslim youth. Is it?  

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: That is right.  

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake: So, after the open warrant came 

on 02nd July, 2018, from then onwards, was he missing? 

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes. When we started checking on him, 

Sir, basically to summon him for questioning and then go for an 

arrest, we could not find him in Kattankudy, Kuliyapitiya, 

Kurunegala and other areas where we knew he was roaming 

around. We were doing phone analyses also. But, we could not 

find him. Then, we opted to go for the open warrant so that we 

could inform the INTERPOL to trace him abroad, if he had gone 

abroad because we had the doubt that he had gone abroad 

through illegal means. When we checked his passport, the 

passport did not mention about any foreign travel during that 

period. But after this incident, through the media, I got to know 

that this person was in India at that time. I do not know whether 

it is true or not, but, through the media reports, I got to know that 

he was in India. Maybe, he had gone there in an illegal way. 

However, we got the open warrant and then, we went to the extent 

of taking a Blue Notice. Before the Red Notice, we have to get the 

Blue Notice.   

Hon. Rauff Hakeem: But, you know, there was also a case 

filed against him by the Kattankudy Police for the knife attack in 

Kattankudy itself.  

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes, Sir.  

Hon. Rauff Hakeem: So, he had gone into hiding then itself. 

Mr. Nalaka de Silva:  After that incident. 
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Hon. Ravi Karunanayake: Then, your “B” Report came 

thereafter. Is it? 

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes, thereafter because that incident 

occurred in 2017.   

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: Is the Blue Notice with the 

INTERPOL?  

Mr. Nalaka de Silva:  Yes, with the INTERPOL.  There are 

ten notices.  Before we get the Red Notice, we have to find out 

whether that person is available in a country.  So, the Blue Notice 

will give that notice to say, “Yes, this person is present in this 

country.”  Then, we can take up the matter with the Red Notice.   

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake:  So, Zahran is one person that 

you basically spotted.  Is it?  

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: Yes. 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake: Were there any others that you 

zeroed in on or you were on the trail of? 

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: In this regard, the NTJ, Zahran and 

also his gang were also on the scanner, but I cannot remember 

the names or anything now.  We started with the SLTJ Abdul 

Razik and them, but they were not going on a violent path.  That 

was in 2013-2014.  But, following Zahran’s social media 

campaign, I knew that he was going towards violent extremism 

and then, towards terrorism also.  That is why I wanted him to be 

arrested under the ICCPR Act or any Act at that time.  

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake: DIG, what I asked was whether 

there were any other culprits other than Zahran whom you 

spotted.  Zahran was one.  I do not think it was only one person 

that you spotted. 

Mr. Nalaka de Silva: No.  That is why I said, Sir, there were 

many others, but I cannot remember the names.”  (pages 123-

125)  

• TID Acting Director, Mr. Jagath Vishantha stated that 

Buddhist extremism that resulted in anti-Muslim clashes in 

Digana helped Zahran recruit more people and radicalise 

them.   

“ජගත් විශාන්ත මහතා : දිෙන්‍ සිද්ිෙත් සමඟ ඔවුන් ඇත්තටම 

එෙ ප්‍රයෙෝජන්‍ෙට ෙත්තා .දිෙන්‍ සිද්ිෙත් එේක ඔවුන් සිිංහල යෙෞද්ධ 

අන්තවාදෙට විරුද්ධව posts යොඩේ පළකරන්න්‍ ෙත්තා .ඒ වායේම 

අයේ  Research and Analysis Unitsවලින් ෙලන්‍යකාට අපට 

යත්රුණා ඒවාට comments, likes යොඩේ ලැයෙන්‍වා .ඒ සිද්ින් 
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එේක ඒවාට යොඩේ යදයන්‍ේ ආකාර්ශ්‍න්‍ෙ වන්‍ ආකාරෙේ අපට 

යපණුන්‍ා.” (page 1210)  

• President of the All Ceylon Jamiyyathul Ulama (ACJU) 

Moulasvi Mohammed Rizwi was of the view that Aluthgama 

anti – Muslim riots is one of the main reasons ISIS centred on 

Sri Lanka.   

 “Ash-Sheikh Mufti M.I.M. Rizwe: After that, on 

15.06.2014, there were the anti-Muslim riots in Aluthgama. I was 

one of the few, maybe the first in the world, who spoke against 

the ISIS, because as Islamic theologians, it is our duty to 

safeguard our motherland.  Islam has nothing to do with the ISIS, 

these hate speeches, misunderstandings or the thoughts, which 

have been expressed.  My speech was on 06.07.2014. 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne:  Where did you 

make this speech? 

Ash-Sheikh Mufti M.I.M. Rizwe:  It was broadcasted on the 

SLBC on 06.07.2014, after the attack in Aluthgama.  The copy is 

there. 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne:  So what is the 

relationship between the Aluthgama incident and the ISIS?  What 

relationship did you draw? 

Ash-Sheikh Mufti M.I.M. Rizwe:  The Aluthgama incident 

was one of the first reasons why the ISIS centered on Sri Lanka.  

Because of continued hate speeches, on 08th November, 2012, the 

Maharagama incident took place.   On 12.11. 2012, in 

Maharagama, anti-Islamic public notifications came up. 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne:  Could you 

explain, what the Maharagama incident was, for the purpose of 

record?  Some of us know about it.   

Ash-Sheikh Mufti M.I.M. Rizwe:  In Maharagama, the 

Bodu Bala Sena collected everyone and started hate speech; this 

kind of anti-Islamic things were initiated.  After that, it came up 

to Aluthgama.  When Aluthgama incident took place, we started 

noticing that a few youngsters were speaking about the ISIS.  The 

reason why they started that was the continuous hate speech, 

anti-Halal elements and anti-Islamic elements. When I spoke on 

the radio, this gentleman, who was behind these ISIS- ”. (page 

272)    
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3. Prior warnings and complaints made by several 

people were not acted upon 

In the field of counterterrorism, reliable and timely intelligence 

plays a major role. It makes tactical and strategic prevention in the 

real sense of its meaning possible. On the one hand, it provides 

security professionals with the opportunity to act before a terrorist 

attack occurs (tactical prevention), while on the other hand, it is the 

precondition for threat analysis, which enables proper political 

decision making with a long-term approach towards evolving security 

concerns (strategic prevention).  

Intelligence agencies collect data mainly from public sources and 

diplomatic staff abroad. In order to process the collected data or make 

intelligence out of it the state employs variety of different intelligence 

agencies, each of them being an expert in a selected field. The final 

output that intelligence agencies deliver then serve policymakers to 

take action in the right direction. However, witnessing the events 

leading up to the Easter Sunday attacks, it is evident that lapses 

occurred.  

The PSC observed that though several complaints were made by 

various people, some over the years regarding the growth of Islamic 

extremism and specifically about Zahran and the conduct of the NTJ 

in the Kattankudy area, there were inadequate action taken. This 

enabled Zahran and his group to evade the law and conduct training 

camps and terrorist activities without being detected. The PSC also 

notes that complaints against Zahran were made by people within the 

Muslim community in several occasions. If authorities had taken 

action early, including arresting individuals on the basis of evidence 

and due process, the Easter Sunday attacks may have been prevented 

as well as subsequent violence.  

Some of the following incidents are key to understanding the 

information given by local communities, inaction and delays in 

response:  
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• The PSC was informed that the Sufi Muslims made 

complaints to the Kattankudy Police Station since 2013/2014 

regarding the extremist conduct and behaviour of Zahran and 

his group. Based on this a case was filed in the Batticaloa 

Magistrates Court bearing case No B 897/2014 on the 27th of 

October 2014.  

• Zahran’s violence reached its peak on the 10th of March 2017 

when a group of Sufis were attacked by him and his followers 

with swords near the Aliyar Junction injuring many from the 

Sufi sect. Case No B276/ 2017 was filed by the Police on 

behalf of the victims. 09 persons from the NTJ were arrested 

subsequent to the incident. However, Zahran and his brother 

absconded and went into hiding. 

• This police complaint was then made into a letter and sent to 

the President’s Office, Minister of Justice Hon. Wijayadasa 

Rajapaksha, Minister of Law and Order and Southern 

Development – Hon. Sagala Rathanayaka, to the Prime 

Minister’s Office and State Minister of Defence Hon. Ruwan 

Wijewardana and Inspector General of Police and Mr. Nalaka 

de Silva of the TID and the Attorney-General’s Department. 

Responses for these letters were received from the Prime 

Minister’s office and the Attorney-General’s Department.  

• The TID obtained an open warrant against Zahran on the 2nd 

of July 2018 after they monitored and observed his behavior 

and his actions were moving towards violent extremism 

especially after the anti-Muslim riots in Digana in March 

2018. However, the TID was not able to trace his location to 

arrest him. They then obtained an INTERPOL Blue Notice 

and a Red Notice subsequently.  

The PSC notes that the law enforcement agencies and the 

intelligence agencies did not understand the gravity of the threats. The 

danger the country could face from terrorism-let alone Islamic 

terrorism was not a major topic for policy debate in the recent past.  
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The following witnesses gave evidence before the Committee 

regarding the information/complaints that were made against NTJ and 

Zahran. 

• Deputy Solicitor General of the Attorney-General’s 

Department Mr. Dileepa Peiris informed the Committee 

that on the 3rd of April 2017, Al-Haj Abdul Jawad Alim 

Vaiyullah Trust sent a letter to the Attorney-General. The then 

Hon. Attorney-General instructed the DSG to open file and 

discuss. The DSG took necessary action regarding the 

complaint made by Moulavi Sahlan.  

“දිලීප පීරිස් මහතා: ඒ අනුව ත්‍රසේත විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාසෙ විසින් 
ෙම් ඇමුණුම් සහිත වාර්තාවකින් සමන්විත යේඛන්‍ෙේ උපයදසේ 
යොනුවේ යලසට නීතිපති යදපාර්තයම්න්තුව යවත යොමු කර තිබුණා. 
එම යේඛන්‍ෙ යම් ෙරු කාරක සභාව හමුයව් විශ්‍ේයේෂණෙට ලේ යවලා 
තියෙන්‍වා. ඒ වායේම ඒ යොනුවට අදාළව නිවැරදි යන්‍ාවන්‍ ආකාරයේ 
වාර්තාකරණෙේද සමාජෙතව තියෙන්‍වා.  අප යදපාර්තයම්න්තුව අර්ධ 
අිකරණමෙ කාර්ෙේ කරන්‍, වෙ කිවයුතු, යම් රයේ යුේතිෙ පසිඳලීයම් 
කර්තවය සඳහා සුවියශ්‍ේෂ දාෙකත්වෙේ දේවන්‍ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුවේ. ඒ 
අනුව අයේ වෘත්තීෙ ජීවිතෙ ෙත්යතාත් අයේ සිටින්‍ සෑම 
නිලධාරියෙේම රාජය යසේවෙ යවනුයවන් කැප යවලා අයන්‍කුත් යද්වේ 
පයසකලා තමයි යම් වෘත්තිෙ යතෝරා ෙත්යත්. එත යකාට අපට 
සුවියශ්‍ේෂම කාරණෙ යවන්යන් අයේ යෙෞරවෙ. අයේ 
යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් අභිමාන්‍ෙ තමයි අප ප්‍රමුඛ සේථාන්‍ෙ ලා 
සලකන්යන්. ආර්ිකමෙ යහෝ සමාජීෙමෙ අයන්‍කුත් 
කාරණා  යන්‍ායවයි. අප යදපාර්තයම්න්තුව අයේ රට යවනුයවන් යුේතිෙ 
පසිඳලීයම් කාර්ෙ සඳහා යන්‍ාබිෙව, කිසිදු ෙැඳීමකට ෙටත් යන්‍ාී ඍජුව 
කටයුතු කරන්‍ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුවේ යලසයි  යම් රට දැ න්‍යෙන්‍ 
සිටින්යන්. ඒ නිසා යම් න්‍ඩු කෘතය තුළින් මායේ සයහෝදර 
නිලධාරින්යේ ක්‍රිොකාරීත්වෙ ඒ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් කීර්තිමත් 
න්‍ාමෙට ෙම්  ආකාරෙකට කැලැලේ යවලා තියෙන්‍වා න්‍ම් එෙ නිවැරදි 
කරන්න්‍ තමයි සේයව්ච්ඡායවන් යම් සිද්ිෙ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් සම්ෙන්ිත 
යොනුවක කටයුතු කරන්‍ නිලධාරියෙේ වශ්‍යෙන් මමත්, මායේ 
සයහෝදර නියෙෝජය යසාලිසිටර් ජන්‍රාේ අසාද් න්‍වාවි මහත්මොත් යම් 
කාරක සභාව හමුයව් කතා කරන්න්‍ අපට අවසේථාවේ යදන්න්‍ කිෙලා 
අපයේ පරිපාලන්‍ අිංශ්‍ෙ යවත ඉේලීමේ කයළේ.  

එහිදී  මවිසින් ොරව සිටින්‍ MP 193/2014 දරන්‍ යොනුව මා  අද 
යමම කාරක සභාව හමුවට යෙන්‍විත් තියෙන්‍වා. ෙරු සභාපතිතුමනි, 
යෙෞරවණීෙ සාමාජිකයිනි, යමම යොනුව ෙැන්‍ සඳහන් කිරීමට 
ප්‍රථමයෙන් නීතිපති යදපාර්තයම්න්තුවට යොනුවේ ලැබුණු පසුව ඒ 
සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් කටයුතු කළ යුතු ආකාරෙ ෙැන්‍ සඳහන් කරන්න්‍ට මම  
කැමතියි. නීතිපතිවරොට  අපරාධමෙ න්‍ඩු කෘතයෙේ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් 
කටයුතු කළ හැකි ආකාරෙ පිළිෙඳව  අපරාධ න්‍ඩු විධාන්‍ සිංග්‍රහයේ 393 
වැනි වෙන්තිෙ එන්‍ම් 33වැනි පරිච්යේදයේ නිශ්‍ේචිතව දේවා තියෙන්‍වා. 
ඒ අනුව  රාජය නිලධාරින් යහෝ විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ නිලධාරින් විසින් කරන්‍ ලද 
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ඉේලීමේ මත යහෝ  නීතිපතිවරො විසින් සේයව්ච්ඡායවන්ම විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ෙේ 
සඳහා උපයදසේ ලොදීම සිදු කළ හැකියි. ෙරු සභාපතිතුමනි, එේ අනුව 
විවිධ රාජය නිලධාරින්යෙන්, යපාලිසේ  නිලධාරින්යෙන් නීතිපති 
යදපාර්තයම්න්තුවට විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ උද්ධෘතෙන් යොමු යවන්‍වා. එම 
විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ උද්ධෘතෙන් අප අවධාන්‍ෙට යොමු කරලා ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් 
ෙත හැකි ඉදිරි අිකරණමෙ පිෙවරෙන් ෙනු ලෙන්‍වා. එහිදී අප ෙම්කිසි 
අිකරණමෙ පිෙවරේ ෙනු ලෙන්යන් න්‍ම්, ෙම් සැකකරුයවකුයේ 
අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීමේ නිර්යද්ශ්‍ කරන්යන් න්‍ම් නිශ්‍ේචිත වශ්‍යෙන් අප 
එෙ කරන්යන් ෙම් මතු අන්‍ාෙත දින්‍ෙක ඒ අපරාධ යචෝදන්‍ාව සන්‍ාථ 
කළ හැකි වන්යන් න්‍ම් පමණේ ෙන්‍ පදන්‍ම මතයි.   එන්‍ම් ෙම් මතු 
දින්‍ෙක විනිශ්‍ේචෙකාරතුයමකු අභිමුයව් සාධාරණ සැකයෙන් ඕෙෙට 
අපයේ න්‍ඩුව සන්‍ාථ කිරීයම් හැකිොවේ තියෙන්යන් දැයි අප සෑහීමකට 
පත් ීමයි. එෙ “reasonable prospect of a conviction” ෙනුයවන් 
තමයි අප  සලකන්‍ න්‍යාෙ වන්යන්. යමහිදී නීතිපති යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් 
සිවිේ හා අපරාධ අිංශ්‍ වශ්‍යෙන් අිංශ්‍ෙන් යදකේ තියෙන්‍වා. අපරාධ 
අිංශ්‍යේ යොනු විවෘත යවන්‍ ක්‍රමයව්දෙන් යදකේ තියෙන්‍වා. ෙරු 
සභාපතිතුමනි, එක ක්‍රමෙේ තමයි විෂොනුෙද්ධව එන්‍ම් විෂ වර්ෙ, අබිිං 
සහ අන්තරාදාෙක ඖෂධ වර්ෙ පන්‍ත ෙටයත් එන්‍ම් යහයරායින්, ෙිංජා 
සහ අයන්‍කුත් තහන්‍ම් ඖෂධවලට අදාළ සුවි යශ්‍ේෂ අිංශ්‍ෙේ තියෙන්‍වා. 
ඊට අමතරව ළමා අපචාර සම්ෙන්ධයෙන්  යවන්‍ම අිංශ්‍ෙේ තියෙන්‍වා. 
මයේ  සයහෝදර න්‍වාවි මහත්මො කටයුතු කරන්‍ ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ 
වැළැේීයම් අිංශ්‍ෙත් තියෙන්‍වා. ඊට අමතරව අපරාධ පරීේෂණ 
යදපාර්තයම්න්තුවට අදාළව  අිංශ්‍ෙේ තියෙන්‍වා. ඒ අනුව ඒ ඒ විෂෙට 
අදාළව සමසේත ලිංකායව්ම තියෙන්‍ න්‍ඩු කාර්ෙන් සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් එේ 
එේ යජයෂේඨ නිලධාරින් අධීේෂණ නිලධාරින් වශ්‍යෙන් කටයුතු 
කරන්‍වා. මා  යකාළඹ ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ මහාිකරණ 7ේද, දකුණු පළායත් 
මහාිකරණ  2ේද සමසේතෙේ වශ්‍යෙන් මහාිකරණ 9ක රජයේ 
නීතීඥවරුන්යේ අධීේෂණ නිලධාරි වශ්‍යෙන් කටයුතු කරන්‍වා.  ඒ 
අනුව මම අධීේෂණෙ කරන්‍ ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ ත්‍රසේතවාදී කටයුත්තේ 
සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් යොනුවේ විවෘත යවන්‍වා න්‍ම් එෙ යොමු යවන්යන් 
අසාත් න්‍වාවි මහතායේ අධීේෂණෙට. ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් මායේ 
අධීේෂණෙට යොමු වන්යන් න්‍ැහැ ෙරු සභාපතිතුමනි. යමහිදී  
යොයහෝ යවලාවට අපරාධ අිංශ්‍යේ අදාළ අධීේෂණ නිලධාරි පත් 
වන්යන් අපරාධ අිංශ්‍ෙ ොර ප්‍රධානීන්  නීතිපතිතුමාත් සමඟ සාකච්ඡා 
ීයමන් පසුවයි. ඒ අනුව පත් වන්‍ අධීේෂණ නිලධාරින් තමන්ට එන්‍ 
විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යොනු ඔහු ෙටයත් සිටින්‍ කනිෂේඨ නිලධාරින් යවත  
අධීේෂණෙ සඳහා යොමු කරන්‍වා. ඒ අනුව යොයහෝ  යොනු ඉතාමත්ම 
සිංයව්දී  යොනු අවසන් තීරණෙේ ෙැනීම සඳහා නීතිපතිතුමායේ 
අවධාන්‍ෙ දේවා ෙන්‍වා.  

ෙරු සභාපතිතුමනි ,MP  කිෙන්යන් සුවියශ්‍ේෂ අිංශ්‍ෙේ .යම් අිංශ්‍ෙ  

ඍජුවම  ෙරු නීතිපතිතුමායේ අධීේෂණෙ ෙටයත් තියෙන්‍ ,

මහජන්‍තාවයේ දුේ ෙැන්‍විලි සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් යසාො ෙලන්‍ අිංශ්‍ෙේ .
නීතිපති යදපාර්තයම්න්තුව සාමාන්‍යයෙන් සිවිේ පුරවැසිෙන් සමඟ 

සම්ෙන්ධතාවේ පවත්වන්යන් න්‍ැහැ .න්‍මුත් ෙම් අපරාධමෙ යහෝ සිවිේ 

කාර්ෙකදී ෙම්කිසි පාර්ශ්‍ේවෙකට රාජය පාර්ශ්‍ේවෙකින් ෙම් අෙතිෙේ ,

ෙම් හානිෙේ සිදු යවලා තියෙන්‍ ෙවට ඔහු සිතන්‍වා න්‍ම් ඒ 

සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් අප යවත ලිපිෙේ යොමු කළාට පසුව නීතිපති 

යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව්  යොනුවේ විවෘත යවන්‍වා .ඒ අනුව මා යපර කී 
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පරිදි අදාළ අධීේෂණ නිලධාරින් යවත ඒ යොනුව පැවරීමට  යොමු 

කරන්‍වා . 

යමම අධීේෂණ නිලධාරින් නීතිපතිවරොයේ චක්‍රයේඛෙ අනුව 

කටයුතු කළ යුතුයි  .ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් නිලධාරින්ට අභිමතෙේ න්‍ැහැ  .
අපි කැමැත්යතන් කිසිම අිංශ්‍ෙේ යවත යොසේ වැඩකටයුතු කරන්න්‍ 

හැකිොවේ න්‍ැහැ  .මහජන්‍ යපත්සම් අිංශ්‍ෙ වර්තමාන්‍යේ පවතින්යන්  

යසාලිසිටර් ජන්‍රාේතුමිෙයේ අධීේෂණෙ ෙටයත් .එහි යජයෂේඨ 

නි යෙෝජය යසාලිසිටර් ජන්‍රාේවරයෙේ සිටින්‍වා  .ඊට අමතරව ,

අපරාධ විෂෙ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් මමත් ,රජයේ යජයෂේඨ 

අිනීතීඥවරයෙකුත් සිටින්‍වා  .ඒ වායේම සිවිේ අිංශ්‍ෙ භාරව තවත් 

රජයේ නීතීඥවරයෙේ සිටින්‍වා  . 

2017 අයේේ මාසයේ 03වැනි දා, Al-Haj Abdul Jawad Alim 

Valiyullah Trust කිෙන්‍ ආෙතන්‍යෙන් නීතිපතිතුමා යවත ලිපිෙේ ෙවා 
තියෙන්‍වා.  එවකට සිටි නීතිපති, වර්තමාන්‍ අග්‍රවිනිශ්‍ේචකාරතුමන් 
2017.04.03වැනි දා සටහන්‍ේ යොදා තියෙන්‍වා, “DSG, Dileepa 

Peiris, please, open MP file and discuss” කිෙලා.   

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: What is the date of that letter? 

Mr. Dipeepa Peiris: The letter was dated 27.03.2017.  

Hon. Rauff Hakeem: This is from Al-Haj Abdul Jawad Alim 

Valiyullah Trust. 

Mr. Dipeepa Peiris: That is right. That is the Trust.  

Hon. Rauff Hakeem: This was addressed to the President and 

-   

දිලීප පීරිසේ මහතා: නීතිපති ජෙන්ත ජෙසූරිෙ මහතායේ න්‍මින් 
තමයි යමම ලිපිෙ යොමු කර තියෙන්යන්.  ෙරු අිකරණ අමාතය 
වියේදාස රාජපේෂ, යපාලිසේපති සහ ත්‍රසේත විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාසයේ 
අධයේෂ ඇතුළු කිහිප යදයන්‍කුට යමහි පිටපත් යොමු කර තියෙන්‍ ෙවයි 
සඳහන් ී තියෙන්යන්.   

ෙරු රවුෆේ හකීම් මහතා:   අයේ යේඛන්‍ෙ 13/W/9.  එෙ යවන්‍ත් 
යේඛන්‍ෙේ.  But, it is the same letter. They have only changed the 

caption for the addressing.  

ෙරු (ආචාර්ෙ) ජෙම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න්‍ මහතා:  එෙ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමාට 
සෘජුව ෙවපු ලිපිෙේ.  අපට යපනී ෙන්යන්, එම  ලිපියේම 
නීතිපතිතුමාටත් ආමන්ත්‍රණෙ කර ෙවා ඇති ෙවයි. 

දිලීප පීරිසේ මහතා:  මයේ සයහෝදර න්‍වාවි මහතාට එවා තියෙන්‍ 
උද්ධෘත යොනුයව් තියෙන්‍ ලිපිෙේ සමඟ මට පසු අවසේථාවකදී යම් 
ලිපිෙ සිංසන්ධන්‍ෙ කරන්න්‍ ලැබුණා.  ඒ අනුව යපනී ගියේ, යමහි 
කර්තෘවරො එන්‍ම් යම් භාරයේ සභාපතිතුමන්, මවුලවිතුමා ආරම්භක 
ලිපින්‍ෙ පිටපයත් තියෙන්‍ සමහර අෙයේ න්‍මට න්‍ැවත ෙතුරුලිෙන්‍ෙ 
කර මුේ පිටපත විිෙට ඉදිරිපත් කර තියෙන්‍ ෙවයි.  යමෙ ෙම් 
පාර්ශ්‍ේවෙේ යපෞද්ෙලිකව නීතිපති යදපාර්තයම්න්තුවට පැමිණ, 

නීතිපතිතුමාට අතින් භාර දී තියෙන්‍ ලිපිෙේ.  ඒ අනුව නීතිපතිතුමා 
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යමහි සටහන්‍ යෙදුවාට පසුව, අපයේ මහජන්‍ යපත්සම් අිංශ්‍ෙට යොමු 
කරන්‍වා.  එයසේ යොමු වූ පසුව, යම් අිංශ්‍ෙ භාරව සිටින්‍ යජයෂේඨ 
නියෙෝජය යසාලිසිටර් ජන්‍රාේවරො යසෝබිත රාජකරුණා මහතා මා 
යවත සටහන්‍ේ යොදා තියෙන්‍වා, “Please, see the endorsement of 

the Hon. Attorney General (dated 03.04.2017) on blue one. 

Please, speak with the AG.” යම් ෙැන්‍ නිතිපතිතුමා සමඟ කථා 
කරන්න්‍ කිෙලා. මා නීතිපතිතුමා සමඟ කථා කිරීමට යපර 2017.05.23 
දින්‍ “යමවැනි ලිපිෙේ නීතිපති යදපාර්තයම්න්තුවට ලැබී  තියෙන්‍ ෙවත් 
ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් අපයේ අවධාන්‍ෙට යොමු ී තියෙන්‍ ෙවත් 
යේ.ආර්.එම්. අසේලාන් මවුලවිතුමා යවත ලිඛිතව දැනුම් දී තියෙන්‍වා.  ඒ 
වායේම අපයේ යොමු අිංකෙ එම්.පී.193/2017 වශ්‍යෙන්ද මා දේවා 
තියෙන්‍වා.  යම් ලිපිෙ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් නීතිපතිතුමා සමඟ සාකච්ඡා 
කිරීමට යපර මා යම් ලිපිෙ කිෙවා අධයෙන්‍ෙ කළා.  යමම ලිපිෙ 
යකයරහි මායේ අවධාන්‍ෙ යොමු වූ ප්‍රධාන්‍ කරුණ තමයි එහි පළමුවැනි 
වාකයෙ.  “අපි මුසේලිම් ජන්‍තාවන්ෙ. සාමෙ පදන්‍ම් කර ෙනිමින් 
සාම්ප්‍රදායික යලස ඉසේලාම් ධර්මෙ අනුෙමන්‍ෙ කරමු” කිෙලා තමයි ඔහු  
ලිපිෙ පටන් ෙන්යන්.  එහි අනුයේද යදකේ තියෙන්‍වා.  ඒ අනුව ඉසේලාම් 
කිෙන්යන් කුමේද කිෙලා සඳහන් යවන්‍වා.  ඉසේලාමීෙ මූලධර්ම වාදෙ 
කිෙන්යන් කුමේද කිෙලා සඳහන් යවන්‍වා.”  (pages 1161-1163)  

• Mr. Dileepa Peiris also stated on the 25th of March 2019 – a 

statement from Moulavi KRM Sahlan was recorded by the 

TID   

“දිලීප පීරිස් මහතා   :ෙරු මන්ත්‍රීතුමනි ,යම් කාරණෙ අන්‍ාවරණෙ 

වුණාට පසේයසේ ත්‍රසේත විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාසයේ අධයේෂවරො විසින් 

අපයේ නීතිපතිවරො යවත අවසන් වාර්තාවේ යොමු කරන්‍වා .ඒ 

වාර්තායව් ඉදිරිපත් කරන්යන්  2019.05.05  . යෙෝම්ෙ පිපිරීයමන් 

පසේයසේ  .ඒ වාර්තායව් ඔහු දේවන්‍වා“ ,මව්ලවි යමායහාමඩ් කාසිම් 

යමායහාමඩ් සහරාන් ෙන්‍ අෙ විසින් අයන්‍ේ ජාතීන් හා ආෙම් අතර 

අසමඟිෙේ ,වවරෙේ ඇති කරවන්‍ ආකාරයෙන් ප්‍රචාරණෙේ සිදු 

කරනු ලෙන්‍ ෙවටත් ,එමඟින් රයේ සමඟිෙට හා එකමුතුභාවෙට 

ඉතාමත් හානිදාෙක ෙවත් සඳහන් කරමින්  2017.03.27 දින්‍ එහි 

යේකම් යලස සඳහන් කර ඇති යේ.ආර් .සහලාන් ඇතුළු තවත් 

සාමාජිකෙන් පිරිසේ විසින් ත්‍රසේත විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාසෙට පැමිණ 

ලිපිෙේ හා ීියෙෝ අඩිංගු සිංයුේත තැටි යදකේ ඡාොරූප සමඟ භාර 

දුන්න්‍ා ”කිෙලා . 

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: What is the date on which the 

statement was recorded? 

Mr. Dileepa Peiris: Sir, no statement was recorded. What 

the Director TID informed us was that this Mowlawi came to the 

TID along with two other officials. 

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: When was that? 

Mr. Dileepa Peiris: That was in 2017. 
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Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: When was the statement 

eventually recorded at the TID?  Do you not know that? 

Mr. Dileepa Peiris: 25th of March 2019 -  2019මාර්තු මස 

25වන්‍ දින්‍. 

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran: That was one month before the 

blast.” (page 1168)   

• Secretary of Al-Haj Abdul Jawadh Alim Waliyyullah 

Trust, Sufi Moulavi Mr. KRM Sahlan stated that 

complaints were lodged in the Kattankudy Police station in 

2013/2014 regarding Zahran’s Magazine named “Thowheed” 

which contained hate speech targeting the Sufi community in 

Kattankudy 

 “ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்:   சூபி முஸ்லிம்ேளாேிய 

நாங்ேள்  எங்ேளுடைய பள்ளிவாயல்ேளில் அன்னதானம் 

வழங்குவது வழக்ேம். பபாதுமக்ேளுக்கு  இன, மத 

கவறுபாடின்றி எல்லா மத மக்ேளுக்கும் அன்னதானம் 

வழங்குவது வழக்ேம். இவ்வாறு நாங்ேள் ஒரு வருைத்தில் 

சுமார் 15 அன்னதானங்ேள் வழங்குேின்கறாம். அதில் 

மிேப்பபாிய அன்னதானம் ஒன்றும் வழங்குேின்கறாம்.  அந்த 

அன்னதானம் சம்பந்தமாேவும் பாராளுமன்ற இந்த gazette 

பத்திரத்திகல குறிப்பிைப்பட்டிருக்ேின்றது. அஜ்மீர் ஹாஜா 

முஷியத்தின் ஜிஸ்தி அவர்ேளினதும் மற்றும் கவறு 

இஸ்லாமிய பபாியார்ேளினதும் நிடனவு  டவபவங்ேளில் 

ேலந்துபோள்ளும் மக்ேளுக்கு அன்னதானம் வழங்குதல் 

என்ற ஒரு குறிப்பு இ்ங்கு குறிப்பிைப்பட்டிருக்ேின்றது. அந்த 

அடிப்படையில் நாங்ேள் வழங்குேின்கறாம். புனிதமான 

அந்த நிேழ்டவ -அங்கு வழங்ேப்படுேின்ற அந்த 

அன்னதானத்தில் வழங்ேப்படும் உணடவச்   சாப்பிடுவது 

முஸ்லிம்ேளுக்குக் கூைாது, முஸ்லிம்ேடளப் 

பபாறுத்தவடரயில் இது பன்றி இடறச்சிடயச் 

சாப்பிடுவடதப்கபால, பன்றி இடறச்சிடயச் 

சாப்பிடுவதற்குச் சமனானது என்ற ஒரு பிரசாரத்டத இந்த 

‘பதௌஹீத்’ பத்திாிடேயில் அவர் 2013ஆம் ஆண்டு 

முதலாவது இதழிகல எழுதி பவளியிட்ைார். அகதகபால் 

அந்தக் ோலப்பகுதியிகல பிரசுரங்ேடளயும் பவளியிட்ைார். 

அந்தப் பிரசுரங்ேளும் அகத ேருத்டதத்தான் பதாிவித்தன. 

இதுபதாைர்பாே ோத்தான்குடிப்  பபாலிஸ்நிடலயத்தில் 

2013 – 2014 ோலப்பகுதியில் பமாத்தமாே 11 

முடறப்பாடுேடள நாங்ேள் பசய்கதாம். எங்ேளுடைய 

ஒவ்பவாரு நிறுவனங்ேளினாலும் இவ்வாறான முஸ்லிம் 
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மக்ேளுக்ேிடையில் பிரச்சிடனடய ஏற்படுத்தக்கூடிய, 

மனடதப் புண்படுத்தக்கூடிய, வன்முடறேடளத் 

தூண்ைக்கூடிய வடேயிகல அவருடைய பிரசாரம் 

இருக்ேின்றது என்ற அடிப்படையில் நாங்ேள் 11 

முடறப்பாடுேள் பசய்கதாம். அந்த முடறப்பாட்டின் 

அடிப்படையில் –  

ගරු (ආචාර්ෙ) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා :  කාටද ඉදිරිපත් 
කයළේ?  

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்:  ோத்தான்குடிப் 

பபாலிஸ் நிடலயத்தில் முடறப்பாடு பசய்கதாம். 2013, 

2014ஆம் ஆண்டு. அந்த முடறப்பாடுேளின் அடிப்படையில் 

மட்ைக்ேளப்பு Magistrate’s Court இல் பி 897/2014 என்ற 

இலக்ேத்தில் 27.10.2014 திேதி ஒரு வழக்போன்டறயும் பதிவு 

பசய்கதாம்.  

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ.சுமந்திரன்: வழக்கு இலக்ேம் என்ன? 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: பி 897/2014. 

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ.சுமந்திரன்: 2014 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்:  2014  

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ.சுமந்திரன்: எந்த மாதம் பதிவு 

பசய்யப்பட்ைது? 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: 27ஆம் திேதி 10ஆம் 

மாதம் 2014ஆம் ஆண்டு.  

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ.சுமந்திரன்: இடதப்  பபாலிஸ் பதிவு 

பசய்ததா? நீங்ேள் பதிவு பசய்ததா? 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: இது பபாலிஸ் பதிவு 

பசய்த வழக்குத்தான்.  

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ.சுமந்திரன்: உங்ேளுடைய complaint 

இல்.  

ஜனாப். கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: எங்ேளுடைய complaint 

அடிப்படையில் பபாலிஸாாினால் பதிவு பசய்யப்பட்ை 

வழக்கு. அந்த வழக்கு விசாரடண நடைபபற்றது. ஆனால் 

அவர் எங்ேளுடைய சூபி முஸ்லிம்ேளுடைய மனடதப் 

புண்படுத்தக்கூடிய வடேயில் அவர் பிரசாரம் பதாைர்ந்து 

பசய்துபோண்டுதான் இருந்தார். 

அவர் அந்தப் பிரச்சாரத்டத இடைநிறுத்தவில்டல. 

வழக்கும் இடைநடுவில் நிறுத்தப்பட்டுவிட்ைது. இவருடைய 
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இவ்வாறான ேடும்கபாக்குவாதச் பசயற்பாடுேள் 2014ஆம் 

ஆண்டு ோலப்பகுதியில் பதாைர்ந்து நைந்துபோண்கை 

இருந்தது. மக்ேள் மத்தியில் குழப்பத்டத உண்ைாக்ேக்கூடிய, 

எங்ேளுடைய மனடதப் புண்படுத்தக்கூடிய இவருடைய 

இந்தச் பசயற்பாடுேள் சம்பந்தமாே அந்த கநரத்தில் 

ேிழக்குமாோண இராணுவக் ேட்ைடளத் தளபதியாே இருந்த 

கமஜர் பஜனரல் லால் பபகரரா அவர்ேளிைத்திகல பசன்று 

நாங்ேள் இந்த விையத்டதத் பதாிவித்கதாம்.  

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ.சுமந்திரன்: எப்கபாது 

பதாிவித்திருந்தீர்ேள்? 

ஜனாப்.கே.ஆர்.எம்.சஹ்லான்: 2015 - 2017ஆம் 

ஆண்ைளவில் இருக்குபமன நான் நிடனக்ேின்கறன். அந்த 

கநரத்திலிருந்த கமஜர் பஜனரல் லால் பபகரரா 

அவர்ேளிைத்திகல இந்த விையத்டதத் பதாிவித்கதாம். 

பின்னர் அவர் கதசிய பதௌஹீத் ஜமாஅத் 

அடமப்பினடரயும் சஹ்ராடனயும் அடழத்து இவ்வாறான 

பசயற்பாடுேளில் நீங்ேள் ஈடுபைக்கூைாது; அது இஸ்லாமிய 

மக்ேளிடைகய பிரச்சிடனேடள ஏற்படுத்தக்கூடிய 

விையபமன்று எச்சாிக்டே பசய்திருந்தார் என்படத நாங்ேள் 

பின்னர் கேள்விப்பட்கைாம். அந்த எச்சாிக்டேடயக்கூை 

சஹ்ரான் பபாருட்படுத்தவில்டல. அந்த எச்சாிக்டேயின் 

பின்னர் அவர் ஊருக்கு வந்து கமஜர் பஜனரல் அவர்ேடள 

விமர்சித்து உடரபயான்டறப் கபசினார். அவர் இராணுவ 

அதிோாியின் ேட்ைடளடய மதிக்ேவில்டல. அதற்குப் 

பின்னர் 2015ஆம் ஆண்டு பபாதுத் கதர்தல் நடைபபற்றது. 

அந்தப் பபாதுத் கதர்தலிகல எங்ேளுடைய மட்ைக்ேளப்பு 

மாவட்ைத்திகல குறிப்பாே ோத்தான்குடிப் பிரகதசத்திகல 

இருக்ேக்கூடிய அரசியல் பிரமுேர்ேடளயும் அந்த கநரத்தில் 

கவட்பாளர்ேளாே இருந்தவர்ேடளயும் அடழத்து 

அவர்ேளுக்கு அழுத்தம் போடுத்து அவர்ேளுைன் ஓர் 

ஒப்பந்தத்டதச் பசய்துபோண்ைார். அந்த ஒப்பந்தத்தில் அவர் 

பல்கவறுபட்ை அடிப்படைவாதக் ேருத்துக்ேடளத் 

பதாிவித்தார்.” (pages 434-435)  

• Complaints were made to the Kattankudy Police in 2017 

regarding the attack on Sufi Muslims in Aliyar Junction which 

resulted in 9 of the members of the NTJ being arrested.  

 “ஜனாப்.கே.ஆர்.எம்.சஹ்லான்: அது 10.03.2017ஆம் 

திேதி. ோத்தான்குடிப் பிரகதசத்திலுள்ள அலியார் சந்தி - 

Aliyar Junction - என்று பசால்லக்கூடிய அந்த இைத்திகல ஒரு 



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 110 ) 

பிரச்சாரக் கூட்ைத்டத நைத்தினார். கதசிய பதௌஹீத் 

ஜமாஅத் என்ற அடமப்பு அந்தப் பிரச்சாரக் கூட்ைத்டத 

ஏற்பாடு பசய்திருந்தது. அந்தக் கூட்ைத்தினுடைய 

ேருப்பபாருள் “அத்டவதிேடள மதம்மாறியவர்ேள் என்று 

நாம் ஏன் பசால்ேின்கறாம்?” என்பதாகும். அதாவது “சூபி 

முஸ்லிம்ேடள முஸ்லிம்ேள் அல்ல என்று நாங்ேள் ஏன் 

பசால்ேின்கறாம்?” என்று அவர் பதளிவுபடுத்தப் கபாவதாே  

..... 

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ.சுமந்திரன்: இது சம்பந்தமாே அந்தக் 

கூட்ை notice இல் இருக்ேின்றதா? 

ஜனாப்.கே.ஆர்.எம்.சஹ்லான்: ஆம், இது 

கூட்ைத்திற்ோே பவளியிைப்பட்ை notice ஆகும்.   

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ.சுமந்திரன்: ஒவ்பவான்றாே mark 

பண்ணிவிட்டுச் பசல்கவாம். (03 ‘சிடி’ேள், அவருடைய 

முேநூல் – Facebook மற்றும் Meeting notice 
அடையாளமிைப்படுேின்றது( 

நீங்ேள்  10 ஆம் திேதி நடைபபற்ற சம்பவத்திற்குப் 

பின்னர்தான் complain பசய்தீர்ேளா? They have made a 

complaint after the incident on the 10th.  

ஜனாப்.கே.ஆர்.எம்.சஹ்லான் :ஆம், Aliyar Junction - 

அலியார் சந்தி என்பது ோத்தான்குடியில் சூபி முஸ்லிம்ேள் 

பபரும்பாலும் பசறிந்து வாழக்கூடியபதாரு இைமாகும் .

அந்த இைத்தில் ‘சூபி முஸ்லிம்ேள் முஸ்லிம்ேள் அல்ல’ என்ற 

பிரச்சாரத்டத அவர் பசய்ய முடனந்தகபாது அந்த இைத்தில் 

ஒரு பிரச்சிடன ஏற்பட்ைது. அந்தப் பிரச்சிடனயில் கதசிய 

பதௌஹீத் ஜமாஅத் அடமப்டபச் கசர்ந்தவர்ேள் சூபி 

முஸ்லிம்ேளில் ஒருவடர வாளால் பவட்டினார்ேள். 

இன்பனாருவர் தாக்ேப்பட்டு ோயத்திற்குள்ளானார். இது 

சம்பந்தமாே அந்தகநரத்தில் பாதிக்ேப்பட்ைவர்ேள் பபாலிஸ் 

நிடலயத்திகல முடறப்பாடு பசய்தார்ேள். B.276/2017 

இலக்ேத்திகல பபாலிஸாாினால் ஒரு வழக்கு தாக்ேல் 

பசய்யப்பட்டு, பதாைரப்பட்ைது. இந்த வழக்ேிகல 09 நபர்ேள் 

கதசிய பதௌஹீத் ஜமாஅத் அடமப்புச் சார்பாேக் டேது 

பசய்யப்பட்ைார்ேள். சூபி முஸ்லிம்ேள் சார்பாேவும் 04 

கபர்ேள் .page…..  

• This complaint was later converted into a letter and sent to the 

President’s Office, Minister of Justice - Hon. Wijayadasa 

Rajapaksha, Minister of Law & Order and Southern 

Development – Hon. Sagala Rathanayaka, Prime Minister’s 
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Office and State Minister of Defence - Hon. Ruwan 

Wijewardana and Inspector General of Police and Mr. Nalaka 

Silva of the TID and the Attorney-General’s Department  

“ஜனாப்.கே.ஆர்.எம்.சஹ்லான்: நாங்ேள் 27.03.2017ஆம் 

திேதி இது சம்பந்தமான முடறப்பாட்டை ஒரு ேடிதமாேத் 

தயாாித்து அதிகமதகு ஜனாதிபதி அவர்ேளுடைய 

ோாியாலயத்திலும் Minister of Justice ஆே இருந்த 

விஜயதாஸ ராஜபக்ஷ் அவர்ேளுடைய ோாியாலயத்திலும் 

Minister of Law & Order and Southern Developmentக்கு 

அடமச்சராே இருந்த சாலே ரத்நாயக்ோ அவர்ேளுடைய 

ோாியாலயத்திலும் பேௌரவ பிரதம மந்திாி அவர்ேளுடைய 

ோாியாலயத்திலும் State Minister of Defence ஆே இருந்த 

ருவான் விஜயவர்த்தன அவர்ேளுடைய ோாியாலயத்திலும் 

டேயளித்கதாம். 

ගරු )වවදය (නලින්ද ජයතිස්ස මහතා:  ඔෙ දින්‍ෙ කවදාද? 

Mr. K.R.M. Sahlan:  27th March, 2017. 

ෆීල්් මාර්ෂල් ගරු සරත් ප ාන්පස්කා මහතා :යපාලීසියේ entry 

දැම්යම් න්‍ැද්ද ? 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: நாங்ேள் பபாலிஸிலும் 

முடறப்பாடு பசய்கதாம். போழும்பிலுள்ள Inspector General 

of Police - பபாலிஸ்மா அதிபாின் ோாியாலயத்திலும் 

முடறப்பாடு பசய்கதாம்.  

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ. சுமந்திரன்: ஏற்பேனகவ, நீங்ேள் 03 

CDsஇடன போடுத்தீர்ேள் தாகன! 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: ஆம்! 

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ. சுமந்திரன்: அடதப் பற்றி இந்த 

முடறப்பாட்டில் பசால்லி இருக்ேிறீர்ேளா? 

ஜனாப் திரு. கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: நாங்ேள் 

முடறப்பாட்கைாடு CDsஇடனயும் டேயளித்கதாம்.  

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ. சுமந்திரன்: நீங்ேள் CDsஇடனயும் 

டேயளித்திருக்ேின்றீர்ேள். அதிகல இஸ்லாமியர்ேள் 

அல்லாதவர்ேள் போல்லப்பைகவண்டுபமன்று அவர் 

பிரச்சாரம் பசய்தது பற்றி நீங்ேள் முடறப்பாடு 

பசய்திருக்ேின்றீர்ேளா? 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: நாங்ேள் அந்த 

முடறப்பாட்டில் பதளிவாேச் பசால்லியிருக்ேின்கறாம். 

அதில் அவர் பிரச்சாரம் பசய்த விையங்ேபளல்லாம் 
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இருக்ேின்றன. இவர் தீவிரவாதத்டதப் பிரச்சாரம் 

பசய்ேின்றார். இதனால், இந்த நாட்டிகல பல இைங்ேளில் 

பிரச்சிடனேள் வருவதற்கு வாய்ப்பிருக்ேின்றது 

என்பறல்லாம் நாங்ேள் அந்த முடறப்பாட்டிகல 

பதாிவித்திருந்கதாம்.  

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ. சுமந்திரன்: அந்த முடறப்பாட்டின் 

copy உங்ேளிைம் இருக்ேின்றதா? 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: அந்த முடறப்பாட்டின் 

copy என்னிைம் இருக்ேின்றது.  

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ. சுமந்திரன்: ஒகர 

முடறப்பாட்டைத்தானா எல்கலாருக்கும் அனுப்பினீர்ேள்.  

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: ஒகர 

முடறப்பாட்டைத்தான் எல்கலாருக்கும் அனுப்பிகனாம். 

அதில் இன்னும் பசால்லகவண்டும்.  Terrorist Investigation 

Divisionஇல் Deputy Inspector Generalஆே இருந்த நாலக்ே டீ 

சில்வா ஐயா அவர்ேளிைத்திலும் நாங்ேள் இந்த 

முடறப்பாட்டை அந்த கநரத்தில் டேயளித்கதாம். யார், 

யாாிைத்தில் நாங்ேள் முடறப்பாடுேடளக் டேயளித்கதாம் 

என்ற விபரங்ேள் இதிகல இருக்ேின்றன.  

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ. சுமந்திரன்: அதனுடைய copyஐயும் 

இங்கே போடுங்ேள்!   

*** 

“மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ. சுமந்திரன்: சாி. நீங்ேள் 

Presidentக்கு, Prime Ministerக்கு, Minister of Justice, Minister 

of Law and Order, State Minister of Defence, IGP, DIG of TID 

என 07 கபருக்கு முடறப்பாடுேடள emailஇல் அனுப்பி 

இருக்ேின்றீர்ேள். நான் பசால்வது சாியா? இவர்ேளில் 

யாாிைமிருந்தாவது இதற்குப் பதில் வந்ததா? 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: ஆம்! பதில் வந்தது.  

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ. சுமந்திரன்: எங்ேிருந்து வந்தது? 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: 03.04.2017ஆம் ஆண்டு 

பேௌரவ பிரதம அடமச்சருடைய அலுவலேத்திலிருந்து - 

Prime Minister’s Office- இலிருந்து பதில் வந்தது. “கமற்படி 

விையம் பதாைர்பாே பிரதமருக்கு அனுப்பிய ேடிதம் அவரது 

ேவனத்துக்குக் போண்டு பசல்லப்பட்டுள்ளதாே 

அறியத்தருேின்கறன்.” என்று அந்தக் ேடிதத்தில் 

எழுதப்பட்டிருக்ேின்றது.  
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மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ. சுமந்திரன்: அவ்வளவுதான்! 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: அவ்வளவுதான் 

எழுதப்பட்டிருக்ேின்றது.  

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ. சுமந்திரன்: இதற்கு கமலதிேமாே 

கவறு பதில்ேள் வந்ததா?  

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: அதற்குப் பிறகு, பிரதம 

அடமச்சாின் அலுவலேத்திலிருந்து எந்தக் ேடிதமும் 

வரவில்டல. ஆனால், கவறு அலுவலேங்ேளிலிருந்து 

பதில்ேள் வந்தன.   

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ. சுமந்திரன்: கவறு யாராவது 

உங்ேளுக்குப் பதில் எழுதினார்ேளா? 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: சட்ைமா அதிபர் 

ோாியாலயத்திலிருந்து பதில் வந்தது. ஏபனனில், நாங்ேள் 

அந்த முடறப்பாட்டைச் சட்ைமா அதிபருக்கும் 

போடுத்கதாம்.  

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ. சுமந்திரன்: நீங்ேள் சட்ைமா 

அதிபருக்கும் போடுத்திருக்ேிறீர்ேள்.  

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: சட்ைமா அதிபர் 

திடணக்ேளத்திலிருந்து பதாைர்ச்சியாேப் பல பதில்ேள் 

வந்தன.  

ෆීල්් මාර්ෂල් ගරු සරත් ප ාන්පස්කා මහතා :  දැන් යමයහමයි . 

තමුන්න්‍ාන්යසේලා පැමිණිලි කළා 2017.03.23වැනි දා . 

ගරු එම්.ඒ .සුමන්තිරන් මහතා:  2017.03.27 වැනි දා. 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம். சஹ்லான்: 27.03.2010ஆம் திேதி.” 

(pages 451-453/457-458)  

• Former Governor of the Eastern Province, Hon. M.L. 

A.M. Hizbullah informed the PSC that a protest was 

organized by Sufi Muslims and a few members from 

Hizbullah’s party on the 13th of March 2017 demanding to 

arrest Zahran.  

“එම්.එල්.ඒ.එම්. හිස්බුල්ලා මහතා: ඔහුට විරුද්ධව අයේ කේටිෙ 
දමපු පැමිණිලි.  එහිදී 9යදයන්‍කු arrest කළා. සහේරාන් ඇතුළු තව 
4යදයන්‍කු  arrest කයළේ න්‍ැහැ. ඒ යොේලන්ව arrest කරන්න්‍ කිෙලා 
අයේ කේටිෙ පාරට ඇවිේලා protest කළා.  

ෆීල්් මාර්ෂල් ගරු සරත් ප ාන්පස්කා මහතා: ඒ යකායි 
කාලයේද?  
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එම්.එල්.ඒ.එම්. හිස්බුල්ලා මහතා: යම්ක protest කයළේ  13 

March, 2017. 

එම්.ඒ. සුමන්තිරන් මහතා: 2017? 

එම්.එල්.ඒ.එම්. හිස්බුල්ලා මහතා: 2017 

ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා: අයේ කේටිෙ 
කිෙන්යන් කවුද?  

එම්.එල්.ඒ.එම්. හිස්බුල්ලා මහතා: ඒ කිෙන්යන් අයේ sufi කේටිෙ. 
මයේ පේෂයේ අෙ සුළු පිරිසේ. ඒ යොේලන් සම්ූර්ණයෙන්ම යමාහුට 
විරුද්ධ යවලා තිබුයේ. ඔේයකාම ඔහුට විරුද්ධව ඔහුව arrest 

කරන්න්‍ කිෙලා කිව්වා. ඊට පසේයසේ අපි ගිහිේලා යපාලීසිෙට පැමිණිලි 
භාර දුන්න්‍ා. ඊට පසේයසේ එතැනින් එහා යමාකුත් වුයේ න්‍ැහැ. 2017 
මාර්තු මාසයෙන් පසේයසේ එො අයේ ෙයමන් පිටත් වුණා. ඊට පසේයසේ ඔහු 
ෙැන්‍  අපි  යපාලීසියෙන් ඇහුවා. එතැන්‍දී ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ යොඩයි. "ඔහු ලිංකායව් 
න්‍ැහැ පිට" කිෙලා තමයි අපිට කිව්යව්. ඊට පසේයසේ  ඔහු ෙැන්‍ අපි දන්යන් 
න්‍ැහැ. මරායෙන්‍ මැයරන්‍ යෙෝම්ෙ ෙැහුවාට පසේයසේ තමයි සහේරාන් ෙැන්‍ 
අපි දැන්‍ ෙත්යත්. කවදාවත් ඔහු සමඟ මයේ කිසිම සම්ෙන්ධෙේ 
තිබුයේ න්‍ැහැ. ඔහු මට උදව් කරලාත් න්‍ැහැ. මම  ඔහුට උදව් කරලාත් 
න්‍ැහැ. ඔහු යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍මෙ වශ්‍යෙන් සම්ූර්ණයෙන්ම මට විරුද්ධව 
වැඩ කරපු යකයන්‍ේ. මාව න්‍ැති කරන්න්‍ වැඩ කරපු යකයන්‍ේ. ඔහු 
විතරේ යන්‍ායවයි ඔහුයේ මුළු කේඩාෙමම එයහමයි. සමහර former 

Army cadres ඒ යොේලන් එේක හිටිො. ඔවුන් දැන් arrest  කරලා 
ඉන්න්‍වා.  

ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා: ඒ කවුද?  

එම්.එල්.ඒ.එම්. හිස්බුල්ලා මහතා: Mr. Mohideen කිෙලා - Army 

Mohideen කිෙලා - එේ යකයන්‍ේ ඉන්න්‍වා. ඇත්තවශ්‍යෙන්ම මම 
දන්න්‍ා විිෙට නිොසේ කිෙලා එේ යකන්‍ාට Army එයේ අෙත් එේක 
යපාි යපාි සම්ෙන්ධතා තිබුණා. ඒ නිසා අයේ අෙට ෙහන්‍වා. අයේ 
අෙට විශ්‍ාල ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ ඇති කළා.” (pages 341/342)  

• The former Governor himself complained to the IGP that 

Zahran and his group were using loudspeakers without 

permission.  

“එම්.එල්.ඒ.එම්. හිස්බුල්ලා මහතා: සහරාන්යේ කේඩාෙම,- 

එො යමාන්‍වාද කරන්යන්? එො යපාලීසිෙට කිෙලා අවසර ෙන්න්‍වා, 
“meeting” කිෙලා. එයහම අවසර අරයෙන්‍, Sufism න්‍ම් Sufism 

පේලිෙට ගිහිේලා රැසේීම් දමලා ඒ යොේලන්ට ෙහන්‍වා, “ඒ යොරු, 

යම්කයි, යම්කයි” කිෙලා. ඒ වායේ තමයි, කාත්තන්කුිවල තියෙන්‍ 
Deen Road  එකට ගිහිේලා එො රැසේවිම් පැවැත්වූවා. යමාන්‍වා යහෝ 
කිෙලා යපාලීසියෙන් permission  ෙන්න්‍වා. ඒ ෙම ඇතුයළේ තමයි ඒ 
අෙයේ වැිම සිංඛයාව ඉන්යන්.  එයහම ගිහිේලා, ඒ අෙයේ විශ්‍ේවාසෙට 
විරුද්ධව කථා කළාම ඒ යොේලන් එතැන්‍දී විරුද්ධ වුණා.  එතැනින් 
තමයි යම් ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙ ඇති වුයේ.  
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ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා: හිසේබුේලා 
මැතිතුමනි, recordsවල තියෙන්‍වා, සහරාන් යවන්‍ත් මුසේලිම් 
ලබ්ිකෙන්ට විරුද්ධව ප්‍රසිද්ියේ වැඩ කරයෙන්‍ ගිොෙ කිො.  ඒත් 
ඔහුට කරදරෙේ න්‍ැතිව යපාලීසියෙන් loudspeaker permits එයහම 
ෙන්න්‍ පුළුවන් වුණාද?  

එම්.එල්.ඒ.එම්. හිස්බුල්ලා මහතා:  ඒ යොේලන් ෙත්තා. 
Permission ෙන්න්‍වා. Permission න්‍ැතිව ඔහු මැතිවරණ කාලයේත්,- 

යම්ක මම IGPට complain කරලා තියෙන්යන්. එතැන්‍ මයේ ලියුමක 
තියෙන්‍වා, without permission loudspeakers පාවිච්චි කරන්‍වා, press 

briefings තිෙන්‍වා,  register කරන්යන් න්‍ැතිව පේලි කිෙලා න්‍ඩත්තු 
කරන්‍වාෙ කිෙලා මයේ පැමිණිේලක ඒ ඔේයකාම විසේතර තියෙන්‍වා. 
ඒ පැමිණිේල මම දමලා තියෙන්‍වා. මම දුන්න්‍ ඒ ලියුයම් ඔේයකාම 
විසේතර තියෙන්‍වා.  

ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා: යවන්‍ත් මුසේලිම් 
ලබ්ිකෙන්ට -යවන්‍සේ මතෙේ තියෙන්‍ අෙට- ඔහු ප්‍රසිද්ියේ අභියෙෝෙ 
කරමින්, රැසේීම් තිෙලා ෙැන්න්‍ා.  

එම්.එල්.ඒ.එම්. හිස්බුල්ලා මහතා:  ඔව්, හරිෙට ෙණින්‍වා.  

ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා: ඒ ඔේයකාටම 
යපාලීසියෙන් අවසරත් ලැයෙන්‍වා? Loudspeaker permits ත් හම්ෙ 
යවන්‍වා.   

එම්.එල්.ඒ.එම්. හිස්බුල්ලා මහතා:  “Meeting” කිෙලා එො 
permission ෙන්න්‍වා. මුළු ආෙමටම; සිෙලුම groupsවලට එො 
ෙණින්‍වා.”  (page 344)  

5. Lack of trust and coordination between law and order 

agencies such as the police and the Attorney-

General’s Department which resulted in inter and 

intra institutional communication gaps.  

The PSC observes that from the evidence presented before it, it is 

seen that there are severe intelligence lapses, including a lack of 

information sharing between the intelligence agencies, the Police, the 

President, and the Prime Minister and the country’s main law office 

– the Attorney-General’s Department.  

The PSC notes that especially within the Attorney-General’s 

Department there appears to be lack of coordination within the 

different units of the Department. While the MP 193/2017 file and 

Zahran’s conduct has been attended to and addressed by the relevant 

officer the EER file on the same subject had not been attended to. 

Apart from this, a third file appears to have been opened regarding 
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the bail application in the High Court of Batticaloa which came under 

the supervision of a different supervisor. This shows that there is a 

systemic issue leading to a lack of coordination between connected 

matters within the Department.  

File on Zahran  

A file was prepared on the 7th June 2017 and forwarded by TID to 

the Attorney-General’s Department, requesting that legal action be 

taken against NTJ and the websites they were operating. The 

Attorney-General’s Department did not respond to this letter. The file 

was allocated to Mr. Malik Azeez on the 15th of June 2017 and on the 

same day Senior State Counsel Mr. Azard Navavi. A further reminder 

letter was sent by them on the 31st of May, 2018. The assigned State 

Counsel after studying the documents only called for a consultation 

on the 12th of March 2019, almost two years after the initial letter.  

The MP 193/2017 file on Zahran  

On the 3rd of April 2017, Al-Haj Abdul Jawad Alim Valiyullah 

Trust hand delivered a letter addressed to the Attorney-General (AG) 

(see letter dated 27th March 2017). The then Attorney-General put in 

a note on the file on the 3rd of April 2017 stating “DSG, Dileepa 

Peiris, please open MP file and discuss”. Subsequently ASG Mr. 

Sobitha Rajakaruna added a note on the file “Please, see the 

endorsement of the Attorney-General (dated 3/4/2017) on blue one. 

Please speak with the AG.” On the 23rd of May 2017 DSG Dileepa 

Peiris wrote to Al-Haj Abdul Jawad Alim Valiyullah Trust informing 

them that the Attorney-General’s Department received the letter and 

that they are looking into the matter. The letter contained detailed 

description of Zahran’s and his followers’ violence in the Kattankudy 

area. DSG Mr. Dileepa Peiris discussed the complaint contained in 

the file with the Attorney-General on or about 5th of June 2017 and 

decided to write to the IGP on the 22nd of June 2017 requesting to 

conduct investigation. Subsequent to this there were several 

correspondence between the Trust and the AG’s regarding the 

complaint. The Moulavi of the Trust on or about 04th of September 

2017 rewrote to the AG’s Department providing information 

regarding Case No B 279/2014 pending in Batticaloa Magistrates 
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Court regarding Zahran and his followers conduct. The Moulavi 

requested the AG’s Department to deny bail for Zahrans followers 

when the matter is to be taken up in the High Court.  Subsequent to 

this DSG Mr. Dileepa Peiris summoned the OIC of the Kathankuddy 

Police station IP Mr. Kasthuriarachchi to the AG’s Department on the 

09th of November 2017 who provided detailed information regarding 

Zahran and NTJ’s conduct in Batticaloa. The police officer was 

instructed by the AG’s Department to take a strict approach and object 

to bail being granted for Zahrans followers. The initial letter that was 

sent by the AG’s Department to the IGP requesting to investigate 

went ignored and the AG’s Department never received any update 

from the Police.  Therefore, the AG’s Department was not aware that 

the TID had already conducted an investigation into Zahran and his 

followers. However, on the 5th of May 2019 (post Easter – attacks) 

the TID sent a final report to the AG’s Department containing 

findings regarding the initial complaint made by the Moulavi of the 

Al-Haj Abdul Jawad Alim Valiyullah Trust. 

• Chief Inspector (CI) Mr. A. B. Wedagedara, who was 

Officer-in-Charge (OIC) of the Kattankudy Police from 

August 1, 2014, to July 28, 2017 stated that there was no 

coordination between the TID and the Kattankudy Police 

station and the TID did not inform the Kattankudy Police 

Station to conduct an inquiry regarding Zahran and his people.   

“ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා:   බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ෙ යපාලීසිෙ තුළින්ද 
වැඩ කරන්යන්,  න්‍ැත්න්‍ම් සේවාධීන්‍ව කටයුතු කරන්‍වාද?   බුද්ි අිංශ්‍යේ 
DIG න්‍ාලක ද සිේවා වායේ අෙ යම් අවසේථායව් ඔෙතුමන්ලාත් සමඟද 
කටයුතු කයළේ, එයහම න්‍ැත්න්‍ම් සේවාධීන්‍වද?  

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා :  අපිත් එේක සම්ෙන්ධ වුයේ 
න්‍ැහැ සර්.  

ගරු (වවදය) රාජිත පස්නාරත්න මහතා :   අඩුම ෙණයන් 
තමුන්න්‍ාන්යසේ වාර්තා කළාද යපාලිසේ මූලසේථාන්‍ෙට, යමවැනි සිදුීම් 
එකින් එක එන්‍යකාට?  එයහම යන් බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ෙ දැන්‍ ෙන්යන්. 
ඇත්තටම යම්වා ඔේයකාම කැටි කරලා ඒ යවලායව් 
තමුන්න්‍ාන්යසේලාට අවයෙෝධෙේ ෙන්න්‍ට ෙැහැ, ප්‍රායද්ශීෙ වශ්‍යෙන් 
තියෙන්‍ යපාලීසිවලට. ඒක ෙන්න්‍ට ඕන්‍ෑ යපාලිසේ මූලසේථාන්‍යෙන්, 

බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ හරහා.  න්‍මුත් තමුන්න්‍ාන්යසේලායේ කරුණු ෙවන්න්‍ 
ඕන්‍ෑයන් එතැන්‍ට.   
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ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා :  බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ ක්‍රිොත්මකීයම්දී 
දවසින් දවස, සතියෙන් සතිෙ, මාසයෙන් මාසෙ, මාස තුයන්‍න් තුන්‍, 

මාස හයෙන් හෙ බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ වාර්තා ඒ විිෙට ෙන්‍වා.  අයපත් වදනික 
සිදුීම් සම්ෙන්ධ වාර්තා ෙන්‍වා සර්.   

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා :  සේථාන්‍ාිපති වශ්‍යෙන් ලිඛිතව 
ෙවන්‍වාද?  

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා :   ෙවන්‍වා සර්. ” (page 413)  

*** 

“ෆීල්් මාර්ෂල් ගරු සරත් ප ාන්පස්කා මහතා:   TID එයකනුත් 
සහරාන්ට විරුද්ධව “B” Report අරවා යම්වා දමලා තියෙන්‍වා යන්. ඒ 
ඔෙතුමන්ලා කරපු එකමද? යවන්‍ එකේද?  

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා:  අ යේ එක.  

ෆීල්් මාර්ෂල් ගරු සරත් ප ාන්පස්කා මහතා: 
කාන්තන්කුිවලින් කරපු එක.  

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා:  ඔව්. 

ෆීල්් මාර්ෂල් ගරු සරත් ප ාන්පස්කා මහතා:   TID දුන්න්‍ 
යතාරතුරු අනුවද ඒක කයළේ? 

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා:  න්‍ැහැ. 

ගරු එම්.ඒ. සුමන්තිරන් මහතා:  ඒ සිද්ිෙට පසුව විතරයි ඒක 
කරලා තියෙන්යන්? 2017 මාර්තු මාසයේ සිද්ිෙට පසුව විතරයි යන් 
උසාවිෙට කරුණු වාර්තා කරලා වයරන්තු ලො ෙත්යත්?  

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා:  ඔව්. 

ගරු එම්.ඒ. සුමන්තිරන් මහතා:  ඊට ඉසේයසේලා යමාකුත් කයළේ 
න්‍ැහැ යන්. 

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා:  න්‍ැහැ. එයහම කරලා න්‍ැහැ.   

ගරු එම්.ඒ. සුමන්තිරන් මහතා:  ඊට ඉසේයසේලා  TID යහෝ යවන්‍ 
අිංශ්‍වලින් යතාරතුරු ලො දුන්න්‍ාද, යම් අෙ ෙැන්‍ යසාො ෙලන්න්‍ 
කිෙලා.  

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා:  න්‍ැහැ. මට යකායහන්වත් 
යතාරතුරු ලො දීලා න්‍ැහැ.”  (page 424)   

• Eastern Province Senior DIG Mr. Kapila Jayasekera 

stated that the Eastern Province DIG was not informed of the 

intelligence received regarding the Easter Attacks.  

 “ගරු එම්.ඒ .සුමන්තිරන් මහතා : යම් විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ෙ පටන් ෙත්තාට 

පසේයසේවත් ඔෙතුමා දැන්‍ ෙත්තාද, යම් වායේ ලිපිෙේ එවලා තිබුණා 
කිෙලා? Top secret න්‍ම් ටිකේ සඳහන් කරලා, ඒ වායේ 

churchesවලට එයහම attack කරන්න්‍ පුළුවන් කිෙලා යතාරතුරු 

ලැබුණා කිෙලා දැන්‍ ෙත්තාද? ඒක ඔෙතුමා දැකලා තියෙන්‍වාද?  
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කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා : න්‍ැහැ, ඒක මට ලැබිලා න්‍ැහැ. 

ගරු එම්.ඒ .සුමන්තිරන් මහතා :ලැබිලා න්‍ැද්ද කිෙලා යන්‍ායවයි 

මම අහන්යන් .යකායහේවත් යම්ක දැකලා න්‍ැද්ද? සමාජ ජාලාවලින් 

යම්වා distribute යවන්‍වා යන් .දැකලා න්‍ැද්ද? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා : යම්ක මම දැේකා .මම ජන්‍ාිපති 

විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාමිෂන් සභායව් සාේි යදන්න්‍ ගිොම මට යම්ක එහි 

සභාපතිතුමා ඉදිරිපත් කරලා යපන්නුවා. 

ගරු එම්.ඒ .සුමන්තිරන් මහතා :එහිදි දැේකා යන්? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා :ඔව්. 

ගරු එම්.ඒ .සුමන්තිරන් මහතා :එම ලිපියේ පහළ ඔෙතුමායේ 

තන්‍තුර ලිෙලා න්‍ැහැ යන්? Eastern Province කිෙලා දාලා න්‍ැහැ 
යන්ද? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා : න්‍ැහැ.” (pages 756-757)   

• Mr. Kapila Jayasekera further states that there was no 

information communicated to him by the State Intelligence 

Services and he was not aware of any intelligence received on 

this.  

“ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා :රාජය බුද්ි යසේවා  - State Intelligence 

Service- ප්‍රධානිො 2019.04.18 දින්‍ යපාලිසේපතිතුමාට වාර්තා 
කරන්‍වා .එෙ දීර්ඝ වාර්තාවේ .දැන් ඔෙතුමා කිොපු ඔෙ සිද්ධීන්, 

අන්‍ාවරණෙ වූ කරුණු, වියශ්‍ේෂයෙන් අර යජරාඩ් ෙසසේ ද සිේවා කිෙන්‍ 

න්‍මැත්තායේ න්‍මට තිබුණු වාහන්‍ෙ පිළිෙඳ විසේතර, යම් ඔේයකෝම 

සහිතව නිලන්ත ජෙවර්ධන්‍, යජයෂේඨ නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති, රාජය 

බුද්ි යසේවාව, දීර්ඝ වාර්තාවේ ෙවන්‍වා යපාලිසේපතිතුමාට .ඔෙතුමාට 

එතුමා එේක- 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා :එතුමා එේක සම්ෙන්ධතාවේ තිබුයේ 

න්‍ැහැ .අපට රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයෙන් ඍජුවම යතාරතුරු යදන්යන් න්‍ැහැ .
යපාලිසේපතිතුමා හරහා තමයි සිෙේල සිදු යවන්යන්. 

ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා :න්‍මුත්, ඔෙතුමායේ ෙලප්‍රයද්ශ්‍ෙ ෙටයත් 

සිදුවන්‍ සිදුීමේ පිළිෙඳව යමයහම විසේතරාත්මක ලිපිෙේ එතුමා 
යපාලිසේපතිතුමාට ෙවා තියෙන්‍වා .එහි සහරාන් හෂීම් පිළිෙඳව, 

National Thowheed Jamath පිළිෙඳව කරුණු කිෙන්‍වා .ඉතින් ඒ 

යවලායව් National Thowheed Jamath පිළිෙඳව, ඔෙතුමා යම් 

සිද්ිෙට සම්ෙන්ධ- 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා :දැන්‍ යෙන්‍ හිටියේ න්‍ැහැ . 

ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා : එතයකාට විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ෙ කයළේ යවන්‍ත් CID 

team එකේ යන්‍ායවයිද? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා :න්‍ැහැ, න්‍ැහැ .මූලික විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ෙ අපි  -

යපාලීසියෙන්  - කයළේ .ඒ කිෙන්යන්, chassis numbers යහාො ෙන්න්‍ 
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එක, ඊට පසේයසේ RMV එයකන් check කරලා අයිතිකරු යහාො ෙන්න්‍ 

එක, අයිතිකරුවන්යෙන් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ සටහන් කර ෙන්න්‍ එක .ඒ අතයර් 

තමයි දැන්‍ ෙත්යත් යම්ක අපරාධ පරීේෂණ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුවට යොමු 

කළ යුතු යොනුවේ, විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ෙේ කිෙන්‍ එක .ඒක මම 

යපාලිසේපතිතුමාට දැනුම් දීලා ඒ කටයුතු ඉේමනින් කළා .එයහම 

න්‍ැත්න්‍ම්, ඒ යොේලන් පරීේෂණෙේ කරයෙන්‍ ෙමින් පවතින්‍ එකේ 

න්‍ම් අනිවාර්ෙයෙන් ඒක අදාළ කරයෙන්‍ ඉේමනින් සැකකරුවන් 

යසාො ෙැනීයම් පහසුව තකා ඒ කටයුත්ත කළා. 

ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා :State Intelligence Service එයේ ලියුම 

දාලා තියෙන්යන් 2019.04.18. Local police යසේවෙ කරපු යම් 

විමර්ශ්‍න්‍යේ යතාරතුරු අරයෙන්‍, යම් පිළිෙඳ අයන්‍කුත් යතාරතුරුත් 

එේක සසඳා බුද්ි යසේවාව දීර්ඝ වාර්තාවේ ෙවා තියෙන්‍වා 
යපාලිසේපතිතුමාට .එතයකාට බුද්ි අිංශ්‍යේ සම්ෙන්ධතාවේ ඔෙතුමා 
එේකත් තිබිලා න්‍ැහැ .එයහම යන්ද? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා :ඔව්, වියශ්‍ේෂයෙන් මමත් එේක බුද්ි 

අිංශ්‍ සම්ෙන්ධතාවේ න්‍ැහැ.” (pages 758-759)   

*** 

“කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා :මම භාර ෙත්තාට පසේයසේ ඔවැනි 

යතාරතුරු කිසිවේ මට ලැබිලාත් න්‍ැහැ, ඒ ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ එයහම 

ප්‍රචේඩකාරී තත්ත්වෙේ තිබුයේත් න්‍ැහැ . 

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා :හැෙැයි, එතුමා කිෙන්‍ විිෙට, 

2014න් පටන් ෙන්න්‍වා .2015, 2016, 2017 යෙෝම්ෙ ෙන්‍කේම කිෙ 

කිො හිටපු පිරිසේ ඉන්යන් කාත්තන්කුියේ?  

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා : එයහම කිෙලා තියෙන්‍වා. 

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා : එයහම කිෙන්‍වා .යමයහම 

කිෙන්යන් සිද්ිෙ වුණාට පසුව යවන්න්‍ පුළුවන් .න්‍මුත්, ඔෙතුමා ඒ 

පැත්යත් යසේවෙ කරන්‍ නිසා, ෆීේඩ් මාර්ෂේ අහපු යද් අනුව, යම්වා 
දැන්‍ෙන්න්‍ත් ඕන්‍ෑ යන් .ඔෙතුමන්ලායේත් සැක කටයුතු අනුව ෙම් 

යද්වේ දැන්‍ෙන්න්‍ ලැයෙන්‍වා යන් .යම් සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් යමාන්‍වත් 

දැන්‍ෙන්න්‍ ලැබුයේ න්‍ැද්ද? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා : න්‍ැහැ, ෙරු මන්ත්‍රීතුමනි .එයහම 

දැන්‍ෙන්න්‍ ලැයෙන්‍වා න්‍ම්, ඔෙ ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ ඕන්‍ෑ තරම් මහ ජන්‍ 

සාකච්ඡා, කමිටු, ආෙමික සම්ෙන්ධතාවන් අන්‍න්තවත් තියෙන්‍වා .
අනිවාර්ෙයෙන්ම එයහම යදෙේ තියෙන්‍වා න්‍ම් මට වියශ්‍ේෂයෙන්ම 

දැයන්‍න්‍වා .යමාකද, මම ඒ ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ,- 

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා :කාත්තන්කුිෙ තිබුයේ යවන්‍ත් 

යලෝකෙක කෑේලේ වායේ යන්ද? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා :මට න්‍ම් එයහම දැයන්‍න්යන් න්‍ැහැ.”  

(page 760)  

*** 
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“ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා : ඔෙතුමාට national Intelligence 

යහෝ surveillance යහෝ NIB යතාරතුරු මුකුත් ආයව් න්‍ැහැ, යම් 

ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ ෙමේ යවන්‍වා කිෙලා? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා : න්‍ැහැ, එයහම ආයව් න්‍ැහැ .එයහම ආවා 
න්‍ම් ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් කටයුතු යකයරන්‍වා යන්.  

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා : මුකුත් ආයව් න්‍ැහැ? 

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා : න්‍ැහැ .මයේ කාලෙ තුළ සම්ූර්ණයෙන් 

සාමකාමීයි. 

ගරු රවි කරුණානායක මහතා : එයහමන්‍ම් යම් යවනුයවන් රයේ 

හරි ජාලෙේ තියෙන්‍වාද? යම් යද් වුණාට පසුව අපි ෙලලා කිෙන්‍වා, 
යම්ක කාලෙක සිට පටන් ෙත්ත යදෙේ කිෙන්‍ එක .අපට එන්‍ 

යතාරතුරු අනුව යම්ක දවයසන් දවස වර්ධන්‍ෙ යවලා පිපිරීමේ ඇති 

වන්‍ යතේ යම්ක යවලා තියෙන්‍වා .යපාලීසියෙන් යම් සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් 

කිසිම යතාරතුරේ ලැබුයේ න්‍ැහැ?  

කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා : යම් දේවා ලැබිලා න්‍ැහැ; සිද්ිෙ වුණු 

දින්‍ෙ දේවා.”  (page 761)  

• OIC of the Kattankudy Police, IP M.P. Kasthuriarachchi 

also stated that he did not receive any prior intelligence before 

the 21st April 2019 attacks.  

“ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා: Inspector, යම් 
කමිටුව ඉදිරිපත් වූ සාේි අනුව අයේේ මාසයේ 08,09 වන්‍ විට සිදුවිෙ 
හැකි විශ්‍ාල වයසන්‍ෙේ පිළිෙඳව, ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාරෙේ පිළිෙඳව 
ආරේෂක අිංශ්‍වලට පැහැදිලි යතාරතුරු තිබුණා. ඒ 08වැනි දා යහෝ 
09වැනි ෙන්‍ දින්‍වලින් පසුව යහෝ 21වැනි දා අතර ඒ ආසන්න්‍යේදී 
සහරාන්යේ base එක හැටිෙට සැලකිෙ හැකි කාත්තන්කුි ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ 
යපාලිසේ සේථාන්‍ාිපති හැටිෙට ඔෙව වියශ්‍ේෂයෙන් alert කිරීමේ, 

දැනුවත් කිරීමේ යහෝ කිසිම යදෙේ කරලා තිබුයේ න්‍ැහැ කිෙලා තමයි 
ඔෙතුමා කිෙන්යන්. එම්.පී .කසේතුරිආරච්චි මහතා  :කිසිම දැනුම්දීමේ 

කර තිබුයේ න්‍ැහැ. 

ගරු (ආචාර්ය) ජයම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න මහතා:  21වැනි දා යම් සිදුීම 
සිදු වන්‍තුරු ඔෙට ඉහළින් සිටි කිසිම නිලධාරියෙකුයෙන් ඔෙව 
වියශ්‍ේෂයෙන් දැනුවත් කිරීමේ, alert කිරීමේ සිදු වුයේ න්‍ැහැ. 

එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා:  යකරුයේ න්‍ැහැ. 

ගරු රවු ් හකීම් මහතා:  යම් සිද්ිෙට අදාළව බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ 
යතාරතුරුවලින් ප්‍රභූ ආරේෂක අිංශ්‍ දැනුවත් කරලා තිබුණා කිෙලා දැන් 
ආරිංචි යවන්‍වා. වියශ්‍ේෂයෙන්ම සහේරාන් කිෙන්‍ තැන්‍ැත්තා හා ඔහුයේ 
අනුොමිකෙන් ආවරෙම්පති න්‍ැත්න්‍ම් කේලි ෙන්‍ ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍වලට 
ගිහින් රහසිෙතව තමන්යේ බිරින්දෑවරු හමුීයම් ක්‍රිොදාමෙේ රාත්‍රී 
11න් පසු සිදු යවන්‍වා කිෙලා බුද්ි යතාරතුරු ලො දී තියෙන්‍වා. 
ඔෙතුමාට ඒ පිළිෙඳව යමාකේ යහෝ ආරිංචිෙේ ලැබුණාද? 



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 122 ) 

එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා: ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් කිසිම 
යතාරතුරේ ලැබුයේ න්‍ැහැ. 

ගරු (වවදය) නලින්ද ජයතිස්ස මහතා: ඔෙතුමා කිෙන්‍ හැ ටිෙට 
නිල වශ්‍යෙන් ඉහළ නිලධාරින් හරහා යම් යතාරතුරු ඔෙතුමාට වාර්තා 
යවලා න්‍ැහැ? 

එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා: න්‍ැහැ. 

ගරු (වවදය) නලින්ද ජයතිස්ස මහතා: න්‍මුත්, යම් බුද්ි 
යතාරතුර නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපතිවරු හරහා ඒ ඒ අිංශ්‍වලට දැනුම් 
දුන්න්‍ාට පසුව ඒක රයේ සමාජ ජාලාවලත් සැරිසරන්න්‍ පටන් ෙත්තා. 
ඒ ෙැන්‍ ඔෙතුමාට අවයෙෝධෙේ ඇති කිෙලා මා හිතන්‍වා. අඩු තරමින් 
ඔෙතුමායේ ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍ෙට සම්ෙන්ධ කිහිපයදයන්‍කුයේ න්‍ම් තමයි සඳහන් 
යවලා තිබුයේ. ඒ ෙැන්‍වත් ඔෙතුමාට ෙම් දැනුවත්භාවෙේ 
තියෙන්‍වාද? 

එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා: 21වැනි දා සිදු වන්‍ ක්‍රිොව 
සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් කිසිම යතාරතුරේ ලැබුයේ න්‍ැහැ; කිසිම යතාරතුරේ 
අන්‍ාවරණෙ වුයේ න්‍ැහැ. 

ගරු (වවදය) නලින්ද ජයතිස්ස මහතා: යම් සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් බුද්ි 
අිංශ්‍ යහෝ යවන්‍ත් ආරේෂක අිංශ්‍ යතාරතුරු යසාො ෙැලුවාද, ඒ 
පිළිෙඳව ඔෙතුමාට- 

එම්.පී. කස්තුරිආරච්චි මහතා: බුද්ි නිලධාරින්යේ යතාරතුරු 
සාමාන්‍යයෙන් අප යවත ලො යදන්යන් න්‍ැහැ.”  (pages 386-387)  

6. The spread of Wahhabism and Arabization of 

Kattankudy  

The PSC received testimony to highlight the increasing levels of 

Wahabism and Arabization in parts of Sri Lanka in recent years. The 

PSC observes these trends as having a bearing on the developments 

leading to the Easter Sunday attacks and the subsequent responses.  

Wahhabism  

Wahhabism is a conservative movement within Islam’s Sunni 

branch. It is named after its founder theologian Mohamed Ibn Abdul 

Wahhab who was born in the 18th century in Saudi Arabia. Mohamed 

Ibn Abdul Wahhab proclaimed “Thowheed” (uniqueness and unity of 

God) as its primary doctrine and begun in response to the perceived 

moral decline and political weakness of the Muslim community in 

Saudi Arabia. It proposed a return to an idealized Islamic past through 

reassertion of monotheism and reliance on Quran and hadith, rejecting 

medieval interpretations of Islam and jurisprudence.  
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Wahhabism is believed to have entered Kattankudy in the early 

1990s. At present it is believed that there are still certain Mosques in 

the Kattankudy area that propagate ideas of Wahhabism. As far back 

as 1996, reports indicate to violence by Wahhabis attacking Sufis and 

other communities living in Kattankudy. The Wahhabis in Sri Lanka 

act through a movement called Tawheed, or Monotheism. They 

opened numerous Madrasas and mosques around the country. The 

NTJ by Zahran was one such Thawheed movement.  

• Secretary of Al-Haj Abdul Jawadh Alim Waliyyullah 

Trust, Sufi Moulavi KRM Sahlan provides information 

regarding Mosques that propagate ideas of Wahhabism in 

Kattankudy.  

“ගරු (මහාචාර්ය) ආශු මාරසිංහ මහතා: වහබ් මතවාදෙ 
අනුෙමන්‍ෙ කරන්‍ මුසේලිම් පේලි කීෙේ පමණ තියෙන්‍වාද? 

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ.சுமந்திரன்: ோத்தான்குடியில் உள்ள 

mosquesஇன் எண்ணிக்டே 65 வருமா? 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம்.சஹ்லான் :ோத்தான்குடியில் சுமார் 

60 – 65 பள்ளிவாசல்ேள் இருக்ேின்றன. 

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ.சுமந்திரன் :அதில் எத்தடன வஹாப் 

வாதப் பள்ளிவாசல்ேள்? 

ගරු (මහාචාර්ය) ආශු මාරසිංහ මහතා:  න්‍ැහැ, වහබ්වාදෙ. 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம்.சஹ்லான் :ேணக்பேடுப்புச் 

சாியாேத் பதாியவில்டல  .ஆனால், வஹாப் வாதப் 

பள்ளிவாசல்ேள் இருக்ேின்றன. 

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ.சுமந்திரன் :அதிேம் இருக்ேின்றதா?  

குடறவாே இருக்ேின்றதா? 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம்.சஹ்லான் :ஓரளவு 

ோணப்படுேின்றன. 

மாண்புமிகு எம்.ஏ.சுமந்திரன்  :10 – 20 இருக்குமா? 

ෙරු (මහාචාර්ෙ) ආශු මාරසිිංහ මහතා:  10ේ, 15ේ වායේ 

ஜனாப் கே.ஆர்.எம்.சஹ்லான் :சுமார்  10 – 15 இருக்கும்  .

நான் பதாைர்ச்சியாேச் பசால்ல கவண்டும்  .அவ்வாறான 

எதிர்ப்புக் ேடிதங்ேள் பசன்றகத தவிர, எங்ேளுடைய மீலாத் 

விழாடவ யாரும் நிறுத்தவில்டல  .மீலாத் விழா 

நடைபபற்றது  .சர்வ மதத்த தடலவர்ேளும் வந்து 
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ேலந்துபோண்ைார்ேள்  .பபாதுமக்ேள் 

ேலந்துபோண்ைார்ேள்  .மீலாத் விழா சிறப்பாே நடைபபற்று 

முடிந்தது  .அதன் பின்னர்  2016.01.19 ஆம் திேதி 

ோத்தான்குடி பஜம்மியத்துல் உலமா ஒரு பிரசுரத்டத 

பவளியிட்ைது  .இந்தப் பிரசுரமும் ‘சூபி’ முஸ்லிம்ேளுக்கு 

எதிரான பிரசுரமாகும்  .அதில்  “ ‘சூபி’ முஸ்லிம்ேகளாடு 

மார்க்ே ாீதியான பதாைர்புேள் டவத்துக்போள்ளக் கூைாது 

என்றும் அவர்ேள் இஸ்லாத்திலிருந்து மதம் மாறியவர்ேள் ”

என்றும் குறிப்பிைப்பட்டிருந்தது .”  (pages 468-469)  

Arabization 

Over the recent years, a physical change had taken place in 

Kattankudy town. This was notable considering the lack of such 

change in the neighbouring towns. The appearance of Kattankudy is 

very different to any other town in Sri Lanka. Date-Palm Trees are 

planted in the middle of the main road, Arabic letterings are used for 

street names and on arches throughout the town. The PSC observes 

that there are only two official languages in Sri Lanka and that is 

Sinhala and Tamil and therefore there was no need for a third 

language to be used in name boards in and around the city. 

Further, especially the Batticaloa campus buildings, that had been 

put up on a landmass in Punanai in Batticaloa, prominently displays 

Arabic architecture and landscape, making it drastically different to 

any university building in the country. 

Statements made by various witnesses, including a member of the 

Federation of Kattankudy mosques and institutions, Mr. Aboosali 

Uvais revealed to the PSC that Arabization was started and fostered 

in Kattankudy during the tenure of former Eastern Province Governor 

Hon. M. L. A. M. Hizbullah who has been in active politics since the 

1980s and contested elections and held several positions including 

posts of deputy minister and state minister. Information before the 

PSC shows the increase of Wahabism and Arabization in Kattankudy 

in this period. In fact, Hon. Hizbullah himself accepted in evidence 

before the PSC that he was responsible for most of these changes in 

Kattankudy. However, the PSC is unable to accept the explanation 

put forward by Hon. M. L. A. M. Hizbullah that this was done in order 

to attract more Arab foreigners to the country.  
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The PSC notes that the spread of Wahhabism and the Arabization 

of Kattankudy has contributed to the growth of extremism in the 

Islamic community especially in the East.   

• Chief Inspector (CI) Mr. A. B. Wedagedara, who was 

Officer-in-Charge (OIC) of the Kattankudy Police from 1st 

August 2014, to 28th July 2017 

“ගරු (වවදය) නලින්ද ජයතිස්ස මහතා: 2014 – 2017 අවුරුදු 
තුයන්දී කාත්තන්කුි ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ අරාබිකරණෙ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් ෙම් 
නිරීේෂණෙේ තිබුණාද? එේයකෝ boardsවලින්, න්‍ැත්න්‍ම් 
architecture පැත්යතන්, එයහම එකේ ඔෙතුමාට නිරීේෂණෙ වුණාද? 

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා:  එයහම එකේ තියෙන්‍වා, සර්. 

ගරු (වවදය) නලින්ද ජයතිස්ස මහතා: ඒක පටන් ෙත්යත් - 
ඔෙතුමා ෙන්‍යකාටත් පටන් යෙන්‍ තිබුණාද? 

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා:  ඔව්.  

ගරු (වවදය) නලින්ද ජයතිස්ස මහතා: ඒක ඒ කාලෙ ඇතුළත 
වර්ධන්‍ෙ වුණා? 

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා:  ඔව්, ඒක සාමාන්‍ය විිෙට, ඒ 
විිෙටම ක්‍රිොත්මක යවලා තියෙන්‍වා. 

ගරු (වවදය) නලින්ද ජයතිස්ස මහතා: එයහම කැපී යපයන්‍න්‍ 
වර්ධන්‍ෙේ ඒ අවුරුදු තුයන්දී තිබුණාද කිෙලායි මම ඔෙතුමායෙන් 
අහන්යන්. 

ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා:  ඔව්. රටඉඳි ෙසේ වවා තියෙන්‍වා. 
Arches එයහම හදා තියෙන්‍වා. ඒ ආෙයම් විිෙට ඒ හැම එකම කරලා 
තියෙන්‍වා, සර්.”  (pages 419-420)  

7. Are there allegations levelled against any Member of 

Parliament, Governors or any other persons  

Following the Easter Sunday attacks, both print and social media 

reported various stories, mostly sensationalized, regarding various 

Members of Parliament and other Muslim politicians and their 

involvement in the attacks. However, there was no direct evidence 

provided to the PSC that any MP was involved or had prior 

information regarding the Easter Sunday attacks. However, former 

Member of Parliament Hizbullah and current Member of Parliament 

Hon. Dayasiri Jayasekara have made statements in public giving rise 

to problematic situations even though they did not have any accurate 
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information in this regard. The PSC notes that these were 

irresponsible behaviour.  

The PSC received evidence from Eastern Province Governor Hon. 

Hizbullah where he made a very serious statement which insinuated 

impending violence- “We will not allow the Northern and Eastern 

Provinces to be merged as some want. If that is done by force, I said 

a river of blood will flow. We will not allow the merger. We will resist 

it by the force of arms” (page 353) This is an extremely troubling 

statement by a senior politician in the area and must not be taken 

lightly.  

Statements of this nature by politicians in this context are 

dangerously inflammatory. Political statements such as these only 

with the intention of re-election can further cause tension between 

communities and complicate an already volatile situation. Therefore, 

the PSC notes that all politicians that make such inflammatory 

statements should be held accountable. The PSC notes that speeches 

that incite hate and racism, by politicians, religious leaders and others, 

are extremely dangerous and must be independently investigated and 

individuals held to account. Inaction will only exacerbate the 

impunity and contribute to further hate and fear in Sri Lanka.  

The PSC also notes that Zahran had previously had agreements 

linked to elections with politicians including Hon. Hizbullah. The 

agreement was meant to garner support for Hizbullah at the election 

but it raises the question whether this was a stepping stone for Zahran 

to act with impunity in the area. The PSC also raises the question here 

as to whether Zahran and others were able to abscond arrest despite 

an arrest warrant and carry out extremist speeches without any 

repercussion due to possible support from politicians in the Eastern 

Province. The PSC notes that these links and any support/complicity 

of politicians towards Zahran and others will require further 

investigation.  

8. Culpability  

The PSC has studied the evidence before it and has made several 

recommendations to address issues that have arisen since the Easter 



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 127 ) 

Sunday attacks and to prevent future such incidents. These are 

broadly in the areas of structural, legislative and administrative 

reforms, targeting both the short and long term. Considering the 

evidence before the PSC, we also find that several individuals failed 

in their responsibilities to prevent the Easter Sunday attacks. We have 

discussed these in detail previously. This section highlights the 

culpability of key individuals that require further investigation. The 

PSC also recommends that indictments and prosecutions are initiated 

in the event sufficient evidence is collected to demonstrate fault.  

Further, the PSC notes that some of the individuals listed below 

are responsible for overseeing criminal justice processes and special 

attention will be required in such instances where there is a likelihood 

of a conflict of interest or if there is a potential for politicisation and/or 

interference of an independent investigation and subsequent 

prosecution.  

Officials responsible for Security, Law and Order, Intelligence and 

Justice 

The following officials are listed as having had a direct role in the 

intelligence gathering, analysing and sharing and/or for having the 

responsibility for security measures.  

The PSC notes that the Director, SIS holds the greatest 

responsibility considering his pre-eminent role in the intelligence 

apparatus and being given the pride of place at the ICM and NSC. He 

was also the first to receive the intelligence information on 4th April 

2019 and subsequent briefings from his external sources. Considering 

the nature of the intelligence information and his role as Director, SIS, 

he should have taken all steps to inform and share intelligence 

information, call for a NSC meeting and take necessary steps to 

mitigate and prevent possible threats. The PSC notes he failed in all 

these areas. The PSC also notes several others in the security, law and 

order, intelligence and justice sectors bare responsibility and lists 

them below.  
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Director, SIS  

The Director, SIS is the first to have received the intelligence 

information but failed to take immediate steps to keep all the relevant 

individuals informed. This despite being present at the ICM on 9th 

April 2019 and being called by name to brief the meeting by the 

Secretary, MOD. The Director SIS was also aware of the gravity of 

such intelligence information as he notes it as a “යලඩේ ” (Ledak - 

problem”.  

Whilst the Director, SIS took action subsequent to the meeting by 

sending a report to the IGP, no information was given by him to the 

Secretary, MOD, the commanders of the three forces and DMI at the 

meeting. Appraising of the intelligence information at the outset could 

have resulted in steps being taken to take necessary steps to prevent 

or mitigate the threats.  

The PSC briefly lists below some measures taken by the Director, 

SIS (these are discussed in detail in previous sections)-   

• After receiving intelligence of the explosion in Kattankudy on 

16th April 2019, the Director, SIS realises the connection to 

the explosives found in Vanathavillu and realises it is a dry 

run.  

• The Director, SIS sent images of the explosion to the 

Secretary, MOD via WhatsApp and followed by a call to brief 

him.  

• On 18th April 2019, Director, SIS had sent a special report to 

the IGP and CID saying that the explosion is linked to Zahran 

and it is a dry run.  

• On 19th April 2019, Director, SIS calls IGP and says “Sir, 

Meka Prashnayak” He had then said that the matter should be 

given to the CID.  

• On the same day, Director, SIS had called, Senior DIG-CID, 

Mr. Ravi Seneviratne and said: “You have the people… IGP 

wanted me to tell you”.   



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 129 ) 

• On 19th April 2019, Director, SIS informed DMI “There is an 

incident like this. You have to act fast. Tell your people”  

• On the same day, Director, SIS had called Director, TID- 

“You have to take this seriously, because this is definitely a 

blast. This is Zahran’s activity. We cannot take it lightly”.   

It was only after the 16th April 2019 explosion did the Director, 

SIS take the initiative to inform all necessary parties. His excuse for 

not informing them previously was his expectation that the CNI 

would do it. His subsequent actions demonstrate that he should have 

kept all the necessary parties informed as soon as the first intelligence 

information was received.  

• On 20th April 2019, the Director, SIS received via WhatsApp 

a message from his source. The Director, SIS informed the 

PSC that he passed the message to Secretary, MOD, IGP, CNI 

and called them to follow up. The IGP had directed him to 

inform the CNI, Senior DIG-CID, Senior DIG-WP. He also 

claimed he informed STF during this period.  

Despite the dry run in Kattankudy on 16th April 2019 and 

intelligence information available of the potential attack, the Director 

SIS did not inform the DIG- Eastern Province nor did he inquire from 

anyone else whether to keep the relevant security apparatus in the area 

informed.  

• On 21st April 2019 morning, the Director SIS received another 

message regarding the attacks.  

• At this time the Director, SIS had immediately called DIG-

WP and admitted to the PSC that he had left aside protocol by 

not first informing his superiors.  

• He followed up the call with calls to the IGP and Secretary, 

MOD.  

It also transpired that the Director, SIS, a lead in the intelligence 

apparatus in Sri Lanka, was unaware of the location of the Methodist 

church in Sri Lanka. The PSC is concerned that an intelligence 

official, educated and resident in Colombo is not aware of key 
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locations, including a landmark building at the Kollupitiya junction, 

just metres away from Temple Trees.  

The PSC also notes that his evidence before the PSC demonstrates 

that he was the lead in receiving intelligence information from 

external sources and thus had a critical role in ensuring the analysis 

of the intelligence information, to share it with the relevant 

individuals and to take steps to address the intelligence information 

received without undue delay. The PSC notes that he failed in this 

regard by not acting with the required haste needed and by not 

informing all the relevant parties. A case in point was when he was 

called upon at the ICM on 9th April 2019 to brief all present and 

declined to do so with the excuse of sending a note later in the day. 

Considering the nature of the intelligence and in a context where Sri 

Lanka had a VIP visit the day before, the Director, SIS should have 

taken all steps to inform all present at the ICM. The PSC also notes 

that several who gave evidence stated necessary steps could have been 

taken to prevent or at the very least mitigate the attacks if the 

intelligence information was shared at the ICM on 9th April 2019.  

The PSC also notes that the SIS and DMI are the two lead 

intelligence gathering entities in the security establishment in Sri 

Lanka and the Director SIS in his own evidence indicated that the SIS 

is the lead in receiving intelligence from external sources. Hence, the 

SIS had the duty to share the intelligence information received on the 

4th April 2019 with the DMI. The Director, SIS did not share this 

information directly with the DMI nor did he share it at the ICM on 

9th April 2019. This is a failure in the part of the SIS. The Director, 

SIS also did not immediately share intelligence information received 

after the 16th April 2019 explosion and only felt information should 

be shared on 19th April 2019. This was more than two weeks after 

receiving the first intelligence information. This is a major failure on 

the part of SIS.  

It has also transpired via the evidence received from several 

individuals that the Director, SIS had a direct and regular 

communication channel to the President which was not the case with 

his superiors and other colleagues. Several had noted that the 
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President was directly briefed by the Director, SIS on previous 

instances. This was confirmed by His Excellency the President in his 

evidence to the PSC. This was the assumption with regard to the 

intelligence information received prior to the Easter Sunday attacks. 

Whilst the Director, SIS insisted he had not briefed the President of 

the intelligence information received, the PSC finds it hard to believe 

that this was the case considering the regular conversations between 

the two parties.  

The PSC also notes that the Director, SIS according his own 

admission took no steps to keep the political leadership briefed of the 

intelligence information received prior to the Easter Sunday attacks. 

This despite his admission that he was the lead in receiving 

intelligence information from external sources and for taking pride of 

place at intelligence briefings.  

There is also information to demonstrate that the Indian Defence 

Secretary was in Sri Lanka on 8th April 2019 and on this day only the 

SIS was aware of the first intelligence information received. The CNI 

received the intelligence on 8th late morning and had according to 

testimony by the Head, CNI, briefed the Secretary, MOD in the 

afternoon.  

The PSC is unable to accept the fact that Director, SIS, the lead in 

receiving intelligence from external sources, was unaware of the 

heightened security measures in place due to the visitor in town on 

the day and that this may have a bearing/link to the intelligence 

information received. The PSC also notes that intelligence 

information received indicated that the Indian High Commission was 

one of the potential targets and that it is surprising an intelligence 

official who is a prominent party within the intelligence apparatus in 

Sri Lanka was not aware of the possible links between the intelligence 

information received, source, potential target etc. This is also in the 

backdrop of the Indian Defence Secretary’s visit and the security 

measures that were in place for such a visit.  

The PSC was also informed that problems existed within some of 

the intelligence agencies such as the SIS and DMI which may have 
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prevented key parties from sharing and discussing intelligence 

information. For example, the PSC was informed that this may have 

prevented the Director, SIS from sharing the intelligence information 

at the 9th April 2019 meeting. The ad hoc Committee appointed by 

the President gave this as the reason for not identifying the Director, 

SIS as a person responsible for the failures that resulted in the Easter 

Sunday attacks. The PSC also notes that the ad hoc Committee does 

not find fault with the Director, SIS despite sufficient evidence to 

prove he was the first to receive the intelligence information regarding 

potential attacks and of the explosion on 16th April and was best 

positioned to brief the ICM, NSC and others in the political 

leadership, security and intelligence community.  

The PSC also notes that the Indian Defence Secretary visited Sri 

Lanka on 8th April 2019 and such a visit would have under any 

circumstances increased the security measures. It was just prior to this 

visit that the Director, SIS received the first intelligence information 

of a potential attack. This was also a day prior to the 9th April 2019 

meeting when the Director, SIS was called by name to brief on the 

intelligence information received. Considering the visit of the Indian 

Defence Secretary, the security measures in place related to this visit 

and the intelligence information received from the external source, 

there was a greater onus on the Director, SIS and the PSC questions 

the inaction of the Director, SIS. The PSC notes that the intelligence 

information received from the external source and the visit on 8th 

April 2019 must be given due attention and that this increased the 

responsibility on the Director, SIS to brief the ICM and the political 

leadership. Subsequent intelligence information received after the 

explosion on 16th April 2019 and the direct reference to the Indian 

High Commission being a target should have given more impetus for 

the Director, SIS to take immediate action to request the President 

and/or Secretary, MOD for a NSC meeting on 17th April 2019 or soon 

after.  

In a letter dated 8th April 2018, the Director SIS writes to the IGP 

to request the halting of investigations conducted by TID stating that 

the TID investigation will prejudice the investigation conducted by 

the SIS. The IGP subsequently acts on this letter. This letter indicates 
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that the SIS was to lead investigations without any others being 

involved. Subsequent to this letter, several incidents occurred that 

should have alerted the SIS of possible future incidents. These include 

the Digana violence, killing of two policemen in Vavunatheevu, 

Mawanella incident, discovery of explosives in Vanathavillu and the 

shooting of Taslim in March 2019. Despite the claim of leading 

intelligence, evidence in April 2019 demonstrates that the SIS was 

unprepared and out of its depths in terms of the intelligence 

information received and the action that was received.  

The ad hoc Committee, which has named several other officials, 

and which claims to have recorded the lapses on the part of the 

Director, SIS, could not have with any justification left his name out 

of the list of those responsible. One could legitimately ask the 

question whether this was an attempt to shield the person who, on the 

face of the available evidence, is most at fault for inaction that resulted 

in this unprecedented attack.  

The PSC is surprised that the ad hoc Committee, while detailing 

the shortcomings of the Director, SIS, thought it fit NOT to include 

his name in their recommendations on the persons against whom 

action should be taken for failures. The PSC categorically rejects the 

excuses given by Justice Hon. Malalgoda, Chairman of the ad hoc 

Committee in this respect and wonders if this was a design to shield 

the official, who in the opinion of the PSC, is the person most 

responsible for inaction that resulted in this unprecedented attack. 

Secretary, MOD  

The PSC heard the evidence of the present Secretary, MOD and 

two former secretaries of the MOD. From the evidence received, it is 

apparent that the Secretary, MOD currently plays a key role in the 

administration of the MOD and for the coordination and functioning 

of the security and intelligence apparatus in Sri Lanka. With the ICM 

and NSC, the Secretary, MOD plays a lead role to ensure intelligence 

information is discussed and disseminated among the relevant 

stakeholders.  
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Evidence received indicate that the NSC has been functioning in 

an ad-hoc manner for a considerable time with the Prime Minister and 

the State Minister for Defence not invited for NSC meetings since end 

October 2018. The Secretary, MOD at that time was Mr. Kapila 

Waidyaratne. The IGP was also not invited for several meetings. The 

PSC was informed that the specific individuals were not invited as the 

President had not indicated that they should be invited (Prime 

Minister and State Minister for Defence) or being informed not to 

invite (IGP). The PSC notes that it is the duty of the Secretary to 

inform all the necessary parties to attend the NSC and that this should 

not be left to the whims of one individual. The Secretary should also 

ensure there were regular NSC meetings and not dependent on the 

President to call the meeting. In this regard, the PSC finds fault with 

both Mr. Kapila Waidyaratne and Mr. Hemasiri Fernando.  

The PSC was informed that Mr. Hemasiri Fernando was informed 

of the initial intelligence information by the CNI and as a result 

requested the Director, SIS to brief the ICM. The PSC notes that at no 

point immediately after the ICM did the Secretary, MOD follow up 

on this intelligence information.  

The PSC was also informed of the Secretary, MOD being 

informed of the explosion on 16th April 2019 and subsequent 

intelligence reports of the impending attack. The Secretary, MOD did 

not take necessary steps to keep the political leadership and the 

security forces informed of such intelligence information. This is a 

serious failure.  

The PSC notes that a glaring failure is the failure to keep the 

President, Prime Minister and State Minister for Defence informed of 

the intelligence information. The PSC notes the unfortunate situation 

where the then Secretary, MOD had limited access to the President 

and there were moments where he was made to wait for three hours 

to meet the President. This said, the PSC finds that the Secretary 

should have raised these difficulties in writing with the President and 

also kept the Prime Minister and State Minister for Defence informed.  
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The PSC also notes that the Secretary, MOD should have called 

for an immediate NSC meeting after the intelligence information was 

received and this could have been done after the 9th April 2019 with 

special attention drawn after the explosion on 16th April 2019.  

The PSC was informed that the Secretary MOD had gone to wish 

the President for the Sinhala and Tamil New Year on 14th April but 

failed to brief him of the intelligence information that was received. 

At no point after this and prior to the attacks did he brief the President 

or any other political leader.  

The PSC notes that the Secretary, MOD had a responsibility to 

keep the relevant parties informed and to ensure steps were in place 

after the intelligence information was received. Having limited access 

to the President, assuming others would inform the President, the 

political fissures in the government by no way absolves responsibility 

of the then Secretary, MOD.  

The IGP  

The PSC received testimony from the IGP and several others who 

are in the police service which indicated to several gaps in preparation 

including communication failures, lack of proper steps taken to secure 

places and inform relevant parties in the lead up to the Easter Sunday 

attacks.  

The PSC was informed that the President chaired a monthly 

meeting with senior police officials and one was held on 8th April 

where the Secretary, MOD, IGP and others were present. According 

to the evidence given by the SIS and CNI, the IGP was briefed of the 

intelligence on 8th April 2019. Thus, the question is why he did not 

brief the President at this meeting.  

The IGP was further informed of the intelligence information by 

a note prepared by the Director, SIS which he directed to his 

subordinates. This was on 9th April 2019 which was followed by 

further intelligence information that was received after the explosion 

in Kattankudy.  
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Evidence before the PSC suggests that the IGP failed to take steps 

to inform the relevant parties including the President and Prime 

Minister and the relevant security personnel. The PSC notes that at no 

point did the IGP keep the heads and divisions in charge of the 

security for the President and Prime Minister informed of the 

intelligence received. The ad-hoc Committee also notes this failure 

and indicates the responsibility is with the IGP.  

The PSC also finds that the IGP should have shared the 

intelligence information received with senior DIGs and other relevant 

parties in the police service. One notable failure is to inform the DIG 

Eastern Province despite the explosion in Kattankudy and intelligence 

information received. His excuse of expecting the STF Commander 

to inform parties in the ground is insufficient and is a failure on the 

part of the IGP. The IGP as the head of the police service should have 

taken all necessary steps to keep the police informed and also the 

political leadership informed. The IGP also had ample opportunities 

to do this.  

The President informed the PSC that the IGP accompanied him to 

the Eastern Province on 12th April but did not inform him of any 

intelligence information received by then. The IGP had two other 

opportunities to brief the President subsequently but failed to do so. 

The first was on 14th April when the IGP had gone to wish the 

President for the Sinhala and Tamil New Year. The other was on 16th 

April when the IGP went to the Air Port at the time when the President 

departed to India and subsequently Singapore. The IGP did not 

mention at any of these meetings the intelligence information 

received.  

There are also delays on the part of the IGP. He received the first 

intelligence report on 9th April 2019 which he shared with four 

parties. He was subsequently informed of the 16th April explosion and 

subsequent intelligence information. In this instance too he directs his 

subordinates to be informed. But, he fails to keep the DIG Eastern 

Province informed, considering the explosion took place in Batticaloa 

and the intelligence information indicated it to be a dry run. He had 

also not given sufficient instructions to his subordinates as to 



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 137 ) 

measures that should be taken at the ground level. The PSC notes that 

more could have been done to either prevent or at the very least 

mitigate the attacks if the IGP had taken robust and speedy measures 

and given clear instructions for preparations on the ground.   

CNI  

The PSC heard the evidence of the CNI on the first day of its 

sittings and was informed that he had received the intelligence 

information from Director, SIS on 7th April 2019 and had passed on 

the information to the Secretary, MOD. He was in effect the first 

person the Director, SIS informed of the intelligence information. The 

CNI himself recounted that he had briefed the Secretary, MOD on the 

8th and suggested the intelligence information be forwarded to the 

Police as they were better prepared. He states he forwarded this 

information to the Police after receiving instructions from the 

Secretary, MOD. At the ICM on 9th April 2019, CNI was seated near 

the IGP but there is no indication as to whether he checked whether 

the Police had taken measures considering the intelligence 

information received.  

The PSC notes the admission of the CNI that he and others did not 

have the relevant intelligence training and this was a failure that 

contributed to the Easter Sunday attacks. The ad-hoc Committee also 

noted that the Director, SIS was aware of the weakness of the CNI to 

fully comprehend the gravity of intelligence reporting but he 

regardless relied on the CNI to convey it to others and that he in effect 

took advantage of the situation. This said, the PSC finds that the CNI, 

as with other key intelligence and security positions, should be 

occupied by persons with the relevant expertise and skills.  

The CNI failed in his duty to not take immediate steps to get the 

intelligence information analysed by his own staff and to share with 

all relevant individuals. 

The PSC also notes that the CNI should have taken initiative to 

act on the intelligence received including responding to calls and 

messages.  
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DMI  

The evidence before the PSC demonstrates that the DMI had prior 

information of the increasing extremism in the Eastern Province. It 

has also transpired that Army Mohideen (who was linked to Zahran) 

was known to the DMI. The letter from the Director, SIS to the IGP 

on 9th April 2019 gave details on Army Mohideen including his 

temporary residence in Pasikuda and that he visited his wife and 

children every Friday evening in Kattankudy. Army Mohideen, 

Zahran, Rilwan and others were also named in an arrest warrant 

issued in 2017 but the three named were never arrested. Questions 

must be raised whether the DMI with its presence on the ground and 

having a number of informants was unaware of the developments 

leading to the Easter Sunday attacks and chose not to keep the ICM 

and NSC briefed and if so reasons for such action/inaction.  

The PSC was also informed that the Director SIS shared the 

intelligence information with the DMI on 19th April 2019 and thus the 

DMI was aware of the latest intelligence. Despite this, the Army 

Commander, Mr. Mahesh Senanayake stated that he was only 

informed of the intelligence after the explosion. This raises extremely 

serious questions as to why the DMI did not brief the Army 

Commander.  

Attorney-General’s Department  

The PSC has noted in the report the lapses by several parties 

including the Attorney-General’s Department. As noted, there 

appears to be a lack of coordination within the different units of the 

Department. While the MP 193/2017 file and Zahran’s conduct has 

been attended to and addressed by the relevant officer, there were 

delays with other files where there was no response till much later. 

Apart from this, a third file appears to have been opened regarding 

the bail application in the High Court of Batticaloa which came under 

the supervision of a different supervisor. This shows that there is a 

systemic issue leading to a lack of coordination between connected 

matters within the Department. The PSC notes that undue delays and 

lack of coordination within the Department are at fault and that 

immediate structural reforms are required.  
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Political Leadership  

The PSC received evidence from the President, Prime Minister, 

State Minister for Defence and several others in key positions in 

government. The PSC notes that the following failed in the 

responsibilities in taking necessary action to prevent the Easter 

Sunday attacks.  

The President  

The PSC received evidence from several who indicated to the ad 

hoc nature of the security and intelligence sharing and briefings in Sri 

Lanka. The fissures between the President and Prime Minister directly 

contributed to the President leaving out the Prime Minister, State 

Minister for Defence and others from key meetings and briefings 

including the NSC. The PSC was also informed that the President had 

not wanted the IGP invited for some NSC meetings. In terms of the 

NSC, this is the apex body to share and discuss critical intelligence 

and it is imperative that all relevant political, security and intelligence 

parties are present. This should not be at the behest of one individual 

and political agendas and infighting.  

The PSC was informed by the President that he invited the Prime 

Minister out of his volition despite there being no such precedent with 

previous governments. Whilst this was a positive move and necessary 

in light of evolving security threats nationally and globally, 

subsequent action by the President (preventing key parties from 

attending and ad hoc nature of meetings) calls to question his motives. 

As indicated in this report, the PSC recommends structural and 

legislative reforms to ensure the NSC is insulated from any political 

interference and influence and is able to function to meet the global 

and national security challenges.   

The President informed the PSC that he had suspicions on some 

information that was discussed at the NSC which subsequently was 

reported in the media. One specific incident was the Sunday Times 

report dated 21st August 2016 where the Prime Minister is reported to 

have objected to banning the Niqab at the NSC meeting. The 

President indicated that no minutes were taken at the NSC and he felt 
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the information on the specific discussion point had emanated from 

the Prime Minister’s camp for the purpose of political mileage. This 

reason is cited by the President for not inviting the Prime Minister 

after the 7th October 2018 meeting but this is not an adequate excuse 

as the incident around the Niqab was in 2016 and the Prime Minister 

was only not invited in 2018. The PSC also notes that if the President 

had a problem with information discussed leaking to the media; this 

issue should have been discussed at the NSC. There was no indication 

that he raised this as a problem at the NSC.  

Evidence also indicated to the irregular NSC meetings and that 

sometimes meetings were called within a few hours with no time for 

preparation. The PSC was informed that the ad-hoc meetings and lack 

of focus contributed to it becoming an ineffective body with direct 

responsibility falling with the President.  

The IGP faced much criticism when the President gave evidence 

and he cited several instances that eventually resulted in the IGP not 

being invited to NSC meetings. One aspect was the behaviour of the 

IGP. The President noted that the IGP was always on his two phones 

in meetings and never paid attention to matters discussed including 

discussions at the NSC. He also criticises the IGP for writing to the 

National Police Commission on the transfer of IP Mr. Nishantha Silva 

citing points discussed at the NSC which were confidential and should 

not have gone outside of the NSC.  

The PSC also notes that the order by the President to leave out the 

IGP from attending NSC meetings followed soon after the alleged 

assassination plot against the President was revealed. The PSC notes 

many questions with this particular assassination plot and the events 

around it including the arrest of the then TID Director. 

The President mentioned that he had criticised the IGP on several 

occasions and attempted to justify him leaving out the IGP from the 

NSC on these grounds. The PSC has noted the failures of the IGP 

previously which will require attention. This said, the President’s 

action to leave out the IGP from the NSC is unacceptable. If the 

President found sufficient failures that required action, steps should 
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have been taken as provided by law.  The President could have also 

raised this at the NSC and other meetings, none of which as reported 

to the PSC, occurred.  

The President also refers to the Chief of Defence Staff (CDS) Mr. 

Ravindra Wijegunaratne in his statement (page 1348). He says that on 

11th November 2018 the CDS has stated at the NSC that IP Nishantha 

Silva is a LTTE member. The CDS had subsequently called the 

President on 16th November 2018 on the same matter. IP Silva was 

transferred on 18th November 2018. The PSC is troubled that the 

President relied merely on a statement by the CDS to inform his 

position of IP Silva without calling for an independent investigation. 

This is further compounded by the fact that the CDS is a suspect in an 

ongoing criminal matter in connection with the abduction of eleven 

youth which is presently before the Colombo Magistrates Court. The 

CID is leading these investigations and IP Mr. Silva is an officer of 

the CID. This all occurred in the backdrop of a constitutional crisis in 

October-December 2018 during which period the CDS was arrested 

and later given bail by the Colombo Magistrate. The PSC notes that 

the President should have taken due care when relying on information 

to transfer individuals and that such a transfer should have been done 

in accordance to the established process. Such behaviour is more 

problematic considering the fact he relied on evidence of an 

individual who had come under criminal investigations and 

subsequently arrested.  

The PSC was also informed that not only the NSC, but other 

established structures and practices were undermined by the 

President. For example, the PSC was informed that the President had 

limited contact with the Secretary of Defence who was the secretary 

to one of three ministries held by the President in accordance with the 

Nineteenth Amendment. This must be contrasted with direct and 

regular communication the President had with the Director, SIS. 

Whilst the President should be able to communicate with anyone he 

pleases, this should not come at the cost of structures and practices 

that are in place to strengthen and ensure the efficient and effective 

security and intelligence apparatus.  
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The political tensions not only kept key political actors out of 

NSC briefings but the NSC is also disturbed by the instructions given 

by the President soon after the Easter Sunday attacks not to attend a 

meeting called by the Prime Minister. This was directed at the 

Secretary to the President and Secretary MOD. The PSC notes that 

this is a complete undermining of the security threats and steps 

required immediately after an unprecedented attack in post war Sri 

Lanka and political and personal problems should have been left out 

of a national security response. This must also be examined when the 

President was out of the country and should have taken action to 

facilitate a meeting that was necessary considering the security threats 

immediately after such unprecedented attacks in post war Sri Lanka. 

This is also in the context the President failed to appoint an acting 

Minister for Defence when he left Sri Lanka on 16th April, a failure 

that exacerbated the confusion and uncertainty soon after the attacks.  

President informed the PSC that he was only alerted sometime 

around 10/ 11 a.m. (Singapore time) regarding the attacks which 

corresponds to either 7.30/8.30 a.m. Sri Lankan time. This indicates 

the President was briefed prior to the attacks. The PSC notes media 

reports (Daily FT 29th April 2019 – Please refer to Appendix 8) which 

reports that His Excellency the President was briefed by the Director, 

SIS on 11th April 2019. The PSC notes that he specifically mentioned 

that he was informed AFTER the attacks. 

The PSC notes that the President did not return to Sri Lanka 

immediately after the attacks. The presence of the President during a 

national emergency is critical, reinforced further by the fact that 

President is the Commander in Chief and head of the Government. 

He is also the person who has the power to call out the security forces 

and declare emergency. The PSC was informed that His Excellency 

the President had checked as to whether he could return to Sri Lanka 

on an earlier flight but that all flights were full. The President also 

informed the PSC that he was offered a plane by the Singaporean 

government to return but he had declined this offer as the time of 

arrival of his booked flight and the plane would have arrived around 

the same time.  



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 143 ) 

The PSC was able to verify with Sri Lankan Airlines whether 

there were no seats on any of the flights on 21st April 2019. According 

to Sri Lankan Airlines, there were three flights that flew from 

Singapore to Colombo on the day- UL307, UL303 and UL 309 and 

all three flights had available seats in both Business Class and 

Economy Class. The PSC notes that the evidence of the President is 

contradicted by the information provided by Sri Lankan Airlines 

which is annexed to this Report (Please refer to Appendix 7). 

The PSC notes that the President should have taken all steps to 

immediately return after the attacks, either via a scheduled flight or 

taking the offer of a special flight. This would have meant he was in 

Sri Lanka to manage and respond to the emergency and mitigate any 

future incidents. The Easter Sunday attacks were unprecedented in 

post war Sri Land and the physical presence of the President was 

imperative after such an attack that took the lives of more than 250 

people, injured many more and left the citizen in shock, disbelief and 

fear. Strong political leadership was essential after such attacks to 

reassure the victims, affected communities and citizens at large. The 

PSC also notes that there was no attempt made by the President to 

communicate with the country even via mainstream and social media 

during the initial hours after the attacks. Being out of the country was 

no excuse at a time when one can communicate instantly over social 

media platforms. All this demonstrates to a lack of leadership and 

communication at a moment of national crisis.  

The PSC also notes that emergency was only declared on 22nd 

April 2019, a day after the attacks. This delay must be questioned 

considering the scale of the attacks, uncertainty of possible other 

attacks and need for emergency powers to search, arrest, detain and 

other measures that were required at the time.   

Further, the PSC notes there must be further attention into the 

alleged assassination plot against the President in 2018 reported by 

Mr. Namal Kumara where the then Director, TID was arrested and 

subsequently released. The arrest of the TID Directed halted the 

investigations into Zahran and associates. This is a key event which 

resulted in the IGP not being invited for NSC briefings.  
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Further, the PSC notes the Transitional Provision 51 of the 

Nineteenth Amendment to the Constitution provides that the 

President in office at the commencement of the Nineteenth 

Amendment “may assign to himself the subjects and functions of 

Defence, Mahaweli Development and Environment and determine the 

Ministries to be in his charge for that purpose and accordingly, any 

reference in any written law to the Minister to whom such subject or 

function is assigned, shall be read and construed as a reference to the 

President”. Accordingly, the President cannot hold any other 

Ministry. The PSC notes that President took the Ministry of Law and 

Order in October 2018 amidst the constitutional crisis. The PSC also 

notes that this is a direct violation of the Constitution. The PSC also 

notes that the President gazetted the Police Department under 

Ministry of Defence. Such behaviour is not merely unacceptable and 

improper but is also a direct violation of the Constitution and the 

President's oath of office and as such is an assault on our 

constitutional democracy.  

The PSC notes that the President has not been fully upfront 

regarding his role in the lead up to the Easter Sunday attacks and his 

subsequent actions. In two instances, the PSC has noted 

discrepancies. One was when he said he did not know intelligence 

information prior to attacks when media reports point to him being 

briefed on 11th April 2019 (ten days prior to the attack). The other is 

his claim of the unavailability of seats on flights from Singapore to 

Colombo on 21st April 2019 which has been countered by evidence 

of ample seats being available on three flights on the day. The PSC is 

deeply disappointed that the President has deliberately misled the 

PSC on these two issues and in this light also questions the veracity 

of his other statements.  

Prime Minister  

Evidence before the PSC highlighted that the Prime Minister was 

left out of NSC meetings since end October 2018 at the direct 

instruction of the President. The PSC notes that this is a serious failure 

by the President and is directly linked to the political tensions within 

the Government. This said, the PSC notes that the Prime Minister 
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should have raised this development in Cabinet and in Parliament but 

remained silent of his exclusion from the NSC for over six months 

(October 2018-April 2019).  

The Prime Minister also informed the PSC that previously he was 

informed of some security developments by the then Minister, Law 

and Order. The PSC notes that this is no substitute for actual presence 

and participation of the NSC. The PSC notes that discussions on 

critical security issues must be done in a forum where individuals with 

the relevant expertise are able to advice the political leadership. The 

Prime Minister opting to rely on a third party for information is no 

substitute and is unacceptable.  

State Minister for Defence  

The PSC heard evidence from the State Minister for Defence who 

informed that he was also not invited for NSC meetings after the 7th 

October 2018 meeting. The President in his testimony indicated that 

he was unaware of the State Minister not being invited. The PSC finds 

this hard to believe considering the President chaired the meeting and 

had the practice of instructing others not to be invited.  

The failure to not invite the State Minister for Defence for NSC 

meetings is directly attributed to the President in the present instance 

as the practice was based on his instructions. This said, the PSC notes 

that this should not be the case and there must be structural reforms 

to ensure decisions are not left to one individual.  

The PSC also notes that the State Minister for Defence should also 

on his volition raised the fact he was left out of the NSC meetings in 

writing to the President and made a statement in Parliament. None of 

this occurred and the State Minister is also at fault.  
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Recommendations 

The PSC makes several recommendations that require urgent 

attention. These are broadly categorised as follows: - 

1. Essential reforms in the security and intelligence sector  

2. Establishment of an enhanced financial supervisory 

mechanism  

3. The need to control and monitor the rise of religious 

extremism  

4. Addressing delays with justice: Reforming the Attorney-

General’s Department  

5. Wahabism and the need for action   

6. Media reporting, fake news and other areas of concern  

7. Holding politicians/ peoples’ representatives accountable  

8. Reforming the educational sector to counter growing 

extremism  

1. Essential reforms in the security and intelligence 

sector 

It is important to undertake a comprehensive review of national 

security priorities, identify gaps and weaknesses and areas that require 

reform/strengthening. This should be coupled with an immediate 

review of the present structures in place for security and intelligence 

and to map out tasks, responsibilities and possible overlap.  

The PSC makes these recommendations in light of lapses but also 

evidence to demonstrate deliberate action that prevented 

comprehensive surveillance and the arrests of key parties involved in 

violence in earlier years and the contributed to the Easter Sunday 

attacks. This is an extremely serious situation where elements with 

the intelligence apparatus with the support of some political elements 

may have played a role. This will require further investigation but the 

present findings calls for urgent reforms.  
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A comprehensive review should be done on a regular basis to 

ensure priorities and needs are identified in the context of evolving 

developments and challenges. The process should involve all relevant 

stakeholders with the NSC and NSA leading.  

There must be a clear overview of tasks and responsibilities 

needed with awareness among the security and intelligence of 

structures and tasks. This will reduce the duplication of work.   

A key point to be made at the outset is the importance of structures 

that are robust and independent and are not held hostage to personal 

and political fissures. For this, specific structural reforms are 

necessary.  

NSC and NSA reforms: On the basis of the information received 

and the clear evidence of the dis-functional nature of the NSC, key 

reforms are needed urgently to reform the NSC, strengthen security 

and intelligence operations and to have a comprehensive system in 

place to address, mitigate and prevent future security threats.  

There is a need for a strengthened NSC with a secretariat 

comprising of experienced staff to support its work. The mandate of 

the NSC will also require attention and should go beyond a meeting 

point of relevant officials. A reformed NSC should have the expertise 

on intelligence and security issues and be able to advice the 

government on key developments and actions that should be taken. 

They should also be able to coordinate with relevant ministries in 

terms of security measures and infrastructure.  

A new position that should be created in the executive branch is 

of a National Security Advisor (NSA) who should be a person with 

the relevant expertise in intelligence and security issues and be able 

to oversee the work of the NSC secretariat and keep the President and 

the government abreast of security issues. The NSA should have the 

mandate to organise NSC meetings and initiate follow up action and 

will be responsible to the Minister of Defence and to keep the 

President and Prime Minister informed of developments.  



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 148 ) 

The NSA should be supported in his/her work by 1-2 deputies and 

a well resourced secretariat. The NSA should have regular briefings 

with the President and government and be able to access them within 

short notice in the event of an emergency. A revamped NSC should 

also be able to compile intelligence and security briefings and call 

meetings on a regular basis, ideally fortnightly with frequency 

increased when critical intelligence is received. There must be a clear 

chain of command and reporting system that is put in place to mitigate 

lapses. Communication between particular individuals should not be 

the reason there is a structural process of sharing information and 

keeping the relevant individuals informed.  

The NSC should include other civilian expertise including 

economists and foreign policy experts who are able to advice on 

economic dimensions.  

Strengthening interagency coordination and information sharing 

can be facilitated by the NSC with regular meetings and a clear 

process of follow up. The NSC should meet on a regular basis and 

with regular meetings held dependent on intelligence and security 

needs.  

Considering the global and national security challenges, there 

should be a bi-annual initiative to revisit national security strategies 

which can be led by the NSC with the involvement of line ministries 

and national and international expertise involving relevant fields such 

as defence, international relations, conflict resolution, economics and 

other fields.  

Legal Reforms: 

Legislative reforms are needed to address some of the present 

challenges in the security and intelligence fields. The PSC proposes 

legislative reforms in the following areas-  

• Establishing the NSC and providing for its 

framework/mandate.  
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• Establishing an expert group to monitor the work of the 

security and intelligence sector and report to the relevant 

SOC/Parliament.  

• Introduce necessary legislation with powers to arrest and 

detain, search, investigate digital and other platforms & 

sufficient powers over emigration and immigration with 

judicial oversight, access to the NHRC.  

Human Resources and Capacity Building: The PSC notes the 

need for an immediate review of existing human resources in the 

security and intelligence sector in Sri Lanka and to address gaps and 

areas that require strengthening.  

Specific units such as the TID had requested in 2018 for increased 

manpower to address new threats and such requests should be 

reviewed by the NSC in discussion with the relevant officials and 

steps immediately taken to address such requests  

Whilst several agencies are involved in intelligence gathering, 

testimony received by the PSC demonstrates to the need for 

strengthening of existing teams and work methods. The PSC notes 

that several involved in intelligence gathering in Sri Lanka require 

special training with skills required for the task in light of new global 

and local threats.  

There should also be a regular review of capacity and expertise of 

existing staff and to identify new trainings and resources.  

Oversight: The PSC also notes the importance of oversight over 

national security and intelligence operations with regular briefings 

required to keep the legislature informed of developments and 

challenges and to explore areas that require reform and resources.  

The PSC also notes that the relevant sectoral committees having 

oversight should have the necessary expertise to be informed of 

evolving security issues.  

The PSC recommends the creation of an independent expert panel 

to monitor the work of the security and intelligence structures, study 

the legal and administrative framework and practical issues such as 
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capacity and resources. The expert panel should brief the relevant 

oversight committees and the Government to ensure their findings 

and recommendations can be addressed without delay.  

Coordination & Communication: The PSC also recommends 

that measures should be taken to establish long-term links and 

enhance coordination and communication between not only the 

various intelligence agencies but also between the intelligence 

agencies and the law enforcement authorities. 

Communication within and between the intelligence, security and 

law and order apparatus is key and should be systematic and regular 

than be based on individual relationships.  

There should also be a review of processes in place for 

communication in times of an emergency and steps taken to improve 

communication.  

PSC notes that the weekly intelligence meetings should be utilized 

in the most effective manner to share all relevant intelligence and the 

NSC should take a lead in addressing concerns highlighted with gaps 

in coordination and communication.  

There should also be clear follow up action points with the 

revamped NSC taking the lead in this area.  

Technology: The PCS also notes that the present system in places 

to screen people are not adequate and therefore it recommends to 

address problems of screening people with biometric identifiers 

across agencies and governments, within the Sri Lankan border and 

transportation systems, by designing a comprehensive screening 

system. 

The PSC notes the challenges confronting intelligence agencies in 

monitoring social media platforms that espouse extremism and hate 

speech. A review of the present framework should be undertaken 

promptly and necessary reforms introduced.  

Further, testimony received by the PSC raise the difficulties in 

monitoring chat groups such as WhatsApp and others that were used 
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to communicate by Zahran and associates. Subsequent to the Easter 

Sunday attacks, several social media platforms and chat groups were 

blocked. Whilst national security is critical, steps taken must also be 

proportionate and necessary. The PSC notes that the balance of 

freedom of speech and national security will need to be given serious 

consideration and steps taken to provide for preventive measures that 

do not infringe on the rights of the citizen. 

An urgent national necessity has arisen to build up and implement 

an integrated and unified Centralized and Integrated Population 

Information System to achieve multiple objectives at national level. 

The absence of such a sophisticated information system is a barrier to 

effectively prevent terrorist related activities, crimes, money 

laundering transactions and financial crimes etc. The necessity for 

such a comprehensive integrated database is felt more than ever with 

the Easter Sunday attacks.  

Integrated Security Systems to Monitor Movements of People 

The 13 Critical Projects are: - 

1. Centralized Integrated Population Information System 

(CIPIS) / Sri Lanka Identification Number (SLIN); 

2. Electronic Biometric National ID Card (e-NIC); (Biometrics 

with Facial Recognition Citizen ID) 

3. Electronic Biometric Passport (e-Passport); 

4. Single Window System for the Revenue Collection 

5. Immigration Core System / Border Management Control 

System; 

6. e-Visa System (e-Visa)  

7. Integrated Tourism Digital Platform 

8. Criminal Data Base – should only contain information of 

convicted persons and not suspects 

9. Hitech CCTV and Video Control and Command Center  

10. SIM Card Registration and Central Data Base  

11. Big Data and Analytics to track all Media and Social Media 

Posts with Artificial Intelligence (any unusual pattern and 

wrong communication will be alerted)  
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12.  Facial Recognition Citizen ID to be linked with Driver’s 

License  

13. Three Wheel Owner Registration and Data Base. All Public 

Transport must have a special ID 

Above systems can effectively address the following key challenges 

faced at the present security situation 

• Identifying convicted criminals, terrorists and wanted people, 

which is of utmost importance to the country and for this 

purpose you must enroll, capture and build the CIPIS or a 

National Biometric Database; 

• Dashboard for National Security Council, Law Enforcement & 

Armed Forces; 

• Convicted Criminals, Terrorists and Wanted People Biometric 

Database; 

• Curbing Trusted Government Documents (e.g. e-NIC, Driving 

License, Birth Certificates and Passports) being illegally 

replicated; 

• Stopping financial leakages, misuse, theft and robbery (Pension, 

Samurdhi Authority & Social Benefits); 

• Efficient e-Government Services & Cost Optimizations; 

• Digital Transformation of key Government Bodies and inter-

connecting them; 

• Moving Sri Lanka towards a “Cashless Society” 

•  Integrated Tourism & Travel Analytics Solutions   

•  Integrated Global Airlines Information Consolidation & 

Traveler’s Security Screening  

• Integrated Tourist Insurance and Safety Assurance  

• Improve Sri Lanka World Safety and Security rating by 

deploying a world class integrated advance traveller screening 

platform which connects Sri Lanka to all global airports and 

airlines in real-time manner. Integrated E-Gates solution to 

create seamless immigration clearance for passengers with 

minimum waiting times and delays. 

• The Tourism platform will be capable of tracking spending 

patterns of travelers while they are on tour in the country by 

accessing the data through partners such as VISA and 



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 153 ) 

MasterCard.  This will also include a mobile based technology 

platform to monitor the traveller behavior.  

It was reported that biometrics information systems are maintained at 

different levels in various agencies. Some of the systems are; 

• National Persons Registry of the Department of Registration of 

Persons 

• Biometric Passport System of the Department of Immigration 

and Emigration 

• E-Birth, Marriage and Death Registration System of the 

Department of Registrar General 

• Revenue Administration Information System (RAMIS) of the 

Department of Inland Revenue 

• Automated System of Customs Data (ASYCUDA) of the 

Department of Customs  

• Integrated Treasury Management System (ITMIS) of the 

General Treasury  

However, there is no integrated system of sharing information 

available with different agencies. Many countries in the world have 

developed and implemented state of the art systems to ensure both 

national and international security. This sharing of information must 

be restricted to authorized usage based on identified needs and a strict 

regime for such authorization. 

The Centralized Integrated Population Information System which 

would be able to facilitate not only the national security requirements 

and anti-corruption initiatives but also the effective delivery of 

government services to the citizens.  

Departments of Registration of Persons, Registrar General, 

Immigration and Emigration, Census and Statistics, Registrar of 

Companies, Motor Traffic, Pensions, Elections, Inland Revenue, Sri 

Lanka Customs, Police and the Ministries of Defence, Justice, Home 

Affairs, Provincial Councils and Local Government must join hands 

in developing this proposed system. 

Whilst noting that such changes can be abused by agencies that 

have access to such information including abuse of privacy rights 
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etc, adequate measures must be introduced using all forms of 

technology including digital foot prints to ensure such abuses are 

prevented and facilitate the tracking of the abusers. The sacrosanct 

principle that a person is presumed innocent until proven guilty must 

be maintained when implementing such measures. 

2.  Establishment of an enhanced financial supervisory 

mechanism. 

Establishing an enhanced financial supervisory mechanism to 

detect, report and action suspicious transactions - so as to prevent 

terrorist financing activities routed through the financial system of Sri 

Lanka, going unnoticed  

The investigations carried out subsequent to the Easter Sunday 

Bomb Attacks established that the lack of proper checks and balances 

in the financial system helped organisations to carry out financial 

transactions “unnoticed/undetected”, thereby facilitating terrorist 

activities in Sri Lanka.  

Post the attacks, it was revealed that the participants in the 

financial system have failed to trace and report suspicious transaction 

promptly and regulators have not fulfilled their regulatory 

responsibilities.   

The lesson learned in the aftermath of the tragedy, must accelerate 

the consideration of new initiatives and actions to device an 

appropriate oversight and regulatory system that can effectively 

monitor and detect such transactions at an Early Warning Stage.  

The proposed system must not only act promptly to detect and 

report similar financial transactions but also establish close 

coordination between the financial system and law enforcement 

agencies, largely through an Enhanced and Integrated IT Platform 

(Systems with limited human intervention) - an Exception 

Management System,  to actively flag up, provide evidence and 

enable action to be taken immediately to prevent attacks and bring 

wrong doers to justice.  
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To enhance and diversify the existing regulatory system to 

effectively monitor and trace transaction supporting Anti Money 

Laundering and Terrorist Financing activities, on an “Early Warning 

Basis” 

• As Sri Lanka has been identified as an end destination for 

terrorist financing for a long time, the vulnerable 

points/escape routes must be permanently closed. The terrorist 

financiering is ever evolving, and the monitoring system 

designed to trace such activities should be upgraded 

periodically, to tackle the innovation and tactics used by the 

terrorists to circumvent detection through existing controls in 

the Sri Lankan Financial Markets.  

• The regulatory system in the financial market should ensure 

that no one (Individuals or companies or unincorporated 

entities), will be able to use the financial system to make 

payment for any actions encouraging or directly related to 

terrorist activities as provided by law. 

• The objective of the control system is not to over-regulate the 

financial system or control private entities. The recommended 

action is based on the lesson learnt from the Easter Sunday 

attacks so that all participants ensure no financial transaction 

are allowed to take place in the financial system that lead to 

terrorist activities as provided by law.  

• Banks should monitor excessive online transaction and liaise 

with the law enforcement authorities on a regular basis by 

special checks into credit card accounts/payments done 

through inward remittances directly, etc. Regulation is 

required to monitor and regulate transaction happening 

through digital media as well, such as PayPal, Bit coin or Easy 

Cash. These would need to be done in accordance with the 

law.  

• To avoid similar regulatory failures, the Central Bank of Sri 

Lanka and the Commercial Banks need to play a more 

prescribed role rather than a passive monitoring role, and thus 
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engaging on a real time basis to verify that the financial 

system participants are discharging their duties as per the 

stipulated regulation. 

• An Integrated Accounting System together with the newly 

proposed Integrated ICT Platform should be implemented 

immediately among the financial system participants so as to 

facilitate proper communication between the Reporting 

systems of Commercial Banks, Central Bank of Sri Lanka, 

and Department of Inland Revenue and other highlighted 

Stakeholders of the New Commercial Intelligence Unit (CIU) 

Objective – Establishment of the New Commercial Intelligence Unit 

(CIU) 

• To continue to facilitate and enhance foreign currency receipts 

to Sri Lanka whilst maintaining a “Watchful Eye” on 

suspicious transfers.  

• Formation of a new unit under the Ministry of Finance/Central 

Bank of Sri Lanka with widespread powers.  

• To provide Linkage between the Central Bank ( Financial 

Intelligence Unit- FIU, Bank Supervisory Unit, Controller of 

Exchange) , Commercial Banks, Finance companies, 

Department of Inland Revenue (IRD) , Registrar 

of Companies (ROC) and the newly to be formed CIU, so that 

all inward remittances are visible and linked to multiple audit 

points, on a new Secure and Integrated ICT Platform. 

Stakeholders  

I. CBSL (FIU, Exchange Control & Bank Regulators) 

II. Commercial Banks 

III. Finance Companies  

IV. Department of Inland Revenue (IRD)  

V. Registrar of Companies (ROC) 

VI. Newly formed CIU  

VII. Criminal Investigation Department (CID) of Sri Lanka Police 
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VIII. Centralized National Intelligence Unit (CNIU) 

Create special linkage codes between individuals and companies  

To facilitate the exception management detection and reporting 

system it is proposed to undertake the following actions in creating 

special linkage codes between Individuals and Companies and the 

Stakeholders of the new CIU Unit 

• Review Income Receipts in previous years (Tax Returns)  

• Capital / Net Assets (Wealth of Companies & Individuals) 

receiving these remittances (Tax Returns and ROC filings) 

• Create New Income codes INC 1 / INC 2/ INC 3 / INC 4 / 

INC 5 and New Capital Codes – CAP 1 / CAP 2 / CAP 3 / 

CAP 4 / CAP 5 so that all foreign inward remittances are 

linked to individuals and companies as per their INC or CAP 

codes. 

• High value remittances to individuals or companies with low 

INC & CAP codes will raise red flags on the IT linkage system 

so that Early Actions can be taken by the FIU / CIU.  

• Categorization of INC & CAP codes will be done on a 

previous 3 years moving average of net income or net 

assets as follows; 

INC and CAP Codes Classification 

INC 1 – Low Income 

INC 3 – Medium Income 

NC 5 – HIGH Income 

CAP 1 – Low Cap 

CAP 3 – Medium Cap 

CAP 5 – High Cap 
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Establishing Multiple Check Points – through the New Integrated ICT 

Platform;  

• Establishment of a new Commercial Intelligence Unit (CIU) 

is desirable and this unit is included as a stakeholder in the 

linkage and integration of IT systems with the various parties 

responsible for Auditing Inward Remittances. 

• Create Inter departmental close coordination and 

communication including sharing information promptly with 

Criminal Investigation Department (CID) of Sri Lanka Police 

and Centralized National Intelligence Unit (CNIU) 

•  Provision of a new “ICT Linkage Platform” for 

Dissemination of information as per project guidelines – to 

ensure SPEEDY ACTIONS TO INVESTIGATE AND 

INITIATE REMEDIAL ACTION FOR ANY “SUSPECT 

TRANSACTIONS”   

• All single transactions below USD 10,000will not raise Red 

Flags (Early Warnings) unless there is multiple transactions 

within a 12 months period. 

Enhanced Role and Responsibility of Commercial Banks 

• The Commercial Banks are to be held primarily responsible 

for tracing suspicious transaction as the entity which receive 

the first-hand information. The Banks should train their staff 

properly on Anti Money Laundering (AML) and tracing for 

Terrorist Financing (TF) procedures. Every bank branch 

should employee at least one staff member who had 

undergone training in AML & TF.   

• Commercial banks should request their clients to provide & 

then verify whether recipient has a tax file number at the time 

of inward remittance in excess of USD 10,000/-.  

• The bank should send IRD a weekly list of individuals / 

companies who have received a single remittance more than 

USD 10,000 with their tax file number (if any) except those 

of migrant workers or families.  
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• IRD shall open tax file for recipients of any remittances more 

than USD 10,000 at once if the recipient is a local individual 

or company incorporated but not for those employed abroad. 

• For SIA account or any foreign currency recipient’s account, 

it is mandatory for the bank to collect documents pertaining to 

the share issue / loan issue.  

• Release expatriate migrant workers who are resident of 

overseas country and sending money to family and friends (if 

the migrant workers details could be duly verified by the 

recipient bank) from all the above requirement even if the 

amount is greater than USD10,000 but less than USD 50,000 

• No verification is required for the migrant workers who remit 

funds into their personal account (foreign currency or LKR) 

• Banks should obtain the following details / declaration for 

inwards remittance higher than USD 10,000. Whether such 

account / set of account maintained by one individual/ 

company/ group of companies/related parties/ the parties 

acting in concert have received foreign remittances for more 

than USD 50,000 at once or in a series of receipts. If the 

answer is yes, then banks should receive information 

pertaining to the projects undertaken, including issues of 

shares or debt in return   

• Banks should use extra layer of verification for the high value 

funds received from countries, which are having high risk of 

terrorist financing by referring those transactions to Criminal 

Investigation Department (CID) for post verification purpose. 

• Use extra verification into the private companies / charities / 

Non-governmental organization (NGO) who receive large 

funding. The banks should demand details of the programme 

on which funds are expensed and refer the same to internal 

AML officers. Internal AML officers should investigate them 

further and refer regulatory authorities (FIU, CIU, CID & 

police station in the area) for further action if suspicious 

transaction is noticed 
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• Unless it requires immediate intervention of law enforcement 

authorities, commercial banks should operate facilitating any 

clients request to transfer funds/inward remittances smoothly 

and efficient manner without discouraging lawful 

investments. To ensure that no security lapse in such smooth 

transaction facilitation, all banks should conduct surveillance 

in the background and post audit basis. This may avoid 

unnecessary delay in transaction processing.  

By the establishment of the New Commercial Intelligence Unit 

(CIU) as a key driver of the enhanced supervision approach post the 

Easter Sunday attacks and with the strengthening of the legal system 

by the enactment of new laws to give effect to the key suggestions 

and recommendations in this Paper, it is hoped that an enhanced level 

of supervision and action will prevail ; 

To detect, report and action suspicious transactions - so as to prevent 

terrorist financing activities routed through the financial system of Sri 

Lanka, going unnoticed 

The relevant observations and recommendations made by 

officials of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka are given below: - 

a) Dr. Indrajith Coomaraswamy, Governor Central Bank of 

Sri Lanka 

▪ FIU submitted a report to the Monetary Board regarding 

Easter bombings. This contains important 

recommendations such – one set of recommendations on 

sharing intelligence between FIU and other law 

enforcement agencies (page 1021) 

▪ FIU role in freezing Zahran’s and other bombers accounts 

(page 1023) 

▪ “dual reporting” system followed by the banks in Sri 

Lanka  

▪ The impact of the repealing and replacing the Exchange 

Control Act with the Foreign Exchange Act, No. 12 of 

2017- was there a lacuna in law that needed to be 

addressed?  
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▪ Sri Lanka being on the “Grey List”  

▪ Certain changes need to made to the Foreign Exchange 

Act in order for it to be an effective piece of legislation – 

some of these suggestions have already been made to the 

Attorney-General’s Department. 

▪ Introduction of an Integrated monitoring system  

b) Mr. R. R. Jayarathna, Director, Department of Foreign 

Exchange 

▪ There is no law to start investigations for incidents post 

20th November 2017 because the Exchange Control Act 

was repealed (page 1026)  

▪ Shortcomings of the Foreign Exchange Act, No. 12 of 

2017 (page 1027)  

c) Mr. D. M. Rupasinghe – Director, FIU  

▪ Delay in filing indictments (page 1042) 

▪ Problem with the existing law – (page 1046) 

▪ Zahran and the NTJ got money through a system known 

as the Undiyal (page 1050) 

▪ NTJ accounts information contained in page 1050 

▪ Recommends that NGOs should be brought under the 

Secretariat and be registered   

▪ They participated in the Security council meeting by 

invitation (page 1057) last was before 2015 
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2. The need to control and monitor the rise of extremism  

Islamic Extremism  

The PSC observes from the testimony before it that there was a 

rise of religious extremism in Sri Lanka especially in the Kattankudy 

area before the Easter Sunday attacks and this extremism continues. 

Therefore, active measures should be taken to counter the growth of 

religious extremism in the country especially in areas like 

Kattankudy. The following are specific recommendations in this 

regard:  

• The Government should sponsor and foster inter-faith 

dialogue to promote religious harmony, co-existence, mutual 

respect and create awareness on radicalization and extremism.  

• The Government should improve engagement with 

community and religious leaders and have a robust system to 

address concerns raised including early warning of increased 

extremism and follow up with community led initiatives.  

• State authorities must take immediate action to address the 

dissemination of misinformation and spread of hate speech 

inciting violence. This must include steps to hold alleged 

perpetrators accountable.    

• The state should allocate more funding for conducting 

research on the root causes of extremism and terrorism and its 

evolving tactics that would be useful to decision-makers, as 

well as to security professionals.  

• Further, special procedure should be adopted to identify and 

prevent radicalization tendencies in the country.  

• PSC also observes and notes that the law in the current form 

is insufficient to deal with modern cybersecurity threats and 

therefore the cybersecurity laws in Sri Lanka should be 

updated by amending the Computer Crimes Act No 24 of 2007 

and streamline it with present-day requirements.  

• Early warning system.  
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Buddhist Extremism  

The PSC notes that the Government must initiate urgent measures 

to counter growing Islamophobia and the growing fear and suspicion 

between and within the various communities in the country. The PSC 

observed the spike in hate speech and attacks and speed with which 

false news spread, especially fake news around sterilization, attacks 

of Sinhala Buddhist communities and Buddhist places of worship. It 

is essential to have a comprehensive response to such trends that 

mitigate further communal disharmony and clashes between 

communities.  

The PSC points out that the Government must without any further 

delays review past incident of religious extremism where legal action 

has yet to be initiated and or have been initiated but face delays (For 

example- Mawanella 2001, Aluthgama  2014, Gintota  2017 and 

Ampara and Digana 2018 and in parts of the North Western Province 

May 2019)) and take necessary measures to hold the perpetrators 

accountable. The PCS notes that this is of vital importance to maintain 

the rule of law in the country and end the trend of laws being used 

only as a tool to target minority communities.  

Further, individuals such as religious leaders, politicians and 

public figures must refrain from using messages of intolerance or 

expressions which may incite violence between communities. In a 

country where the Constitution provides for equality of all citizens 

and there is a legacy of multicultural and religious coexistence, it is 

essential that all citizen play a responsible role to desist from fanning 

the flames of ethno-religious tensions. Religious, political and other 

leaders bear a larger onus in fostering communal harmony, tolerance 

and respect for the rights and dignity of all citizens.  

The PCS further notes that apart from the state, other stakeholders 

such as religious leaders and civil societies have a vital role to play in 

promoting inter-faith dialogue, religious harmony, co-existence, 

mutual respect and creating awareness among communities at this 

critical stage.  
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The PSC states that print, broadcast, digital and social media in 

instances of ethnic tension can play a major role in controlling and 

mitigating the situation. However, what has been seen time and time 

again is the sensationalizing of incidents and inaccurate reporting by 

many media organizations in critical times. Therefore, the PSC 

recommends that the administration of media organizations take 

concrete measures to provide media personnel, journalists and 

reporters with regular training on ethical reporting and sensitivities 

when dealing with affected communities. Further, strict disciplinary 

action needs to be taken against journalist and media personnel’s who 

do not adhere to codes of ethics/conduct and publish dramatized news 

that can result in communal disharmony.  

PSC also notes that strict and prompt legal action should be taken 

against individuals and organizations promoting hate, discrimination 

and violence.  

The PSC notes the existence of different ministries for Buddhism, 

Hindu, Islam and Christianity. Apart from the issue of the many 

ministries in existence and the question of resources required to 

maintain multiple ministries, the PSC is unaware of a rational 

justification to have separate ministries for each religion. The PSC 

recommends that Sri Lanka has one ministry responsible for all 

religions.  

Army Commander Lt. General N. U. M. M. W. Senanayake while 

giving evidence on 26 June 2019 stated that the Sri Lanka army 

consists 99% of Sinhala Buddhists and that the others do not exceed 

2000 in numbers.  The PSC recommends that all Government 

institutions particularly the security forces and the Police must reflect 

the ethnic and religious composition in the country. 

Action taken by Parliament to mitigate Religious Extremism 

After the violence in Digana the Hon. Speaker took certain 

initiatives and appointed a Parliamentary Select committee on 07 

September 2018.   This Committee held consultations in several parts 

of the country and presented its report to Parliament on 22nd February 

2019 with the following recommendations: - 
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i. Inter-faith dialogue with relevant specialists to be regularly 

carried out at the urban and rural grassroots levels to 

voluntarily resolve differences that arise from time to time 

in order to reduce the degree of fear and suspicion and iron 

out potential conflicts.   

ii. A community-based mechanism of dealing with issues 

should be established where the ordinary citizens are 

included at the decision-making level.  

iii. Ideas of peace and reconciliation should be instilled in 

school children across the island. Students must be given an 

opportunity to study their respective religions while 

encouraging their respective religious / cultural norms to be 

practised within the context of a broader Sri Lankan identity 

and universal values.   

iv. School children must be taken to visit places of worship of 

other religions with a view to foster tolerance and 

understanding, and create opportunities for comparative 

learning.  

v. Trilingual amity schools should be instituted to reduce 

tension and encourage unity while regulating admissions to 

state schools in urban areas to reflect a percentage of not less 

than 20% of students from other religions.   

vi. A special day for peace and communal harmony should be 

declared and included in the school calendar so that students 

can voluntarily celebrate cultural diversity together. One 

student can be selected to deliver a short speech at School 

Assembly on the benefits of communal harmony. The 

Additional Zonal Director for Education should be from the 

non-majority race in each region.  

vii. The spread of religious institutions engaging young people 

in particular must be supported. This will serve the twin 

purposes of encouraging spirituality among the youth while 

discouraging their involvement in anti-social activities and 
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the spread of narcotic drugs, alcohol, gambling, smoking 

and other vices.  

viii. A policy should be drafted to ensure that schools in 

cosmopolitan urban areas are not limited to a single religion 

or language.   

ix. Leadership at the national, provincial and local authority 

levels must commit to regular annual public events to 

uphold non-discrimination in the discharge of their public 

duties particularly in public sector recruitments maintaining 

as far as the law permits, the respective levels of ethnicity in 

all public institutions and guaranteeing non-discriminatory 

administration and decision-making.     

x. A comprehensive island-wide survey to gauge public 

perceptions and expectations on national unity and 

reconciliation while reviewing new developments must be 

conducted with the support of the relevant line ministries 

and to organize future proceedings of the Parliamentary 

Select Committee on the basis of the survey results.  

xi. More cross-cultural activities such as street dramas and 

cultural shows designed to promote mutual respect and 

understanding must be conducted at the grassroots level.  

xii. A mechanism to regulate construction of religious 

structures, statues and places of public worship should be 

introduced.   

xiii. Hate speech must be criminalized and included in the Penal 

Code. Laws that can radicalize such as incarceration in 

remand prisons for periods exceeding three months without 

trial must be done away with.   

xiv. Proper laws on media regulation on spreading racial and 

religious discord should be implemented. The media must 

report both sides of a story and not just the hate inciting 

factors and help the common man understand the underlying 

facts during times of tension.   
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xv. A civil, statutory watchdog mechanism, preferably under 

the Human Rights Commission of Sri Lanka, must be 

established to monitor in particular political parties, the 

media and the forces to ensure individuals within these 

institutions refrain from inciting communal hatred in any 

organised way.   

xvi. The State must promote the use of all languages / Officials 

languages and encourage all communities to learn languages 

of the other communities. Language rights must be secured 

for all.  

xvii. More Tamil-speaking police officers should be appointed in 

areas where Tamil-speaking persons constitute the majority 

of the population so that the people will have better access 

to the police.   

xviii. A Race Relations Board with the funds and authority to look 

in to problems that affect religious harmony can be created. 

Alternatively, a sub-committee can be set up under the 

Human Rights Commission to deal exclusively with 

complaints of communal incitement and violence which will 

allow for investigations to be carried out within the ambit of 

the law and not in an arbitrary manner, and to take 

appropriate remedial action including initiating criminal 

proceedings.  

xix. The Police Ordinance should be amended. A positive image 

of the police should be maintained, and strategies must be 

devised to restore public confidence in the law enforcement 

agencies.  

xx. Laws should be enforced uniformly with no reference to 

ethnic and religious identity. The law enforcers should be 

prepared to and fully alert to handle racial tensions at the 

onset and take preventive measures where required.  

xxi. The police should have a special unit that is trained to handle 

racial tensions just like the UN peace-keeping force. This 

unit can be under the Special Task Force (STF). It should 
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have an equivalent number of members from the different 

ethnic and religious groups, and should be the first to be 

called in an event of communal tensions. Contingents from 

this special unit must be stationed in identified places with 

a history of communal antagonism but performing general 

police duties during normal times.  

xxii. There should be advisory boards for this Committee at the 

regional level and the main Parliamentary Committee must 

exert pressure on these regional committees or bodies to 

implement what is discussed in the national level and 

address issues that arise.   

xxiii. As there is a need for greater understanding of the factors 

that cause violence, it would be necessary to engage both 

state and non-state actors who have investigated, researched 

and/or studied the issue to gain their insights.   

xxiv. The Select Committee must meet regularly, at least once in 

every three months to receive reports from the newly 

established and existing institutions and mechanisms and to 

review progress in the agreed areas of implementation.  

4. Addressing delays with justice: reforming the 

attorney general’s department  

The PSC observes that the Attorney-General’s Department 

requires structural reforms and capacity building to ensure effective 

and efficient responses and follow up that lead to indictments and 

prosecutions and avoid long delays and the denial of justice. The PSC 

notes that as recent as in 2017, the Sectoral Oversight Committee on 

Legal Affairs (anti-corruption) & Media made several 

recommendations to enhance the productivity and duties of the 

Attorney-General’s Department. However, from the evidence 

presented before the PSC by various witnesses, it is apparent that 

much more needs to be done to strengthen the Attorney-General’s 

Department.  
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The following proposals are submitted by the PSC after 

considering the evidence presented by various witness including the 

officers of the Attorney-Generals’ Department. The PSC notes that it 

is vitally important that these recommendations should be 

implemented without delay, as it plays a crucial part in enhancing the 

country’s national security.  

The PSC notes that an impediment within the Attorney-General’s 

Department in attending to cases sent to them for advice and with 

indictments and prosecutions is the fact that state counsel are expected 

to serve multiple roles at the same time. For example, the Department 

at present has the responsibility of being advisor to the Government, 

prosecuting offenders and defending the Government in some 

instances for specific actions and inactions. These are significant 

responsibilities that require considerable time, resources and 

expertise and it is not feasible for one office to be able to handle such 

diverse and multiple tasks and at the same time ensure efficiency. 

Importantly, it must also be noted that there also remains a possible 

conflict in the tasks before the Department.  Thus, it is essential that 

structural reforms are introduced without delay to reform the 

Department and ensure Sri Lanka has a Public Prosecutor’s office that 

is separate and independent of the Government. The Public 

Prosecutor should have the sole responsibility of indicting and 

prosecuting cases with the Attorney-General constituting to be the 

advisor to the Government. This division would by way of legislative 

and structural reforms to reduce the workload of the AG’s 

Department, address to continuing delays in justice and ensure cases 

are investigated and prosecuted promptly.  

The PSC observes that it is of crucial importance that coordination 

and communication within the department between different units 

and individuals handling cases on the same subject matter are 

strengthened. Apart from inter-department coordination, it is also 

vitally important that steps are taken to establish more frequent 

communication and coordination between the law enforcement 

authorities and the intelligence agencies especially in cases of 

national importance.  
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From the testimony presented before the PSC by the officers of 

the Attorney-General’s Department, it was revealed that there is no 

functioning case management system/file management system within 

the Department. Therefore, there is a disjoint between files on the 

same subject matter with no cross-reference to the other files in 

connected cases. Therefore, it is of utmost importance that a case 

management system/filing system in line with present requirements 

is introduced promptly. This system should also provide for the 

digitizing of the files and important documents of the Department in 

order preserve them for future reference.  

The PSC also notes that active measures should be taken to enable 

the quick disposal of Advice files accumulated in the Department. It 

is key to ensure officials in the Department prioritise this issue and 

constitute a team that will examine all cases that were sent to the 

Department for advice. This issue could also be addressed by bringing 

the issue before the Sectoral Oversight Committee on Legal Affairs 

as done previously to explore whether more resources are necessary.  

Further, the PSC observes that police officers should be trained 

and their capacity built to deal with issues on extremism and violence 

without constantly referring matters to the Attorney General’s 

Department to reduce the workload on the Department.  

The same must be said of the Department with regular trainings 

offered to state counsel to enable them to be aware of the legal 

framework and steps required in following through with 

investigations and cases. The PSC notes that officers of the Attorney-

General’s Department should be given comprehensive training 

dealing with matters on extremism/radicalization/incitement and so 

on. Furthermore, workshops should be conducted to the officers of 

the Department and the police on the use of laws such as the ICCPR 

Act.  

The PSC also notes that there is a lack of communication between 

the various police stations around the island. Therefore, it is important 

to introduce a framework for improving coordination and 
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communication between various police stations situated around the 

country and other authorities tasked with law and order and security.  

5. Wahabism and the need for action   

The PSC notes the increasing religious extremism across Sri 

Lanka and the need for multi prong approach to address this 

phenomenon. The PSC notes the increasing trends of Wahabism and 

Arabization in parts of Sri Lanka and the steps required to address 

this. Whilst there must be recognition towards religious and cultural 

practices, it is essential that such practices do not infringe others rights 

and beliefs.  

The PSC recommends that the Government of Sri Lanka take 

prompt measures engage with community, religious and political 

leaders to address this phenomenon and to identify negative aspects. 

In this it is important to engage with a range of stakeholders including 

academics, religious leaders, civil society and community leaders.  

The PSC also recommends that independent investigations are 

initiated against politicians who had links with Zahran and others 

associated with the Easter Sunday attacks and have links to/support 

religious extremism and necessary action taken.  

6. Media reporting, fake news and other areas of 

concern  

The PSC notes that given the dangerous inter-dependency 

between radicalization, terrorism and the media – it is imperative to 

explore the impact especially of social media on the youth in the 

country. Narratives such as Zahran’s post-Digana appeal to the 

emotions and can drive individuals and vulnerable youth towards 

extremist causes.  

As for the mainstream media news/events coverage, although 

media coverage of the attack was important, it certainly was not 

helpful in de-escalating the tension. Instead, the mainstream 

electronic media to a great extent and the social media to a lesser 
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extent provoked animosity and fear mongering with the spread of 

deep-seated hatred and distrust towards each other 

 By accompanying the security forces on search operations of 

ordinary people’s homes, some TV stations, they managed to sustain 

the fear mongering, terror-momentum, blowing events out of 

proportion.  This caused fear among all communities that helped 

sustain the State of emergency and also caused the outbreak of 

violence.   

Uncritical consumption of digital media and a lack of critical 

media consciousness among the population, especially among youth 

can have a detrimental impact on a country’s national security. 

Therefore, it is vital that children and young adults are educated on 

the proper use of media at a very young age.  

The PSC urges the authorities to take immediate steps to introduce 

community media standards which are formulated through a 

transparent and consultative process and are enforced to ensure media 

entities are responsible for the reporting/content generation.  

7. Holding politicians/ peoples’ representatives 

accountable 

The PSC notes that the political leadership and the Parliament can 

play a crucial role in preventing politicians and Members of 

Parliament misusing incidents such as the Easter Sunday attacks for 

political gain.  

Recent months have witnessed an increase in speeches by 

politicians and others that lead to disharmony within communities and 

exacerbate the existing fear and apprehension. Several statements 

subsequent to the Easter Sunday attacks must be examined for 

possible incitement.  

The PSC also notes that politicians with links to and/or are 

complicit in increased extremism must be further investigated and 

necessary action taken. This could also involve any politician who 
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may have assisted in preventing the arrests of suspects and/or 

involved in other action to undermine the rule of law in Sri Lanka.  

The PSC is of the view that strict disciplinary action should be 

taken against politicians/MPs who incite violence between 

communities or is involved in such incidents.  

8. The need to re-examine the education sector in the 

context of growing extremism 

Recent times has witnessed an increase in the number of young 

people becoming influenced and involved with violent extremist, both 

in Sri Lanka and globally. To counter this growing influence and 

involvement, there is a need to view the role of education and 

educational institutions in Countering Violent Extremism (CVE). 

From the evidence presented before PSC, it was revealed that a large 

number of Muslim youth were radicalised and joined Zahran post-

Digana.  

Compounding this is also evidence highlighting the increasing 

levels of discrimination against Muslim students and teachers in 

educational institutions post-Easter Attacks.  The PSC notes that these 

will, in the long run, contribute to further radicalization of future 

generation. Therefore, urgent reforms must be initiated in the 

education system to mitigate steps to further discrimination and 

polarization, provide young people with skills to challenge violent 

extremist narratives and to ensure education texts and resources are 

adapted to current challenges. The PSC notes that it is paramount that 

the state promotes education that emphasises open-mindedness, 

inclusiveness, and respect and understanding of different religions, 

cultures, ethnicities and other identities as a policy. 

According to the witness of Rishwin Ismath who testified before 

this committee questions were raised regarding the content of school 

text books. Furthermore, Madrasa schools and the Arabic language 

became social issues.  

Therefore, PSC proposes the following reforms:  
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• Review the content of textbooks and the overall syllabus being 

taught in Schools/ universities for any material promoting/ 

inciting extremism and disharmony between communities and 

take necessary steps by the authorities to update texts and 

other resources to address current challenges.   

• Redesign syllabi and incorporate peace studies elements in 

teaching 

• Educators should be trained to identify early warnings about 

students’ inclination to extremism and methods to counter 

violent language, including hate speech and terrorist 

propaganda. 

• The teachings in Madarasas, Daham Pasal, Sunday schools 

should be brought under the purview of the Ministry of 

Education and teachings should be regulated and uniform with 

other educational institutions.  

• Conduct regular reviews of educators and education facilities 

to ensure extremism and discriminatory practices/views are 

not promoted/taught. 

• Initiate literacy programs for youth and adults alike so that 

people can read religious texts themselves and not be 

manipulated by second-hand interpretations and violent 

narrations.  

• Starting and maintaining of pre-schools, schools, universities 

and higher education institutions based on religion as well as 

ethnicity in Sri Lanka should be banned.  

• All schools should have a blend of various ethnicities and 

religious groups. The laws with regard to selecting children 

for all these schools should be prepared creating opportunities 

for children belonging to every religion and ethnicity.  

• A common national syllabus should be taught in every 

government school. It should have an academic and scientific 

basis and should be able to create a feeling towards the 

country, provide correct knowledge about the history of the 
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country and a better understanding of the cultures of various 

communities as well as about reconciliation and peace of a 

multi-national and multi-ethnic country among every child.  

• Measures should be taken to provide education in Sinhala, 

Tamil and English mediums in all the schools.  

• The subject “religion” should be able to create a better 

understanding about the core values of other religions and 

cultures among the school children in addition to the religion 

they follow.  

• Preparing laws to ban the conduct of educational institutions 

that only focus on religious education without following the 

general syllabus that hamper 13 years of guaranteed and 

continuous education, bringing all such religious schools 

including Madrasa schools under the purview of the Ministry 

of Education, encouraging children who are eager to study 

about religion to receive it from ordinary dhamma schools 

only.  

• Holding festivals, cultural and arts shows in schools enabling 

all the children to take part in every religious and national 

festival (Sinhala and Tamil New Year, Vesak, Christmas, 

Ramadan, Maha Sivarathri).   
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Presentation 

The Committee considered this Report at length and unanimously 

agreed to it with amendments. The Report submitted by Field 

Marshall Hon. Sarath Fonseka with further comments is given in 

Appendix 1 of this Report. 

The Committee wishes to express its gratitude to all who took part 

and assisted in the work of the Committee. 

We hereby present this Report to Parliament which is 

unanimously agreed to by us. 

J.M. Ananda Kumarasiri, Deputy Speaker  

(Chair of the Committee) 

Rauff Hakeem 

Ravi Karunanayake 

(Dr.) Rajitha Senaratne 

Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

M.A. Sumanthiran, President’s Counsel 

(Dr) Nalinda Jayathissa 

(Prof) Ashu Marasinghe 

(Dr) Jayampathy Wickremaratne, President’s Counsel 
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Minutes of Meetings of the Select Committee 

 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the First Meeting held in Committee Room No. 7 of Parliament 

Thursday the 23rd May 2019 at 5.30 p.m. 

PRESENT: 

Hon. J. M. Ananda Kumarasiri (Chair) 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe. 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne 

  Mr Tikiri K. Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General 

1. The Committee met pursuant to notice under Standing Order No. 104. Hon. Field 

Marshal Sarath Fonseka, and Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran had intimated their inability to attend 

this meeting. 

2. The Chair of the Committee welcome the Members of the Committee and explained the 

procedure to be adopted by the Committee as per the relevant Standing Order Nos. 100 to 

110 in respect of Select Committees.  The Chair also informed that Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy 

Wickramaratne would chair the meetings of the Committee in his absence. The Committee 

agreed  

3. The Committee resolved that the quorum of the Committee shall be four (4) members 

as per Standing Order No. 105. 

4. The Committee considered and approved the draft paper advertisement prepared by the 

Secretariat in all three languages and directed the Secretary to arrange to give wide publicity 

in the print and electronic media.  Hon. (Prof) Ashu Marasinghe suggested to use the social 

media also in this regard.  The Committee also discussed the possibility of opening the 

proceedings of the Committee to the Media. 

5. The Committee, thereafter, deliberated and resolved that, - 

(a)  A copy of the Interim Report submitted to His Excellency the President by the 

“Special Investigation Committee appointed by His Excellency the President to Probe 

Easter Sunday Attacks” be obtained from the Secretary to the President for the 

consideration of the Committee;  

(b)  relevant persons or organizations may be summoned before the Committee to make 

their representations after scrutinizing the written representations;  

(c)  next meetings of the Committee be held on 29 May 2019 from 9.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. 

and on 04 June 2019 from 3.00 p.m. to 9.00 pm.; and  

(d)  the relevant public Officials be requested to appear before the Committee to give oral 

evidence on the following dates: - 

• 29 May 2019 - Secretary, Ministry of Defence, National Advisor to Ministry of 

Defence & former Inspector-General of Police, Chief of Defence Staff,  

• 04 June 2019 - Army Commander, Chief of State Intelligence Service, Directors 

of Criminal Investigation Department & Terrorism Investigation Division, Former 
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Secretary to Ministry of Defence, Inspector-General of Police (Mr. Pujitha 

Jayasundera).  

The meeting was adjourned at 6. 40 p.m. until 9.00 a.m. on Wednesday the 29th May 2019. 

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

23 May 2019 

------------------------------ 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the Second Meeting held in Committee Room No. 1 of the Parliament 

Wednesday the 29th May 2019 at 9.00 a.m. 

PRESENT: 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne (Acting Chair) 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon. (Dr) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe. 

Mr Tikiri K. Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General 

1. The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of 

the Committee, had intimated his inability to attend today’s meeting. Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy 

Wickramaratne took the Chair as agreed by the Committee at its first meeting held on 23 

May 2019. 

The Secretary informed the Committee that Hon. (Dr) Rajitha Senaratne and Hon. M.A. 

Sumanthiran had intimated their inability to attend this meeting due to unavoidable 

circumstances. They were granted leave. 

2. The Minutes of the Meeting held on 23 May 2019 was confirmed. 

3. The Chair of the Committee informed that the Members of the Committee shall decide 

whether to open the proceedings of the Committee to Media as per the ruling given by The 

Hon. Speaker. Members expressed their views in this regard and recommended for live 

broadcasting and the Committee resolved that the proceedings of the Committee should be 

broadcasted live. 

Thereafter, Media personnel were called in by the Committee and the Resolution of the 

Committee read out in all three languages.  The Chair briefed the procedure to be followed 

by the Media.  

4. General S.H.S. Kottegoda (Rtd.), Secretary, Ministry of Defence, was called in and 

examined by the Committee.  

5. The following documents submitted by Hon. Ravi Karunanayake and Hon. Field 

Marshal Sarath Fonseka were marked as “1W1” and “1W2” respectively: - 

a) News item appears in the “Sunday Times” on 26 May 2019 under the caption 

“Zaharan had an open warrant for his arrest since last year”, and  
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b) News item appears in the “Lakadeepa” on 26 May 2019 under the caption 

“යම් අන්තවාදෙ පරාජෙ කළ යුතුමයි. රට යොඩෙන්න්‍ ෙලයව්ෙෙේ හදන්‍වා- 
ෙලයොඩ අත්යත් හිමිෙන්යෙන් වියශ්‍ේෂ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ෙේ".  

6. Mr Sisira Mendis, Chief of National Intelligence Service, was called in and examined 

by the Committee. The documents submitted by Mr. Sisira Mendis were marked as 2W1 to 

2W12.  

7. The Secretary tabled the representation received from Hon. Rishad Bathiudeen in 

response to the paper advertisement published by the Select Committee. 

8. The Committee, thereafter, deliberated and resolved that, - 

(a) to meet on 10th, 11th, 12th, 13th and 14th of June 2019 

(b) the following Officials be requested to appear before the Committee to 

give oral evidence on 4th June 2019: - 

• Head of Criminal Investigation Department, 

• Mr. Nalake de Silva, former Head of Terrorism Investigation 

Division, 

• Directors of Criminal Investigation Department, and 

• Director of Terrorism Investigation Division. 

9. The meeting was adjourned at 4.20 p.m.  until 3.00 p.m. on Tuesday the 4 th June 2019. 

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura, Kotte 

29 May 2019 

------------------------------ 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the Third Meeting held in Committee Room No. 1 of the Parliament 

Tuesday the 04th June 2019 at 3.20 p.m.  

PRESENT: 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne (Acting Chair) 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. (Dr.) Rajitha Senaratne 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka  

Hon. M. A. Sumanthiran  

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe. 

  Mr. Tikiri K.  Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General 

1. The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of 

the Committee, had intimated his inability to attend today’s meeting. Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy 

Wickramaratne took the Chair as agreed by the Committee at its first meeting held on 23 

May 2019. 

2. The Minutes of the Meeting held on 04 June 2019 was confirmed. 

3. Mr. Nalake de Silva, former Head of Terrorism Investigation Division, was called in 

and examined by the Committee.  
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4. The letter dated 10.04.2018 addressed to Secretary to Ministry of Defence by Inspector-

General of Police under the heading “AL-QAEDA ත්‍රසේත සිංවිධාන්‍ෙ සමෙ සමීප සෙඳතා 

පවත්වන්‍ ශ්‍රී ලාිංකිකයෙකු ඇතුළත් ජාලෙ පිලිෙඳව” submitted by Hon. Field Marshal Sarath 

Fonseka was marked as “3W1”.  

5. The Committee, thereafter, deliberated and resolved, that - 

a) the proceedings of the Committee can be made available to the Members of 

Parliament and to Media in the CD, on request. 

b) the next meeting of the Committee be held on 06 June 2019 at 11.00 a.m.  

c) the following Officials be requested to appear before the Committee to give oral 

evidence on 6 June 2019: - 

• Mr. Pujith Jayasundera, Inspector-General of Police 

• Mr. Hemasiri Fernando, former Secretary, Ministry of Defence 

6. The meeting was adjourned at 6.00 p.m. until 11.00 a.m. on Thursday the 6th June 2019. 

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

04 June 2019 

------------------------------ 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21s April 2019 

Minutes of the fourth Meeting held in Committee Room No. 1 of the Parliament  

Thursday the 06th June 2019 at 11.20 a.m.  

PRESENT: 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne (Acting Chair) 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. (Dr.) Rajitha Senaratne 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka  

Hon. M. A. Sumanthiran  

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe. 

  Mr. Tikiri K.  Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General 

1. The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of 

the Committee, had intimated his inability to attend today’s meeting. Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy 

Wickramaratne took the Chair as agreed by the Committee at its first meeting held on 23 

May 2019. 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake had intimated his inability to attend today’s meeting due to 

unavoidable circumstances. He was granted leave. 

2. The Minutes of the Meeting held on 04 June 2019 was confirmed. 

3. Mr. Pujith Jayasundera, Inspector-General of Police, was called in and examined by the 

Committee.  The documents submitted by Mr. Pujith Jayasundera, Inspector-General of 

Police, were marked as “4W1” to 4W13” 
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4. Mr. Hemasiri Fernando, former Secretary to the Ministry of Defence, was called in and 

examined by the Committee. 

5. The letter undated addressed to Mr. Hemasiri Fernando, Secretary to the Ministry of 

Defence, by Senior Deputy Inspector General of State Intelligence Service under the caption 

“Weekly Intelligence Reports” submitted by Hon. Ashu Marasinghe was marked as “5W1”.  

6. The Committee, thereafter, deliberated and resolved, that - 

(a) the next meetings of the Committee be held on 11 and 12 June 2019; 

(b) the following persons be requested to appear before the Committee to give oral 

evidence on 11 June 2019: - 

• Mr. Azath Salley, former Governor of Western Province 

• President, All Ceylon Jamiyyathul Ulema 

• President, Kattankudy Mosque Federation 

7. The meeting was adjourned at 6.00 p.m. until 2.00 p.m. on Tuesday the 11th June 2019. 

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

06 June 2019 

------------------------------ 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21s April 2019 

Minutes of the fifth Meeting held in Committee Room No. 1 of the Parliament  

Tuesday the 11th June 2019 at 2.00 p.m.  

PRESENT: 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne (Acting Chair) 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. (Dr.) Rajitha Senaratne 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka  

Hon. M. A. Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe. 

Mr. Neil Iddawala, Secretary to the Committee and Chief of Staff and Deputy Secretary-

General 

1.  The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair   of 

the Committee, had intimated his inability to attend today’s meeting. Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy 

Wickramaratne took the Chair as agreed by the Committee at its first meeting held on 23 

May 2019. 

2.  The Minutes of the Meeting held on 06 June 2019 was confirmed. 

3.  Mr. Azath Salley, former Governor of Western Province, was called in and examined 

by the Committee.  The documents submitted by Mr. Azath Salley, were marked as “6W1” 

to “6W5”. 

4.  Ash – Sheikh Mufti M I M. Rizwe, President, All Ceylon Jamiyyathul Ulama, was 

called in and examined by the Committee.  He was assisted by Ash – Sheikh M M M 
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Murshid, Asst. Secretary, All Ceylon Jamiyyathul Ulama, with the permission of the 

Committee. The documents submitted by the President, All Ceylon Jamiyyathul Ulama, were   

marked as “7W1” to “7W7”. 

5.  Mr. Abusaly Uwais Member of the Kattankudi Mosque Federation was called in and 

examined by the Committee. The documents submitted by Mr. Uwais were marked as “8W1” 

to “8W7, “8W10 and “8W11”.  

6. The following documents submitted by Hon. Ravi Karunanayake and Hon. Field 

Marshal Sarath Fonseka were marked as “8W8” and “8W9” respectively: - 

a) News item appears in the “Lankadeepa” on 26 May 2019 under the   caption “යෙෝම්ෙ 

කේලි න්‍ාෙක සහරාන්යේ කාතන්කුියේ යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍ෙ” and 

b) News item appears in the “Mawbima” on 26 May 2019 under the caption “ෙලධාරීන්ට 

කන්‍ පැයළන්න්‍ කලීේ මවුලවි දුන්නු කතාව”  

7.The Committee,  thereafter, deliberated and resolved, that - 

(a) the next meeting of the Committee be held at 2.00 p.m. on 13 June 2019; 

(b) the following persons be requested to appear before the Committee to give 

oral evidence on 13 June 2019:- 

•  Mr. Padmasiri Jayamanne, former Secretary, Ministry of Law and Order 

• Mr. J J Rathnasiri, Secretary, Ministry of Public Administration 

• Mr. N K Illangakoon, Advisor to Ministry of Defence and former 

Inspector-General of Police 

• Mr. M L A M Hizbullah, former Governor of Eastern Province. 

8. The meeting was adjourned at 8.35 p.m. until 2.00 p.m. on Thursday the 13th June 2019. 

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

11 June 2019 

------------------------------ 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21s April 2019 

Minutes of the Sixth Meeting held in Committee Room No. 1 of the Parliament  

Thursday the 13th June 2019 at 3.30 p.m.  

PRESENT: 

Hon. J.M. Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the Committee 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe. 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne 

Mr. Neil Iddawala, Secretary to the Committee and Chief of Staff and Deputy Secretary-

General 
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1.  The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. 

2.  The Minutes of the Meeting held on 11 June 2019 was confirmed. 

3.  Mr. J J Rathnasiri, Secretary, Ministry of Public Administration and Disaster 

Management, was called in and examined by the Committee.  The documents submitted by 

Members of the Committee, were   marked as “9W1” to “9W3”. 

4.  Mr. M L A M Hizbullah, former Governor of Eastern Province, was called in and 

examined by the Committee.  The documents submitted by Mr. Hizbullah, were   marked as 

“10W1” to “10W4”. 

5.  The Secretary tabled the following documents, copies of which had been circulated 

among Members of the Committee: - 

6.  Summary of Representations, received from the public in response to the 

advertisements published in newspapers. 

• E-mail received from Dr. Janaka Mudalige, former Director Information 

Technology, Ministry of Defence & Law and Order 

• Letter received from Sri Lanka Thawheed Jama’ath (SLTJ) 

• E-mail received from Mr. Rishvin Ismath, Colombo 10.   

7.  The Committee, thereafter, deliberated and resolved, that - 

(a) the next meeting of the Committee be held at 2.00 p.m. on 18 June 2019; 

(b) the following persons be requested to appear before the Committee to give oral 

evidence on 18 June 2019: - 

• Officer in-Charge, Kattankudy Police  

• Former Officer in-Charge of Kattankudy Police 

• Secretary, Al Haj Abdul Jawadh Alim Waliyyullah Trust 

8.  The meeting was adjourned at 7.35 p.m. until 2.00 p.m. on Tuesday the 18th June 2019. 

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

13 June 2019 

------------------------------ 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21s April 2019 

Minutes of the Seventh Meeting held in Committee Room No. 1 of the Parliament  

Tuesday the 18th June 2019 at 2.00 p.m.  

PRESENT: 

Hon. J.M. Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the Committee 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. (Dr) Rajitha Senaratne 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 
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Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe. 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne 

Mr. Neil Iddawala, Secretary to the Committee and Chief of Staff and Deputy Secretary-

General 

1.  The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of 

the Committee, took the Chair. 

2.  The minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2019 was confirmed.  

3.  Mr. M P Kasturiarachchi, Officer in-Charge of Kattankudy Police Station, and Mr. A 

B Wedagedera, former Officer in-Charge of Kattankudy Police Station (presently in-charge 

of Bibile Police Station), were called in and examined by the Committee. 

4.  Mr. K R M Sahlan, Secretary, Al Haj Abdul Jawadh Alim Waliyyullah Trust, was 

called in and examined by the Committee.  He was assisted by Mr.  M S M Simak Sinnalebbe 

with the permission of the Committee. The documents submitted by the witness were   

marked as “13W1” to “13W12”. 

5.  The meeting was adjourned at 7.35 p.m. sine-die. 

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

18 June 2019 

------------------------------ 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21s April 2019 

Minutes of the Eighth Meeting held in Committee Room No. 1 of the Parliament  

Thursday the 20th June 2019 at 2.30 p.m.  

PRESENT: 

Hon. J.M. Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the Committee 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. (Dr) Rajitha Senaratne 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon. M.A. Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe. 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne 

Mr. Neil Iddawala, Chief of Staff and Deputy Secretary-General 

Mr. Tikiri K.  Jayathilake, Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General 

1.  The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of 

the Committee, took the Chair. 

2.  The minutes of the meeting held on 18 June 2019 was confirmed. 

3.  Mr. Abdul Razeek, General Secretary, Ceylon Thawheed Jama’ath was called in and 

examined by the Committee.  He was assisted by Mr. M F M Rasmin with the permission of 
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the Committee.  The witness submitted a set of documents in connection with his oral 

evidence. 

4.  Mr.  A K Hisham, President, Sri Lanka Thawheed Jama’ath, was called in and examined 

by the Committee.  He was assisted by Mr. M H M Rashan with the permission of the 

Committee. The CD submitted by the witness was   marked as “15W1”. 

5.  Mr.  Rishvin Ismath was called in and examined by the Committee.  The documents 

submitted by the witness were marked as “16W1” to “16W7”. 

6.  The Secretary tabled the following documents, copies of which had been circulated 

among Members of the Committee: - 

• Letter received from Hon. Ranjan Ramanayake, MP 

• E-mail received from Ven. Ampitiye Sumanarathana Thero, Batticaloa 

• Letter received from Hon. M H A Haleem, MP 

• Letter received from Mr. Prasad Kariyawasam, former Secretary, Ministry of 

Foreign Affairs. 

7.  The meeting was adjourned at 7.45 p.m. sine-die. 

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

20 June 2019 

------------------------------ 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21s April 2019 

Minutes of the Ninth Meeting held in Committee Room No. 1 of the Parliament  

Wednesday, 26th June 2019 at 2.00 p.m. 

PRESENT: 

Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the Committee 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. (Dr.) Rajitha Senaratne 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon.  M A Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne 

  Mr. Tikiri K.  Jayathilake, Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General 

1. The Committee met pursuant to notice. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the 

Committee, took the Chair.  

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa had intimated his inability to attend today’s meeting due to 

unavoidable circumstances. He was granted leave. 

2.  The minutes of the meeting held on 20 June 2019 was confirmed. 

3.  Lieutenant General N U M M W Senanayake, Commander of the Sri Lanka Army, was 

called in and examined by the Committee.   
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4.  Mr. K D N Ranjith Asoka, Secretary, Ministry of Industry and Commerce, was called 

in and examined by the Committee.  The documents submitted by the witness were marked 

as “18W1” to “18W5” 

5.  Mr. P L U Ratnamalala, General Manager, Industrial Development Board was called 

in and examined by the Committee.  The documents submitted by the witness were marked 

as “19W1” to “19W3”. 

6.  Hon. Rishad Bathiudeen, M. P., appeared before the Committee. The Committee 

requested him to appear before the Committee to give evidence on 28 June 2019 at 2.00 p.m.   

7.  The Secretary tabled the following documents, copies of which had been circulated 

among Members of the Committee: - 

• Letter received from Mr. Dilantha Vithanage, Chief Executive Officer, Bodu Bala 

Sena 

• Letter received from Mr. Pradeep Sanjeewa Perera, former Assistant of Prevention, 

Treatment & Rehabilitation Unit, National Dangerous Drugs Control Board  

• Letter received from Mr. Ranjith Abhaya de Silva, President, Kalmune Buddhist 

Association  

• Letter received from Mr. P R Dahanayake Bandara  

8.  The Committee, thereafter, deliberated and resolved, that - 

(a) the next meetings of the Committee be held on 28 June 2019 and 05, 10, 11 & 12 

July 2019; 

(b) Hon. Dayasiri Jayasekera, MP, be summoned before the Committee at its next 

meeting scheduled to be held on 28 June 2019, in addition to the following 

witnesses: -  

• Hon. Rishad Bathiudeen, M.P.  

• Mr. M H M Fahim  

• Mr. Senerath Bandara, General Manager, Bank of Ceylon  

• Ms. C P Malalgoda, Director General, Board of Investments of Sri Lanka  

• Mr. D M Samansiri Dissanayake, Secretary, National Police Commission  

9.  The Committee was adjourned at 5.45 p.m. until 28 June 2019 at 2.00 p.m. 

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

26 June 2019 

------------------------------ 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21s April 2019 

Minutes of the Tenth Meeting held in Committee Room No. 1 of the Parliament  

Friday, 28th June 2019 at 2.00 p.m. 

PRESENT: 

Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the Committee 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 
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Hon. (Dr.) Rajitha Senaratne 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe 

  Tikiri K. Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General 

1.  The Committee met pursuant to notice. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the 

Committee, took the Chair.  

Hon. M A Sumanthiran and Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne had intimated their 

inability to attend today’s meeting due to unavoidable circumstances. They were granted 

leave. 

2.  The minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2019 was confirmed. 

3.  Hon. Rishad Bathiudeen was called in and examined by the Committee. He was assisted 

by Mr. M A M Dilshad with the permission of the committee.  The documents submitted by 

the witness were marked as “20W1” to “20W23”. 

4.  The Chair of the Committee tabled and read out a letter dated 20.06.2019 signed by 

Mr. D W R B Seneviratne, Senior Inspector-General, Criminal Investigation Department 

which was sent to Mr. Dhammika Dasanayake, Secretary-General of Parliament by Mr. C D 

Wickremaratne, Actg. Inspector-General of Police. In this letter Mr. Seneviratne had stated 

that the investigation carried out by the Special Investigation Team of the Criminal 

Investigation Department, in respect of the complaints made against Mr. Rishad Bathiudeen  

before the Committee established at the Police Headquarters, did not reveal any connection 

of Mr. Rishad Bathiudeen either with the Attack that took place on 21/04/2019 or with any 

terrorist activities. 

5.  The Committee noticed the absence of Hon. Dayasiri Jayasekera, MP.  The Chair of 

the Committee stated that Hon. Dayasiri Jayasekera was summoned before the Committee to 

give oral evidence in respect of a statement made by him regarding the terrorist attacks on 

21 April 2019 to Media and directed the Secretary to summon him before the Committee at 

its next meeting. 

6.  Mr. M H M Fahim was called in and examined by the Committee. He was assisted by 

Mr. B A C M Rameem with the permission of the Committee.  

7.  Ms. C P Malalgoda, Director General, Board of Investments of Sri Lanka, was called 

in and examined by the Committee. She was assisted by Mr. Ranjan Sibera with the 

permission of the Committee.  

8.  Mr. Senerath Bandara, General Manager, Bank of Ceylon was called in and examined 

by the Committee. He was assited by Mr. A De S Pinnaduwage, Mr. Sampath Perera, Ms. K 

K I C K Kannangara, Ms. Dayanjinie Peris and Mr. W W A Janath Prasanka with the 

permission of the Committee. The document submitted by the witness was marked as 

“23W1”.  

9.  Mr. D M Samansiri Dissanayake, Secretary, National Police Commission, was called 

in and examined by the Committee. The documents submitted by the witness were marked 

as “24W1” to “24W2”. 
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10.  The Secretary tabled the following documents, copies of which had been circulated 

among Members of the committee: -  

• Letter received from Mr. D D W Chandradewa  

• Fax received from K M Ananda Sunil Bandara  

11.  The Committee, thereafter, deliberated and resolved, that – 

(a) the meeting scheduled for 5 July 2019 be cancelled; and  

(b) Hon. Dayasiri Jayasekera, MP, be summoned before the Committee at its next 

meeting scheduled to be held on 10 July 2019.  

12.  The Committee was adjourned at 7.45 p.m. until 10 July 2019 at 2.00 p.m.  

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

28 June 2019 

------------------------------ 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21s April 2019 

Minutes of the Eleventh Meeting held in Committee Room No. 1 of the Parliament  

Wednesday, 10th July 2019 at 2.00 p.m. 

PRESENT: 

Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the Committee 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon.  M A Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne 

  Tikiri K. Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General 

1.  The Committee met pursuant to notice. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the 

Committee, took the Chair.  

Hon. (Dr.) Rajitha Senaratne had intimated his inability to attend today’s meeting due to 

unavoidable circumstances. He was granted leave. 

2.  The minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2019 was confirmed. 

3.  Hon. Dayasiri Jayasekera, MP was called in and examined by the Committee.  

“The Island” newspaper dated 19 June 2019 which had a news item under the caption 

“Dayasiri to reveal why suicide bomber did not attack Taj” was marked as “25W1”.  

4.  Mr. M N Ranasinghe, Secretary, Ministry of Education and Mr. Jayantha 

Wickremanayake, Commissioner General of Education Publication were called in and 

examined by the Committee.  



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 189 ) 

5.  Mr. Kapila Jayasekera, Senior Deputy Inspector-General, Eastern Province was called 

in and examined by the Committee.  

6.  The Secretary tabled the letter received from the Secretary to the Ministry of Defence 

submitting details and information requested by the Committee at the time of oral evidence 

given by him before the Committee on 29 May 2019. 

7.  The Committee, thereafter, deliberated and resolved, that – 

(a) the meeting scheduled for 11 July 2019 be cancelled;  

(b) the next meetings of the Committee be held on 12, 24, 25, and 26 July 2019; and  

(c) following Officials be requested to appear before the Committee to give oral 

evidence on 12 July 2019: - 

• Mr. Ravi Seneviratne - Senior Deputy Inspector-General, Head, Criminal 

Investigation Department and Terrorism Investigation Division   

• Mr. G Shani Abeysekera - Director, Criminal Investigation Department 

• Mr. T R K R Pathirana, Inspetor of Police attached to Counter Terrorism and 

Investigation Division 

• Mr. Waruna Jayasundera - Director, Terrorism Investigation Division 

• Mr. Nilantha Jayawardena - Senior Deputy Inspector-General, Chief of State 

Intelligence Service 

8.  The Committee was adjourned at 7.20 p.m. until 12 July 2019 at 9.30 a.m.  

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

10 July 2019 

------------------------------ 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st  April 2019 

Minutes of the twelfth meeting of the Committee held in Committee Room No. 1 of the 

Parliamentary Complex and in the Parliament Committee Secretariat at Govijana 

Mandiraya 

Wednesday 24th July 2019 at 12.45 p.m. 

PRESENT: 

Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the Committee 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. (Dr.) Rajitha Senaratne  

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon.  M A Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa  

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne 

Tikiri K. Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General 
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1.  The Committee met pursuant to notice. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the 

Committee, took the Chair.  

2.  The minutes of the meeting held on 10 July 2019 was confirmed. 

3.  Mr. Ravi Seneviratne, Senior Deputy Inspector-General, Head, Criminal Investigation 

Department and Terrorism Investigation Division, was called in and examined by the 

Committee.  

4.  Mr. G Shani Abeysekera, Director, Criminal Investigation Department, was called in 

and examined by the Committee. The document submitted by the witness was marked as 

“29W1”. 

5.  Mr. T R K R Pathirana, Officer-in-Charge to Counter Terrorism and Investigation 

Division, was called in and examined by the Committee. The documents submitted by the 

witness were   marked from “30W1” to “30W3”. 

6.  Mr. Waruna Jayasundera, Director, Terrorism Investigation Division, was called in and 

examined by the Committee.  

7.  The committee decided to hear the evidence of Mr. Nilantha Jayawardena, Senior 

Deputy Inspector-General, Chief of State Intelligence Service, in Camera. 

Accordingly, he was called in and examined by the Committee, at the Parliament 

Committee Secretariat at Govijana Mandiraya without the media.  

8.  The Committee, thereafter, deliberated and resolved, that – 

(a) the Hon. Attorney-General be summoned before the Committee to give oral evidence 

on 26 July 2019; and 

(b) to have a meeting of the Committee on Tuesday, the 6th August 2019 at 2.00 p.m. 

9.  The meeting was adjourned at 1.00 a.m. on 25 July 2019 until 25 July 2019 at 10.00 

a.m.  

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

24 July 2019 

---------------------- 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the thirteenth meeting of the Committee held in Committee Room No. 1 of the 

Parliamentary Complex 

Thursday 25th July 2019 at 10.30 a.m. 

PRESENT: 

Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the Committee, 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon.  M A Sumanthiran 
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Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa  

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne  

Tikiri K. Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General 

The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne, 

took the Chair at the commencement of the meeting since Chair of the Committee, had 

intimated his inability to attend the meeting in the morning session. 

Hon. (Dr.) Rajitha Senaratne and Hon. Rauff Hakeem had intimated their inability to 

attend today’s meeting. They were granted leave. 

The minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2019 was confirmed. 

Mr. M R Latiff, Senior Deputy Inspector-General, Commandant of Special Task Force, 

was called in and examined by the Committee.  The documents submitted by the witness 

were marked from “33W1” to “33W4”. 

In the afternoon, Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the Committee, took the Chair 

Major General Lal Perera, (Rtd), former Security Force Commander (East) was called in 

and examined by the Committee.  

Mr. N K Illangakoon, former Inspector-General of Police, was called in and examined by 

the Committee.  

Mr. Padmasiri Jayamanne, former Secretary, Ministry of Law and Order, was called in 

and examined by the Committee.  

Mr. Dilantha Vithanage, Chief Executive Officer, Bodu Bala Sena, was called in and 

examined by the Committee. The documents submitted by the witness were marked from 

“37W1” to “37W8”. 

The Committee was adjourned at 5.35 p.m.  until 26 July 2019 at 9.00 a.m.  

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

25 July 2019 

-------------------- 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the fourteenth meeting of the Committee held in Committee Room No. 1 of the 

Parliamentary Complex 

Friday 26th July 2019 at 9.00 a.m. 

PRESENT: 

Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the Committee, 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 
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Hon.  M A Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa  

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne  

  Tikiri K. Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General 

The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the 

Committee, took the Chair.  

The minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2019 was confirmed.  

Mr. I Coomaraswamy, The Governor of Central Bank of Sri Lanka, Mr. R R Jayaratne, 

Director, Department of Foreign Exchange and Mr. D.M. Rupasinghe, Director, Financial 

Intelligence Unit were called in and examined by the Committee. 

Relevant officials of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka were also attended the meeting with 

the permission of the Chair to assist the Governor.    The document submitted by the Central 

Bank was marked as “38W1”. 

Mr. K M D Anuradha, who submit a written representation to the Committee, was called 

in and examined by the Committee, in camera. 

Hon. Dappula De Livera, PC, The Attorney – General, appeared before the    Committee 

and requested that he be excused to give evidence before the Committee on the following 

reasons:- 

• the matters he is required to testify before the Committee are also pertinent and 

relevant to discharge his functions as Attorney General who will be appearing on 

behalf of the State on criminal proceedings relevant to this incident;  

• Attorney-General is appearing as Counsel for HE the President, Prime Minister and 

the Cabinet of Ministers some of whom are Members of the Committee which could 

create a conflict of interest in discharging his duties; 

• the ability of the Attorney-General to present indictment on criminal proceedings 

would be compromise; 

• the Report of the Committee with evidence and recommendations, may be considered 

or pleaded as part of Fundamental Right  applications and criminal proceedings 

current and future which will be handled by the  Attorney-General   on behalf of 

the Government, and the parties could take objections for him appearing as Counsel 

for the State, and as a result the Attorney-General   will suffer serious consequences; 

and  

• Attorney-General is advising the officers in his Department and the Police and also 

appearing for cases relevant to this incident, which are pending before the 

Magistrate's Courts and the High Courts. 

He also stated that his subordinate officers could provide information, which will be 

required by the Committee, without hampering or hindering work of the Committee. 

The Committee decided that the Attorney General be excused to testimony before the 

Committee on the ground that he signs the indictment on Criminal proceedings and agreed 

to his suggestion that the officials of his Department can testimony before the Committee. 
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Accordingly, Mr. Sumathi Dharmawardena, PC, Additional Solicitor-General and Mr. 

Malik Azeez, State counsel, were called in and examined by the Committee. 

The Committee, thereafter, deliberated and resolved, that – 

• to meet on 31 July 2019 and 06 August 2019; 

• the Army Commander and Mr. Kapila Waidyaratne, former Secretary to the Ministry 

of be summoned before the Committee to give oral evidence on 31 July 2019; 

• Hon. Ruwan Wijewardene, State Minister of Defence, former Ministers of Law and 

Order Hon. Sagala Ratnayake and Hon. Ranjith Madduma Bandara, be invited before 

the Committee to give oral evidence on 06 August 2019; and  

• The Hon. Prime Minister, Ranil Wickremasinghe, be invited before the Committee 

to give oral evidence on 06 August 2019. 

The meeting was adjourned at 5.00 p.m. until Thursday the 31st July 2019 at 10.00 a.m.   

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

26 July 2019 

------------------- 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the fifteenth meeting of the Committee Held in Committee Room No. 1 of the 

Parliamentary Complex 

Wednesday the 31st July 2019 at 10.00 a.m. 

PRESENT: 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne (Acting Chair) 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon. M A Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe. 

  Mr. Tikiri K.  Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General 

The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the 

Committee, had intimated his inability to attend today’s meeting. Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy 

Wickramaratne took the Chair as agreed by the Committee at its first meeting held on 23 

May 2019. 

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 26 July 2019 was confirmed. 

The Committee considered the letters received from Mr. Sumathi Dharmawardena, P.C., 

Attorney-General’s Department, requesting a transcript of the meeting of the Parliamentary 

Select Committee held on 26.07.2019 and seeking permission for Mr. Azard Navavi, 

Deputy Solicitor General and Supervisory Officer of file No. EER 8 of 2017, to give evidence 

before the Committee.   
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The Committee discussed and decided to permit Mr. Azard Navavi, Deputy Solicitor-

General to appear before the Committee to give oral evidence at its next meeting and also to 

summon Mr. Dileepa Peiris, Deputy Solicitor-General in connection with the File No. 

MP/193 of 2017. 

The Secretary tabled the following documents submitted by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka, 

copies of which had been circulated among Members of the Committee: - 

• information upon the recovery of foreign currencies receivable to country under the 

provisions of the repealed Exchange Control Act, No. 24 of 1953 (ECA); and 

• the presentation prepared to apprise the Monetary Board of the actions taken by  

• the Financial Intelligence Unit (FIU) regarding the Easter Sunday Bombings.  

• Lieutenant General N U M M W Senanayake, Commander of the Sri Lanka Army, 

was called in and examined by the Committee.   

• Mr. Kapila Waidyaratne, PC, former Secretary to the Ministry of Defence, was called 

in and examined by the Committee.   

The Committee, thereafter, deliberated and resolved, that - 

• the next meeting of the Committee be held on 01st August 2019 at 1.00 p.m., and  

• Mr. Jagath Vishantha, Director, Counter Terrorism and Investigation Division be 

summoned before the Committee to give oral evidence on 01 August 2019. 

The meeting was adjourned at 2.30 p.m. until 1.00 p.m. on Thursday the 1st August 2019. 

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

----------------- 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the Sixteenth Meeting of the Committee held in Committee Room No. 1 of the 

Parliamentary Complex 

Thursday 1st August 2019 at 1.00 p.m. 

PRESENT: 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne (Acting Chair) 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon. M A Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe  

  Mr. Tikiri K.  Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General  

The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the 

Committee, had intimated his inability to attend today’s meeting.  Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy 

Wickramaratne took the Chair as agreed by the Committee at its first meeting held on 23 

May 2019. 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake and Hon (Dr.) Rajitha Senaratne had intimated their inability to 

attend today’s meeting due to unavoidable circumstances. They were granted leave. 
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The Minutes of the Meeting held on 31 July 2019 was confirmed. 

Mr. Dileepa Peiris, Deputy Solicitor-General and Mr. Azard Navavi, Deputy Solicitor-

General and Supervisory Officer of file No. EER 8 of 2017 were called in and examined by 

the Committee.  

Mr. Sumathi Dharmawardena, P.C., Additional Solicitor-General, was also present with 

the permission of the Committee.  

Mr. Jagath Vishantha, Director, Counter Terrorism and Investigation Division, was called 

in and examined by the Committee.   

The Committee, thereafter, deliberated and resolved, that -  

• the Members of the “Special Investigation Committee appointed by the His 

Excellency President to Probe Easter Sunday Attacks” be invited before the 

Committee to give oral evidence on 08 August 2019. 

• a meeting of the Committee be scheduled for 08 August 2019.  

The meeting was adjourned at 5.40 p.m. until 2.00 p.m. on Tuesday the 6th August 2019. 

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

-------------------------- -------------  

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the seventeenth Meeting of the Committee held in Committee Room No. 1 of 

the Parliamentary Complex 

Tuesday the 06th August 2019 at 2.00 p.m. 

PRESENT: 

Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri (Chair) 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem  

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake  

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe  

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne 

  Mr. Tikiri K.  Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General  

The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the 

Committee, took the Chair. 

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 01 August 2019 was confirmed. 

The Chair of the Committee inquired from the “Daily News” Reporter whether the 

newspaper published a correction regarding the inaccurate report published in the “Daily 

News” on 1 August 2019.  The reporter informed that she conveyed the matter to the Editor 

and further communication regarding this matter may be addressed to the Editor.   The 

Committee decided to invite the Editor of the Daily News to discuss this matter. 
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Hon. Ruwan Wijewardene, Non Cabinet Minister of Mass Media and State Minister of 

Defence, was called in and examined by the Committee.  

Hon. Sagala Ratnayaka, Minister of Ports & Shipping and Southern Development (former 

Minister of Law and Order and Southern Development), was called in and examined by the 

Committee.  

Hon. R M Ranjith Madduma Bandara, Minister of Public Administration, Disaster 

Management and Livestock Development (former Minister of Public Administration & 

Management and Law & Order), was called in and examined by the Committee.  

Hon. Ranil Wickremesinghe, Prime Minister and Minister of National Policies, Economic 

Affairs, Resettlement & Rehabilitation, Northern Province Development and Youth Affairs, 

was called in and examined by the Committee.  

The Committee, thereafter, deliberated and resolved, that –  

• the meeting scheduled for 8 August 2019 be postponed to 20 August 2019 and the 

Members of the “Special Investigation Committee appointed by the His Excellency 

President to Probe Easter Sunday Attacks” be invited before the Committee to give 

oral evidence on that day, and 

• a letter be sent to His Excellency the President to obtain a date and time for him to 

appear before the Committee. 

The meeting was adjourned at 7.45 p.m. until 3.00 p.m. on Tuesday, the 20th August 2019. 

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Si Jayewardenepura Kotte 

06 August 2019  

-------------------------------------- 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist Attacks 

that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the eighteenth Meeting of the Committee held in Committee Room No. 1 of the 

Parliamentary Complex 

Tuesday the 20th August 2019 at 3.30 p.m. 

PRESENT: 

Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri (Chair) 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem  

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake  

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon.  M.A. Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe  

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne 

   Mr. Tikiri K.  Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General  
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The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the 

Committee, took the Chair. 

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 06 August 2019 was confirmed. 

Hon. Justice Vijith K Malalgoda, PC, Mr. N K Illangakoon and Mr. Padmasiri Jayamanne, 

Members of the “Special Investigation Committee appointed by His Excellency the President 

to Probe Easter Sunday Attacks” were called in and examined by the Committee.   

The “Editor” of the “Daily News” attended the Committee at the request of the Committee 

and tendered his apology for the inaccurate report published in the “Daily News” on 1 August 

2019.  The “Editor” also agreed to publish a correction note in the “Daily News”. 

The Committee, thereafter, deliberated and resolved that a motion be moved in Parliament 

to obtain a time extension, until 30 September 2019, to present the final report of the 

Committee. 

The meeting was adjourned at 6.55 p. m. sine-die. 

sgd/ Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Si Jayewardenepura Kotte 

20 August 2019  

------------------------------ 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the nineteenth Meeting of the Committee held in "Parliamentary Committee 

Complex (Govijana Mandiraya)” 

Saturday the 14th September 2019 at 9.30 a.m.   

PRESENT: 

Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri (Chair) 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake  

Hon. (Dr.) Rajitha Senaratne 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon.  M.A. Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe  

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne 

   Mr. Tikiri K.  Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General  

1. The Committee met pursuant to notice. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the 

Committee, took the Chair.   

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayatissa had intimated his inability to attend today’s meeting due to 

unavoidable circumstances. He was granted leave. 

2. The Minutes of the Meeting held on 20 August 2019 was confirmed.  

3. The Secretary tabled the documents sent by Hon. Ranil Wickremasinghe, The Prime 

Minister, for the consideration of the Committee.  The Committee decided to incorporate the 

appropriate recommendations included in the documents in the report of the Committee. 

4. The Chair of the Committee informed that the Committee will meet His Excellency the 
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President in the Presidential Secretariat on 20 September 2019 at 10.00 a.m.  

5. The following documents sent to the Committee by Mr. S H S Kottegoda (Rtd.), 

Secretary, Ministry of Defence and Lieutenant General N U M M W Senanayake, 

Commander of the Sri Lanka Army were marked as “1W3” and “17W1 and 17W2” 

respectively: - 

a) Gazette Extraordinary No. 1081/19 dated May 27 1999 regarding composition of 

National Security Council and the office of the Chief of Defence Staff and his duties. 

b) Recommendations submitted by Army Commander. 

6. The Committee discussed the draft report of the Committee and decided to have further 

discussion on the report after the meeting with His Excellency the President and to move a 

motion in Parliament to obtain a time extension, until 30 October 2019, to present the final 

report of the Committee. 

7. The meeting was adjourned at 2.15 p. m. until 10.00 a.m. on Friday, the 20th September 

2019. 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte  

14 September 2019  

---------------------------------------- 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the twentieth Meeting of the Committee held in Presidential Secretariat 

Friday the 20th September 2019 at 10.30 a.m.   

PRESENT: 

Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri (Chair) 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. (Dr.) Rajitha Senaratne 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon.  M.A. Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe. 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne 

   Mr. Tikiri K.  Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General  

1. The Committee met pursuant to notice. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the 

Committee, took the Chair. 

2. The Committee had a discussion with His Excellency. Maithripala Sirisena, the President 

of Sri Lanka.  The report of the “Special Investigation Committee appointed by His 

Excellency the President to Probe Easter Sunday Attacks”, chaired by Justice Vijith K 

Malalgoda, PC, Judge of the Supreme Court, was handed over to the Chair of the Committee 

by His Excellency the President.   

His Excellency the President has given his consent  to incorporate the recommendations 

submitted by the “Special Investigation Committee appointed by His Excellency the 

President to Probe Easter Sunday Attacks” in the final report of the Parliamentary Select 
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Committee, if necessary,  but requested to treat the report as confidential since there are 

cases pending before the Courts related to the Easter Sunday Attack. 

3. The meeting was adjourned at 12.50 p. m. until 2.00 p.m. on Tuesday the 24th September 

2019. 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte  

20 September 2019  

------------------------------ 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the twenty first Meeting of the Committee held in Committee Room No. 3 of 

the Parliamentary Complex 

Tuesday the 24th September 2019 at 2.00 p.m.  

PRESENT: 

Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri (Chair) 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon.  M.A. Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne 

   Mr. Tikiri K.  Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General  

1. The Committee met pursuant to notice. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of the 

Committee, took the Chair. 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe had intimated his inability to attend today’s meeting due 

to unavoidable circumstances. He was granted leave. 

2. Minutes of the Meetings held on 14 September 2019 and 20 September 2019 were 

confirmed.  

4. The Committee directed the Secretary to obtain details of Flights arrived from 

Singapore to Sri Lanka on 21 April 2019 and vacant seats on each flight on this day from 

Sri Lankan Airlines. 

4. The Committee discussed the draft Report and decided to meet on the following days 

to finalize the Report:- 

• 04.10.2019 2.00 p.m. – 6.30 p.m. 

• 08.10.2019 3.00 p.m. – 7.30 p.m. 

• 09.10.2019 10.30 a.m. – 6.30 p.m. 

5. The meeting was adjourned at 5.00 p. m. until 2.00 p.m. on Friday the 4th October 

2019. 

Secretary to the Committee 

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte  

24 September 2019  



Report of the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

Terrorist Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

( 200 ) 

------------------------------ 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the Twenty Second Meeting of the Committee held in Committee Room No. 4 

of the Parliamentary Complex  

Friday 4th October 2019 at 2.00 p.m.  

PRESENT: 

Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, (Chair) 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

Hon. M A Sumanthiran 

  Mr. Tikiri K.  Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General  

1. The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of 

the Committee, took the Chair. 

Hon. (Dr.) Rajitha Senaratne, Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa, Hon. (Prof.) Ashu 

Marasinghe and Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne, had intimated their inability to 

attend today’s meeting due to unavoidable circumstances. They were granted leave. 

2. The Minutes of the Meeting held on 24 September 2019 was confirmed. 

3. The letter received from Mr. Vipula Gunatilleka, Chief Executive Officer, Sri Lankan 

Airlines Regarding the flight details on 21/04/2019 was tabled. 

4. The Committee discussed the draft report. 

5. The meeting was adjourned at 4.30 p.m. until 3.00 p.m. on Tuesday the 8th October 

2019. 

Secretary to the Committee  

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte  

04 October 2019  

--------------------------------------- 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the Twenty third Meeting of the Committee held in Committee Room No. 8 of 

the Parliamentary Complex  

Tuesday the 08th October 2019 at 3.00 p.m.  

PRESENT: 

Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, (Chair) 

Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. M A Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

  Mr. Tikiri K.  Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General  

1. The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of 
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the Committee, took the Chair. 

2. The Minutes of the Meeting held on 04 October 2019 was confirmed. 

3. The Committee discussed the draft report and decided to submit a unanimous report to 

the Parliament on 23 October 2019.  

4. The meeting was adjourned at 4.35 p.m. until 9.30 a.m. on Thursday the 17th October 

2019. 

Secretary to the Committee  

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

08 October 2019  

--------------------------------------- 

Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the Terrorist 

Attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019 

Minutes of the Twenty fourth Meeting of the Committee held in Committee Room No. 4 

of the Parliamentary Complex  

Friday the 18th October 2019 at 2.00 p.m.  

PRESENT: 

Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri (Chair) 

Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

Hon. M A Sumanthiran 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe  

  Mr. Tikiri K.  Jayathilake – Secretary to the Committee and Assistant Secretary-General  

1. The Committee met pursuant to adjournment. Hon. J M Ananda Kumarasiri, Chair of 

the Committee, took the Chair. 

2. The Minutes of the Meeting held on 08 October 2019 was confirmed. 

3. The Committee considered the observations/recommendations sent by the following 

Members of the Committee to the draft Report: - 

 Hon. Ravi Karunanayake 

 Hon. Rauff Hakeem 

 Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka 

 Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

The Committee, after lengthy deliberation, decided to incorporate the observations sent 

by the above Members to the Report appropriately.  The Committee also decided that the 

observations of Hon. Field Marshal Sarath Fonseka be included as an Appendix to the report. 

4. The Chair of the Committee thanked all Members of the Committee and the 

Parliamentary officials for their support given to the Committee. 

5. The Committee at 5.20 p.m. concluded its business. 

Secretary to the Committee  

Parliament of Sri Lanka 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte 

18 October 2019  
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1 වැනි පරිශිෂ්ටය 

இணைப்பு I  

Appendix I 

පාර්ලිපම්න්තු මන්ත්‍රී ෆීල්් මාර්ෂල් ගරු සරත් ප ාන්පස්කා මහතා විසින් 

ඉදිරිපත් කරන සාක්ිකරුවන්පේ ප්‍රකාශ අනුව නිරීක්ෂණ හා ඒ් මත 

පගාඩනගන නිගමන 

පහත න්‍ම් සඳහන් සාේිකරුවන්යේ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ අනුවව යපන්වා දී ඇති පරිදි 
නිරීේෂණ යොඩන්‍ෙනු ලැයබ්. 

1 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
2019 දින සිට පත්වූ වර්තමාන ආරක්ෂක පල්කම් ජනරාල් එස්. එච්ච. එස්. 
පකෝට්පටපගාඩ 

1. යමාහුයේ සාේියේදී පැවසූ පරිදි අෙමැතිතුමාද ආරේෂක කවුන්සලයේ 
සාමාජිකත්වෙ දැරිෙ යුතුෙ. 

2. රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ අධයේෂ අවශ්‍ය අවසේථාවලදී යකලින්ම 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමාට කථායකාට වැදෙත් යතාරතුරු ෙැන්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් දැනුවත් 
කරන්‍ ෙව පවසයි. 

3. බුද්ි යතාරතුරු ෙන්‍ාදිෙ යවන්‍ත් අිංශ්‍වලට යහෝ ආරේෂක 

අමාතයවරොට දැන්ීයම්දී ඒවා දැන්විෙ යුතු අෙයේ යේඛන්‍ෙේ (distribution 
list) තිබිෙ යුතුෙ.  ඒවා අනිවාර්ෙයෙන්ම ඒ ඒ සේථාන්‍ යවත ො යුතු යවයි.  යමවැනි 
යේඛන්‍ෙේ ක්‍රිොත්ක යන්‍ාවන්‍ ෙව යපනී ෙයි. ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොද ඒ 
පිළිෙඳව දැනුවත්ව යන්‍ාසිටි ෙව යහළි විෙ. 

4. යමම ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ මාස යදකකින් යහෝ තුන්‍කින් අවසාන්‍ කිරීමට 
යන්‍ාහැකිෙ.  න්‍මුත් ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ මර්දන්‍ෙ කිරීම සඳහා යකටි කාලීන්‍ හා මධය 
කාලීන්‍ සැලසුම් අනුව කටයුුුතු කළ යුතු ෙව ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො පිළියෙන්‍ 

ඇත.  ේෂණිකව තියෙන්‍ තර්ජන්‍යෙෙන් 99%ේ අවසාන්‍ ෙයි ඔහු පැවසූවද, 
පුහුණුව ලැබූ ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් 700ේ පමණ යදන්‍ා අත්අඩිංගුවට පත් යන්‍ාී තවමත් 

නිදැේයේ සිටින්‍ නිසා ේෂණික උවදුර 99%ේ අවසාන්‍ ෙයි පැවසීම පිළිෙත 
යන්‍ාහැකිෙ. 

5. 2014 සිට යමම ත්‍රසේතවාදී තර්ජන්‍ෙ පැවැති ෙවත්, අවම වශ්‍යෙන් යමම 

සිංවිධාන්‍ෙ (National Thawheed Jamaa'th) තහන්‍ම් කිරීමට යහෝ පිෙවර යෙන්‍ 
තිබුයේ න්‍ම් යමෙඳු විපතේ යන්‍ාීමට ඉඩ තිබුණු ෙවත් ඔහු ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇත. 

6. අතීතයේ පැවැති ආකාරෙ වන්යන්, ප්‍රතිපත්තිෙේ යලසට සෑම සතිෙකම 

ෙදාදා දින්‍ යපරවරු 10.00ට ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ පැවැත්ීම ෙව හිටපු 
හමුදාපතිවරෙකු වූ වර්තමාන්‍ ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො විසින් පිළිෙන්න්‍ා ලදී.  

න්‍මුත් 2015න් පසුව එයලස රැසේ යන්‍ාවූ නිසා, ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙේ 
දී යන්‍ාමැති ෙව පැහැදිලි යව්. 
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7. බුද්ි අිංශ්‍වල නිලධාරීන් කිහිප යදයන්‍කු අත්අඩිංගුවට පත්ීම යහේතුයවන් 
බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ දුර්වල ීමට ඉඩේ යන්‍ාමැති ෙව ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො විසින් 
පිළිෙන්න්‍ා ලදී. 

8. ත්‍රසේත විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාශ්‍යේ අධයේෂ න්‍ාලක ද සිේවා මහතා 
අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීම නිසා එම අිංශ්‍ෙට පාඩුවේ යහෝ පසුෙෑමේ විෙ හැකි ෙවද 
ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො පිළිෙනු ලෙයි. 

9. 2019 අයේේ 21 දින්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් රටින් ෙැහැරව සිටි නිසාත්, 
වැඩෙලන්‍ ආරේෂක අමාතයවරෙකු පත්කර යන්‍ාසිටි නිසාත් (යොයහෝ 

අවසේථාවලදී යමයසේ සිදුව තියබ්), අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන්ට ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ 
කැඳීමට හැකිොව තිබිෙ යුතු ෙවද ඔහු පිළිෙනී. 

10.  මුසේලිම් ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාර එේලවන්‍ අවසේථායව්දී ෙලයොඩඅත්යත් 
ඥාණසාර හිමිෙන් සිරභාරයෙන් නිදහසේ කරනු ලැබීෙ.  උන්වහන්යසේ සිරභාරයෙන් 
නිදහසේී පිටතට පැමිණ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේ අන්තවාදෙ පරාජෙ යකාට රට යොඩන්‍ැගීම 
සඳහා ෙලයව්ෙෙේ යොඩන්‍ෙන්‍ ෙවෙ. යමම ප්‍රකාශ්‍ෙ ප්‍රවෘත්ති පත්‍රවල මුේ පිටුයව් 
පළකරනු ලැබීෙ. කාරක සභාව ඉදිරියේ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කළ සාේි අනුව ඥාණසාර 
හිමිෙන් දර්ො න්‍ෙරයේ දී ක්‍රිොත්මක වූ ආකාරෙ යහේතුවේ වශ්‍යෙන් යෙන්‍ සහරාන් 
වැනි පිරිසේ ම්යේච්ඡ ඝාතන්‍ සිදුකිරීමට යපළඹුණු ෙව සාේිවලදී යහළිදරව් විෙ. 

ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ඥාණසාර හිමිෙන් සිරයෙදරින් නිදහසේ කිරීම ෙහපත් යදෙේ වුවද, 
වර්තමාන්‍ පසුබිම තුළ එම කටයුත්ත කිරීයම්දී ෙැටළුකාරී තත්ත්වෙේ ඇතිවිෙ හැකි 
ෙව ඔහු පිළිෙත්යත්ෙ. 

එයසේ යම් කාලයේදී එම කටයුත්ත කිරීයමන්, ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ අරමුණ 
ෙැටළුකාරී විෙ හැකිෙ. 

11. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ේෂණික තර්ජන්‍ෙ 99%ේ අවසාන්‍ කර ඇති ෙව ප්‍රකාශ්‍ 
කයළේ ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්යෙන් යොයහාමෙේ යම් වන්‍විට මිෙයොසේ යහෝ අත්අඩිංගුයව් 
පසුවන්‍ ෙැවිනි. 

න්‍මුත් වර්තමාන්‍යේ සිදුවන්‍ අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීම් නිසා, එම අවසේථායව්දී යතාරතුරු 
ලැබී යන්‍ාතිබුණු යොයහෝ අෙ පිළිෙඳව දැන් යතාරතුරු ලැයෙමින් පවතින්‍ ෙව 
යපයන්.  එම පුද්ෙලෙන් තවමත් නිදැේයේ පසුයවයි. 

12. දැන්‍ට යහළිී ඇති සාේි අනුව, කඳවුරු 17ක පුහුණුව ලැබූ ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් 

1000ේ පමණ සිටින්‍ ෙව යපාලිසේ නිලධාරිෙකු විසින් ජන්‍මාධය ඔසේයසේ යහළි කළ 

යතාරතුර පිළිෙඳව, ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරනුයේ එකී පුද්ෙලෙන් 

සතුව ටී56 වැනි ගිනිඅවි යන්‍ාමැති න්‍මුත් අිෙලැති පුපුරණ ද්‍රවය විශ්‍ාල ප්‍රමාණෙේ 

ඔවුන් සතුව ඇති ෙවත් ෙ.  එයසේ න්‍ම්, මරායෙන්‍ මැයරන්‍ ප්‍රහාර එේල කිරීයම් 
හැකිොව තවදුරටත් එම පුද්ෙලෙන් සතුව තිබිෙ හැකි වන්යන්ෙ. 

13. හදිසි අවසේථාවකදී, එන්‍ම් අතයවශ්‍ය යසේවාවක ඇතිවන්‍ වර්ජන්‍ෙකදී යහෝ 
යෙෝම්ෙ පිපිරීමේ වැනි අවසේථාවේ ඇතිවූ විට ක්‍රිොත්මක ීම සඳහා අතීතයේදී යුද 

හමුදාව සතුව හදිසි අවසේථා සැලසුම් (contingency plans) පැවතිණි. එන්‍මුත් 

අයේේ 21 වැනි දින්‍ ප්‍රහාර සිදුවූ අවසේථායව්දී යුද හමුදාව සතුව එවැනි හදිසි අවසේථා 
සැලසුම් තිබුණු ෙවේ දිසේ යන්‍ාීෙ.  එම නිසා යොයහෝ ප්‍රමාද යදෝෂ ඇතිවිෙ.  එවැනි 
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හදිසි අවසේථා සැලසුම් තිබුයේද ෙන්න්‍ යසාොෙැලිෙ යුතු ෙයි ආරේෂක 
යේකම්වරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ. 

14. ආරේෂක යේකම්යේ රාජකාරිෙ වනුයේ 'යුධ සමයේ යහෝ සාමෙ ඇතිවිට 

හමුදාවල ප්‍රමිතිෙ හා සූදාන්‍ම් ෙවට අදාළව පරිපාලන්‍ෙ, යසේවා හා සැපයුම් පිළිෙඳව 

අවශ්‍ය සම්ෙන්ධීකරණෙ කිරීම ෙවත්, යමයහයුම් සැලසුම් කිරීම යහෝ 

යමයහයුම්වලට අණදීම ඔහුයේ රාජකාරිෙ යන්‍ාවන්‍ ෙවත්' ඔහු පිළිෙත්යත්ෙ.  

එයසේ න්‍ම්, බුද්ි යතාරතුරු මත අවශ්‍ය පිෙවර ෙැනීමට හිටපු ආරේෂක 
යේකම්වරොට යකායතේදුරට හැකිොව තිබුයේද ෙන්න්‍ ෙැටළුවකි. 

2 වන සාක්ිකරු 
හිටපු ජාතික බුද්ධි ප්‍රධානී (CNI) විශ්‍රාමික නිපයෝජය පපාලිස්පති සිසිර පමන්ිස් 
මහතා 

1. ඔහුයේ කාර්ෙ මේඩලයේ බුද්ි යතාරතුරු විශ්‍ේයේෂණෙ කිරීමට තරම් 
සුදුසුකම් ඇති කිසිවකුත් යන්‍ාසිටි ෙවත් ඔහුයේ රාජකාරිෙ සඳහා පත්ීම 
ලොදීයම්දී ඒ කිසිවේ දැනුම් දී යන්‍ාතිබුණු ෙවත් ඒ මහතා පැවසීෙ.  න්‍මුත්  බුද්ි 
යතාරතුරු පිළිෙඳව ආරේෂක යේකම් දැනුවත් කිරීම හා ඔහු සමෙ 
සම්ෙන්ධීකරණෙ කිරීම තමන් විසින් සිදුකළ ෙව ඔහු ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ. 

2. 2015 ඔේයතෝෙර් මාසයේ සිට ISIS අන්තවාදෙ සහ සහරාන්යේ 
ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ පිළිෙඳව බුද්ි යතාරතුරු සමායලෝචන්‍ රැසේීයම්දී යමන්ම ආරේෂක 
මේඩලයේදීත් සාකච්ඡා කර ඇත.  එම කරුණු පිළිෙඳව සාමාන්‍යයෙන් ආරේෂක 

මේඩලයේදී කරුණු ඉදිරිපත් කරනුයේ රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) විසිනි. 

3. 2019 අයේේ 4 වැනිදා ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුර හිටපු ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානී 

(CNI) ට ලැබුයේ අයේේ 8 වැනි දින්‍ සවසේ වරුයව්දී ෙ.  ඔහු එෙ එදින්‍ම සවස 
ආරේෂක යේකම් යවත දැනුම් දී ඇත. 

ේ 2019 අයේේ 9 වැනි දින්‍ පැවැත්වූ බුද්ි යතාරතුරු සමායලෝචන්‍ 

රැසේීයම්දී රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) යමම අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි 
යතාරතුර පිළිෙඳව කිසිවේ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර යන්‍ාමැත. 

5. 2019 අයේේ 9 වැනි දින්‍ පැවැත්වූ බුද්ි යතාරතුරු සමායලෝචන්‍ 

රැසේීයමන් පසුව, අයේේ 21 දින්‍ යවන්‍ තුරුම ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීමේ 

පවත්වා යන්‍ාතිබුණි.  එයසේ පැවැත්වූයේ න්‍ම්, යමම ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුරු 
වාර්තාව පිළිෙඳව අනිවාර්ෙයෙන්ම සාකච්ඡා කර අවශ්‍ය අිංශ්‍වලට උපයදසේදීමට 
හැකිොව තිබුණි. 

6. 2019 අයේේ 21 දින්‍ සිදුවූ ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාරෙට යපර ආරේෂක 

මේඩලයේ රැසේීමේ අවසාන්‍වරට පවත්වා තිබුයේ යපෙරවාරි මස 19 වැනි දින්‍, 
එන්‍ම් ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාරෙට මාස 2කට කලින් ෙ. 

7. 2019 අයේේ 4 දින්‍ට යපර පැවැති ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීම්වලදී 

සහරාන් පිළිෙඳ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙ දිගින් දිෙටම සාකච්ඡා කළ ෙව රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) 
ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරන්‍ න්‍මුත්, ඒ පිළිෙඳව කිසිදු ක්‍රිොමාර්ෙෙේ යෙන්‍ යන්‍ාමැත. 
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8. ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීම් නිශ්‍ේචිත දින්‍ෙක නිශ්‍ේචිත යව්ලාවට පවත්වා 
යන්‍ාමැති න්‍මුත් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් සුදුසු ෙයි තීරණෙ කරනු ලෙන්‍ දින්‍ෙක පවත්වා 
තියෙන්‍ ෙව යහළිදරව් විෙ.  යමෙ සාර්ථක ක්‍රමෙේ යලස පිළිෙැනීමට යන්‍ාහැකි 

අතර, එහි අනිසි විපාකෙන්ට දැන් රට මුහුණ පා ඇත. 

9. 2019 මාර්තු මාසයේදී මුසේලිම් අන්තවාදීන් ෙරු කබීර් හෂීම් 
අමාතයවරොයේ යේකම්වරොට යවි තැබීයම් සිද්ියෙන් පසුව යහෝ ආරේෂක 
මේඩලයේ රැසේීමේ පවත්වා යන්‍ාමැත. 

10. 2019 අයේේ 4 දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුර පිළිෙඳව රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ 

(SIS) විසින් ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානී (CNI) ටදන්වා එවා තිබුයේ අයේේ 8 වැනි දින්‍ ෙ.  
අවශ්‍ය අවසේථාවක ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට කථා කරන්‍ පුරුද්දේ ඇතිව සිටි රාජය බුද්ි 

අධයේෂ (SIS) විසින් අයේේ 4-8 කාලෙ ඇතුලතදී යමම කරුණ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 
යවත දැන්විෙ යුතුව තිබුණි. 

11. 2015 සිට ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීයම්දී මුසේලිම් අන්තවාදෙ පිළිෙඳව 
කථාෙහ කළත් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ උපයදසේ වූයේ යම් පිළිෙඳව යපාලිසේ 
යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයවන් පිෙවරේ ෙත යුතු ෙ ෙන්න්‍ පමණකි.  ඒ අනුව යමම 

තර්ජන්‍ෙ ෙරපතල යලස යන්‍ාසලකා ඇති ෙවත්, අවශ්‍ය නිසි උපයදසේ ලො යන්‍ාදී 
තිබුණු ෙවත් පැහැදිලි යව්. 

12. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීයම්දී මුසේලිම් අන්තවාදෙ 

පිළිෙඳව යපාලිසිෙ විසින් නිසි පිෙවර ෙත යුතු ෙයි ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර තිබුණද, වරින් වර 
එම පිෙවරේ ෙත්යත්ද ෙන්න්‍ වෙ පිළිෙඳව යසාොෙැලීමේ යහෝ පසු විපරමේ සිදු 
කර යන්‍ාමැත.  ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාරෙ එේල වන්‍ තුරුම යම් ආකාරයේ යසාොෙැලීමේ 
යහෝ පසු විපරමේ සිදු කර යන්‍ාමැත.   

13. ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානී (CNI) ඉතා වැදෙත් තන්‍තුරේ වුවද ඔහු ෙටයත් 

අයන්‍කුත් බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ ප්‍රධානීන් කටයුතු කර යන්‍ාමැති ෙව යහළිදරව් ී  ඇත.  2015ට 

යපර තිබුණු ක්‍රමෙ වන්යන් අයන්‍කුත් සිෙළුම බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානී (CNI) 
ෙටයත් වැඩකටයුතු කළ යුතු ෙව න්‍මුත්, එයසේ සිදු යන්‍ාවන්‍ වර්තමාන්‍ ක්‍රමයව්දෙ 
සාර්ථක එකේ යන්‍ායව්. 

4 වන සාක්ිකරු 
පපාලිසප්ති පූජිත ජයසුන්දර මහතා 

1. යපාලිසේපති ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරන්‍ අන්දමට රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) යකලින්ම 
වෙකිෙනු ලෙන්යන් ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොට ෙ.  එන්‍මුදු වැදෙත් යතාරතුරේ 

ලැබුණයහාත්, ඒ පිළිෙඳව යවන්‍ත් ආකාරයෙන්ද කටයුතු කරන්‍ ෙව ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර 

ඇත.  ඒ අනුව යපනී ෙන්යන්, ඇතැම් අවසේථාවලදී ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට ද වාර්තා 
කරනු ලෙන්‍ ෙව විෙ හැකිෙ. 

2. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විසින් 2018 ඔේයතෝෙර් 23 ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ 
රැසේීමට යපාලිසේපතිවරො යෙන්ීමට අවශ්‍ය යන්‍ාවන්‍ ෙව ආරේෂක 

යේකම්වරොට උපයදසේදී තිබුණද, ඒ යවනුවට ඔහු නියෙෝජන්‍ෙ කරමින් යවන්‍ත් 
යකයන්‍කු යහෝ යෙන්ීමට කටයුතු යන්‍ාකිරීම නුවණැති ක්‍රිොවේ යන්‍ායව්.  
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යපාලිසේපතිවරොයේ සහභාගිත්වයෙන් යතාරව ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීමේ 
පැවැත්ීම සුදුසු යන්‍ායව්. 

3. යපාලිසියේ යපාලිසේ පරීේෂකවරෙකුට ලොදුන් සේථාන්‍ මාරුවේ පිළිෙඳව 
ඇතිවූ ෙැටළුකාරි තත්ත්වෙේ මත ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යපාලිසේපතිවරො සමෙ 
විරසකෙේ ඇතිවූයෙන් යපාලිසේපතිවරො ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට කැඳීම න්‍වත්වා 

ඇති අතර, එෙ සදාචාර වියරෝධී ක්‍රිොවකි.  තවද, යපාලිසේ නිලධාරීන්යේ මාරුීම් 
වැනි පරිපාලන්‍ කටයුතු පිළිෙඳව ආරේෂක මේඩලයේදී සාකච්ඡා කිරීම යන්‍ාකළ 
යුතු යව්. 

4. 2019 අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ ලැබුණු මරායෙන්‍ මැයරන්‍ ප්‍රහාර පිළිෙඳ 

යතාරතුරු රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) හා ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානී (CNI) විසින් 

යපාලිසේපතිවරොට දැනුම් යදනු ලෙන්යන් අයේේ 9 වැනි දින්‍ ෙ. 2019 අයේේ 09 
වැනි දින්‍ පැවැත්වූ බුද්ි යතාරතුරු සමායලෝචන්‍ රැසේී යම්දී යහෝ යම් පිළිෙඳව සිෙළු 

යදන්‍ා දැනුවත් කිරීමට රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) කටයුතු කර යන්‍ාමැත. 

5. 2019 අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුරු පිළිෙඳව 
යපාලිසේපතිවරො විසින් සිෙළුම අිංශ්‍වලට දැනුම්දී තිබුණි.  ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ 
වැනි ඉහළ මේටමින් සාකච්ඡා කළ තීරණ ෙත යුතුව තිබුණු යම් ආකාරයේ 
යතාරතුරේ පිළිෙඳව එයසේ කටයුතු යන්‍ාකිරීම නිසා කිසිදු අිංශ්‍ෙකින් යමම උවදුර 
වැළැේීමට නිසි පිෙවරේ යෙන්‍ යන්‍ාතිබුණි. 

6. 2018.10.23 දින්‍ සිටම යපාලිසේපතිවරො ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීමකට 

යහෝ යන්‍ාකැඳවන්‍ යලසට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විසින් උපයදසේ දී තිබුණු ෙැවින්, යමම 

අයේේ 4 වන්‍ දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුර පිළිෙඳව යපාලිසේපති විසින් 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට දැන්විෙ යුතුෙයි නිවැරදි යලස ෙලායපායරාත්තු විෙ යන්‍ාහැක.  
යම් සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විසින් යවන්‍සේ ක්‍රමයව්දෙේ අනුෙමන්‍ෙ කළ 
යුතුව තිබුණි. 

7. යමම අයේේ 4 වන්‍ දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුර පිළිෙඳව යපාලිසේපති 

විසින් පහළට දැනුම් දී තිබුණද, එම යතාරතුයර් ෙරපතලකම අනුව ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 
විසින් ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ වැනි ඉහළ මේටයම් තීරණ ෙන්න්‍ා සේථාන්‍ෙකදී 
සාකච්ඡා කර ෙරපතල තීන්දුවේ ෙත යුතු ව තිබුණි. 

8. අයේේ 23 හා 25 අතර කාලයේදී කිහිප වතාවකදීම, ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 

විසින් යපාලිසේපතිවරොට කථා යකාට 'යමම සිද්ිෙ පිළිෙඳව වරද පිළිෙන්න්‍ා 

යලසත්, ඉන්පසුව තාන්‍ාපති තන්‍තුරේ ලොයදන්‍ ෙවටත්' ප්‍රකාශ්‍ යකාට ඇත.  

යපාලිසේපතිවරො එම ඉේලීම පිළියෙන්‍ යන්‍ාමැති අතර, එෙඳු ඉේලීමේ කිරීම 
අනිසි ක්‍රිොවේ ෙව යපයන්. 

5 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
හිටපු ආරක්ෂක පල්කම් පහ්මසිරි ප්‍රනාන්ු මහතා 

1. යහේමසිරි ප්‍රන්‍ාන්දු මහතා ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරන්‍ ආකාරෙට, 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් 

මාසයේ සිට 2019 අයේේ 21 වැනි දින්‍ දේවා අතරතුර කාලයේදී ආරේෂක 

මේඩලයේ රැසේීම් පවත්වා ඇත්යත් 4වරේ පමණි. එන්‍ම් 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර්, 
යදසැම්ෙර්, 2019 ජන්‍වාරි හා යපෙරවාරි මාසවලදී ෙ. 
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2. 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් මාසයෙන් පසුව පැවැති කිසිදු ආරේෂක මේඩල 
රැසේීමකට අෙමැතිතුමන් කැඳීමට කටයුතු කර යන්‍ාමැත. 

3. 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් මාසයේ පැවැති ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේී යමන් පසුව 
යපාලිසේපතිවරො ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට යන්‍ාකැඳීමට යහේතුව වන්යන් යපාලිසේ 
පරීේෂක නිශ්‍ාන්ත සිේවා මාරු කරන්‍ යලසට උපයදසේ දී යපාලිසේපතිවරො ජාතික 
යපාලිසේ යකාමිසම යවත ලිපිෙේ ෙැීම ෙ.  ඒ ෙව ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ 
සාේියෙන්ද තහවුරු ී ඇත. 

4. 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් මාසයේ පැවැත්වූ ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීයමන් පසුව 
ආරේෂක රාජය ඇමතිවරො ද ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීම්වලට කැඳවා යන්‍ාතිබුණි. 

5. ත්‍රසේත ප්‍රහාරෙ ෙැන්‍ 2019 අයේේ 4 දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුර පිළිෙඳව 

රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) විසින් ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො දැනුවත් කර ඇත්යත් 

2019 අයේේ 8 වන්‍ දින්‍ සවසේවරුයව් දී ෙ.  එන්‍ම් බුද්ි යතාරතුර ලැබී දින්‍ 4කට 
පසුව ෙ. 

6. පැවැති බුද්ි යතාරතුරු සමායලෝචන්‍ රසේීයම්දී ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො 

විසින් සිහිපත් කළ පසුව වුවද, අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ ලැබුණු වැදෙත් යතාරතුර 
පිළිෙඳව ඒ අවසේථායව්දී පැමිණ සිටි අනිත් අෙ දැනුවත් කිරීමට රාජය බුද්ි 

අධයේෂ (SIS) විසින් කටයුතු කර යන්‍ාමැත. 

7. රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) විසින් සෘජුවම බුද්ි යතාරතුරු ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 

යවත දැනුම් යදන්‍ නිසා අයේේ 4 දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුර පිළිෙඳව 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට දැනුම් යදනු ඇතැයි තමන් සිතූ ෙව ආරේෂක යේකම් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ 

කළා.  රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) විසින් සෘජුවම ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට කථාකරන්‍ 
අවසේථා තිබුණු ෙව ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ සාේියෙන් පිළියෙන්‍ ඇත. 

8. 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් මස 15 වැනි දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි වාර්තාවේ ඉදිරිපත් කර, 
NTJ න්‍ාෙක යමායහාමඩ් කාසිම් සමාජ ජාලා ඔසේයසේ ISIS මතවාදෙ 
සාධාරණීකරණෙ කරමින් හා අන්‍යාෙමිකෙන් ඝාතන්‍ෙ කිරීම උතුම් ක්‍රිොවේ 
වශ්‍යෙන් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇති ෙව ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො විසින් යපන්වා දී ඇති න්‍මුත් 
එම අවසේථායව්දී යහෝ සහරාන් ත්‍රසේතවාදිෙකු යලස සලකා අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීමට 
යහෝ වින්‍ාශ්‍ කිරීමට ආරේෂක මේඩලයේදී උපයදසේ යහෝ නියෙෝෙ ලොදී 
යන්‍ාමැත. 

9. රාජය බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ෙ, යුද හමුදා බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ෙ සමෙ සම්ෙන්ධ යන්‍ාී හමුදා 
බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ පයසකට කර ඇති ෙවට හමුදාපතිවරො විසින් රාජය ආරේෂක 
යේකම්ට පැමිණිලි කර තිබුණි. 

10. මධුෂේ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීම්වලදී සාකච්ඡා කළ 

ආකාරයෙන් යහෝ NTJ පිළිෙඳව යහෝ සහරාන් පිළිෙඳව ආරේෂක මේඩල 

රැසේීම්වලදී සාකච්ඡා කර යන්‍ාමැති ෙවට ප්‍රකාශ්‍ ී ඇත.  2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් මස 
සිට ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීයම්දී ප්‍රධාන්‍තම හා ප්‍රමුඛතම මාතෘකාව ී තිබුයේ 
මධුෂේ ෙවද ප්‍රකාශ්‍ ී ඇත. 

11. හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොට සමහර අවසේථාවලදී සති යදකකට වරේ 
යහෝ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් මුණ ෙැසීමට යන්‍ාහැකිව තිබුණු ෙව ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇත. 
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12. 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් සිට සතිපතා පැවැත්යවන්‍ බුද්ි යතාරතුරු 

සමායලෝචන්‍ රැසේීයම්දී 5-6 වතාවේ පමණ NTJ පිළිෙඳව සාකච්ඡා කළ ෙව ප්‍රකාශ්‍ 

කර ඇත.  එයසේ වුවද NTJ පිළිෙඳව අවශ්‍ය පිෙවර ෙැනීමට ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණෙ 
ක්‍රිොත්මක ී යන්‍ාමැත. 

13. 2019 අයේේ 21 ත්‍රසේත ප්‍රහාරයෙන් පසුව අයේේ 22 යහෝ 23 වැනි 
දින්‍වලදී පැවැත්වූ ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීමට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විරුද්ධ 
පේෂයේ මන්ත්‍රීවරෙන් සිවු යදයන්‍කු කැඳවා තිබුණි.  එන්‍මුදු රජෙක ආරේෂක 
කටයුතු පිළිෙඳ වෙකීම ඇත්යත් ආරේෂක අමාතයවරොට හා එවකට පවතින්‍ 
රජෙට යව්. 

14. යමම සිද්ියේ වෙකීම යෙන්‍ අසේවන්‍ යලසත් තාන්‍ාපති තන්‍තුරේ 
ලොයදන්‍ ෙවත් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විසින් පැවසූ ෙව යපාලිසේපතිවරො තමන්ට පැවසූ 
ෙව හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොද ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇත. 

15. හිටපු ආරේක යේකම්වරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරනුයේ තමන්ට ඉේලා අසේවන්‍ 
යලස ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විසින් යන්‍ාකී න්‍මුදු යපාලිසේපතිවරොට ඉේලා අසේවන්‍ යලස 
පැවසීමට වියරෝධෙ පෑමේ යලස තමන් ඉේලා අසේවූ ෙවයි. 

16. රයේ පැවැති ඉතා සිංයව්දී ආරේෂක කටයුතු පිළිෙඳව වුවද 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් සමෙ සාකච්ඡා කිරීමට හැකි වාතාවරණෙේ යන්‍ාතිබුණු ෙව හිටපු 
ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇත.  අවසාන්‍යෙදී ඔහු ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට 
පවසා ඇත්යත් ඊළඟ ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොට යහෝ දින්‍කට පැෙ භාෙෙේවත් 

ලොයදන්‍ යලසත්, එයසේ යන්‍ාමැති න්‍ම් කටයුතු කිරීමට යන්‍ාහැකි වන්‍ ෙවත් ෙ. 

17. යමාන්‍ෙම් ආකාරයේ වැදෙත් කරුණේ පැවසූවත් එෙ ෙරපතල යලස 
සලකා ක්‍රිොත්මක ීයම් පුරුද්දේ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට යන්‍ාතිබූ ෙව හිටපු ආරේෂක 
යේකම්වරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇත. 

18. තමන් ව මෙහරිමින් යකලින්ම හමුදාපතිවරුන් හා අතියර්ක 

යේකම්වරුන් සමෙ කටයුතු කිරීයම් පුරුද්දේ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට තිබුණු ෙවත්, එම 
නිසා නිර්මාණෙ ී තිබුණු ඉතා අප්‍රසන්න්‍ හා සතුටින් වැඩකටයුතු කළ යන්‍ාහැකි 
ආකාරයේ පරිසරෙක තමන් කටයුතු කළ ෙවත් හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො 
ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇත. 

19. යකයසේ වුවද, 2019 අයේේ 4 වන්‍ දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුර පිළිෙඳව 

ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණෙ නිසි යලස වෙකීම් දරමින් ක්‍රිො කර යන්‍ාමැති ෙවත්, කටයුතු 
කිරීමට ඉහළින්ම එන්‍ම් ආරේෂක අමාතයතුමන්යෙන් අවශ්‍ය උපයදසේ යන්‍ාලැබුණු 
ෙවත් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇත. 

20. යමාහුයේ සාේි අනුව යපනී ෙන්යන්, මුළු රයටහිම ආරේෂක 

ොන්ත්‍රණෙ අක්‍රිෙ ී පැවැති ෙවත්, ත්‍රසේත ක්‍රිො පිළිෙඳව නිසි යතාරතුරු යහෝ බුද්ි 

යතාරතුරු ලොෙැනීමට වෙකිවයුත්තන් අයපායහාසත් ී ඇති ෙවත්, ලැබුණු 
යතාරතුරුවල ෙරපතල ෙව යත්රුම් යෙන්‍ අවශ්‍ය ආකාරෙට කටයුතු කර 
යන්‍ාන්‍මැති ෙවත් ෙ. 

21. තවද, සාේිකරුයෙන් ලැබුණු සහ අසන්‍ ලද ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍වලට ලැබුණු පිළිතුරු 

අනුව රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) විසින් දින්‍පතාම බුද්ි යතාරතුරු ෙැන්‍ වාර්තාවේ 
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ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට ලොයදන්‍ ෙව පැහැදිලි විෙ.  යම් ෙව ෙරු රාජිත යසේන්‍ාරත්න්‍ 
අමාතයතුමන්ද සන්‍ාථ කර ඇත. 

6 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
බස්නාහිර ප ාපත් හිටපු ආේඩුකාර අසාත් සාලි මහතා. 

1. අසාත් සාලි මහතා ප්‍රකාශ්‍කළ ඇතැම් කරුණු හරොත්මක යන්‍ාවන්‍ ෙව 
ඔහුයේ සාේි අනුව යපනී ෙයි. 

2. දර්ො න්‍ෙරයේ සිිංහල අන්තවාදීන්යේ හැසිරීම ෙැන්‍ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කළ යදයින් 
යපනී ෙන්යන් සිිංහල මුසේලිම් වියරෝධෙකට යමම ක්‍රිොවන්ද තුඩු දී ඇති ෙව 
පැහැදිලි යව්. 

3. ඔහු මුසේලිම් ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ අවසාන්‍ කිරීමට කළ යුතු යමයහයුම්වලට සහාෙ 

දැේීමට ඉදිරිපත් ීම යවනුවට, ආරේෂක හමුදා විසින් කරනු ලෙන්‍ යමයහයුම් 
වියව්චන්‍ෙ කිරීමට යපළඹීම යහාඳ ප්‍රවණතාවෙේ යලස පිළිෙත යන්‍ාහැක. 

9 වැනි සාේිකරු 

න්‍ැයෙන්‍හිර පළායත් හිටපු ආේඩුකාර එම්.එේ.ඒ.එම්.හිසේබුේලා මහතා 

1. රුපිෙේ බිලිෙන්‍ 4.6ක ණෙ මුදලේ ලොයෙන්‍ මඩකලපුව විශ්‍ේව විදයාලෙ 
පුද්ෙලික සමාෙමේ යලස ආරම්භ කළ ෙව ඔහු ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ.  එන්‍මුත් අදාළ 
ෙැිංකු ගිණුම් විවෘත කර ඇත්යත් ණෙ මුදලේ ලොෙැනීමට යන්‍ාවන්‍ ෙව ඉදිරිපත් 
වූ සාේි අනුව පැහැදිලි විෙ.  යම් අනුව විශ්‍ාල විංචනික මුලය ෙනුයදනුවේ සිදුී 

ඇති ෙව යපනී  ෙන්‍ ෙැවින්, FCID ආෙතන්‍ෙ හරහා යම් පිළිෙඳව ූර්ණ 
පරීේෂණෙේ කළ යුතු වන්යන්ෙ.  යමම කළු සේලි සුදු කිරීමේ යලසද හැඳින්විෙ 
හැකිෙ. 

2. යමම විශ්‍ේව විදයාලෙ ඉදිකිරීම සඳහා වරින් වර රජයෙන් ඉඩම් ලොයෙන්‍ 

ඇති ආකාරෙ පැහැදිලි යන්‍ාවන්‍ අතර ෙැටළු සහෙත ෙැවින්, ඒ පිළිෙඳව ූර්ණ 
පරීේෂණෙේ සිදුකළ යුතු වන්යන්ෙ. 

3. එයසේම, යමහි  දී පළමුයවන් අවසර ලොයෙන්‍ ඇත්යත් වෘත්තීෙ පුහුණු 

මධයසේථාන්‍ෙේ ආරම්භ කිරීමට වුවද, පසුකාලීන්‍ව එෙ විශ්‍ේව විදයාලෙේ 

පැවැත්ීමට කටයුතු කළ ආකාරෙ ෙැටළු සහෙත ෙැවින්, ඒ පිළිෙඳව ූර්ණ 
පරීේෂණෙේ සිදුකළ යුතු වන්යන්ෙ. 

11වන හා 12 වන සාක්ිකරුවන් 
කාත්තන්කුි පපාලිසිපේ වර්තමාන ස්ථානාිපති එම්.පී.කස්තුරිආරච්චි හා හිටපු 

පපාලිස් ස්ථානාිපති ආරියබන්ු පවදපගදර මහතා 

1. යමාවුන්යේ සාේි අනුව, රිේවාන් හා ආමි යමාහිදීන් ඇප මත සිටිෙද, 
යපාලිසිෙට වාර්තා යන්‍ාකර ත්‍රසේතවාදී ක්‍රිොවල නිරතී ඇති ෙවත් ඔවුන් ෙැන්‍ 
යසීමට යපාලිසිෙ උන්‍න්දුී යන්‍ාමැති ෙවත් යපනී ෙයි. 
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17 වැනි හා 44 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
යුධ හමුදාපති මපහ්ෂ් පස්නානායක මහතා 

1. ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ 99%ේ අවසාන්‍ ෙව ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො විසින් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර 

තිබුණද, යමවැනි ත්‍රසේතවාදෙේ සම්ූර්ණයෙන්ම අවසන් ෙව යම් වන්‍ විට 
පිළිෙැනීමට යන්‍ාහැකි ෙව යුධ හමුදාපතිවරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇත. 

2. යමෙඳු ත්‍රසේතවාදෙකින් පැතියරන්‍ විෂබීජ සම්ූර්ණයෙන්ම ඉවත් කිරීමට 

අවශ්‍ය ක්‍රමයව්දෙන් සකසේ කිරීම සඳහා වසර 10 ේ - 15ේ යහෝ ඊටත් වැි කාලෙේ 
ෙතවිෙ හැකි ෙව යුධ හමුදාපතිවරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇත. 

3. ලැයෙන්‍ යතාරතුරු බුද්ි යතාරතුරු ෙවට තහවුරු කරෙැනීමට අවශ්‍ය 

පහසුකම් ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානී (CNI) ට තිබිෙ යුතු ෙව යුද හමුදාපතිවරො පවසා 

ඇත.  ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානී (CNI) තන්‍තුරට වෙකීම් දැරීමට පිළිෙැනීමේ ලො දිෙ 
යුතු ෙවට යුද හමුදාපතිවරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කිරීයමන් යපනී ෙන්යන් යම් වන්‍ විට එම 
හැකිොව හා පිළිෙැනීම යන්‍ාමැති ෙව ෙ. 

4. සහරාන්යේ ත්‍රසේතවාදී ජාලෙ කලින් හඳුන්‍ායෙන්‍ සිටි ෙවත්, ඉන් ඇතැම් 

අෙ අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීමට පවා යෙෝජන්‍ා කර තිබුණු ෙවත්, ඒ පිළිෙඳව අදාළ 
සේථාන්‍වලදී සාකච්ඡා කර තිබුණු ෙවත් යුද හමුදාපතිවරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇත.  එයසේම 
අදාළ අිංශ්‍වලට ලිඛිතවද යම් පිළිෙඳව දැනුවත් කර තියෙන්‍ ෙවද ඔහු පවසා ඇත.  

යම් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරනුයේ ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ පිළිෙඳව විෙ යුතුෙ.  එන්‍මුදු, බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ 
අතර අන්තර් සම්ෙන්ධීකරණයේ පැවැති අඩුපාඩු යහේතුයවන් එකියන්‍කා අතර නිසි 
පරිදි විශ්‍ේවාසෙ යොඩන්‍ැගී යන්‍ාතිබුණු ෙව ඔහු යපන්වා දුන්යන්ෙ. 

5. ඉහත ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ පිළිෙඳව ආරේෂක මේඩලයේදී ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කළද, නිසි 

සම්ෙන්ධීකරණෙකින් අවශ්‍ය පිෙවර යන්‍ාෙත් ෙවත්, ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් අත්අඩිංගුවට 
ෙැනීමට යහෝ වින්‍ාශ්‍ කිරීමට නියෙෝෙෙේ යන්‍ාලැබුණු ෙවත් යුද හමුදාපතිවරො 
යපන්වා දුන්යන්ෙ. 

6. යුද හමුදාපතිවරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරන්‍ ආකාරෙට, ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ අවම 
වශ්‍යෙන් මාසෙකට වරේ යහෝ රැසේී යන්‍ාමැත.  යුද්ධෙ පවතින්‍ කාලයේ දී යහෝ 
සාමෙ පවතින්‍ කාලයේදී යහෝ ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ අවම වශ්‍යෙන් සතිෙකට වරේ 
රැසේී සාකච්ඡා කිරීම අතයාවශ්‍ය යව්. 

7. 2019 අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුරට නිසි ප්‍රතිචාර දැේීමට 
න්‍ම් අනිවාර්ෙයෙන්ම යුද හමුදාවට හා යපාලිසිෙට ආරේෂක අමාතයතුමන්යේ 
මේටයමන් උපයදසේ ලැබිෙ යුතුව තිබුණු ෙවද යුද හමුදාපතිවරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇත. 

8. ලැයෙන්‍ වැදෙත් බුද්ි යතාරතුරු ආරේෂක අමාතයවරොයේ මේටයමන් 
සාකච්ඡා කර ෙත යුතු පිෙවර ෙැන්‍ උපයදසේ ලොෙැනීමට අවශ්‍ය ොන්ත්‍රණෙ 
යහාඳින් සේථාපිතව යන්‍ාතිබුණු ෙව පැහැදිලි යව්. 

9. ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීම්වලට විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ මන්ත්‍රීවරුන් 
කැඳීම නිසා ඇතැම් වැදෙත් කරුණු පිළිෙඳව සාකච්ඡා කිරීමට යන්‍ාහැකි වූ 
අවසේථා ද තිබුණු ෙව යුධ හමුදාපතිවරො යපන්වා දුන්යන්ෙ. 
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10. ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො යමයහයුම්වලට උපයදසේ යහෝ නියෙෝෙ 

යන්‍ායදන්‍ ෙවත්, ආරේෂක සැලසුම් යන්‍ාකරන්‍ ෙවත් පිළිෙන්න්‍ා අතරම, 
සාර්ථකව යමයහයුම් ෙැන්‍ සම්ෙන්ධීකරණෙේ යහෝ කිරීමට න්‍ම් හමුදාපති යහෝ 
යපාලිසේපති මේටයම් දැනුමේ හා පළපුරුද්දේ තියෙන්‍ අෙකු ආරේෂක 
යේකම්වරො විෙ යුතු ෙව යුද හමුදාපතිවරොයේ අදහස විෙ.  යමයින් යපනී 
ෙන්යන් සාමාන්‍ය පරිපාලන්‍ නිලධාරිෙකු ආරේෂක යේකම් තන්‍තුර 
යමයහෙීයම්දී පසුෙෑම්වලට ලේීමට සිදුවන්‍ ෙව ෙ. 

21 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
හිටපු අමාතය පාර්ලිපම්න්තු මන්ත්‍රී රිෂා් බදියුදීන් මහතා 

1. විශ්‍රාමික පරිපාලන්‍ නිලධාරී මයුනුදීන්යේ පුත්‍රො යුද හමුදාව විසින් 
අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙත් කල ඔහු මුදවාෙැනීම සඳහා යුද හමුදාපතිවරොට කථා කළාද 
ෙනුයවන් ඇසූ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙට හිටපු අමාතය රිෂාඩ් ෙදියුදීන් මහතා දුන් පිළිතුර වූයේ 

'ඔහුයේ පිොට අවශ්‍ය වූයේ තම පුතා සිටින්යන් කා ළඟද ෙන්න්‍ සහ ජීවතුන් අතර 

සිටින්යන්ද ෙන්න්‍ දැන්‍ෙැනීමට' ෙවත් ෙ.  මුදවාෙැනීමේ පිළිෙඳව හිටපු 
අමාතයවරො විමසීමේ යන්‍ාකළ ෙව යුද හමුදාපතිවරො විසින් ද පිළිෙන්න්‍ා ලදී.  

එයසේ යහයින්, තව වසර එකහමාරකින් කථා කරන්‍ යලසට යුද හමුදාපතිවරො 
විසින් පැවසීම අදාළ කරුණේ යන්‍ායව්. 

2. හිටපු අමාතය පාර්ලියම්න්තු මන්ත්‍රී රිෂාඩ් ෙදියුදීන් මහතාට එයරහිව 
විශ්‍ේවාස භිංෙ යෙෝජන්‍ායව් සඳහන් යචෝදන්‍ාවල සතයතාවෙේ යන්‍ාමැති ෙව අපරාධ 
විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුව විසින් ලිඛිතව පාර්ලියම්න්‍ත්තු වියශ්‍ේෂ කාරක සභාවට 
දැනුම් දී තිබිණි. 

3. හිටපු අමාතයවරොට එයරහිව තිබූ විශ්‍ේවාස භිංෙ යෙෝජන්‍ායව්, හිටපු 
අමාතයතුමායේ උපයද්ශ්‍කෙකු යලස කටයුතු කරන්‍ මවුලවිවරෙකු ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්ට 
සම්ෙන්ධ ෙැවින් අත් අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ ඇති ෙව කර තියෙන්‍ සඳහයන්‍හි සතය 
අසතයතාවෙ ෙැන්‍ විමසූ විට හමුදාපතිවරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේ පසුගිෙ පළාත්පාලන්‍ 
මැතිවරණයේදී වමත්‍රිපාල සිරියසේන්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ යව්දිකාවක කථා කළ 

මවුලවිවරෙකු පිළිෙඳව පරිෙණක CD තැටිෙකින් යපන්වා එම යචෝදන්‍ාව ඇත්යත් 
එකී මවුලවිවරොට ෙවයි.  යමම මවුලවිවරො රිෂාඩ් ෙදියුදීන් මහතායේ 
ආධාරකරුවකු යන්‍ාව අතිෙරු ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ ආධාරකරුවකු ෙව යමයින් 
යපනී ෙයි. 

4. අති උතුම් කාදින්‍ේ මැේකම් රිංජිත් අෙරදගුරුතුමන් සිිංහල යෙෞද්ධ 
ආභාෂයෙන් යම් රයේ සිංසේකෘතිෙ යොඩ න්‍ැගී ඇති ෙවට කළ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ෙ පිළිෙඳව 
මතෙ විමසූ විට තමන්ද එම අදහස පිළිෙන්න්‍ා ෙව රිෂාඩ් ෙදියුදීන් මහතා පවසා 
සිටියේෙ. 

26 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
පාර්ලිපම්න්තු මන්ත්‍රී දයාසිරි ජයපස්කර මහතා 

1. දොසිරි ජෙයසේකර මහතා ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරන්‍ අන්දමට යෙෝම්ෙ පුපුරවා ෙැනීමට 
ටාේ සමුද්‍ර යහෝටලෙට ගිෙ ත්‍රසේතවාදිො න්‍ැවත හැරී ගිෙ ෙව ඔේපු කිරීමට 
යන්‍ාහැකිෙ.  අපරාධ පරීේෂණ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් අධයේෂ නියෙෝජය 

යපාලිසේපතිවරො (DIG-CID) පැවසුයව් CCTV දර්ශ්‍න්‍වල පැහැදිලිව යපයන්‍න්‍ 
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ආකාරෙට ත්‍රසේතවාදිො යෙෝම්ෙෙ පුපුරවා ෙැනීමට උත්සාහ දැරුවත් කිසිෙම් 
යහේතුවේ නිසා යෙෝම්ෙෙ පුපුරා යන්‍ාගිෙ ෙවයි.  එෙැවින් එම ප්‍රකාශ්‍ෙ මන්ත්‍රීවරො 
වෙකීමකින් යතාරව කරන්‍ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ෙේ යලස දැේවිෙ හැකිෙ. 

2. සාේි යදන්‍ අතරතුරදී යමම ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාරෙ පිටුපස වියද්ශීෙ ෙලයව්ෙ 

සිටින්‍ ෙව ඔේපුයවමින් පවතින්‍ ෙව පැවසුවද, ම විසින් දිගින් දිෙටම හරසේ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ 

ඇසූ විට එම කරුණ සන්‍ාථ කිරීමට යන්‍ාහැකි විෙ.  යමෙ ඇතැම්විට, සිතින් මවාෙත් 
කරුණේ පවසමින් සිෙේලන් යන්‍ාමෙ ෙැීමට කරන්‍ උත්සාහෙේ යලසද යපනී 
ෙයි. 

3. මන්ත්‍රීවරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේ, විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ වුවද, ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට 
අවශ්‍ය න්‍ම් ඕන්‍ෑම අෙකු ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීමකට කැඳවිෙ හැකි ෙවෙ.   
ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීම්වලදී ආරේෂක කටයුතු පිළිෙඳව රහසය යතාරතුරු 
සාකච්ඡා කරන්‍ ෙැවින් එෙ කවර ආකාරෙකින් වුවද සදාචාරාත්මක යන්‍ායව්.  
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යමවැනි ක්‍රිොවලිෙන් නිසා ආරේෂක ප්‍රධානීන් අපහසුතාවෙන්‍ට 
පත්කර ඇති ෙව යපනී ෙයි. 

27 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
පජයෂ්ඨ නිපයෝජය පපාලිසප්ති කපිල ජයපස්කර මහතා 
(2017.08.24 දින සිට නැපගනහිර ප ාත භාරව සිටි පජයෂ්ඨ නිපයෝජය 
පපාලිසප්ති) 

1. 2017 සිටම සහරාන් වයරන්තු පිට සිටිෙද, ඔහුයේ කඳවුර අම්පාර 

දිසේත්‍රිේකයේ සයින්දමරන්දු ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ පිහිටා තිබුණද, කිසිම වියටක ඒ පිළිෙඳව 
වාර්තා ී යන්‍ාතිබුණු ෙව කපිල ජෙයසේකර මහතා පවසා සිටියේෙ.  යමයින් යපනී 
ෙන්යන් අදාළ ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ බුද්ි යතාරතුරු ලැබීම අසාර්ථක ී ඇති ෙවයි.  යම් 
පිළිෙඳව ඔහු යමන්ම අදාළ යජයෂේඨ යපාලිසේ නිලධාරීන් සිෙළු යදන්‍ාමත් වෙකිව 
යුතු යව්. 

29 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
රාජය බුද්ධි අධයක්ෂ නිපයෝජය පපාලිස්පති (D/SIS-DIG) නිලන්ත ජයවර්ධන 
මහතා 

1. යහේමසිරි ප්‍රන්‍ාන්දු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො වැඩ භාරෙැනීයමන් පසුව, 
නිතිපතා අඟහරුවාදා දින්‍වල පැවැත්වූයේ න්‍ම් පැවැත්ීමට නිෙමිතව තිබූ 

ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීම් 26කින්, 019 අයේේ මාසයෙන් පසුව පවත්වා 

ඇත්යත් රැසේීම් 6ේ පමණි. 

2. 2019 අයේේ 9 වැනි දින්‍ පැවැත්වූ බුද්ි යතාරතුරු සමායලෝචන්‍ 

රැසේීයම්දී, අයේේ 9 වැනි දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුර පිළිෙඳව කථා කරමින් 

නිලන්ත ජෙවර්ධන්‍ මහතා (SIS) ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානී (CNI)ට ‘සර් ඕක යලඩේ, ඕක 

වහාම අරින්න්‍’ ෙයි පවසා ඇත.  ඒ අනුව හැඟී ෙන්යන් රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) 
යමම යතාරතුර සතය ෙවට විශ්‍ේවාස කළ ෙවයි. 

3. 2019 මාර්තු 12 දින්‍ පැවැත්වූ බුද්ි යතාරතුරු සමායලෝචන්‍ රැසේීයම් 
න්‍යාෙ පත්‍රෙට සහරාන්යේ ක්‍රිො පිළිෙඳව ඇතුළත් කර තිබිණි.  න්‍මුත් යමම රැසේීම 
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අවලිංගු කරන්‍ ලද අතර, න්‍ැවතත් රැසේීමේ පැවැත්වූයේ මාර්තු 10 දින්‍ යව්. ඊළඟ 

රැසේීම පැවැත්වූයේ අයේේ 10 වැනි දින්‍ ෙ. 

4. 2017 ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් 127ක යේඛන්‍ෙේ ඉදිරිපත් කළ අතර, යදහිවල දී 
දිවින්‍සාෙත් ජමීේ යේ න්‍ම එම යේඛන්‍යේ ඉහළින්ම සඳහන්ව තිබිණි.  යම් 
පුද්ෙලො යපාලිසිෙට කැඳවා ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ යකාට නිදහසේ කර තිබිණි.  එයසේම තවත් න්‍ම් 

94ේ ඇතුළත් යේඛන්‍ෙේ 2017 ඔේයතෝෙර් මාසයේදී ද ඉදිරිපත් කර තිබිණි. 

5. 2019 ජුලි 24 වන්‍ විට ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් 54 යදයන්‍කු අත්අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ තිබුණු 

අතර, ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් 6 යදයන්‍කු මිෙයොසේ තිබිණි. 

6. 2019 අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුර සන්‍ාථ ී යන්‍ාතිබුණු 

ෙැවින් ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොට දැනුම් යන්‍ාදුන්න්‍ද, ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානී (CNI)ට 

දැනුම් දී තිබිණි.  එයසේම රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) විසින් 2019 අයේේ 9 වැනි දින්‍ 
පැවැත්වූ බුද්ි යතාරතුරු සමායලෝචන්‍ රැසේීයම්දී ‘සර් ඕක යලඩේ’ ෙනුයවන් 

ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානී (CNI)ට පවසා තිබිණි.  ඒ අනුව යපනී ෙන්යන් ආරේෂක 
යේකම්වරොට යමම යතාරතුර දැන්ීමට උන්‍න්දු යන්‍ාවූ ෙවෙ. 

7. රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) 2019 අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි 

යතාරතුර 2019 අයේේ 9 වැනි දින්‍ පැවැති බුද්ි යතාරතුරු සමායලෝචන්‍ රැසේී යම්දී 
ඉදිරිපත් කිරීමට යහෝ උන්‍න්දුවේ දේවා යන්‍ාමැත.  යමයසේ කාලෙ ෙත කිරීම 

අවශ්‍ය පිෙවර ෙැනීම ප්‍රමාද ීමට ද යහේතුවේ ී ඇත.  එයසේම 2019 අයේේ 9 වැනි 
දින්‍ බුද්ි යතාරතුරු සමායලෝචන්‍ රැසේීයම්දී පළමු යද්ශ්‍න්‍ෙ පවත්වා ඇත්යත් ද 

රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) විසිනි. 

8. 2016 දී හිටපු යපාලිසේපතිට සහ හිටපු අමාතයවරුන්‍ට සහරාන් ෙැන්‍ දන්වා 

තිබුණද, සහරාන් අේලා ෙැනීමට අවශ්‍ය යමයහයුම් ක්‍රිොත්මක කර යන්‍ාතිබිණි. 

9. රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) විසින් ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො ඇතුළු සිෙළු 
යදන්‍ාටම සහරාන් ලිංකායව් සිටිෙයහාත් අනිවාර්ෙයෙන්ම වින්‍ාශ්‍කාරී සිදුීම් 
ඇතිවිෙ හැකි ෙවට දැනුවත් කර තිබිණි.  නිරන්තරයෙන්ම ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො 
ඇතුළු අයන්‍කුත් අදාළ පාර්ශ්‍ේවෙන් දැනුවත් කර තිබුණු ෙව රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ 

(SIS) ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරන්‍ ලදී. 

30 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
අපරාධ පරීක්ෂණ පදපාර්තපම්න්තුපේ පජයෂ්ඨ නිපයෝජය පපාලිසප්ති (SDIG-CID) 
රවි පසපනවිරත්න මහතා 

1. අපරාධ පරීේෂණ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුව (CID) වන්‍ාතවිේලුයවන් 

අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙත් පුද්ෙලෙන්යෙන් ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ කිරීයම්දී, 2019 ජන්‍වාරි 26 දින්‍ පළමු 
වතාවට සහරාන් න්‍ම් පුද්ෙලො පිළිෙඳව දැනුවත්ී ඇත.  ඊට යපර රාජය බුද්ි 

අධයේෂ (SIS) විසින් යහෝ යමම පුද්ෙලො ෙැන්‍ අපරාධ පරීේෂණ 

යදපාර්තයම්න්තුව (CID) ට දන්වා යන්‍ාතිබිණි.  සහරාන්ට එයරහිව විවෘත 

වයරන්තුවේ නිකුත් කර තිබුණු ෙව අපරාධ පරීේෂණ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුව (CID) 
දැනුවත්ව සිට යන්‍ාමැත. එෙ සතුටුදාෙක තත්ත්වෙේ යන්‍ායව්. 
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2. 2019 ජන්‍වාරි 26 දියන්‍න් පසුව සහරාන් ඇතුළු පිරිසේ විසින් කළ පුහුණුීම් 

ආදිෙ පිළිෙඳව යතාරතුරු යහළිීම ආරම්භීයමන් පසු, ලැයෙන්‍ යතාරතුරු 

පිළිෙඳව නිරන්තරයෙන්ම රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) දැනුවත් කළ ෙව යජයෂේඨ 

නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති (SDIG-CID) රවි යසයන්‍විරත්න්‍ මහතා ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇත.  ඒ 

අනුව, 2019 අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ ලැබුණු යතාරතුර රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) විසින් 

අවතේයසේරු කර සැලකීම පිළිෙත යන්‍ාහැකිෙ.  2019 අයේේ 4 දින්‍ට යපර 

කාලයේදී ද සහරාන් පිළිෙඳව යතාරතුරු CID සහ SIS අතර හුවමාරු වූ ෙව අපරාධ 
පරීේෂණ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් යජයෂේඨ නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති පවසා ඇත. 

3. සහරාන් ඇතුළු කේඩාෙම ISIS දර්ශ්‍න්‍යේ සිටි ෙවත් ISIS 
ක්‍රිොකාරකම්වලින් වධර්ෙමත්ව සිටි ෙවත් අපරාධ පරීේෂණ 
යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් යජයෂේඨ නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති පවසා ඇත. 

4. සේථාන්‍ 15ක පමණ පුහුණු කඳවුරු පවත්වා ඇති අතර, එේ පුහුණු 

සැසිෙකට 50-75ේ පමණ සහභාගී වූ ෙව පැවයසේ.  එයසේ න්‍ම්, 750-1000 අතර 

පිරිසේ පුහුණුව ලො ඇති පිළිෙත යුතු යව්.  සෘජුවම ක්‍රිොකාරීව 200 යදයන්‍කු 

පමණ සිටි ෙව පිළිෙත හැකි යව්.  යම් වන්‍ විට ඉන් 75 යදයන්‍කු පමණ අත්අඩිංගුවට 

යෙන්‍ ඇති ෙැවින්, තවත් ක්‍රිොකාරී අෙ 125 යදයන්‍කු පමණ නිදහයසේ ඇති ෙව 
පිළිෙත හැකිෙ. 

5. ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්ට එයරහිව ෙන්න්‍ා පිෙවරෙන් තවදුරටත් දියුණුකරමින් 
ඉදිරිෙට යෙන්‍ ො යුතු ෙව ඔහු විශ්‍ේවාස කරන්‍ ෙව පැවසීෙ.  ඒ අනුව ෙමය වන්යන් 
යම් වන්‍ විට සිදුයකයරමින් පවතින්‍ කටයුතු පිළිෙඳව සෑහීමකට පත්විෙ යන්‍ාහැකි 
ෙවයි. 

31 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
අපරාධ පරීක්ෂණ පදපාර්තපම්න්තුපේ පජයෂ්ඨ පපාලිස් අිකාරී (SSP-CID) ශානි 
අපේපස්කර මහතා 

1. සහරාන්යේ ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් ළඟ තිබුණු T56 ගිනිඅවි තුන්‍ේ සහ රියවෝේවර් 
යදකේ යපාලිසිෙ විසින් යසාොයෙන්‍ තිබිණි. 

2. සහරාන්යේ වන්‍ාතවිේලුව කඳවුයර් තිබී කැලෑ සටන් සඳහා භාවිතා කරන්‍ 

මාලිමා ෙන්ත්‍ර තිබීයමන් යපනී ෙන්යන්, ඔවුන් යෙෝම්ෙ පිපිරීම්වලට පමණේ සීමා 
යන්‍ාී කැලෑ සටහන් සඳහා ද සූදාන්‍ම් ී සිටි ෙවෙ. 

3. යජයෂේඨ බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ නිලධාරීන් සැඟී මුහුණු සඟවායෙන්‍ සිටීම අන්‍වශ්‍ය 

ෙවත්, කණිෂේඨ බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ ක්‍රිොකාරීන් පමණේ අන්‍න්‍යතාවෙ සඟවායෙන්‍ සිටිෙ 

යුතු ෙවත් ශ්‍ානි අයබ්යසේකර මහතා ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇත.  රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) 
පවා ෙම්කිසි අවසේථාවකදී න්‍ඩුවකට සාේි දීම සඳහා විවෘත අිකරණයේ යපනී 
සිට ඇත. 

32 වැනි සාක්ිකරු  
පජයෂ්ඨ පපාලිස් අිකාරී වරුණ ජයසුන්දර මහතා (වර්තමානපේ රස්ත විමර්ශන 

අංශපේ අධයක්ෂ) 
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1. 2019 අයේේ ප්‍රහාරෙ පිළිෙඳව යතාරතුරු ලැබුණු වහාම සහරාන් 

අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙන්න්‍ා යලස අයේේ 10 වැනි දින්‍ උපයදසේ නිකුත් කර ඇත.  න්‍මුත් 
යමම ප්‍රහාර වැළැේීම සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් ඉහළින් (ආරේෂක අමාතයාිංශ්‍යෙන්) 
උපයදසේ ලොදී යන්‍ාතිබිණි. 

2. යමයලස ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුරුවලට ප්‍රතිචාර දැේීමට CID, TID වැනි 

ආෙතන්‍වලට යහෝ සාමාන්‍ය යපාලිසේ නිලධාරීන්ට ඇති හැකිොව අවම ෙවත්, 
ප්‍රතිචාර දැේීම අනිවාර්ෙයෙන්ම ඉහළම මේටයම් සම්ෙන්ධීකරණෙේ ඇතිව 

යුදහමුදාව, වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ ෙලකාෙ (STF) වැනි වියශ්‍ේෂ පුහුණුවේ ලත් ආෙතන්‍ 
මගින් කළ යුතුව තිබුණු ෙවත් ඔහු පිළිෙන්න්‍ා ෙව පවසා ඇත.  යමයින් යපනී 
ෙන්යන් ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ හරහා නිසි පිෙවර ෙැනීමට 
උපයදසේ දිෙ යුතුව තිබුණු ෙව ෙ. 

3. යමම ලැබුණු යතාරතුරු මත ඉහළම මේටයමන් ආරේෂක පිෙවරෙන් ෙත 
යුතුව තිබිණි. 

33 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
රස්ත විමර්ශන පකාට්ඨාශපේ (TID) පපාලිස් පරීක්ෂක (IP) ටී.ආර්.පක්.ආර්. 
පතිරණ මහතා 

1. යමාහුයේ සාේි අනුව, පරිපාලන්‍ නිලධාරිෙකු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො 
යලස පත්වුවයහාත් අවශ්‍ය ත්‍රසේත මර්දන්‍ ක්‍රිොවලට උපයදසේ ලොදීමට ඇති 
හැකිොව දුර්වල ෙව යපනී ෙෙ. 

2. සහරාන් අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙන්න්‍ා යලසට කිසිදු වියටක වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ 

ෙලකාෙට (STF) උපයදසේ ලැබී යන්‍ාතිබුණු ෙව ප්‍රකාශ්‍ විෙ.  යමයින් යපනී ෙන්යන් 
අදාළ අමාතයවරුන් යහෝ ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො සහරාන් අේලාෙැනීයම් 
අවශ්‍යතාවෙට නිසි ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙේ ලො යන්‍ාදුන් ෙවෙ. 

3. යපාලිසේ වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ ෙලකායේ (STF) අණයදන්‍ නිලධාරී ලතීෆේ මහතා 

පවසන්‍ ආකාරෙට, පාසේකු ප්‍රහාරයෙන් පසුව වුවද ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් අේලා ෙැනීම සඳහා 

වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ ෙලකාෙ (STF) යොදායෙන්‍ යන්‍ාමැත. 

4. මත්ද්‍රවය වැටලීම් නිරන්තරයෙන් සිදුීම නිසා පාසේකු ප්‍රහාරෙ සිදුවූවා ෙයි 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් කරන්‍ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ෙ ප ‍ිළියන්‍ාෙන්න්‍ා ෙව ලතිෆේ මහතා ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරන්‍ 
ලදී.  එෙ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍ වාසිෙේ ලොෙැනීමට කරන්‍ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ෙේ 
යලස හැඳින්ීමට පුළුවන්‍. 

5. 8900කට ආසන්න්‍ වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ ෙලකායේ (STF) ෙලමුළුයවන් 2245කට 
ආසන්න්‍ සිංඛයාවේ ප්‍රභූවරුන් තියදයන්‍ේ යවනුයවන් යොදායෙන්‍ තිබීම ලතිෆේ 

මහතා විසින් පිළියෙන්‍ ඇති අතර, එෙ ජාතික වින්‍ාශ්‍ෙේ යලස හැඳින්විෙ හැකිෙ. 

6. පාසේකු ඉ රුදින්‍ ප්‍රහාරෙට යපර වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ ෙලකාෙට (STF) ජමිෙතුේ 

මිේලයත් ඊබ්‍රහිම් (JME) යහෝ ජාතික තව්හිද් ජමාත් (NTJ) යහෝ සහරාන් පිළිෙඳව 
ආරේෂක මේඩලයෙන් උපයදසේ ලැබී යන්‍ාතිබුණි.  යමයින් යපනී ෙන්යන් 
ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ සහරාන් මැඩලීමට ෙතහැකි උපරිම ක්‍රිොමාර්ෙ ෙැනීමට 
කටයුතු කර යන්‍ාමැති ෙවයි. 
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35 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
හිටපු පපාලිස්පත් එන.පක්.ඉලංගපකෝන් මහතා 
(ජනාිපතිතුමන් පත්ක  ත්‍රිපුද්ධගල කමිටුපේ සාමාජික) 

1. යමාහුයේ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ අනුව කමිටුවට පළමුයවන් සති යදකක කාලෙකුත් 
යදවනුව තවත් සති තුන්‍ක කාලෙකුත් ලො දී තිබිණි.  යමම කාලෙ ඉතා යකටි 

ෙැවින්, පාසේකු ඉරුදින්‍ එේලවූ ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාරෙ පිළිෙඳව ෙැඹුරින් කරුණු වාර්තා 
කිරීමට අවශ්‍ය පරීේෂණ කිරිමට එම කමිටුවට යන්‍ාහැකි ී ඇත. 

36 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
පම්ජර් ජනරාල් ලාල් පපපර්රා මහතා (2011-2015 පපබරවාරි දක්වා කාලපේදී 
නැපගනහිර ආඥාපති) 

1. 2014 දර්ො න්‍ෙරයේ යොදුෙලයසේන්‍ා ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍යෙන් පසුව, සහරාන් අතුළු 

කේඩාෙම සහ ජමිෙතුේ මිේලයත් ඊබ්‍රහිම් (JME) සාමාජිකයින් දර්ො න්‍ෙරයේ 
සිදුීම්වලට විරුද්ධව න්‍ැයෙන්‍හිර පළායත් ක්‍රිොත්මක ීයම් අදහසින් සිංවිධාන්‍ෙ 

ීමට උත්සාහ කළ ෙැවින්, 2014 දී සහරාන් හා ඔහුයේ අනුොමිකයින් යෙන්වා 
අන්‍තුරු ඇඟවූ ෙව යම්ජර් ජන්‍රාේ ලාේ යපයර්රා මහතා ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ.  එ ෙව 
සහලාන් මවුලවිතුමායේ සාේියෙන්ද තහවුරු ී ඇත. 

2. මාස 2කට වරේ පැවැත්යවන්‍ ආරේෂක යේකම්යේ යමයහයුම් 
සාකච්ඡායව්දීත් සහරාන් ඇතුළු පිරිසයේ ක්‍රිොකාරකම් ෙැන්‍ සාකච්ඡාවූ ෙව යම්ජර් 
ජන්‍රාේ ලාේ යපයර්රා මහතා පැවසීෙ.  න්‍මුත් සහරාන්ට විරුද්ධව පිෙවර ෙැනීමට 
තීරණෙේ ලො යන්‍ාෙත්යත් ඔහු ජාතික ආරේෂාවට තර්ජන්‍ෙේ වනු ඇතැයි අදහසේ 
යන්‍ාකළ ෙැවින් ෙයි ද ඔහු පැවසීෙ. 

38 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
ිලන්ත විතානපේ මහතා (පබාු බල පස්නා සංවිධානපේ පල්කම්) 

1. යමාහු ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර සිටියේ ඔවුන්යේ සිංවිධාන්‍ෙ යොඩ න්‍ෙන්‍ ලද්යද් 
බුද්ධාෙම ආරේෂා කිරීමට සහ යපෝෂණෙ කිරීමට ෙව ෙ.  න්‍මුත් බුද්ධාෙයම් 
අයිතිෙ සෑම යෙෞද්ධෙකුටම එක හා සමාන්‍ව තියෙන්‍ ෙැවින් හා අතිූජය මහා 
සිංඝරත්න්‍ෙ යමම කාර්ෙෙ ඉටුකිරීමට සදාකාලිකවම යපරමුණ යෙන්‍ ක්‍රිොකරන්‍ 
ෙැවින් ඉහත අවශ්‍යතාවෙ යවනුයවන් යවන්‍මම සිංවිධාන්‍ යොඩන්‍ැගීම අවශ්‍ෙ 
යන්‍ායව්.  යමාහු ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේ දර්ො න්‍ෙරයේ යමම සිංවිධාන්‍ෙ විසින් පැවැත්වූ 
රැසේවියම්දී ෙලයොඩඅත්යත් ඥාන්‍සාර හිමිෙන් ආයව්ෙශීලීව කථා කළ  ෙවෙ.  
යමවැනි ක්‍රිොවන් බුද්ධාෙම යපෝෂණෙ කිරීමටත් ආරේෂා කිරීමටත් ෙතයුතු නිසි 
මාර්ෙෙ යන්‍ායව්. 

41, 42, 43, 46 හා 47 වැනි සාක්ිකරුවන් 
නීතිපති පදපාර්තපම්න්තුව 

1. අතියර්ක යසාලිසිටර් ජන්‍රාේ දිලීප පීරිසේ මහතායේ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ෙ අනුව 2017 

සහ 2018 සහරාන්යේ ජමිෙතුේ මිේලයත් ඊබ්‍රාහිම් සමාජ ජාලෙ තහන්‍ම් කරන්‍ 

යලස උපයදසේ ඉේලා තිබුණ අතර, සහරාන් ඇතුළු පුද්ෙලයින් අත්අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ 
විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ෙේ කිරීමට හැකිොවේ ඇත්දැයි විමසා තිබුණි. න්‍මුත් එම ලිපිවලට 

නීතිපති යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයවන් පිළිතුරේ ෙවා යන්‍ාමැත. 2019 මාර්තු මාසයේදී 
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ත්‍රසේත විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාශ්‍යේ නිලධාරීන් නීතිපති යදපාර්තයම්න්තුවට කැඳවා 
සහරාන් අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීමට විවෘත වයරන්තුවේ නිකුත් කරන්‍ ලදී.  න්‍මුත් යමම 
ක්‍රිො පිළියවලට ෙතවූ දීර්ඝ කාල සීමාව අනුව නීතිපති යදපාර්තයම්න්තුව 
සහරාන්ට විරුද්ධව පිෙවර ෙැනීමට උපයදසේ දීමට ෙත් දීර්ඝ කාලෙ 
සාධාරණීකරණෙ කිරීමට යන්‍ාහැකිෙ. 

2. කාත්තන්කුි සිට නීතිපති යදපාර්තයම්න්තුවට පැමිණි මවුලවි සහලාන් 
විසින් සහරාන්යේ හැසිරීම පිළිෙඳව පැමිණිේලේ භාරදුන් අවසේථායව්දී ඒ පිළිෙඳව 
වියශ්‍ේෂ අවධාන්‍ෙ යොමු කළ නීතිපති යදපාර්තයමන්තුව කාත්තන්කුි යපාලිසේ 
සේථාන්‍ාිපති ෙන්වා උපයදසේ දී යපාලිසේපතිවරොට ද දන්වනු ලැබීෙ.  නියෙෝජය 
යසාලිසිටර් ජන්‍රාේ දිලීප පීරිසේ මහතා පැවසුයව් යමම පැමිණිේල නීතිපති 
යදපාර්තයම්න්තුවටම පැමිණ කළ ෙැවින් එෙ හදවතට දැනී යන්‍ාපමාව පිෙවර ෙත් 

ෙවෙ.  න්‍මුත් ත්‍රසේත විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාශ්‍යේ (TID) ලිපිවලට එතරම් ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙේ 
යන්‍ාලැබීම අසතුටට යහේතුවන්‍ ෙව දැේවිෙ හැකිෙ. 

45 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
හිටපු ආරක්ෂක පල්කම් (2017.07.04 - 2018.10.30) කපිල වවදයරත්න මහතා 

1. 2018 ඔේයතෝෙර් 23 ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට යපාලිසේපති කැඳීමට අවශ්‍ය 
යන්‍ාවන්‍ ෙව ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො විසින් ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොට දැනුම් දී 
තිබිණ.  එෙට යහේතුවේ දැන්‍ෙැනීමට යන්‍ාමැත. 

2. ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීම් නිසි පරිදි නිශ්‍ේචිත දින්‍ෙකට පවත්වා 
යන්‍ාමැත. පැමියණන්යන් කවුද ෙන්න්‍ත් එයසේ රැසේීම කැඳවන්‍ අවසේථාවලදී 
දැනුම්දීමට සිදුී තිබිණි. 

3. සතිපතා පැවැත්යවන්‍ බුද්ි යතාරතුරු සමායලෝචන්‍ රැසේීයම්දී 
අනිවාර්ෙයෙන්ම ප්‍රථම යද්ශ්‍න්‍ෙ (බුද්ි තත්ත්වෙ පිළිෙඳව) පවත්වන්යන් රාජය 

බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) විසිනි. 

4. යමාහු ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරනුයේ ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීම්වල විපේෂයේ 
මන්ත්‍රීවරුන් යන්‍ාසිටිෙ යුතු ෙවෙ. 

5. යමාහු ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරනුයේ, 2018 මැයි 15 දින්‍ ISIS මැඬලීමට ෙත හැකි 
ක්‍රිොමාර්ෙ පිළිෙඳව ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට දන්වන්‍ යමන් ඔහු විසින් රාජය බුද්ි 

අධයේෂ (SIS) ට දන්වා තිබිණි.  ඒ මගින් යපනී ෙන්යන් රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ව දැනුවත් කරන්‍ ක්‍රමයව්දෙේ තිබුණු ෙව ෙ. 

6. රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) සෘජුවම ආරේෂක යේකම්ට කථාකරන්‍ 

අවසේථා ද තිබී ඇත.  න්‍මුත් 2019 අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ එයසේ කථා කර ලැබුණු බුද්ි 
යතාරතුර ලොදී යන්‍ාතිබිණි. 

48 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
පපාලිස ් අිකාරී ජගත් විශාන්ත මහතා - රස්ත විමර්ශන පකාට්ඨාශපේ (TID) 
වැඩබලන අධයක්ෂ (2017.08.02-2018.12.06) 

1. 2017 මුේ භාෙයේ පර්යේෂණ හා විශ්‍ේයේෂණ මේඩලෙ (Research and 
Analysis Board) මගින් ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් පිළිෙඳව යසීම ආරම්භ කයළේ නියෙෝජය 
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යපාලිසේපති න්‍ාලක සිේවා මහතායේ උපයදසේ මත ෙ.  2017 මුේ භාෙයේදී මුසේලිම් 
අන්තවාදෙ පිළිෙඳව පරිේෂණ ආරම්භ කර ඇත. 

2. දිෙන්‍ සිද්ියෙන් පසුව සිිංහල වියරෝධී මුසේලිම් අන්තවාදෙ සීඝ්‍රයෙන් 
පැතිරී ගියේෙ. 

3. නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති න්‍ාලක සිේවාට විරුද්ධව ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ඝාතන්‍ 
කුමන්ත්‍රණෙේ ෙැන්‍ යකරුණු විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ නිසා ජපන් රජයෙන් ලද වියශ්‍ේෂ විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ 
වාහන්‍ෙ වුවද ඔවුන්‍ට භාවිතා කිරිමට යන්‍ාහැකි වූ ෙව ඔහු ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ.  එම 
වාහන්‍ෙ භාවිතා යන්‍ාකරන්‍ යලස පරීේෂණ කේඩාෙම පවසා තිබුණි.  (යමයතේ 
කිසිම ප්‍රතිඵලෙේ න්‍ැති පරීේෂණෙේ නිසා ත්‍රසේත විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාශ්‍යේ 
ක්‍රිොකාරකම් අසමත් වූ ආකාරෙ යමයින් යපනී ෙයි.) 

4. න්‍ාලක සිේවා අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙත් ෙැවින් ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් ෙැන්‍ කරයෙන්‍ ගිෙ 
වැඩ පිළියවල අඩාල වූ ෙව ඔහු ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ. 

49 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
ගරු අග්‍රාමාතය රනිල් වික්‍රමසිංහ මැතිතුමා 

1. යෙෝම්ෙ පිපිරියමන් පසුව ආරේෂක ප්‍රධානීන්ට, ආරේෂක යේකම්ට හා 
යපාලිසේපතිට අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන් හමුීමට පැමියණන්‍ යලස දැනුම් දුන්න්‍ද ඔවුන් 
යන්‍ාපැමිණීම විශ්‍ාල වින්‍ෙ වියරෝධී ක්‍රිොවේ වන්යන්ෙ.  ආරේෂක යේකම් 
පැවසුයව් එයසේ යන්‍ාෙන්‍ යලසට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් උපයදසේ දුන් ෙව ෙ. 

2. අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන් පවසන්‍ අන්දමට, ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ නිසි පරිදි නිසි 

ආකාරෙට පවත්වා යන්‍ාමැති අතර, ඇතැම් විට මාසෙකට වරේ පවත්වා ඇති අතර 
සමහර මාසවල එේ වරේ යහෝ රැසේවි යන්‍ාමැති අවසේථා ද තිබිණි.  යමයින් 
යපයන්‍න්යන් ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් නිසි ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙ දී ක්‍රිො යන්‍ාකළ 
ෙවෙ. 

3. 2018 ඔේයතෝෙර් 26 යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍ අර්බුදයෙන් පසුව ආරේෂක 

මේඩලයේ රැසේීම් යකයසේවත් පැවැත්වූවාද ෙන්න්‍ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙකි.  2019 යපෙරවාරි 
මාසයේ පමණේ එේ රැසේීමේ පවත්වා ඇත.  ඊට පසු පාසේකු ඉරුදින්‍ යෙෝම්ෙ 
ප්‍රහාරෙ එේලවන්‍ යතේම ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීම් පවත්වා යන්‍ාමැත. 

4. අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන්යේ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ෙට අනුව 2018 ඔේයතෝෙර් 26 දියන්‍න් පසුව, 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විසින් අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ වැඩකටයුතුවලට 
යහෝ කථාෙහට සහභාගී කර යන්‍ාෙත් ෙව යපනී ෙයි. 

5. එිංෙලන්තෙ ඉන්දිොව වැනි රටවල නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ අමාතය තන්‍තුරට එම 
රාජකාරි ෙැන්‍ අත්දැකීම් තියෙන්‍ අෙ පත්කර ඇති ෙව අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා විසින් 
පිළිෙනු ලැබුයව්ෙ.  එම රාජකාරි ෙැන්‍ අත්දැකීම් තියෙන්‍ අෙ සිටියේ න්‍ම් වඩාත 
යහාඳ ප්‍රතිඵල ලොෙත හැකිව තිබුණු ෙව අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ. 

6. නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ පිළිෙඳ අමාතයවරුන් හා යපාදුයව් ආරේෂක අිංශ්‍ මුසේලිම් 
අන්තවාදෙ පිළිෙඳව කථාෙහ කරමින් සිටිො මිසක එෙ ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ ෙවට හැයරන්‍ 

ෙව යත්රුම් යෙන්‍ කටයුතු කර යන්‍ාමැති ෙව යපනීෙන්‍ අතර, එම තත්ත්වෙ 
අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන් විසින් ද පිළිෙන්න්‍ා ලදී. 
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7. ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණෙ නිසි ආකාරෙට ක්‍රිොත්මක යන්‍ාවුණු ෙැවින්, 
යෙෝම්ෙ පිපිරිම් සිදුවුණද අපට නිසි යතාරතුරු ලැබී යන්‍ාතිබිණි. 

8. සහරාන් ත්‍රසේතවාදී ක්‍රිොවල නිරත වූවද, අදාළ බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ ඒවා ෙැන්‍ අවශ්‍ය 
යතාරතුරු යසාොෙැනීමට අයපායහාසත්ී තිබිණි. රාජය බුද්ි යසේවා හා එහි 
ප්‍රධානිො එේ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් අසමත්ී තියබ් න්‍ම් හා රාජය බුද්ි යසේවාව අසාර්ථක 

න්‍ම්, එහි ප්‍රධානිො ඒ ෙැන්‍ වෙකීම දැරිෙ යුතු ෙ. 

9. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් හා අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන් විසින් ත්‍රසේතවාදින් වින්‍ාශ්‍ කර යහෝ 
අත්අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ අවසාන්‍ ෙයි පැවසීම පිළිෙැනීමට යන්‍ාහැකි වාතාවරණෙේ 
තවමත් පවතියි.  යමෙ යමයසේ යන්‍ායව් ෙයි පැවසීමට  අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන්ට ද 
යන්‍ාහැකි විෙ. 

50 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
රාජය ආරක්ෂක රාජය අමාතය රුවන් විපේවර්ධන මහතා 

1. ඔහුට පවරා දී තිබුයේ හමුදා පුහුණු මධයසේථාන්‍, රේන්‍ා ලිංකා ආරේෂක 

සමාෙම, රණවිරු යසේවා අිකාරිෙ, සිවිේ ආරේෂක ෙලකාෙ හා ශිෂයභට ෙලකාෙ 

පමණේ න්‍මුත්, පාර්ලියම්න්තුයව්දී රයේ ආරේෂාවට අදාළ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍වලට 
පිළිතුරුදීමට ඔහුට සිදුීම යන්‍ාෙැලයපන්‍ කරුණේ වන්‍ අතර ආරේෂාව පිළිෙඳව 
පාර්ලියම්න්තුයව්දී පිළිතුරු දීයම් පිළියවත යහාඳින් සිදු යන්‍ාවූ ෙව යපනී ෙයි. 

2. රාජය ආරේෂක රාජය අමාතයතුමා පවසන්‍ ආකාරෙට ආරේෂක 
යේකම්වරුන් පවා වසර පහේ ඇතුළත පසේ වතාවේ මාරු වූ ෙැවින් ආරේෂක 
අමාතොිංශ්‍යේ ක්‍රිොකාරිත්වෙ දුර්වල ආකාරයෙන් වූ ෙව යපයන්. 

3. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් රටින් ෙැහැරවන්‍ සමහ අවසේථාවලදී රාජය 
අමාතයවරොට වැඩෙැලිමට පවරා යන්‍ාගිෙ ෙව ඔහු ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ.  යමෙ ඉතාම 
ප්‍රෙල යලස ජාතික ආරේෂාවට ෙලපාන්‍ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙකි.  ජන්‍ාිපතිපතිතුමන් යමම 
පැහැර හැරීම සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් වෙකීම දැරිෙ යුතු වන්යන්ෙ. 

4. ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීම් සේිර කාල වකවානු තුල 

යන්‍ාපැවැත්වූෙවත්, ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ දී 2018 ඔේයතෝෙර් මාස ෙට යපර 
කිසිවියටකත් සහරාන්යේ ක්‍රිොකාරකම් ත්‍රසේත ක්‍රිොකාරකම් යලස හඳුන්‍ායෙන්‍ 
ඒවා මැඩලීමට යමයහයුම් ක්‍රිොත්මක කිරීමට උපයදසේ ලො යන්‍ාදුන් ෙවත් රාජය 
අමාතයවරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ. 

5. ආරේෂක මාේඩලික ප්‍රධානීට ත්‍රසේත වියරෝධී යමයහයුම් යහෝ ක්‍රිොත්මක 
කිරීමට අවශ්‍ය ෙලතල ලොදී යන්‍ාමැති ෙව රාජය අමාතයවරො පිළිෙත්යත්ෙ. 
යමෙ නිවැරදි කළ යුතු කරුණකි. 

51 වන සාක්ිකරු 
හිටපු නීතිය හා සාමය පිළිබඳ අමාතය සාගල රත්නායක මහතා (2018 මාර්තුවලට 
පපර) 

1. රාජය බුද්ි යසේවෙ (SIS) යපාලිසියේ යකාටසේ වුවද ආරේෂක 

අමාතයාිංශ්‍ෙ ෙටයත් තිබුණු ෙව ඔහු ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ.  එන්‍මුත්, රාජය බුද්ි යසේවෙ 
ආරේෂක අමාතයාිංශ්‍යේ කා යවත වාර්තා කයළේද ෙන්න්‍ තමන් යන්‍ාදන්න්‍ා ෙව ද 
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ඔහු පවසා සිටියේෙ.  යමම ක්‍රිො පිළියවල පිළිෙඳව නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ පිළිෙඳ 
අමතයවරො දැන්‍ෙත යුතුව තිබිණි. 

2. නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ පිළිෙඳ අමාතයවරොට අදාළ විෂෙෙන් ෙැන්‍ පසුබිම් 
දැනුමේ ඔහුට තිබුයේ න්‍ම් පහළ නිලධාරීන්යේ උපයදසේ මත යන්‍ාරැඳී ඔවුන් 
යමයහෙීමට හැකි ෙව අමාතයවරො විසින් පිළිෙනු ලැබීෙ.  යමවැනි 
අමාතයවරුන් පත්කිරීයමන් එම දැනුම යන්‍ාමැති අෙ පත්කිරීම නිසා වෙකීම්වල 
උපරිම දාෙකත්වෙ ලොෙැනීමට යන්‍ාහැකි විෙ. 

3. අමාතයතුමායෙන් දිගින් දිෙටම ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ කළද, සහරාන් ත්‍රසේතවාදියෙකු 

යලසට හඳුන්‍ාෙැනීමට යහෝ හැකිොවේ යන්‍ාතිබුණු ෙවත්, ආෙමික අන්තවාදියෙකු 
යලසට පමණේ සැලකුණු ෙවත් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ.  යමෙ ආරේෂාව භාර අෙයේ 

අසාර්ථක ෙවකි.  තවද, සහරාන් ෙැන්‍ යසීමට උපයදසේ දුන්න්‍ා ෙයි පැවසුවද, 
යමාන්‍ෙම් යව්ලාවක යහෝ සහරාන් අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීමට යහෝ වින්‍ාශ්‍ කිරීමට 
උපයදසේ දුන් ෙවේ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ යන්‍ාවන්‍ අතර යපාලිසියේ උපරිම ශ්‍ේතිෙ යෙදවිමට 
අමාතයතුමා යලස කටයුතු යන්‍ාකර යපාලිසේපතිවරො මත පමණේ රැඳීයමන් 
යපයන්‍නුයේ අමාතයවරොයෙන් ලැබිෙ යුතු න්‍ාෙකත්වෙ යන්‍ාලැබුණු ෙව ෙ. 

52 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
හිටපු නීතිය හා සාමය පිළිබඳ අමාතය රංජිත් මද්ධුම බේඩාර මහතා (2018 මාර්තු 
සිට ඔක්පතෝබර් දක්වා) 

1. නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ පිළිෙඳ අමාතයවරො යලස සිටි මාස 7ක කාලෙ ඇතුළත 
ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රසේීමවලට සහභාගිවූයේ තුන් වතාවේ පමණේ ෙන්න්‍ 
අසතුටුදාෙක තත්ත්වෙකි. 

2. නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ පිළිෙඳ අමාතයවරෙන් යදයදන්‍ාම ඉදිරිපත් කයළේ යමම 
අමාතයාිංශ්‍ෙට ූර්ණ කාලින්‍ ඇමතිවරෙකු සිටිෙ යුතු ෙන්‍ මතෙයි.  යමෙ රජෙ 
පාර්ශ්‍ේවයෙන් සිදුවූ වරදේ ෙව යපයන්. 

3. ූර්ණ කාලීන්‍ අමාතයවරයෙකු යන්‍ාසිටි ෙැවින් ත්‍රසේත මර්දන්‍ යමයහයුම් 
අසාර්ථක විෙ ෙන්‍ මතෙ අමාතයවරොද අනුමත කරන්‍ ලදී. 

4. යකයසේ යවතත්, සහරාන් අේලාෙැනීයම් අතයාවශ්‍යෙව යත්රුම් යෙන්‍ 
වියශ්‍ේෂ යමයහයුම් හරහා සහරාන්ව අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීමට යහෝ වින්‍ාශ්‍ කිරිමට 
අදාළ තීන්දු තීරණ ෙැනීම අමාතයවරොයේ මේටයමන් සිදුී යන්‍ාමැත.  අවම 

වශ්‍යෙන් යමම අවශ්‍යතාවෙ සඳහා වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ ෙලකාෙ (STF) යෙදීමට යහෝ 
තීරණෙේ ෙැනීම අමාතයවරොයේ මේටයමන් සිදුී යන්‍ාමැත.  

53 හා 54 වැනි සාක්ිකරුවන් 
ත්‍රිප්‍රද්ධගල මලල්පගාඩ කමිටුව 

1. යමම කමිටුයව් සාමාජිකයින් වන්‍ විනිසුරු මලේයොඩ හා හිටපු 

යපාලිසේපති ඉලිංෙයකෝන් ෙන්‍ මහත්වරුන් යදයදන්‍ායෙන්ම, ආරේෂක 
මේඩලයේ රැසේී ම් නිෙම ක්‍රමයව්දෙකට හා යව්ලාවකට යන්‍ාපැවැත්විම නිසා 

2019 අයේේ 4 වන්‍ දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුර ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ද ඇතුළුව අදාළ 

අෙට වාර්තා ීම නිසි ආකාරෙට වූයේද ෙන්න්‍ ෙැටළුවේ වූයේ දැයි ඇසූ විට, 
යපාලිසේපති හා ආරේෂක යේකම් විසින් ඒ ෙව ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට වාර්තා කල යුතුව 
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තිබුණු ෙව ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කිරීම හැර ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීම් යන්‍ාපැවැත්ීයමන් සිදුවූ 

ප්‍රමාද යදෝෂෙ ෙැන්‍ අවධාන්‍ෙ යොමු යන්‍ාකරන්‍ ලදී. ඒ අනුව, යමාවුන් යමම 
ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙ පිළිෙඳව එේ අිංශ්‍ෙකට පමණේ න්‍ැඹුරව අවධාන්‍ෙ යොමු කළා දැයි 
ෙැටළුවේ ඇති යව්. 

2. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විසින් පත්කරන්‍ ලද යමම කමිටුවට  වන්‍තික ෙලෙේ 
යන්‍ාමැති ෙව වාර්තාවිෙ.  එමනිසා එම කමිටුයව් වාර්තා මත රජයේ නිලධාරීන්ට 
(යපාලිසේපතිවරොට හා ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොට) විරුද්ධව වින්‍ෙ ක්‍රිොමාර්ෙ 
ෙැනීම යහෝ නීතිෙ ක්‍රිොත්මක කිරීම නිතයානුකූල යන්‍ායව්. 

55 වැනි සාක්ිකරු 
ශ්‍රී ලංකා ප්‍රජාතාන්ත්‍රික සමාජවාදී ජනරජපේ ජනාිපති අතිගරු වමත්‍රිපාල 

සිරිපස්න මැතිතුමා 

1. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේ, යපාලිසේපතිවරො විසින් 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් 

13 වන්‍ දින්‍ ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීයම්දී යපාලිසේ පරිේෂක නිශ්‍ාන්ත සිේවාට 

විරුද්ධව සාකච්ඡා කළ යද් (යමාහු LTTE සිංවිධාන්‍ෙට සම්ෙන්ධ නිලධාරිෙකු ෙව) 

ලිඛිතව සඳහන් යකාට එම නිලධාරිො 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් 18 දින්‍ රහසේ පරීේෂක 
යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයවන් පිටතට මාරු කරන්‍ ෙව සඳහන් යකාට ජාතික යපාලිසේ 

යකාමිසමට ලිපිෙේ ෙැවූ නිසාත්, යපාලිසේපතිවරො ආරේෂක මේඩල 
රැසේීම්වලට පැමිණ ජිංෙම දුරකථන්‍ යදකේ අතැතිව ඒවා ක්‍රිොකරීම යකයරහි 
පමණේ අවධාන්‍ෙ යොමුකරමින් සිටි නිසාත් යපාලිසේපතිවරො ආරේෂක මේඩල 

රැසේවිමට පැමිණීම න්‍ැවැත්වූෙවෙ.  යකයසේ යවතත් යපාලිසේපති ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේ, ඔහුව 

ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේවිම්වලට කැඳීම 2018 ඔේයතෝෙර් මස 23 වැනි දින්‍ සිට 
න්‍වතා දමන්‍ ලද ෙවයි.  යමම දින්‍ෙ ෙැන්‍ පරසේපරභාවෙේ තිබුණද එම කරුණ 
යපාලිසේපතිවරො ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීම්වලට කැඳීම න්‍ැවැත්ීමට 
ප්‍රමාණවත් ද ෙන්න්‍ ෙැටළුවේ යව්.  තවද යපාලිසේ පරිේවරෙකු මාරු කිරීම වැනි 
පරිපාලන්‍ කටයුත්තේ ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීම්වලදී සාකච්ඡා කිරීම සම්ප්‍රදාෙ 
වියරෝධී කටයුත්තකි. 

2. සහරාන් ඇතුලු කේඩාෙයම් ක්‍රිොකාරකම් ෙැන්‍ නිතරම 201 සිටම 
ආරේෂක මේඩලයේදී සාකච්ඡා කර තිබිණි.  න්‍මුත් ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට ඔහු 
ත්‍රසේතවාදිෙකු යලසට වර්තා ී යන්‍ාමැත.  ඔහු පිළිෙඳව වාර්තාවූයේ අන්තවාදිෙකු 

යලස ෙයි ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ.  විශ්‍ාල බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ තිබුණද, යමම 

ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ ෙැන්‍ වාර්තා යන්‍ාවුණු ෙව ද ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයේෙ.  ඒ අනුව, බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ විසින් 

නිෙමිත රාජකාරිෙ ඉටුකර යන්‍ාමැති න්‍ම් ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණෙ දුර්වල වන්‍ අතර, 
ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණෙ දුර්වල වන්යන් න්‍ම් ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො ඒ පිළිෙඳ 

වෙකිව යුතු වන්යන්ෙ.  එම නිසා, යමම ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ මගින් විශ්‍ාල වින්‍ාශ්‍ෙේ 
කිරීමට යපර එෙ න්‍වතා ෙැනීමට යන්‍ාහැකිීම පිළිෙඳව ආරේෂක අමාතය 

ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පැවසූයේ “ එයහම යවන්යන් යකායහාමද? ෆීේඩා මාර්ෂන් සරත් 
යෆාන්යසේකා හමුදාපති සමයේ යුධ හමුදා මූලසේථාන්‍ෙ තුලම මරායෙන්‍ මැයරන්‍ 
ප්‍රහාරෙේ හමුදාපතිට එේලවුන්‍ා. එතයකාට ඒක යන්‍ාවැළැේීයම් වෙකීම 

හමුදාපති ෙන්න්‍වාද?” ෙන්න්‍යි.  යමම තත්ත්වෙ වාර්තමාන්‍ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙට අදාළ 
යන්‍ායව්.   
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හමුදා මූලසේථාන්‍ෙට මරායෙන්‍ මැයරන්‍ ප්‍රහාරෙ එේලවූයේ සටන් විරාමෙේ හා 
සාම කථා පවතින්‍ අවිෙකදී ෙ.  එවැනි කාලවලදී හමුදා ප්‍රහාරක බුද්ි යමයහයුම් 

සම්ූර්ණයෙන් න්‍වතාලනු ලෙයි.  එවිට LTTE ත්‍රසේතවාදින්යේ ප්‍රෙල බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ෙට 
විශ්‍ාල නිදහසේ ලැයබ්. ඔවුන් නිදැේයේ හැසියරයි.  හමුදා අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනිම් 

න්‍වතාලයි.  තවද යමම ප්‍රහාරෙ එේල වන්‍විට යුධ හමුදාපති  යලස පත්ී මාස 4ේ 

පමණි.  යම් කාලයේ හමුදාපතිතුමා, තමායේ යහෝ තම මූලසේථාන්‍යේ ආරේෂාව 
යසීමට වඩා ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙ දී කටයුතු කයළේ සටන් යපරමුයේ අවශ්‍යතාවෙන් හා 

සූදාන්‍ම ෙව ෙැන්‍ යසාො ෙැලීමට ෙ. යකයසේ වුවද, යුධ හමුදා මූලසේථාන්‍යේ තිබූ 

භටහන් 200කින් යුේත යසේවා මුරෙට, යසෙළුන් 400ේ යෙදීමට ද යසේවා මුරෙ 
භාරව සිටි කර්න්‍ේවරො යවනුවට යම්ජර් ජන්‍රාවරෙකු යෙදීමද හමුදාපති විසින් 

සිදුයකාට තිබුණි.  යකයසේ වුවද, හමුදා මූලසේථාන්‍යේ යසේවා මුරයේ යසේවයේ 
යෙයදන්‍ මුර යසෙළුන් යහෝ ෙිංකර් ෙන්‍ාදිෙ පරිේෂා කිරීම හමුදාපතියෙන් 
ෙලායපායරාත්තු විෙ යන්‍ාහැකිෙ.   

තවද ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ඔහුට ෙම්කිසිවකු විසින් පැවසූ සම්ූර්ණ අසතය 
යතාරතුරකට රැවටී ෆීේඩ් මාර්ෂේ සරත් යෆාන්යසේකා මහතා හමුදාපති හැටිෙට යුධ 

බිමට යසෙළුන් 1500ේ ෙැවූ අවසේථාවක ඉන් එේ අෙකු යහෝ ආපසු යන්‍ාආ ෙවද 
හාසයයෙන් පැවසීෙ.  යමවැනි යද් පැවසීම පාර්ලියම්න්තු කාරක සභායව් 
කටයුත්තට අදාළ යන්‍ායව්.  යකයසේ වුවද ෆීේඩ් මාර්ෂේ සරත් යෆාන්යසේකා මහතා 

විසින් එෙ  සාවදය කරුණේ ෙවත්, එේ වතාවකදී වැිම සිංඛයාවේ හමුදා 

යසෙළුන් මිෙගියේ මුහමායේ සිදුවූ සටන්‍කදී ෙවත් එම ප්‍රමාණෙ 150 ේ්  පමණේ 

ෙවත් එම අවසේථායව්දී ත්‍රසේතවාදින් 300ේ මිෙගිෙ ෙවත් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ.  යකයසේ 

වුවද, යුධ යපරමුයේ ජීවිත ූජායවන් සටන් කරන්‍ විට සිදුවන්‍ හානි පිළිෙඳව 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් හාසයයෙන් යුතුව කථා කිරීම සදාචාරාත්මක යන්‍ාවන්‍ කරුණකි.  
තවද එකි මුහමායේ සටන්‍ යමයහෙවූයේ වර්තමාද යුධ හමුදාපති ජන්‍රාේ ශ්‍යව්න්ද්‍ර 
සිේවා මහතා සහ යම්ජර් ජන්‍රාේ කමේ ගුණරත්න්‍ මහතා ෙ.  න්‍මුත් පාසේකු 
ඉරුදින්‍ ප්‍රහාරයේ වෙකීම පහළ නිලධාරීන් පිට දමා ඔවුන්ට දඬුවම් කළ ආකාරෙට 
ක්‍රිො යන්‍ායකාට ෆීේඩ් මාර්ෂේ සරේ යෆෝයසේකා මහතා මුහමායේ සටයන් සිදුවුන්‍ 
පාඩුව  කණිෂේඨ නිලධාරීන් මත පැවරීමට මාධය දැරූ උත්සාහෙන්ට විරුද්ධව කථා 
කරමින් එම සටයන් සම්ූර්ණ වෙකීම යුධ හමුදාපති විසින් ෙන්න්‍ා ෙව මාධයෙට 
ප්‍රකාශ්‍ෙේ නිකුත් කයළේෙ. න්‍ාෙකයින් කටයුතු කළ යුත්යත් එයලස ෙ.  ප්‍රධානීන් 
ඇඟ යබ්රාෙැනීමට කේෂේඨයින් පිට වරද පැටීම බිෙගුළු ක්‍රිොවේ වන්යන්ෙ. 

3. 2019 අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ ප්‍රහාර පිළිෙඳව මිත්‍ර රටකින් ලැබුණු බුද්ි 

යතාරතුර ෙැන්‍ අයේේ21 දින්‍ ප්‍රහාරෙ සිදුවන්‍ තුරුම ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් දැනුවත් 
යන්‍ාවුයේ එම කාලෙ ඇතුළත එන්‍ම් සති යදකකටත් වඩා වැි කාලෙේ 
ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීම් යන්‍ාපැවැත්වුණු නිසා දැයි ඇසූ විට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 

ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේ ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීම් යන්‍ාතිබුණද අයේේ 14 (සිිංහල අළුත් 
අවුරුද්ද දවයසේ විෙ යුතුෙ) යපාලිසේපති හා ආරේෂක යේකම් ෙන්‍යදයදන්‍ාම මුණ 

ෙැසුනු ෙවත්  අයේේ 16 වැනි දින්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් රයටන් ෙැහැරව ෙන්‍ 
අවසේථායව්දී යපාලිසේපතිවරො ගුවන් යතාටුයපාළට පැමිණිෙද එහිදී යහෝ යමම 

කරුණ දැනුම් යන්‍ාදුන් ෙවත්, අයේේ 12 වැනි දින්‍ මඩකලපුයව් හා යවන්‍ත් 
සේථාන්‍වලදී යපාලිසේපතිවරො හමුවූ න්‍මුදු යමම යතාරතුර පිළිෙඳව දැනුම් යන්‍ාදුන් 
ෙවෙ. තවද යමවැනි යතාරතුරේ ලැබුණයහාත් අවශ්‍ය පිෙවර ෙැනීමට 
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ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ අවසර අන්‍වශ්‍ය ෙවත් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පැවසීෙ.  යමවැනි 
යතාරතුරේ ලැබුණු විට ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ රැසේීමේ කැඳීමම අවශ්‍ය යන්‍ාවන්‍ 
ෙවද ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ.  යමම පිළිතුයරන් යපනී ෙන්යන් යමවැනි 
යතාරතුරේ ලැබුණු විට අවශ්‍ය පිෙවර ෙැනීමට තදෙල තීරණ ෙත යුතු ෙව 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට යන්‍ාවැටයහන්‍ ෙවයි.  යමම යතාරතුර අනුව නිසි පිෙවර ෙත්යත් 

න්‍ම්, එන්‍ම් යකාළඹට ආරේෂාව සැපයීම, ඉන්දිොනු මහ යකාමසාරිසේ කාර්ොලෙට 

ආරේෂාව සැපයීම, මාර්ෙ ොධක යෙදීම, පුද්ෙලයින් හා වාහන්‍ පරීේෂා කිරීම 
වැනි සිෙේල ඉටු කළ යුතු ෙ.  එවැනි පිෙවරවලදී ජන්‍තාවට විශ්‍ාල වශ්‍යෙන් 
කරදරවලට මුහුණදීමට සිදුයව්.  එම නිසා යමම තීරණ ෙත යුත්යත් ආරේෂක 
මේඩලයේ සිටින්‍ සිෙළුම යදන්‍ා දැනුවත්ව හා සාකච්ඡා යකාට අනිවාර්ෙයෙන්ම 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ අවසරෙ ඇතිව ෙ.  යමම තත්ත්වෙ තවමත් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට 
යන්‍ාවැටයහන්‍ ෙව එතුමන් ලොදුන් පිළිතුරු අනුව යපනී ෙයි. 

4. ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ යුධ සමයහේදීත් සාමෙ ඇති විටත් ඕන්‍ෑම රටක 
සාම්ප්‍රදාොනුකූලව නිෙමිත යව්ලාවට (සතිෙකට වරේ) නිශ්‍ේචිත තැන්‍ත 
පවත්වන්යන් තදෙල යලස ආරේෂාවට අදාළ කටයුතු ෙැන්‍ තීරණ ෙැනීමටත් 
නියෙෝෙ දීමටත් ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ සිෙළු ප්‍රධානීන් සිටිෙ යුතු නිසා යන්‍ායව්ද 
ෙනුයවන් ෆීේඩ් මාර්ෂේ සරත් යෆාන්යසේකා ඇසූ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ 
පිළිතුර වූයේ යකායහේ දී යහෝ යමම යතාරතුර ලො දුන්න්‍ා න්‍ම් ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ 
කැඳවිෙ හැකිව තිබුයේෙ ෙන්න්‍ෙ.  යමම පිළිතුර ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙට අදාළව සෑහීමකට 
පත්විෙ හැකි පිළිතුරේ යන්‍ායව්. 

5. 2019 අයේේ 4 හා අයේේ 21 අතර කාලයේදී ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීම් 
පවත්වා තිබුයේ න්‍ම් යමම යතාරතුරට අදාළව අනිවාර්ෙයෙන්ම ෙත යුතු පිෙවර 
ෙත හැකිව තිබුයේ දැයි ෙනුයවන් ෆීේඩ් මාර්ෂේ සරත් යෆාන්යසේකා විමසා සිටි 

විට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් න්‍ැවත ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේ ‘අයේේ 9 පැවැති බුද්ි සමායලෝචන්‍ 

රැසේීයම්දීවත් යම් ෙැන්‍ සාකච්ඡා කර තිබුයේ න්‍ැහැ යන්ද?’ ෙන්න්‍යි.  යම් ෙැන්‍ 

රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) සම්ූර්ණ වෙකීම භාරෙත යුතුෙ.  එයසේ වුවත්, අයේේ 9 
වැනි දින්‍ පැවැති එම රැසේවියම්දී යම් පිළිෙඳව කථා කළද ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ 
නියෙෝෙ එහිදී ලොෙැනීමට යන්‍ාහැකිෙ. 

6. ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ යපාලිසේපති යහෝ ඔහු නියෙෝජන්‍ෙ කිරීමට යවන්‍ත් 
අෙකු යහෝ යන්‍ාමැති අවධාෙක යමවැනි භාරදූර බුද්ි යතාරතුරේ ෙැන්‍ ෙතයුතු 
පිෙවර යපාලිසේපතිවරොට තනිෙම ෙත යන්‍ාහැකි ෙව පැවසූ විට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 
ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරනුයේ ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ නිතිෙ හා සාමෙ භාර අමාතයාිංශ්‍යේ 
යේකම් සිටි ෙැවින් අවශ්‍යතීරණ ෙත හැකිව තිබුයේෙ ෙන්න්‍ෙ.  න්‍මුත් 
යපාලිසේපතිවරොට යහෝ ඔහුයේ යදවැනිෙකුට තිබිෙ යුතු වෘත්තීෙ දැනුම යහෝ 
අත්දැකීම් යේකම්වරෙකුට තිබිෙ යන්‍ාහැකි නිසා යපාලිසේපත් යන්‍ාමැති වුවද 
යේකම්වරො සිටියේෙ ෙන්න්‍ පැවසීම වෘත්තීෙ නිපුණත්වෙට අනුකූල යන්‍ාවන්‍ 
පිළිතුරකි.  නිතිෙ හා සාමෙ භාර අමාතයාිංශ්‍යේ යේකම් සිටි විට 

යපාලිසේපතිවරොයේ වෙකීම ඉෂේට වන්යන් න්‍ම්, හමුදාපතිවරු යන්‍ාමැතිව 
ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො පමණේ සිටිෙයහාත් ප්‍රමාණවත් 
වන්යන්ෙ ෙයි පැවසීම වැනිෙ.  න්‍මුත් ඇත්ත තත්ත්වෙ වන්යන් යපාලිසේපතිවරො 

හා හමුදාපතිවරුන් ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ සිටීයමන් (First Hand Information) 
යකලින්ම යතාරතුරු හුවමාරු ීමේ හා සාකච්ඡාවට භාජන්‍ෙ ීමේ යමන්ම 
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යකලින්ම නියෙෝෙ දීයම් හැකිොවේද ඇති වන්‍ ෙවෙ.  ආරේෂක කටයුතුවලදී 
යමෙ අතයාවශ්‍යෙ. 

7. රයේ ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ රජයේ නියෙෝජිතයින් හා ආරේෂක අිංශ්‍වල 
නිලධාරින් සමෙ සාකච්ඡා කරන්‍ ආරේෂක මණඩල රැසේීම්වලට විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ 
මන්ත්‍රීවරුන් හතර යදයන්‍කු ද ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විසින් සහභාගී කරවායෙන්‍ ඇත.  
යම් ෙැන්‍ යුධ හමුදාපතිවරොයෙන් විමසූ විට ඔහුද පිළිෙන්යන් විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ 
මන්ත්‍රීවරුන් ඉන්න්‍ා තැන්‍ ආරේෂාවට අදාළ සිංයව්දී කරුණු පිළිෙඳව සාකච්ඡා 
කළ යන්‍ාහැකි ෙවෙ.  යමම ක්‍රිොදාමෙ විිමත් යන්‍ාවන්‍ ෙව පැවසූ අවසේථායව් 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේ සිෙළුම මන්ත්‍රීවරෙන් විසින් ලො දී ඇත්යත් එකම 

ප්‍රතිඥාව යහෝ දිවුරුම ෙවත්, රයේ ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ සිෙළුයදන්‍ාම (පේෂ යහෝ 

විපේෂ) ලොදී ඇත්යත් එකම ප්‍රතිඥාව යහෝ දිවුරුම නිසාත්, විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ 

මන්ත්‍රීවරෙන් යමම රජයේ අමාතයවරුන් යලස කටයුතු කළ අෙ නිසාත්, අවුරුදු 

ෙණන්‍ේ එේව රජෙ පවත්වායෙන්‍ ගිෙ අෙ නිසාත්, ආරේෂාව පිළිෙඳව ඔවුන් 
කරන්‍ වියව්චන්‍ න්‍ැවැත්විම සඳහා ඔවුන් ආරේෂාව පිළිෙඳව දැනුවත් විෙ යුතු 

නිසාත්, ඔවුන් ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට කැඳවූ ෙවෙ.  ඔවුන් විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ පුවත් 

ඔවුන්යේ පේෂයේ න්‍ාෙකො ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් නිසාත්, 1999 ෙැසේ පත්‍රෙ අනුව 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් කැමති අෙකු යෙන්ීමට හැකිොව ඇති නිසාත් විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ 
මන්ත්‍රීවරුන් ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට කැඳවූ ෙවෙ.  යමෙ කිසියසේත්ම පිළිෙත හැකි 
තර්කෙේ යන්‍ාවන්‍ අතර කිතුේ ෙහට ගියේ තණයකාළ කපන්න්‍ ෙයි කීවාේ 
වැනිෙ.  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට කැමති අෙකු යෙන්වන්න්‍ හැකි ෙයි ෙැසේ පත්‍රයේ 
සඳහන් කර ඇති නිසාම අදාළ යන්‍ාවන්‍ අෙ යන්‍ායෙන්විෙ යුතු ෙව වටහාෙත යුතුෙ.  
ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ ෙනු යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍ සාකච්ඡා පවත්වන්‍ තැන්‍ේ යන්‍ායව්.  එෙ 
ඉතා යොළඳ තර්කෙකි.  ආරේෂක මන්ඩලෙට විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ මන්ත්‍රිවරුන්යේ 
පැමිණීම හරහා ඔවුන්යේ ෙලපෑම් ආ හැකි ෙයි ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පැවසූයේ ආේඩු 
පේෂෙ හා විරුද්ධ පේෂෙ ෙනුයවන් තියෙනුයේ අප විසින් සාදාෙත් යදෙේ ෙවෙ.  
විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ මන්ත්‍රිවරෙකු ෙයි කිෙනුයේ ත්‍රසේතවාදිෙකු යන්‍ාවන්‍ ෙවෙ.  යමම 
සඳහන්‍ වෘත්තීෙ නිපුණත්වෙකින් යතාරව ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරන්න්‍කි. 

8. 2019 අයේේ 21 දින්‍ උදෑසන්‍ 08:15 - 08:45 අතර රයේ ජන්‍තාවට 
භොන්‍ක ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාර එේල යවත්දී රටම යේ විලේ ෙවට පත්ව තිබිෙදී 

සිිංෙේූරුයව් සිටි ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්, සිිංෙේූරුයවන් සවස 3:07ට පිටත්ී ලිංකාවට 

සවස 4:26ට හා රාත්‍රී 08.03ට පිටත්ී ලිංකාවට රාත්‍රි 9.41ට පැමිණි ශ්‍රී ලන්කන් 

ගුවන් යසේවයේ ගුවන් ොන්‍ා යදයේම යන්‍ාපැමිණ රාත්‍රී 12.00ට පමණ ලිංකාවට 

පැමිණි සිිංෙේූරු ගුවන් යසේවයේ ගුවන් ොන්‍යේ පැමිණියේ ඇයිදැයි විමසූ විට, 
ජන්‍ාදිපතිතුමන් පැවසුයව්  එදින්‍ වවදය පරීේෂණෙේ තිබුණු ෙවත් එම ශ්‍රී 
ලන්කන් ගුවන් යසේවයේ ගුවන් ොන්‍ා යදයේ ආසන්‍ පිරී තිබුණු ෙවත් ෙ.  යකයසේ 
වුවත් වවදය පරීේෂණෙේ තිබුණද ශ්‍රී ලන්කන් ගුවන් ොන්‍ා යදයකන් විමසූ විට 
පිරී තිබුණා ෙයි කීයමන් යපනී ෙන්යන් වවදය පරිේෂණෙ යන්‍ාකර ඒමට ද 
හැකිොව තිබුණු ෙවෙ. තවද එෙ සාමාන්‍ය වවදය පරීේෂණෙේ විෙ යුතුෙ.  

යකයසේ වුවද, ශ්‍රී ලන්කන් ගුවන් යසේවයෙන් ලොෙත් යතාරතුරු අනුව ශ්‍රී ලන්කන් 

ගුවන් ොන්‍ා යදකම පිරි පැවැති ෙව අසතයෙේ ෙව යහළිී තියබ්.  සවස 4.26ට 

ලිංකාවට පැමිණි ගුවන් ොන්‍යේ (UL 303) වයාපාරික (business) අිංශ්‍යේ ආසන්‍ 

6කුත් පිරිමැසුම්දාෙක (economy) අිංශ්‍යේ ආසන්‍ 5කුත් හිසේව තිබී ඇත.  රාත්‍රි 
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9.41ට පැමිණි ගුවන් ොන්‍යේ වයාපාරික (business) අිංශ්‍යේ ආසන්‍ 3කුත් 

පිරිමැසුම්දාෙක (economy) අිංශ්‍යේ ආසන්‍ 37කුත් හිසේව තිබී ඇත.  යමයින් යපනී 
ෙන්යන් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් එම ගුවන් ොන්‍ා යදයකන්ම ලිංකාවට ඒමට උත්සාහ දරා 
යන්‍ාමැති ෙවත් යත්රීම් කාරක සභාවට දැන්‍ දැන්‍ම සතය යන්‍ාවන්‍ කරුණේ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ 
කර ඇති ෙවත් ෙ.  ඔහු රාත්‍රියේ පිටත්වූ සිිංෙේූරු ගුවන් යසේවයේ ගුවන් ොන්‍යෙන් 
පැමිණි ෙව ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ. ෆීේඩ් මාර්ෂේ සරත් යෆාන්යසේකා මහතා පැවසුයේ 
ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙේ නිසා ශ්‍රී ලන්කන් ොන්‍ාවල ආසන්‍ යන්‍ාතිබුයේ න්‍ම් 
කිහිප යදයන්‍කු ෙසේසවා යහෝ ඔවුන්‍ට වන්දි යෙවා ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ලිංකාවට වහාම 
ආ යුතුව තිබුණු ෙවෙ. රයේ ආරේෂාව ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙ පළමුතැන්‍ නිසා එයසේ කළ යුතුව 
තිබුණු ෙව පැවසූ විට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පැවසූයේ ඔහු එවැනි යද් කවදාවත් 
ජීවිතෙටම යන්‍ාකරන්‍ ෙවත් ඊට යපර සිටි අෙ න්‍ම් එයසේ කරනු ඇති ෙවත් ෙ.  න්‍මුත් 
රටට ප්‍රහාර එේලවන්‍ විට ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙ පළමු තැන්‍ විෙ යුතුව තිබුයේ 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් රටට පැමිණීමෙ.  ඊළඟට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් කවුරුන් ෙැසේසවිෙ 
හැකි දැයි ලිහිේ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙේ  මතු කයළේෙ.  රයේ ආරේෂාවට ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙ දිෙ යුතු ෙයි 
කීවිට ඔහු පවසා සිටියේ ‘ඔෙතුමාලා එයහම ෙසේසවාලා එන්‍වා ඇති. මට න්‍ම් 
එයහම ෙැහැ’ ෙනුයවන් වයිංොර්ථෙකි. 

යමයින් යපයන්‍නුයේ රයේ ආරේෂාවට අදාළව තීරණ ෙැනීමට නිර්ීත යන්‍ාවන්‍ 
ෙවෙ.  තවද ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යජේ ොන්‍ෙේ ඇන්‍වුම් කරන්‍ යලසට 
තාන්‍ාපතිවරොට කි ෙවද එෙ ලොයෙන්‍ එන්‍වාට වඩා කලින් සිිංෙේූරු ගුවන් 
යසේවයේ ගුවන් ොන්‍ෙ ලිංකාවට ළඟාවන්‍ ෙවත් පැවසිෙ.  කලින් ලැබුණු පිළිතුරු 
අනුව ෙැලූ විට යමෙම සතය යන්‍ායව් ෙයි විශ්‍ේවාස කළ හැකිෙ. 

9. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් හා අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන් 2019 මැයි මාසයේ අෙදී හා ජුනි 

මාසයේ සිට ත්‍රසේතවාදයෙන් 99%ේ අවසාන්‍ කයළේ ෙයි පුන්‍ පුන්‍ා ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කළද 
අපරාධ පරීේෂණ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපතිවරො පවසා ඇත්යත් 

ත්‍රසේත කඳවුරුවල 750-1000කට ආසන්න්‍ ප්‍රමාණෙේ පුහුණු ී ඇති ෙවත් ත්‍රසේත 

කඳවුරු 17ේ පමණ තිබී ඇති ෙවත් ෙ.  තවද ඔහු පැවසූයේ ක්‍රිොකාරී ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් 

200ේ පමණ සිටින්‍ ෙවත්ෙ.  තවද රාජය බුද්ි යසේවා අධයේෂ (SIS) පවසා සිටියේ 

2014-2017 පිළියෙල කළ ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්යේ යේඛන්‍ෙ අනුව ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් 127ේ 

පමණ සිටි ෙවත් ඉන් 54 යදයන්‍කු පමණ අත්අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ 6 යදයන්‍කු වින්‍ාශ්‍ 

කර ඇති ෙවත් ෙ.  යමම සාකිෙ ලොදුන්යන් 2019 ජුලි මස 24 වැනි දින්‍ දීෙ.  ඊට 

යපර මැයි 29 දින්‍ සාේි දීමට පැමිණි ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේ යමම 
තර්ජන්‍ෙ අවසාන්‍ ෙවට ඔහු යන්‍ාසිතන්‍ ෙවයි. ඊට පසුව පුවත්පත් වාර්තා අනුව ජුලි 

5 සිට සැේතැම්බ් 19 වන්‍දින්‍ යතේ ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් (NTJ හා JWE) 44 යදයන්‍කු හා 

LTTE සම්ෙන්ධ එේ ත්‍රසේතවාදිෙකු අත්අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ ඇත.  ජුලි 24 වැනි දින්‍ට 

පසුව 39 යදයන්‍කු අත්අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ ඇත. (අපරාධ පරීේෂණ 

යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපතිවරොයේ CID-DIG සාේි අනුව).  

එයසේම මැයි මාසයේ අවසාන්‍ෙ වන්‍විට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් 99%ේ 

අත්අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ යහෝ වින්‍ාශ්‍ කර ඇතැයි ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කළද, සතය වශ්‍යෙන්ම 

අත්අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ යහෝ වින්‍ාශ්‍ කර ඇත්යත් ජුලි 24 දින්‍ට යපර 54 යදයන්‍කුත් 

ඉන් පසු 39 යදයන්‍කුත් වශ්‍යෙන් එකතුව 93 යදයන්‍කි.  එවිට රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ 

අධයේෂ (SIS) පැවසූ 127 යහෝ අපරාධ පරීේෂණ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් නියෙෝජය 

යපාලිසේපතිවරො (CID-DIG) පැවසූ 200 යහෝ තවම අත්අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ යහෝ වින්‍ාශ්‍ 
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කර යන්‍ාමැත.  විශ්‍ාල සිංඛයාවේ ක්‍රිොකාරි ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් නිදැේයේ සිටිති.  පුහුණුව 

ලැබූ ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් 900ේ පමණ තවමත් නිදැේයේෙ. යමමයතාරතුරු පැවසූ විට 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරනුයේ ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ න්‍වැත්විමට අයමරිකායව් ජන්‍ාිපති 
යඩාන්‍ේඩ් ට්‍රම්ේට යහෝ යන්‍ාහැකි ෙයි ප්‍රකාශ්‍ෙකි. ෆීේඩ් මාර්ෂේ සරත් 
යෆාන්යසේකා මහතා පැවසුයව් තවම ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් අත් අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ අවසාන්‍ 

යන්‍ාවන්‍ ෙවත්, පාසේ යවත ළමයින් ෙැීමටත් සිංචාරක කර්මාන්තෙටත්, 
අයන්‍කුත් වයාපාරවලට පන්සේවලට හා පේලිවලට ොමට ොධාවන්‍ ෙවත් ෙ.  
ෆීේඩ් මාර්ෂේ රජයේ මන්ත්‍රීවරෙකු යලසට යමම කරුණු පිටතට ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කිරිම 
වැරදි ෙව ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පැවසීෙ.  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් කිෙනුයේ සිෙේල 

සාමාන්‍යෙයි, ආරේෂාව තහවුරුයි වශ්‍යෙන් සතයෙ යන්‍ාවුවද ජන්‍තාවට අසතයෙ 
ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරන්‍ යලසටෙ.  න්‍මුත් සතය වශ්‍යෙන්ම සිදුවිෙ යුත්යත් ජන්‍තාවයේ 
ආරේෂාවට තියෙන්‍ අවදාන්‍ම පිළිෙඳව ජන්‍තාවද දැනුවත් යකාට අවශ්‍ය නිසි 
පිෙවර ෙැනීම ෙ.  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පවසා සිටියේ යකයසේ යවතත් යම් වන්‍ යතේ 

යෙෝම්ෙ පුපුරා ගියේ යන්‍ාමැති ෙවයි.  LTTE ත්‍රසේතවාදී සමයේ අවුරුදු 

තුන්‍හමාරකටම යකාළඹ පුපුරා ගියේ යෙෝම්ෙ 4ේ පමණි. ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් දින්‍පතා 

පහර යන්‍ායදන්‍ අතර, සමහරවිට අවුරුද්දේ යහෝ යදකේ වුවද ඔවුන්‍ට ඉවසා සිටිෙ 
හැකිෙ.  න්‍මුත් ඒ මත සිට ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ අවසාන්‍ ෙයි පැවසීම යහෝ තීරණවලට එළඹීම 

නුවණැති ක්‍රිොවේ යන්‍ායව්.  2019 ඔේයතෝෙර් මස 2 වැනි දින්‍ ද ප්‍රභූ ආරේෂක 
අිංශ්‍ෙ ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාරෙේ එේල විෙ හැකි ෙවට යතාරතුරේ ලො දී ඇත. 

LTTE යුද්ධෙ සමයේවත් එකම යව්ලාවක සේථාන්‍ 9ක යෙෝම්ෙ පුපුරා යොසේ 

යන්‍ාමැති ෙයිද, LTTE යුද්ධෙ කාලයේ රයේ ඉතා අවුේ සහෙත ෙවේ තිබුයේ ෙයිද 

ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පැවසීෙ. න්‍මුත් එෙ ෙථාර්ථෙ ෙවත්, එෙ පිළියෙන්‍ අවශ්‍ය පිෙවර 
ෙන්න්‍වා හැයරන්‍න්‍ට රටට සතය යන්‍ාවන්‍ යද් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ යකාට ආරේෂාව තහවුරු 
කර අවසාන්‍ ෙයි ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කිරීම වැරදි ක්‍රිොවකි.  ත්‍රසේතවාදෙට මුහුණදීම සිංකීර්ණ 
ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙේ ෙව ජන්‍ාිපති පවසන්‍ අතර ෙථාර්ථෙ ජන්‍තාවයෙන් සඟවා ජන්‍ ජීවිතෙ 
ෙථා තත්ත්වෙට යෙන්‍ ආ යුතු ෙයි විශ්‍ේවාස කරයි. 

10. ආරේෂක යේකම්වරුන් තුන් යදයන්‍කු ඉවත්කර හතරයවනුව පත්කර 
ෙත් ආරේෂක යේකම්ද රාජකාරිෙ පැහැර හරින්‍ ලද ෙව පවසමින් ඔහුට එයරහිව 
කටයුතු කිරීමට ද ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට සිදුවිෙ. යමවැනි යකයන්‍ේ පත්කරනු ලැබුයව් 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ම නිසා ඔහුයේ මත වරද පටවා ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට ඉහත ත්‍රසේත 
ප්‍රහාර ෙැන්‍ වෙකීයමන් ෙැලීමට යන්‍ාහැකිෙ. එවැනි ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙේ මතු වූ විට 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ නිසි පිළිතුරේ යන්‍ාලැබුණි. 

11. තවද යමම සිද්ිෙ වන්‍ විට යපාලිසිෙහා නිතිෙ හා සාමෙ පිළිෙඳ 

අමාතයාිංශ්‍ෙ භාරයෙන්‍ ෙතවූයේ මාස 5ේ පමන්‍කැයි ද ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පවසා 
සිටියේෙ. න්‍මුත් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ පිළිෙඳ අමාතයාිංශ්‍ෙ 
භාරෙැනීමටකලින් නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ භාරව අමාතයවරුන් සිටි අතර ඔවුන් ආරේෂක 
මේඩල රැසේීම්වලට ද සහාභාගී වූහ.  එම කාලයේ දී වුවද යමම ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙ 
පිළිෙඳව ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් අවශ්‍ය ප්‍රමාණෙට අවධාන්‍ෙ යොමු කර යන්‍ාමැත. 

12. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යම් රයේ ආරේිත ෙව/අන්‍ාරේික ෙව ෙැන්‍ වෙකිව 
යුතු ෙයි පැවසූ විට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරනුයේ එහි වෙකීම අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන් 

විසින් භාරෙත යුතු ෙවත්, අඩු වශ්‍යෙන් බුර්කාව ඉවත් කිරීමට යහෝ 
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අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන්ට යන්‍ාහැකි වුන්‍ ෙවත් ෙ.  2016දී ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීමකදී 
බුර්කාව ඉවත් කිරිම ෙැන්‍ සාකච්ඡා කළ  අවසේථායව්දීත් අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන් ඊට 
විරුද්ධ වුණු ෙව පවසන්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් අදාළ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙට එක එේයේ පිළිතුරු 
දීයමන් වැළකිණි. 

13. අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන් ඔේයතෝෙර් 26 දියන්‍න් පසුව ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට 
යන්‍ායෙන්වූයේ ඇයි දැයි විමසූ අවසේථායව්දී ජන්‍ාදිපතිතුමන් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේ 
අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන්ට යන්‍ාපැමිණියන්‍න්‍ යලස යන්‍ාදැන්වූ ෙවයි. එයසේ න්‍ම් ඊට යපර 
සිදුවූවාේ යමන් ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීම් පිළිෙඳව කලට යව්ලාවට 
අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන් දැනුවත් කර ඔහු කැඳීමට කටයුතු කළ යුතුව තිබිණි.  න්‍මුත් 
එයසේ කටයුතු යන්‍ාකයළේ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොට ඔහු කැඳවන්‍ 
යලස යන්‍ාපැවසූ නිසාෙ. 

14. යුධ හමුදාපති හා වර්තමාන්‍ ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො පවා පිළිෙන්න්‍ා 
ආකාරෙට ආරේෂක යේකම්යේ රාජකාරිෙ යුධ සමයේ යහෝ සාමෙ ඇති විටදී යහෝ 

යමයහයුම්වලට නියෙෝෙ යහෝ උපයදසේ දීම යන්‍ාවන්‍ නිසා, අයේේ 4 දින්‍ බුද්ි 
යතාරතුරු ලැබුණු විට ආරේෂක යේකම් විසින් ෙත යුතු පිෙවර ෙැන්‍ උපයදසේ යහෝ 
නියෙෝෙ ලො යන්‍ාදුන් ෙව පවසා ඔහුට විරුද්ධව නීතිමෙ ක්‍රිොමාර්ෙ ෙැනීම 
නිවැරදි යන්‍ාවන්‍ ෙව විමසූ විට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරනුයේ ඔහු ගුවන් 
හමුදායව් යසේවෙ කළ අෙකු යලසත් පරිපාලන්‍ නිලධාරිෙකු යලසත් රාජකාරි කර 
ඇති නිසා ඔහු යමම වෙකීම් දැරිමට හැකිොව තිබුණු ෙවෙ.  න්‍මුත් තවම එම දැනුම 
හා අවයෙෝධෙ ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො විසින් ලොයෙන්‍ යන්‍ාමැති ෙවද 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පැවසීෙ. යකයසේ වුවත් හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො යසේවෙ කර 
ඇත්යත් සේයව්ච්ඡා න්‍ාවික හමුදා නිලධාරිෙකු යලසටෙ.  යමෙ පවා ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 

නිවැරදිව දැන්‍ යන්‍ාසිටියේෙ.  යකයසේ වුවද, යමාහුට ඉතා ෙැරෑරුම් අවසේථාවල 
උපයදසේ දීමට හැකිොවේ යන්‍ාමැති ෙව යපනී ෙයි. 

15. අයේේ 21 දින්‍ යෙෝම්ෙ පුපුරා ගිෙ විට අග්‍රමාතයතුමන් ආරේෂක යේකම්, 
හමුදාපතිවරුන් හා යපාලිසේපතිවරො කැඳවුවද ඔවුන් යන්‍ාපැමිණියේෙ.  
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යම් අවසේථායව් රයටහි යන්‍ාසිටි අතර ආරේෂක අමාතය ධුරයේ 
වැඩෙැලිමට කිසිවකුට භාරදී යොසේ තිබුයේ ද න්‍ැත.  යමවැනි වාතාවරණෙකදී 
අග්‍රමාතයතුමන්යේ කැඳීමට ඔවුන් වාර්තා කළ යුතුව තිබුණි.  එවකට සිටි 
ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො පැවසූයේ අග්‍රාමාතයතුමන් කැඳවූ අවසේථායව් යන්‍ාෙන්‍ 
යලස ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කළ ෙවයි.  යමෙ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යෙන් විමසූ විට 
එතුමන් පැවසුයව් ආරේෂක යේකම් අසතයෙ පවසන්‍ ෙවෙ.  (ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 
භාවිතා කයළේ යමෙ ආරේෂක යේකම්යේ අසිරිෙේ ෙ ෙන්‍ වචන්‍යි.  අසිරිෙේ 
ෙනුයවන් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් අදහසේ කයළේ කුමේදැයි ෆීේඩ් මාර්ෂේට යන්‍ාවැටහුණු 
ෙැවින් න්‍ැවත විමසූ විට එහි අදහස අසතයෙ ෙන්න්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පැවසීෙ)  එයසේ 
න්‍ම් එම යජයෂේඨ නිලධාරීන් සිදු කර ඇත්යත් ෙරපතල වින්‍ෙ කඩකිරීමකි.  එයසේ 
ී න්‍ම් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ඔවුන්‍ට විරුද්ධව ක්‍රිො කළ යුතුව තිබුණු න්‍මුත් එයසේ 
යන්‍ාීෙ.  ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණයේ තත්ත්වෙ එතරම්ම කණොටුදාෙක ෙ. 

16.  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පත්කළ මලේයොඩ කමිටුව (යශ්‍රේෂේඨාිකරණ විනිසුරු 
මලේයොඩ මහතා ඇතුළු) වන්‍තික ෙලෙකින් යුතු යන්‍ාවන්‍ නිසාත් කමිටුවට 
ලැබුණු කාලෙ ප්‍රමාණවත් යන්‍ාවන්‍ නිසාත් දීර්ඝ වශ්‍යෙන් හා ෙැඹුරින් 
පරීේෂණෙේ කිරීමට යන්‍ාහැකි වූ ෙව විශ්‍රාමික යපාලිසේපති ඉලිංෙයකෝන් මහතා 
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පවසන්‍ නිසාත් යමම කමිටුයව් වාර්තාව අනුව ආරේෂක යේකම්ට යහෝ 
යපාලිසේපතිට (රජයෙ නිලධාරින්) විරුද්ධව වින්‍ෙ පිෙවර ෙැනීමට හැකිදැයි විමසූ 
විට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ලොදුන් පිළිතුර නිතයානුකූල යන්‍ායව්.   දැන්‍ට 

යශ්‍රෂේඨාිකරණයේ න්‍ඩු 5කට තීන්දු ඉදිරියේදී ලොදීමටනිෙමිත නිසාත් 
මලේයොඩ මහතා යශ්‍රේෂේඨාිකරණ විනිසුරුවරෙකු නිසාත් කමිටු වාර්තාවන් 
ප්‍රයෙෝජන්‍ෙට යෙන්‍ න්‍ඩුවලින්  නිවැරදි තීරණ ලොයදනු ඇතැයි ෙන්න්‍යි.  න්‍මුත් 
වන්‍තික ෙලෙේ යන්‍ාමැති වාර්තාවක සඳහන් යද් පදන්‍ම් කරයෙන්‍ න්‍ඩු තීන්දු 
ලොදීම නිවැරදි යන්‍ාවනු ඇත. 

ඉහත සඳහන් නිරීක්ෂන අනුව නිගමන හා වගකිවයුත්තන් පහත සඳහන් අයුරු පේ. 

1. අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා ආරේෂක මේඩලෙයේ තො යන්‍ාෙැනීම ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 
විසින් සිදුකර ඇති විශ්‍ාල වරදේ යව්.  චන්ිකා ෙේඩාරන්‍ාෙක ජන්‍ාිපතිනිෙ 
සමයේ නිකුත් කළ ෙැසේ පත්‍රෙක අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා ආරේෂක මේ ඩලයේ යන්‍ාමැති 
නිසා අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා සිටීම අතයවශ්‍ෙ යන්‍ාවන්‍ ෙව ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පැවසීෙ.  
චන්ිකා ෙේඩාරන්‍ාෙක මැතිනිෙ පවා එතුමිෙයේ කාලයේ එ.ජා.ප. රජෙේ 
පැවැතිවිට අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට යෙන්වා ෙත්යත්ෙ.  
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් රයේ යන්‍ාමැතිවිට රට පාලන්‍ෙ කිරිම පැවයරන්යන් 
අග්‍රාමාතයතුමාට නිසා අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ සිටීම අනිවාර්ෙ විෙ 
යුතුෙ. 

2. රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ අධයේෂ යන්‍ායෙේ විට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට සෘජුවම 
කථා කරන්‍ ෙව ජන්‍ාධපිතුමන්ද, හිටපු හා වර්තමාන්‍ ආරේෂක යේකම්වරුන්ද 
පවසති.  එෙැවින් 2019 අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ ලැබුණු ඉතා වැදෙත් බුද්ි යතාරතුර 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යවත දැනුම් යන්‍ාදී ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානීට හා යපාලිසේපතිවරොටත්, 
ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොටත් අයේේ 8 හා 9 දින්‍වල දැන්ීයමන් රාජය බුද්ි 
යසේවයේ අධයේෂ නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති න්‍ාලක සිේවා අවශ්‍ය ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙ අදාළ 
බුද්ි යතාරතුරට යන්‍ාදීයමන් විශ්‍ාල රාජකාරිෙ පැහැර හැරිමේ කර ඇත.  ඔහු 
අයන්‍ේ අවසේථාවල ජන්‍ාිපතිට යකලින්ම කථා කරන්‍වා න්‍ම් යමම යතාරතුරම 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට දැන්වූයේ න්‍ැති ෙව පැවසීම අසතයෙේ ී මටද හැකිෙ.  එයසේ න්‍ම් 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යමම යතාරතුර ෙැන්‍ දැන්‍ෙත් පසුව ද ඊට යපර සහරාන්යේ 
අන්තවාදෙ ෙැන්‍ දැේවූ අලස ප්‍රතිචාරෙම දැේවූවා විෙ හැකිෙ. 

3. ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ හා ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණෙ තුල බුද්ි යතාරතුරු වැනි 

වැදෙත් දෑ අදාළ පුද්ෙයින්ට දැනුම් දීමට යෙදාහැරීයම් යේඛන්‍ෙේ (distribution 
list) යන්‍ාතිබුණු ෙව යපනී ෙයි.  යමයින් යපයන්‍න්යන් ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණෙ නිසි 
පිළියවලට ක්‍රිොත්මකී යන්‍ාමැති ෙවෙ.  පිළිෙත යන්‍ාහැකි අඩුපාඩු තිබී ඇති ෙවෙ. 

4. යමම ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ මාස යදයකන් තුයන්‍න් අවසාන්‍ කළ යන්‍ාහැකි ෙවත් 
යකටිකාලීන්‍, මධයකාලීන්‍ හා දීර්ඝ කාලීන්‍ සැලසුම් ක්‍රිොත්මක කළ යුතු ෙවත් 
ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො ො යුධ හමුදාපතිවරො පිළිෙන්න්‍ා අතර ඒ සඳහා අවුරුදු 
යදක තුන්‍කටත් දහෙකටත් අතර කාලෙේ ෙතවන්‍ ෙව පිණිෙනී.  යම් අනුව 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ත්‍රසේතවාදයෙන් 99%ේ අවසාන්‍ ෙයි 2019 මැයි මාසයේ 
අවසාන්‍යේ සිට දිගින් දිෙටම ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කිරීම එේ අතකින් ජන්‍තාව යන්‍ාමෙ ෙැීමකි.  
අයන්‍ේ අතින් ආරේෂාව අවතේයසේරු කිරීමකි. 
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5. යමම ත්‍රසේතවාදයේ න්‍ාෙක ඔහුයේ සිංවිධාන්‍ෙ යොඩන්‍ැගීම ආෙමික 
අන්තවාදයේ මුවායවන් 2014 සිට ආරම්භ කර ඇත.  දිෙටම සිටි ආරේෂක 
අමාතයවරුන් යහෝ ආරේෂක යේකම්වරුන් යහෝ යමහි ෙැඹුර යත්රුම් යෙන්‍ 
යන්‍ාමැති අතර, එම නිසා යමෙ වැළැේීමට සාර්ථක පිෙවරේ ෙැනීම යහෝ තහන්‍ම් 
කිරීමට පිෙවර ෙැනීම යහෝ සිදුකර යන්‍ාමැත. 

6. 2015න් පසුව හිටපු ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ නිසි ආකාරෙට 
නිසි කලට යව්ලාවට, එන්‍ම් සෑම සතිෙකම ෙදාදා දින්‍ (අතීතයේ පටන් පැවැති 
පරිදි) පැවැත්ීව යන්‍ාකළ නිසාත් සමහරවිට මාස 2කට වරේ වත යන්‍ාපැවැත්වූ 
නිසාත් ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට දිෙ යුතු ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙ යන්‍ාදීයමන් රයේ ආරේෂාව 
ෙැන්‍ යන්‍ාසලකා හැර ඇත.  එම නිසා 2019 අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ ලද යතාරතුර 
පිළිෙඳව අයේේ 21 දින්‍ ප්‍රහාරෙ එේල වන්‍තුරුම ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ 
සාකච්ඡා  යකාට න්‍ැත. 

7. බුද්ි අිංශ්‍වල කණිෂේඨ නිලධාරින් කිහිපයදයන්‍කු අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීම 
නිසා බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ දුර්වල විෙ යන්‍ාහැකි ෙව සන්‍ාථ යව්. 

8. න්‍මුත් ත්‍රසේත විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාශ්‍යේ (TID) ප්‍රධානිො අත්අඩිංගුවට 

ෙැනීයමන් මාස 2ක පමණ කාලෙේ එෙ(TID)  නිෙමාකාරයෙන් ක්‍රිොත්මක යන්‍ාවූ 

නිසා සහරාන් ෙැන්‍ කල පරීේෂණ අඩපණ වූ ෙව යපනී ෙයි. NTJ ත්‍රසේතවාදී 

සිංවිධාන්‍ෙ ෙැන්‍ මූලිකවම පරීේෂණ යමයහෙවු ඇත්යත් (TID) අධයේෂ නියෙෝජය 
යපාලිසේපති න්‍ාලක සිේවා මහතාෙ. 

9. 2019 අයේේ 21 දින්‍ සිදුවූ ප්‍රහාරයෙන් පසුව ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් රයටහි 
යන්‍ාසිටි ෙැවින් අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ කැඳවූවද ආරේෂක ප්‍රධානීන් 
පැමිණ යන්‍ාමැත.  එවකට සිටි ආරේෂක යේකම් පවසනුයේ ඔවුන්‍ට 
අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා හමුීමට යන්‍ාෙන්‍ යලස ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් උපයදසේ දුන් ෙවෙ.  
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යමෙ ප්‍රතිේයෂේප කරයි.  එයසේ න්‍ම් ආරේෂක ප්‍රධානීන් වින්‍ෙ 
කඩකිරීමේ සිදු කළ යව්.  එයසේ න්‍ම් ඔවුන්‍ට විරුද්ධව නිසි පිෙවර ෙත යුතුෙ.  න්‍මුත් 
අග්‍රාමාතයතුමාට ආරේෂක කවුන්සලෙ කැඳීමට යන්‍ාහැකිීමට යහේතුව 
ෙයමකුයේ අෙථා ක්‍රිොවේ ෙව යපනී ෙයි. 

10. ෙලයොඩ අත්යත් ඥාන්‍සාර හිමිෙන්ට විරුද්ධව අතීතයේදී මුසේලිම් 
වියරෝධී වයාපාරෙේ යෙන්‍ ගිෙ ෙවට යචෝදන්‍ා තිබුණු ෙව ෙථාර්ථෙකි.  එයසේ න්‍ම් 
සහරාන්යේ ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාරයෙන් පසුව සමසේත මුසේලිම් ජන්‍තාව අපහසු 
තත්ත්වෙට පත්ී ඇති අවසේථායව් ඥාන්‍සාර හිමිෙන් සිරයෙදරින් නිදහසේ කිරිම 
ඥාන්‍ාන්විත කරුණේ යසේ යන්‍ායපයන්.  ඥාන්‍සාර හිමිෙන්ට සමාව ලො දීයම් 
වරදේ යන්‍ාදකින්‍ අතර එෙ කළ යව්ලාව අනුව ජන්‍ාදිපතිතුමන් යමයින් යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍ 
වාසිෙේ ලොෙැනීමට ක්‍රිො කළෙවේ යපනී ෙයි.  යමෙ යහාඳ ූර්වාදර්ශ්‍ෙේ 
යන්‍ාවන්‍ අතර ඇවියලන්‍ ගින්න්‍ට පිදුරු දැමිමකි. 

11. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් හා ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො 2019 මැයි මස අවසාන්‍ෙ 
යහෝ ජුනි මස ආරම්භෙ වන්‍ විට ත්‍රසේතවාදයෙන් 99%ේ අවසාන්‍ ෙයි කීම, යම් වන්‍ 
විට දිගින් දිෙටම සිදුවන්‍ ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීම් අනුව ෙථාර්ථෙේ 
යන්‍ාවන්‍ ෙව යපනී ෙයි. 

12. ත්‍රසේතවාදී කඳවුරුවල ත්‍රසේතවාදීන් 1000ේ පමණ පුහුණු ී තියබ්.  එයින් 
200ේ පමණ ක්‍රිොකාරීව සිටින්‍ ෙව පැවසනු ලැයබ්.  න්‍මුත් අත් අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ 
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තියෙන්යන් ක්‍රිොකාරිව සිටින්‍ අෙයෙන් අඩේ පමණි.  එවුන් සතුව අවි ආයුධ විශ්‍ාල 
වශ්‍යෙන් යන්‍ාමැති වුවද විශ්‍ාල ප්‍රමාණෙේ පුපුරණ ද්‍රවය තියෙන්‍ ෙව සන්‍ාථ යව්. 
එම නිසා මරායෙන්‍ මැයරන්‍ ප්‍රහාර වැනි දෑ එේල ීමට ඇති ප්‍රවණතාවෙ තවමත් 
පවතී. 

13. අතීතයේ ආරේෂක අිංශ්‍වල (වියශ්‍ේෂයෙන් හමුදාවල) හදිසි අවසේථාවකදී 

ක්‍රිොත්මක විමට සැලසුම් (contingency plans) හා අවශ්‍ය භට පිරිසේ සෑම විටම 
සූදාන්‍ම්ව තිබුණි.  යමම ත්‍රසේත ප්‍රහාරෙ එේල වන්‍ විට එවැනි සැලසුමේ ක්‍රිොත්මක 
ී යන්‍ාතිබිණි. යමෙ ආරේෂක කටයුතුවල අඩුපාඩුවකි. 

14. ආරේෂක යේකම් රාජකාරිෙ යුද සමයේ යහෝ සාමෙ ඇති විට හමුදාවල 
ප්‍රමිතිෙ හා සුදාන්‍ම් ෙවට අදාළව පරිපාලන්‍ෙ, යසේවා හා සැපයුම් සම්ෙන්ධීකරණෙ 
කිරිම හා ආරේෂක අමාතයාිංශ්‍යේ ප්‍රධාන්‍ ගිණුම් තැබීයම් නිලධාරී යලස කටයුතු 
කිරීම වන්‍ අතර යමයහයුම් සැලසුම් කිරීම යහෝ යමයහයුම්වලට නියෙෝෙ දිම යහෝ 
ඔහුයේ වෙකීම යන්‍ායව්.  එෙැවින් අයේේ 21 වන්‍ දින්‍ ප්‍රහාර මැඩලීමට අවශ්‍ය 
පිෙවර යන්‍ාෙත්යත් ෙයි (යමයහයුම්වලට අවශ්‍ය නියෙෝෙ ලොදීම) ආරේෂක 
යේකම් මත වරද පැටීම සාදාරණ යන්‍ායව්. යමහිදී අවශ්‍ය පිෙවර ෙැනීම 
සිදුයන්‍ාීමට ප්‍රධාන්‍ යහේතුව වන්යන් ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ නිසි පරිදි රැසේ යන්‍ාීමයි.  
.  යම් ෙැන්‍ ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො වන්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් වෙකිව යුතුෙ. 

15. ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානී (CNI) ට නිසි ෙලතල, වෙකීම් යහෝ අවශ්‍ය කාර්ෙ 
මේඩලෙ ඇතුළු සම්පත් ලොදී යන්‍ාතිබුණු ෙව යපනී ෙයි. ඔහු ෙටතට සිෙළු බුද්ි 
අිංශ්‍ පවරා යන්‍ාතිබීම විශ්‍ාල වරදකි.  ඔහු සිදුයකාට ඇත්යත් ආරේෂක යේකම්යේ 
කාර්ෙ මේඩලයේ මාේඩලික යේකම්වරෙකු යලසට කටයුතු කිරිම පමණි. යම්වා 
නිසි අයුරින් සිදුයන්‍ාීම නිසා ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණයේ කඩා වැටීමේ සිදුී තියබ්.  
යම් ෙැන්‍ ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො වන්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් වෙකිව යුතුෙ. 

16. 2015 සිටම (ISIS) හා සහරාන්යේ ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ (NTJ) ෙැන්‍ ආරේෂක 

මේඩලයේදී රාජය බුද්ි යසේවායව් අධයේෂ (SIS) කරුණු දේවා තිබුණද ආරේෂක 
අමාතයවරො යම්වා වැළැේීමට කළයුතු යමයහයුම් ෙැන්‍ පැහැදිලි නියෙෝෙ ලොදී 
යන්‍ාමැත.  එෙැවින් යමෙ කථාවට පමණේ සීමා ී තිබුණු ෙව යපයන්. 

17. අයේේ 8 වැනි දින්‍ SIS අධයේෂ විසින් CNIට ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාරෙ ෙැන්‍ 
දැනුම්දුන් පසු එදින්‍ම ඔහු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොට ඒ පිළිෙඳව දැනුම් දී තියබ්.  
න්‍මුත් අයේේ 9 දින්‍ පැවැත්වූ බුද්ි සමායලෝචන්‍ රැසේීයම්දී ආරේෂක යේකම් 

පැවසූ පසුව වුවද SIS අධයේෂ නිලන්ත ජෙවර්ධන්‍ මහතා එම යතාරතුර ්ැන්‍ 
රැසේීයම් සිටි අෙව දැනුවත් යන්‍ාකර සිටීයමන් ඔහු එම යතාරතුර අවතේයසේරු කර 

ක්‍රිො කර ඇති ෙව යපනී ෙයි. න්‍මුත් SIS අධයේෂ විසින්ම පැවසූ පරිදි යමම 

රැසේීයම්දී ඔහු ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානී (CNI)ට පවසා ඇත්යත් “සර් ඕක යලඩේ, ඕක 
වහාම අදාළ අෙට (යපාලිසේපති සහ අයන්‍කුත් හමුදා ප්‍රධානීන් ඇතුළු) දැනුම් 

යදන්න්‍” කිො ෙ. න්‍මුත් SIS අධයේෂ එම යතාරතුර ෙැන්‍ රැසේීයම්දී දැනුම් 
යන්‍ාදීමට යහේතුව යලස පවසන්යන් යමම යතාරතුර සාමාන්‍ය යතාරතුරේ මිස 
සන්‍ාථ වූ බුද්ි යතාරතුරේ යන්‍ාවුණු නිසා ෙව ෙ.  සහරාන් ඇතුලු පිරිස වර්ෂ 
ෙණන්‍ාවේ තිසේයසේ යද්ශ්‍න්‍ සහ පුහුණුීම් පවත්වමින් මරායෙන්‍ මැයරන්‍ 
තත්ත්වෙට පත්වන්‍ තුරා යමම බුද්ි යතාරතුරු සන්‍ාථ කරයෙන්‍ යන්‍ාසිට ඇත.  

එෙට SIS අධයේෂ ප්‍රධාන්‍ වශ්‍යෙන්ම වෙකිව යුත්යත්ෙ.  අයන්‍ේ බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ ද 
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දැනුවත් ී  තියබ්.  යකයසේ වුවද යතාරතුර සන්‍ාථ ී  යන්‍ාමැත ෙයි කිෙමින් “සර් ඕක 
යලඩේ, ඉේමන්‍ට අදාළ අෙට දන්වන්න්‍” කීයමන් යපයන්‍න්යන් එම යතාරතුර 

සතය ෙව රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) ද විශ්‍ේවාස කළ ෙවෙ.  න්‍මුත් ඔහු 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට යහෝ දැනුම් දී යන්‍ාමැති න්‍ම් හා අන් අෙ දැනුවත් කිරීම නිෙමිත 

යව්ලාවට යන්‍ාකළ නිසා ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානී (CNI) නිලන්ත ජෙවර්ධන්‍ මහතා 
රාජකාරිෙ පැහැර හැර තියබ්. 

18.  අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ ප්‍රහාරෙ ෙැන්‍ යතාරතුරු ලැබීමට යපර ආරේෂක 
මේඩලෙ රැසේී තිබුයේ යපෙරවාරි මස 19 වැනි දින්‍ යව්.  ඊට පසු අයේේ 21 දින්‍ 
ප්‍රහාරෙ සිදුවන්‍ තුරුම ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ මාස 2ේ තිසේයසේ රැසේී යන්‍ාමැත.  එයසේ 
අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ට පසුව ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ රැසේවූවා න්‍ම් ප්‍රහාරෙ ෙැන්‍ සිෙළු 
යදන්‍ාම දැනුවත් යකාට යමෙ වළේවා ෙත හැකිව තිබුයේෙ.  ආරේෂක මේඩල 
රැසේවිම් යන්‍ාපැවැත්වියමන් ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො වරදේ සිදුකර ඇත. 

19. 2019 මාර්තු මාසයේදී මුසේලිම් අන්තවාදීන් / සහරාන්යේ යොලයින් 
අමාතය ෙරු කබීර් හෂීම් මහතායේ යේකම්වරොට යවි තැබීයමන් පසුව යහෝ 
ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ කැඳීමට අවශ්‍ය පිෙවර යෙන්‍ 
යන්‍ාමැත. යමෙ අනුමත කළ යන්‍ාහැකි තත්ත්වෙකි. 

20. අයේේ 4 වැනි දින්‍ ලැබුණු ප්‍රහාරෙ ෙැන්‍ යතාරතුරු රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ 

(SIS) ට ලැබුණු පසුව ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානී (CNI) ට හා ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොට 
දැන්වූයේ අයේේ මස 8 වැනි දින්‍ ෙ.  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට සෘජුවම කථා කිරීයම් 

පුරුද්දේ ඇතිව සිටි රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) යමයතේ කේ යමම යතාරතුර 
පිළිෙඳව ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට යන්‍ාදැන්වූ ෙව පවසයි.  යමෙ සතයෙේදැයි සැකෙේ 
පවතී. 

21. 2015 සිට ආරේෂක මේඩලයේදී මුසේලිම් අන්තවාදෙ පිළිෙඳව සාකච්ඡා 
කරන්‍ විට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ උපයදසේ යලස තිබී ඇත්යත් යපාලිසිෙට අවශ්‍ය 
පිෙවර ෙන්න්‍ ෙනුයවන් පමණකි.  ඒ අනුව යමෙ මර්ධන්‍ෙ කිරීමට පැහැදිලි 
නියෙෝෙ (උදා - අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීම යහෝ ත්‍රසේතවාදින් වින්‍ාශ්‍ කිරීම) නිකුත් 
යන්‍ාකිරියමන් ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ අවතේයසේරු කර ඇති ෙව යපනී ෙයි. 

22. ජන්‍ාදිපතිතුමන් ඉහත සටහන් යලස යපාලිසිෙට අවශ්‍ය පිෙවර ෙන්න්‍ා 
යලස පැවසුවද සාර්ථක යලස පිෙවර යෙන්‍ තියබ්ද ෙන්න්‍ යසාොෙලා යන්‍ාමැති 
අතර, ත්‍රසේතවාදින් පහර යදන්‍ යතේ ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණෙ අක්‍රිෙව තිබීම 
යහේතුයවන් යපනී ෙන්යන් ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො රටට හා ජන්‍තාවට ආරේෂාව 
ලොදීමට අයපායහාසත් ී ඇති ෙවෙ. 

23. 2015ට යපර තිබූ ආකාරෙට සිෙළුම බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ ප්‍රධානීන් ජාතික බුද්ි 

ප්‍රධානී (CNI) ෙටතට  තො ක්‍රිො යන්‍ාකිරීයමන් ප්‍රතිඵලදායී යලස බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ 
ොන්ත්‍රණෙ ද යන්‍ාපැවැති ෙව යපනී ෙයි. යමෙ ද ආරේෂක අමාතයවරොයේ 
අසාර්ථකත්වයේ තවත් අිංශ්‍ෙකි. 

24. යපාලිසේපතිවරො පවසන්යන් රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) යකලින්ම 
ආරේෂක යේකම්වරෙට වෙකිෙන්‍ අතරම අවශ්‍ය වුවයහාත් යවන්‍ත් ක්‍රමයව්දෙන්ද 
භාවිතා කරන්‍ ෙවෙ.  යමයින් කිෙැයවන්යන් අවශ්‍ය විටකදී ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට 
සෘජුවම කථා කරන්‍ ෙව විෙ යුතුෙ. 
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25. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විසින් යපාලිසේපතිවරොට පැහැදිලි න්‍ැති ක්‍රිොවේ නිසා 
ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට යන්‍ාපැමියණන්‍ යලස නියෙෝෙෙේ ලොදී ඇත්යත් 2018 
ඔේයතෝෙර් මස 23 වැනි දින්‍ සිටෙ. 

26. ආරේෂක මේඩලයේදී යපාලිසේ පරීේෂකවරෙකුයේ මාරුීමේ වැනි 
පරිපාලන්‍ කටයුතු සාකච්ඡා කිරීම වැරදි ක්‍රිොවකි.  මීළඟට ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ 
යපාලිසේපතිවරො යන්‍ාමැතිව යහෝ ඒ යවනුවට ඔහුයේ යදවැනිො යහෝ යන්‍ාමැතිව 
පැවැත්ීම හාසය ජන්‍කෙ.  යමම සම්ූර්ණ ක්‍රිොව සදාචාරයෙන් ෙැහැර වූවකි. 

27. අයේේ මස 4 වන්‍ දින්‍ ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුර අයේේ 9 දින්‍ 
යපාලිසේපතිවරොට ලැබීයමන් පසුව ඔහු සිෙළුම පහළ නිලෙන්ට දැනුම් දී ඇති 
න්‍මුත් යමම යතාරතුයර් ෙරපතල කමට අදාළව යපාලිසේපතිට යහෝ කණිෂේඨ 
නිලධාරීන්ට තීරණ යෙන්‍ ක්‍රිො කළයන්‍ාහැකිෙ.  ඉහත ප්‍රහාරෙ වැළැේවිමට න්‍ම් 
යන්‍ායෙකුත් ආරේෂක පිෙවර ෙැනීමට සිදුවන්‍ අතර සමහර පිෙවර ජන්‍ ජීවිතෙට 
ෙලපාන්‍ ඒවාෙ.  ඒ නිසා එම පිෙවර හා උපයදසේ/නියෙෝෙ ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ 
මටමින් ෙත යුතුව තිබුණි.  එයසේ යන්‍ාවුණු නිසා යපාලිසියේ පහළ නිලධාරීන් ෙත් 
පිෙවර මගින් යමම ප්‍රහාරෙ වැළැේීමට යන්‍ාහැකි ී තියබ්. 

28. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යපාලිසේපතිවරොට ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට 
යන්‍ාපැමියණන්‍ යලස පවසා තියෙන්‍ පසුබිමක යමම යතාරතුර ෙැන්‍ 
යපාලිසේපතිවරො දැනුවත් කල යුතුව තිබුයේ ෙයි පවසා ඔහුට දඬුවම් කිරීම  යහෝ 
වරද පැටීම සාධාරණ වන්‍ ෙව යන්‍ායපයන්.  යපාලිසේපතිවරො පයසකට කර 

තියෙන්‍ අවසේථාවක රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) යමම යතාරතුර ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට 

දැනුම් දිෙ යුතුව තිබුණු න්‍මුත් යම් ෙැන්‍ රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) ට විරුද්ධව 
කිසිදු වින්‍ෙ පිෙවරේ යෙන්‍ යන්‍ාතිබීම ෙැටළු සහෙත ෙ. 

29. 2019 අයේේ 23 හා 25 දින්‍ අතර කාලයේදී කිහිප වතාවේම 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යපාලිසේපතිවරොට කථා යකාට ඉහත අයේේ 21 ප්‍රහාරෙ පිළිෙඳව 
වරද භාරෙන්න්‍ා යලසත් ඉන්පසුව තාන්‍ාපති තන්‍තුරේ ලොයදන්‍ ෙවත් පැවසූ ෙව 
වාර්තා යව්.  යමම ඉේලීම යපාලිසේපතිවරො භාරයෙන්‍ යන්‍ාමැත.  යමවැනි 
ඉේලීමේ කළ ෙව සතය න්‍ම් එෙ ඉතා අෙරු ක්‍රිොවකි. 

30. 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් සිට 2019 අයේේ 21 වන්‍තුරු මාස 6කට ම ආරේෂක 
මේඩලෙ රැසේකර තියෙන්යන් සිව් වතාවේ පමණි. න්‍මුත් යම් කාලෙ තුල සහරාන් 
ඇතුළු පිරිස ඉතා සීඝ්‍රයෙන් ත්‍රසේතවාදී කටයුතු රහයසේ කරයෙන්‍ යොසේ ඇත.  
යමයින් යපයන්‍න්යන් තිබුණු ආරේෂක තත්ත්වෙ ෙැන්‍ කිසිදු අවයෙෝධෙේ 
යන්‍ාමැතිව ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො වන්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් කටයුතු කර ඇති ෙවෙ. 

31. 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් මස කිසිදු ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීමකට 
අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා කැඳවා යන්‍ාමැත.  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පවසන්යන් 1999 චන්ිකා 
ෙේඩාරන්‍ාෙක මැතිනිෙ නිකුත් කළ ෙැසේ නියව්දන්‍ෙ අනුව අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා 
ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ සිටිම අවශ්‍ය න්‍ැති ෙව ෙ. 1999 අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා හා 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් එකම පේෂෙකින් විෙ. න්‍මුත් 2002න් පසුව එ.ජා.ප. රජෙ සමයේ 
ඇෙ අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට කැඳවූයේ ෙ.  එම නිසා දැන් 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් හා අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා පේෂ යදකකින් සිටින්‍ නිසා අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා 
ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට කැඳවිම අනිවාර්ෙ ප්‍රායෙෝගික කරුණේ වනු ඇත.  
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යමයසේ ක්‍රිො කයළේ යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍ මතයේද නිසා ෙව යපනී ෙයි. 
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32. හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම් යහේමසිරි ප්‍රන්‍ාන්දු මහතා පවසන්යන් 
යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් මාසයේ ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේවියමන් පසුව යපාලිසේපති ආරේෂක 
මේඩලෙට යන්‍ාකැඳවූයේ යපාලිසේ පරීේෂක නිශ්‍ාන්ත සිේවා මහතා මාරු කර 
ෙැීමට ජන්‍ාිපති දුන් උපයදසේ ජාතික යපාලිසේ යකාමිසමට දන්වා ෙැවිමෙ. යමෙ 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ සාේිවලින් ද තහවුරු යව්. (න්‍මුත් යපාලිසේපතිවරො 
ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට යන්‍ාකැඳීමත් යපාලිසේ පරීේෂක නිශ්‍ාන්ත සිේවා ෙැන්‍ 
සිදුවූ ලිපි හුවමාරුවලත් දින්‍වල පරසේපර භාවෙේ තියබ්.)  යකයසේ වුවද, යපාලිසේ 
පරිේෂකවරෙකුයේ  සේථාන්‍ මාරු කිරීමේ වැනි පරිපාලාන්‍ කටයුත්තේ ආරේෂක 
මේඩලයේ කටයුතු සමෙ ෙැටීම සම්ප්‍රදාොනුකූල යහෝ සදාචාරාත්මක යන්‍ායව්. 

33. 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් මස සිට රාජය ආරේෂක අමාතය රුවන් වියේවර්ධන්‍ 
ආරේෂක මේඩල රැසේීම්වලට කැඳවා යන්‍ාමැත.  යමෙ අතපසුීමේ විෙ 
යන්‍ාහැකිෙ.  යකයසේ යවතත් යමෙ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙත යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍ 
මතයේද මත සිදුවූ යද් ෙව යපයන්.  යමම තත්ත්වෙ රයේ ආරේෂාවට අහිතකර 
යලස ෙලපෑමේ ඇතිකර ඇත.  යමවැනි අතපසුීම් සිදුවන්යන් න්‍ම් එෙ ආරේෂක 
මේඩලයේ පැවැත්මට අහිතකරෙ. 

34. රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) නිලන්ත ජෙවර්ධන්‍ මහතා 2019 අයේේ 4 
වැනි දින්‍ ලද බුද්ි යතාරතුර ප්‍රථම වතාවට ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොට දැන්වූයේ 
අයේේ 8 වැනි දින්‍ ෙ.  යතාරතුර ලැබී යමම යතාරතුර පිළිෙඳව දැන්ීමට දින්‍ 

හතරේ ෙතකිරියමන් යපනී ෙන්යන් මුල සිටම රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) යමම 
යතාරතුර ෙැන්‍ වෘත්තීෙ මේටයම් යන්‍ාසිට අවතේයසේරු යකාට සැහැේලුයවන් 
සලකා ඇති ෙවෙ.  යමෙ ෙරපතල වරදකි. 

35. අයේේ 9 දින්‍ බුද්ි සමායලෝචන්‍ රැසේී යම්දී යමම යතාරතුර ෙැන්‍ කථා 

කරන්‍ යලස ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) ට දැනුම් දුන් 
පසුවද යමම යතාරතුර ෙැන්‍ අන් අෙ දැනුවත් කිරිමට ඔහු උන්‍න්දු යන්‍ාීෙ. 

36. හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො පවසන්‍ අන්දමට රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) 
සෘජුවම ආරේෂක අමාතයවරොට කථා කරන්‍ ෙැවින් ඔහු යමම කරුණ 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට දැනුම් දිෙ යුතුව තිබිණි.  එයසේ කයළේද යන්‍ාකයළේද ෙන්න්‍ 

පිළිෙඳව සැකෙේ පවතී. රාජය බුද්ි අධයේෂ (SIS) සෘජුවම ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට 
කථා කරන්‍ ෙව ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විසින් ද සන්‍ාථ කරන්‍ ලදී. 

37. හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම් විසින් 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් 15 වැනි දින්‍ ලැබුණු 

බුද්ි වාර්තාවේ යපන්වා එමගින් සහරාන් (NTJ න්‍ාෙක) සමාජ ජාලා ඔසේයසේ ISIS 
මතවාදෙ සාධාරණීකරණෙ යකාට ඇති ෙවත් අන්‍යාෙමිකෙන් ඝාතන්‍ෙ කිරීම 
උතුම් ජිහාඩ් ක්‍රිොවේ ෙවත් පවසා ඇති ෙව ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරන්‍ ලදී. න්‍මුත් යම් 
අවියේවත් ආරේෂක මේඩලයේදී සහරාන් අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීමට යහෝ වින්‍ාශ්‍ 
කිරීමට නියෙෝෙ නිකුත්කර යන්‍ාමැතිීම ආරේෂක අමාතයවරොයේ රාජකාරිෙ 
පැහැර හැරීමකි. 

38. හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො ඔහුට යුධ හමුදාපතිවරො විසින්, රාජය 
බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ෙ හමුදා බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ෙ සමෙ සම්ෙන්ධීකරණෙේ යන්‍ාකරන්‍ ෙවත් හමුදා 
බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ෙ පයසකට දමා ඇති ෙවත් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කළ ෙව පවසන්‍ ලදී.  යමෙ ආරේෂක 
ොන්ත්‍රණෙ දුර්වල ී තිබුණු ෙවට තවත් සාේිෙකි. 
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39. හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො පවසන්‍ අන්දමට 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් මස 
සිට මධුෂේ පිළිෙඳව ආරේෂක මේඩලයේදී නිතර සාකච්ඡා කළ ෙව හැයරන්න්‍ට 
සහරාන් පිළිෙඳව සාකච්ඡා යකාට න්‍ැත.  මධුෂේට ලොදුන් ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙ සහරාන්ට 
යන්‍ාදීයමන් යපනී ෙන්යන් ජාතික ආරේෂාවට ඇති තර්ජන්‍ෙ නිසිොකාරව 
ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො වටහායෙන්‍ යන්‍ාසිටි ෙවෙ. 

40. හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො සමහරවිට සති යදකකට වරේවත් 
ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො හමුීමට යන්‍ාලැයෙන්‍ ෙව ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කයළේෙ.  යමම හමුවිම් 
දින්‍පතා සිදුවිෙ යුතුව තිබිණි.  ආරේෂක අමාතයවරොට රයේ ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ 
ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙ ලොදීමට න්‍ම් දින්‍පතාම පායහේ වුවද ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො 
මුණෙැසිමට හැකිව තිබුණි. 

41. 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර් මස සිට සතිපතා පැවැත්යවන්‍ බුද්ි සමායලෝචන්‍ 

රැසේවියම්දී 506 වතාවේ සහරාන් පිළිෙඳව (එන්‍ම් NTJ පිළිෙඳව) සාකච්ඡා කර ඇත.  

න්‍මුත් NTJ සිංවිධාන්‍ෙට එයරහිව ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණෙ ක්‍රිොත්මක කිරිම සිදුී 
න්‍ැත්යත් ොන්ත්‍රණයේ දුර්වලතාවෙ මතෙ.  එෙට ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො වෙකිව 
යුතුෙ. 

42. අයේේ 21 දින්‍ ප්‍රහාරයෙන් පසුව අයේේ 22 යහෝ 23 දින්‍ පැවැති ආරකෂක 
මේඩල රැසේීමට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විසින් විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ මන්ත්‍රීවරුන් සිව් 
යදයන්‍කු යෙන්වා තිබිණි.  න්‍මුත් රයේ ආරේෂක කටයුතුවල වෙකිම තියෙන්යන් 
ආරේෂක අමාතයවරොට සහ පවතින්‍ රජෙට ෙ.   විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ මන්ත්‍රීවරුන් 
ආරේෂාව පිළිෙඳව කථා කරන්‍ රැසේීමට යෙන්ීම අත්තයන්‍ෝමතික ක්‍රිොවකි. 

43. යපාලිසේපතිවරො පැවසූ ආකාරෙට “අසේයවන්න්‍. වෙකිම භාරෙන්න්‍. 
තාන්‍ාපතිකමේ යදන්න්‍ම්” ෙයි ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යපාලිසේපතිවරොට පැවසූ ෙව 
හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොද සන්‍ාථ කරයි.  යම මගින් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් රාජය 
තාන්ත්‍රික මේටයමන් ෙැහැරව කටයුතු කිරීම යපන්වයි. 

44. ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො අසේීමට තීරණෙ කර ඇත්යත් 
යපාලිසේපතිවරොට විරුද්ධව ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ෙත් වැරදි තීරණෙ (අසේකිරීමට) 
යහලාදැකීමේ යලස ෙයි හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො පවසයි. 

45. හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො පවසන්යන් රයේ ඉතා සිංයව්දී ආරේෂක 
කටයුතු පිළිෙඳව යහේ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් සමෙ කථා කිරීමට හැකි වාතාවරණෙේ 
ඔහුට යන්‍ාතිබූ ෙවත්, ඔහු අසේීමට ොයම්දී ඊළඟ ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොටවත් 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් හමුීමට දින්‍කට පැෙ භාකෙේ යහෝ ලොයදන්‍ යලස ඉේලා සිටි 
ෙවත්ෙ.  එයසේ යන්‍ාමැතිව කටයුතු කළ යන්‍ාහැකි ෙව පවසා ඇත.  යම් අනුව 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විසින් ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොට දුෂේකර වාතාවරණෙේ ඇති 
යකාට තිබුණු ෙව යපයන්. 

46. තවද, හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො පවසන්යන් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට 
යමාන්‍ෙම් ෙරපතල කරුණේ පැවසුවද ඒ පිළිෙඳව අවධාන්‍ෙ යොමුකර ක්‍රිොත්මක 
ීයම් පිළියවතේ යන්‍ාමැති ෙවයි.  යමෙ යඛදජන්‍ක තත්ත්වෙකි. 

47. හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො පවසන්යන් හමුදාපතිවරො හා අතියර්ක 
යේකම්වරුන් සමෙත් සෘජුවම කටයුතු කරන්‍ ක්‍රමෙේ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට තිබුණු 
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නිසා ඔහු ඉතා අප්‍රසන්න්‍ පරිසරෙක ජීවත් වුණු ෙවත් හිත සතුටින් කටයුතු කිරිමට 
යන්‍ාහැකි වූ ෙවත් ෙ. 

48. යකයසේ වුවද, අයේේ 4 වැන්‍ දින්‍ ලැබුණු යතාරතුරුවලට අනුව ආරේෂක 
ොන්ත්‍රණෙ වෙකීම් දරමින් ක්‍රිො කර යන්‍ාමැති ෙවත් එෙ ක්‍රිොත්මක ීමට ඉහළින් 
ලැයෙන්‍ ආරේෂක අමාතයවරොයේ කින්‍ම් අපයදසේ යන්‍ාලැබී තිබුණු ෙවත් යපනී 
ෙයි. 

49. යම් අනුව රයටහිම ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණෙ අක්‍රිෙ ී තිබුණු ෙව හා ත්‍රසේත 
ක්‍රිො ෙැන්‍ නිසි යතාරතුරු හා බුද්ි යතාරතුරු ලොෙැනීමට වෙකිවයුත්තන් 
අයපායහාසත් ී ඇති ෙවත්, ලැබුණු යතාරතුරුවල ෙරපතලකම යත්රුම් යෙන්‍ 
ක්‍රිොත්මක ී යන්‍ාමැති ෙවත් යපනී ෙයි. 

50. තවද හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොයේ සාේිවලට අනුව රාජය බුද්ි 

අධයේෂ (SIS) දින්‍පතාම පායේ බුද්ි යතාරතුරු පිළිෙඳ වාර්තාවේ 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යවත ලොයදන්‍ ෙව යපනී ෙයි.  ෙරු රාජිත යසේන්‍ාරත්න්‍ 
අමාතයතුමාද ඒ ෙව සන්‍ාථ කයළේෙ.  එයසේ න්‍ම් අයේේ 4 වන්‍ දින්‍ ලැබුණු යතාරතුර 
දැන්‍ දැනුම් යන්‍ාදුන්යන් ෙයි සිතීම දුෂේකර යව්. 

51. හිටපු ෙසේන්‍ාහිර පළාත් ආේඩුකාර අසාත් සාලි මහතා පවසන්‍ යද්වේ 
අනුව යමාහු හරෙේ යන්‍ාමැති යද් කාරක සභාව ඉදිරියේ පැවසූ ෙව යපනී ෙයි. 

52. දර්ො න්‍ෙරයේදී යොදුෙල යසේන්‍ා න්‍ාෙක ෙලයොඩඅත්යත් ඥාන්‍සාර හිමි 
ඇතුළු අනුොමිකෙන්යේ හැසිරීම සහරාන් ඇතුළු මුසේලිම් අන්තවාදීන් ප්‍රයකෝප කළ 
ෙව හා ඔවුන් තවත් ත්‍රසේතවාදි ක්‍රිො යදසට යොමු කළ ෙව ප්‍රකාශ්‍ විෙ. 

53. යමාහු ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ මැඬලීයම් ආරේෂක අිංශ්‍ ක්‍රිොවන් යහළදකිමින් කථා 
කරමින් ආරේෂක අිංශ්‍වලට ආධාර යන්‍ාකිරීයම් ප්‍රවණතාවෙේ යපන්වයි.   යමෙ 
වෙකිව යුතු යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍ඥෙකුයෙන් ෙලායපායරාත්තු විෙ යන්‍ාහැකි හැසිරීමකි. 

54. න්‍ැයෙන්‍හිර පළායත් හිටපු ආේඩුකාර හිසේබුේලා මහතා කාරක සභාවට 
පැවසුයව් මඩකලපුව විශ්‍ේව විදයාලෙ පුද්ෙලික සමාෙම ආරම්භ කිරීමට රුපිෙේ 
බිලිෙන්‍ 4.6ක වියද්ශ්‍ ණෙ මුදලේ ලොෙත් ෙවෙ.  න්‍මුත් යම් සඳහා ෙැිංකු ගිණුම 
විවෘත කර ඇත්යත් ණෙ මුදලේ ලොෙැනීමට යන්‍ායව්.  විශ්‍ාල ෙණයේ මුලය 

විංචාවේ සිදුී ඇත.  යම් ෙැන්‍ FCID හරහා පරීේෂණෙේ සිදුකිරිම අතයාවශ්‍ය ෙ.  
යමහිදී කළු සේලි සුදු කිරීමේ සිදුී ඇතිදැයි ෙන්න්‍ යසාොෙැලිෙ යුතුෙ. 

55. යමම පුද්ෙලික සමාෙම හරහා විශ්‍ේව විදයාලෙ යොඩන්‍ැගීමට වරින් වර 
රජයේ ඉඩම් ලොයෙන්‍ ඇති ආකාරෙ පැහැදිලි යන්‍ායව්. යමම ක්‍රමයව්දෙ ෙැන්‍ 
පරීේෂණෙේ කළ යුතු ෙ. 

56. හිටපු ආේඩුකාර හිසේබුේලා මහතා ප්‍රථමයෙන් පසුගිෙ රජෙ සමයේ 
වෘත්තීෙ පුහුණු මධයසේථාන්‍ෙකට ෙයි පවසා අවසර ලොයදන්‍ පසුව විශ්‍ේව 
විදයාලෙේ ආරම්භ කිරීමට කටයුතු කයළේ යකයසේ දැයි යසාොෙැලිෙ යුතුෙ. 

57. කාන්තන්කුි යපාලිසේ සේථාන්‍යේ හිටපු සේථාන්‍ාිපති ආරිෙෙන්දු 
යවදයෙදර මහතායේ සහ වර්තමාන්‍ සේථාන්‍ාිපති එම්.පී. කසේතුරිආරච්චි මහතායේ 
සාේි අනුව යපනී ෙන්යන් සහරාන්, රිේවාන් හා ආමි යමාහිදීන් ෙන්‍ මරායෙන්‍ 
මැයරන්‍ යෙෝම්ෙකරුවන් යචෝදන්‍ාවලට ඇප මත සිටිෙත් යපාලිසිෙට වාර්තා 
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යන්‍ාකර ත්‍රසේතවාදී ක්‍රිොවල නිරතී ඇති ෙවත් යමාවුන් ෙැන්‍ යසීමට යපාලිසිෙ 
අසමත් ී ඇති ෙවත් ෙ. 

58. හිටපු යුධ හමුදාපති (සාේි යදන්‍ අවසේථායව් හමුදාපති) ජන්‍රාේ මයහේෂේ 
යසේන්‍ාන්‍ාෙක මහතා යේ සාේි අනුව ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ 
99%ේඅවසාන්‍ ෙයි ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කළද, යමවැනි ත්‍රසේතවාදෙේ යම් වන්‍ විට 
සම්ූර්ණයෙන්ම අවසාන්‍ කර ඇතැයි අපට සිතීමට යන්‍ාහැකි ෙවයි. 

59. හිටපු හමුදාපති පවසන්යන් යමවැනි ත්‍රසේතවාදෙකින් පැතියරන්‍ විෂබිජෙ 
සම්ූර්ණයෙන් ඉවත් කිරීමට ක්‍රමෙේ සෑදීමට අවුරුදු 10-15කට වඩා වැි 
කාලෙේ ෙතවන්‍ ෙවයි. 

60. හිටපු හමුදාපති පවසන්යන් බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ අතර සම්ෙන්ධීකරණයේ හා 
විශ්‍ේවාසයේ අඩුපාඩු පැවැති ෙැවින් ත්‍රසේත ජාලෙ කලින් හඳුන්‍ායෙන්‍ සිටිෙද, ෙත 
යුතු පිෙවර පිළිෙඳව සාකච්ඡා කළද, ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ කථා කළද අවශ්‍ය 
ප්‍රතිඵල යන්‍ාලැබුණු ෙවෙ.  යමම අඩුපාඩු පිළිෙඳව ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො රටට 
වෙකිව යුත්යත්ෙ.  අඩුපාඩු හඳුන්‍ායෙන්‍ ඒවා නිවැරදි කිරිම ආරේෂක 
අමාතයවරොයේ රාජකාරිෙයි. 

61. ඉහත ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ ෙැන්‍ ආරේෂක මේඩලයේදි කතා කලද, නිසි පිෙවරේ  
යන්‍ාෙැනුන්‍ ෙවත් ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්  අත් අඩිංගුවට ෙැනිමට යහෝ වින්‍ාශ්‍ කිරිමට නියෙෝෙ 
යන්‍ාලැබුන්‍ ෙවත්  හිටපු හමුදාපති පවසයි. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් තම වෙකිම පැහැර හැර 
ඇතිවාේ යමන්ම ඉෂේඨ කිරිමට ද අයපායහාසත්  වි තියබ්. 

62. හිටපු හමුදාපතිවරොද පවසන්‍ ආකාරෙට සති පතා නිෙමිත යව්ලාවකට 
හා නිෙමිත සේථාන්‍ෙක පැවැත්විෙ යුතු ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ මසකට වරේ  යහෝ 
පැවැත්විම ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යන්‍ාකර හැර තියබ්. යුද්ධෙ යහෝ සාමෙ යච්වා යමෙ 
අනිවාර්යෙන්  කල යුතු යදෙේ  වුවත්  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් එෙ මෙහැරීම හරහා 
ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණෙට ලැබිෙ යුතූ නිසි ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙ ලැබි න්‍ැත. 

63. 2019 අයේේ  4 ලැබුණු බුද්ි යතාරතුරට ප්‍රතිචාර දැේීමට න්‍ම්  
අනිවාර්යෙන්  ආරක්‍ෂක අමාතයවරොයේ මේටයමන්  අවශ්‍ය නියොෙ ලැබිෙ යුතුව 
තිබුන්‍ ෙව හිටපු හමුදාපතිවරොද පිළිෙනි. 

64. ලැයෙන්‍ ඉතා වැදෙත්  බුද්ි යතාරතුරේ  වුවද ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො 
යවත ළඟා ී ඒ අනුව අදාල නියෙෝෙ නිකුත්  කල හැකි පරිදි ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණෙ 
ශ්‍ේතිමත්ව යන්‍ාතිබුණු ෙව යපයන්. යමෙ ආරේෂක අමාතයවරොයේ 
ආසාර්ථකත්වෙයි. 

65.  ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ මන්ත්‍රිවරුන්යෙන්  වු විට සිංයව්දි 
රහසය ආරේෂක යතාරතුරු සාකච්ඡා කල යන්‍ාහැකිෙ. යමෙ හිටපු හමුදාපතිවරො 
ද පිලිෙනී. 

66. ආරේෂක යේකම්වරයෙකු යමයහයුම්  වලට උපයදසේ  යහෝ නියෙෝෙ 
යන්‍ාදිෙ යුතු ෙවත්  සාර්ථකව ක්‍රිොන්විත යමයහයුම්  ෙැන්‍ සම්ෙන්ධීකරණෙේ  යහෝ 
කිරිමට න්‍ම්  ආරේෂක යේකම්  හමුදාපති යහෝ යපාලිසේපති මේටයම් දැනුමේ  හා 
පලපුරුද්දේ  තියෙන්‍ අයෙකු විෙ යුතු ෙව හිටපු හමුදාපති පිළිෙනී. යමයින්  
යපයන්‍න්යන් ආරේෂක විදයාලෙක යහෝ අධයාපන්‍ෙ ලො න්‍ැත්න්‍ම්  පරිපාලන්‍ 
නිලධාරියෙකුට ආරේෂක යේකම්  තන්‍තුර නිසිොකාරව යහෙවිෙ යන්‍ාහැකි ෙවයි. 
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67.  ෙරු රිෂාඞ  ෙදියුදීන්  ඇමතිතුමා සාේි යදමින්  පැවසු ආකාරෙට විශ්‍රාමික 
පරිපාලන්‍ නිලධාරියෙකු වු මුයුනුදීන්යේ පුත්‍රො හමුදාව අත් අඩිංගුවට ෙත්  කල පුතු 
ෙැලීමට යහෝ ඉඩ ලොයදන්‍ යලස ඉේලීමේ  යන්‍ාකල ෙවත්  පිොට අවශ්‍ය වූයේ 
ජීවත්ව සිටින්‍වාද සහ සිටින්යන් කා ලඟද කිෙලා දැන්‍ෙැනීමට විතරේ  ෙවත් ෙ. 
මුදවා ෙැනිමේ  ෙැන්‍ ඇමතිතුමා කතා යන්‍ාකල ෙව යුධ හමුදාපතිතුමා ද පිලිෙන්න්‍ා 

ලදි. කරුණු යමයසේ යහයින්  තව වසර 1 1/2 කින්  කතා කරන්න්‍ෙයි හිටපු යුධ 
හමුදාපතිතුමා පැවසීම අදාළ යන්‍ායව්. 

68.  යමාහුට විරුද්ධ විශ්‍ේවාස භිංෙ යොජන්‍ායව් අඩිංගු කරුණු වල 
සතයතාවෙේ  යන්‍ාමැති ෙව අපරාධ විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුව තීරණෙ යකාට 
ඇත. 

69. යමාහුට විරුද්ධ විශ්‍ේවාස භිංෙයේ යමාහු සමෙ කටයුතු කරන්‍ 
මවුලවිවරයෙකු ත්‍රසේතවාදී කටයුතු සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් අත් අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ ඇති ෙව 

පැවසුවත්  යමාහු ඉදිරිපත්  කරන්‍ ලද CD තැටිෙකින්  යපනී ගියේ එම මචුලවිවරො 
මැතිවරණ වලදි වමත්‍රීපාල සිරියසේන්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට වැඩ කරමින්  යව්දිකාවල 
ද කථා කරන්‍ ලද ෙවෙ. 

70. රිෂාඩ්  ෙදුයුදීන්  ඇමතිතුමා විසින්ද කාර්දින්‍ේ  මැේකම්  රිංජිත්  උතුමා ණන් 
පැවසු යලස යම් රයේ සිංසේකෘතිෙ සිිංහල යෙෞද්ධ ආභාෂෙ මත යොඩ න්‍ැගී තියෙන්‍ 
ෙව පිළිෙන්න්‍ා ලදී. 

74 ෙරු පාර්ලියම්න්තූ මන්ත්‍රී දොසිරි ජෙයසේකර මහතා යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍ කථාවේ  
නිර්මාණෙ කිරීම සඳහා ටාේ  සමුද්‍රා යහෝටලෙට ගිෙ ත්‍රසේතන්‍ාදිො යෙෝම්ෙෙ 
පුපුරවන්යන් න්‍ැතිව යහාටලයේ ෙම්  වැදෙත්  පුද්ෙලයින්  සිටි නිසා හැරී ගිො ෙයි 

කීම සිදුකල ෙව යපයන්. යමම මන්ත්‍රීතුමායේ කතාව CID DIG අධයක්‍ෂක 
ප්‍රතිේයෂේප කරන්‍ ලදී. යමවැනි හරෙේ  යන්‍ාමැති රට යන්‍ාමෙ ෙවන්‍ කතා කීම 
මන්ත්‍රිවරයෙකුට සුදුසු යන්‍ායව්. 

72. තවද ඔහු අ යේේ 21 ත්‍රසේත ප්‍රහාර පිටුපස වියද්ශ්‍ ෙලයව්ෙ තියෙන්‍වා ෙයි 
කීයව්ද යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍ මාතෘකාවේ  යොඩන්‍ැගීමට ෙව ය පයන්. න්‍මුත්  යමම 
මන්‍ඃකේපිත කථා සතය ෙව ඔේපු කිරීමට ඔහුට කිසිම සාේිෙේ  න්‍ැත. යමම 
ප්‍රවන්‍තාවෙ සමාජ සේථාවර භාවෙට හරසේචනු ඇත. 

73. ෙරු පාර්ලියම්න්තූ මන්ත්‍රී දොසිරි ජෙයසේකර මහතා ඇතුළු විරුද්ධ 
පේෂයේ මන්ත්‍රීවරුන්  ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට කැඳවා ජන්‍ිපතිතුමා සදාචාර 
වියරෝි හා ආරේෂාවට හානිකර ක්‍රිොවේ  සිදුයකාට තියබ්. 

74ත 2017 අයොසේතු මාසයේ සිට න්‍ැයෙන්‍හිර ( අම්පාර / මඩකලපුව) භාරව 

සිටි යජයෞෂේඨ යපාලිසේපති, කපිල ජෙයසේකර පවසන්යන් 2017 සිට සහරාන්  

වයරන්තූ මත සිටිෙත් , ඔහුයේ ප්‍රධාන්‍තම පුහුණු කඳවුරේ  නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති 
යේ ප්‍රයද්ශ්‍යේ සයින්දමරුදුහි තිබුණත්  යම් යද්වේ  ෙැන්‍ ඔහුට කිසිවේ වාර්තා ී 
යන්‍ාතිබුණු ෙවයි.  එයින්  යපයන්‍න්යන් නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති හා පහල 
නිලධාරින්යෙන්  ඉටුවිෙ යුතු රාජකාරිෙ ඉටුී යන්‍ාමැති ෙවෙ. 

75.  රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ (SIS) අධයේෂ DIG නිලන්ත ජෙවර්ධන්‍ පවසන්‍ 
අන්දමට යහේමසිරි ප්‍රන්‍ාන්දු ආරේෂක යේකම්  ීයමන්  පසුව පැවැත්විෙ යුතුව තිබු 
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සතිපතා (අඟහරුවාදා) බුද්ි සමායලාචන්‍ රැසේීම්  26 කින්  පවත්වා තිබුයන් 6 ේ  
පමණි. යමෙ සතුටුදාෙක තත්වෙේ  යන්‍ායව්. 

76. රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ (SIS) අධයේෂ අයේේ  4 ලැබුනු යතාරතූර තහවුරුවූ 
බුද්ි යතාරතූරේ  යන්‍ායව් ෙැයි කිෙමින්  එහි වැදෙත් ෙව අවතේයසේරු කරමින්  
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ඇතුළු අදාල ඉහළ නිලධාරින්ට යම් ෙැන්‍ දැන්ීම අතයාවශ්‍යව 
යන්‍ාතිබුනු ෙව කීමට උත්සාහ කලත්  අයන්‍ේ  අතින්  අයේේ  9 බුද්ි රැසේීයම්දි 

ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානිො (CNI) ට “සර්  ඔෙ යතාරතූර යලඩේ , ඕක ෙැන්‍ සිෙේලන්ටම 

වහාම දන්වන්න්‍” ෙයි කීයමන්  යපයන්‍න්යන් SIS අධයේෂක යතාරතුයර් 
වැදෙත්කම ෙැන්‍ යත්රුම්  යෙන්‍ සිටි ෙවයි. න්‍මුත්  අවශ්‍ය පරිදි යමායහාතින්  

සිෙේලන්  දැනුවත්  යන්‍ාකර දවසේ  4 ේ  පමණ සිටියමනුත්  , ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට 
යෙෝම්ෙ පුපුරන්‍ යතේවත්  යන්‍ාපැවසීයමනුත්  යමාහු සාමාව දිෙ යන්‍ාහැකි වරදේ  
කර තියබ්. 

77. සහරාන්යේ ක්‍රිොවන්  ෙැන්‍ මාර්තු 12 බුද්ි රැසේීයම් න්‍යාෙ පත්‍රෙට 

ඇතුලත්  යකාට, රැසේීම අවලිංගු ී න්‍ැවත පවත්වා ඇත්යත් මාර්තු 19 ෙ. යමම 
පසුබිම ෙටයත්ත්  අයේේ  4 සහරාන්  ෙැන්‍ බුද්ි යතාරතුරේ  ලැබුන්‍ ද මීලඟට 
පැවැත්වු අයේේ  9 බුද්ි රැසේීයම්දි සහරාන්  ෙැන්‍ කථා යන්‍ාකිරියමන්  රාජය බුද්ි 

යසේවයේ (SIS) අධයේෂ විශ්‍ාල වරදේ  සිදු යකාට ඇත. 

78. 2017 දී රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ (SIS) අධයේෂ ත්‍රසේතවාදින්  127 යදයන්‍කුයේ 
ලැයිසේතුවේ  ඉදිරිපත්  කලවිට යදහිවලදී දිවි න්‍සාෙත්  ජමීේ  එම ලැයිසේතුයව් 
ඉහළින්ම සිටි අතර යමාහු යපාලීසිෙට යෙන්වා ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ යකාට නිදහසේ  යකාට ඇත. 
තවත්  94 යදයන්‍කුයේ ලැයිසේතුවේ  2017 ඔේයතාෙර්  මාසයේදි රාජය බුද්ි 

යසේවයේ (SIS) අධයේෂ ඉදිරිපත්  කර ඇත. යමම කරුනු වලින්  යපනී ෙන්යන් යමම 
පරිේෂණ සාර්ථකව ඉෂේඨ ී අවසන්ී යන්‍ාමැති ඛවෙ. 

79. රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ (SIS) අධයේෂ පවසන්යන් 2019 ජුලි 24 වන්‍ විට 
ත්‍රසේතවාදී 54 ේ  අත් අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ 6ේ  මිෙ යොසේ  සිටි ෙවයි. 

80. රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ (SIS) අධයේෂ නිලන්ත ජෙවර්ධන්‍ ආරේෂක 
යේකම්  හා සිහිපත් කල පසුවද අයේේ  4 ලද යතාරතුර ෙැන්‍ අයේේ  9 වැනිදා 
පැවැත්වූ බුද්ි රැසේීයම්දී සාකච්ඡා යන්‍ාකර යපාලිසේපතිට චාර්ථාවේ  එවන්‍ ෙව 
කීයමන්  යපයන්‍න්යන් යමම බුද්ි යතාරතුරට අනුව ෙතයුතු පිෙවරවේ  කිසිම 
ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙේ  මත යන්‍ාෙත්  ෙවෙ. අයේේ  9 බුද්ි රැසේී යම්දී පලමු යද්ශ්‍න්‍ෙ 

පැවැත්වූයේද රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ (SIS) අධයේෂ විසිනි. 

81.  රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ (SIS) අධයේෂ පවසන්යන් අයේේ  4 ලැබුන්‍ 
යතාරතුර බුද්ි යතාරතුරේ  යලස සන්‍ාථ ී යන්‍ාතිබුන්‍ නිසා ආරේෂක යේකම්ට 

යන්‍ාදන්වා ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානිො (CNI) ට  අයේේ  8 දින්‍ පැවසු ෙවයි. න්‍මුත්  

අයේේ  9 රැසේවියම්දි ජාතික බුද්ි ප්‍රධානිො (CNI) ට කීයව් “සර්  ඕක යලඩේ  
ඉේමන්‍ට අයන්‍ේ  අෙට දන්වන්න්‍” කිෙලාෙ. යම්යකන්  හැ යඟනුයේ වැදෙන්  
කරුන්‍ේ  ෙව දැන්‍යෙන්‍ වුවද යම් ෙැන්‍ අයේේ  8 ආරේෂක යේකම්වරො සමෙ 
සාකච්ඡා කිරිමට උන්‍න්දු යන්‍ාවු ෙවයි. 

82.  2016 වර්ෂයේදි රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ (SIS) අධයේෂ හිටපු යපාලිසේපතිට 
හා හිටපු නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ අමාතයතුමාට සහරාන්  ෙැන්‍ දැනුවත්  යකාට තිබුණි. ඒ 
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වුවද සහරාන්  ඇේලීමට අවශ්‍ය යමයහයුම්  ආදීෙ දිෙත්  කිරිමට ඔවුන්  නියෙෝෙ දී 
ක්‍රිොයකාට යන්‍ාමැත. 

83  රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ (SIS) අධයේෂ පවසන්යන් ඔහු ආරේෂක ඇමතිතුමා 

ඇතූළු අන්  වෙකිවයුත්තන්ට (නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ භාර ඇමති, ආරේෂක යේකම් , 
යපාලිසේපති ආදීන්  ) සහරාන්  ලිංකායව් සිටිෙයහාත්  අනිචාර්යෙන්ම වින්‍ාශ්‍කාරි 
යද්වේ  විෙ හැකි ෙව දැනුවත්  කර තිබුන්‍ද නිරන්තරව ආරේෂක ඇමති ඇතුළු අන්  
අෙට යමාහුයේ ක්‍රිොකාරකම්  ෙැන්‍ විසේතර කළද අවශ්‍ය පිෙවර යෙන්‍ සහරාන්  
මර්ධන්‍ෙ කිරිමේ  සිදු යන්‍ාවුන්‍ ෙවයි. ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො සහ එතුමායේ 
ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණෙ අසමත්  වි තියෙන්‍ ෙව යපයන්. 

84. අපරාධ පරීේෂණ  යදපාර්තයම්න්තුව (CID) පළමු වතාවට සහරාන්  න්‍මැති  
පුද්ෙලො පිළිෙඳව දැන්‍ෙත්යත් 2019 ජන්‍වාරි 26 වන්‍ාතවිේලුයවන්  ඇේලූ 

අෙයෙන්  ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ කිරියම්දී වන්‍ ෙව CID අධයේෂක නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති පවසයි. 

මීට යපර රාජය බුද්ි යසේවෙ (SIS) වුවද අපරාධ පරීේෂණ  යදපාර්තයම්න්තුවට 

(CID) සහභරාන්ලා ෙැන්‍දැනුම්දී යන්‍ාතිබියමන්  යපයන්‍න්යන් රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ 

(SIS) අධයේෂ තම රාජකාරිවල මන්‍ා සම්ෙන්ධතාවෙන්  පවත්වා යන්‍ායෙන්‍ 
හුදකලාව වැඩ කිරිමට උත්සාහ දරා ඇනි ෙවයි. සහරාන්  විවෘත වයරන්තු වල 

ඉන්න්‍ා ෙව යහෝ අපරාධ පරීේෂණ  යදපාර්තයම්න්තුව (CID)  දැන්‍යෙන්‍ සිට 
යන්‍ාමැත. යමයින්  න්‍ැවත යපයන්‍න්යන් රයේ ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රණෙ දුර්වලව 
ක්‍රිොත්මක වූ ෙවෙ. 

85.  2019 ජන්‍චාරි 26 න්  පසුව සහරාන්ලා කල පුහුණු විම්  ආදිෙ ෙැන්‍ 

යතාරතුරු එලිවූ විට ඒවා ෙැන්‍ නිරතුරුවම රාජය බුද්ි යසේවෙ (SIS) දැනුවත්  කල 

ෙව අපරාධ පරීේෂණ  යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් (CID) නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති පවසයි. 

එයසේ වූවද අයේේ  4 ලැබුන්‍ යතාරතුර අවතේයසේරු කර රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ (SIS) 
අධයේෂ හැසීරිම යමම වින්‍ාශ්‍ෙට යහේතූ වි ඇති අතර 2019 අයේේ  04 ට ඉහත 

කාලෙ තූලදි සහරාන්  ෙැන්‍ සිෙළු යතාරතුරු SIS හා CID අතර හුවමාරු වි තියබ්. 

86. අපරාධ පරීේෂණ  යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් (CID) නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති (CID-
DIG) වාර්තා කරන්‍ අන්දමට සහරාන්යේ කේඩාෙම ISIS දර්ශ්‍න්‍යේ පිහිටා සිටි 

ෙවත්  ISIS ක්‍රිොකරකම්  වලින්  වධර්ෙමත්ී සිටි ෙවත්  පවසයි. 

87. සහරාන්  ඔහුයේ ත්‍රසේතවාදි ක්‍රිොවන්  ෙැන්‍ පුහුණු කඳවුරු 15 ේ  පමන්‍ 
පවත්වා යෙන්‍ යොසේ  ඇති අතර යමම කඳවුරු වල එක සැසිෙකට 50 -75 ේ  පමණ 
පුහුණුව ලො ඇති ෙව ද පැවයසේ. යම් අනුව 750 - 1000 කට අතර ප්‍රමාණෙේ  
කඳවුරු වල පුහුණුව ලො ඇත. සෘජුවම ක්‍රිොකාරි වන්න්‍න්  200 ේ  පමණ සිට ඇත. 
යම් වන්‍විට 75 ේ  පමණ අත් අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ හා මිෙ යොසේ  ඇති නිසා යකළින්ම 
ක්‍රිොකාරි වන්න්‍න්  අවම වශ්‍යෙන් තවත්  125 යහෝ නිදැේයේ සිටිති. 

88. අපරාධ පරීේෂණ  යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් (CID) නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති (CID-
DIG) පවසන්යන් ත්‍රසේතවාදින්ට එයරහිව ෙන්න්‍ා පිෙවර ෙැන්‍ න්‍වමත්  සැහිමකට 
පත්විමට යන්‍ාහැකි ෙවත්  එම ක්‍රිොකාරකම්  තවත්  දියුණු විෙ යුතු ෙවත්ෙ. 

89. සහරාන්යේ කේඩාෙයම් තිබී ටී56 ගිනිඅවි 3 ේ  හා රියචෝේවර 2 කුත්  
පුපුරන්‍ ද්‍රවයෙන් ද, කැලෑවලදී භාවිතා කරන්‍ මාලිමා ෙන්ත්‍රත්  තිබීයමන්  යපනී 
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ෙන්යන් සභරාන්  ඇතුලු පිරිස කැලෑ සටන්වලටද පුහුණුී ඇතිෙව යහෝ පුහුණුීමට 
සැලසුම්  යකාට ඇති ෙවයි. 

90. බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ නිලධාරින්  පාර්ලියම්න්තු යත්රීම්  කාරක සභාව ඉදිරිෙට යෙන්‍ 
ඒයමන්  ඔවුන්යේ අන්‍න්‍යතාවෙ යහළිකිරීමට උත්සාහ කරන්‍ ෙවට ෙම්  ෙම්  අෙ 

මතෙේ  යොඩඩන්‍ැගීමට උත්සාහ දැරුවද , අපරාධ පරීේෂණ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් 
යජයෂේඨ යපාලිසේ අිකාරී  ශ්‍ානි අයබ්යසේකර මහතාද පිළිෙත්  පරිදි හඳුන්‍ා ෙැනීමට 
යන්‍ාහැකිවන්‍ යසේ රාජකාරි කලයුත්යත් බුද්ි අිංශ්‍වල කනිෂේඨ ක්‍රිොකාරී අෙවලුන්  
පමණේ  ෙවත්  යජාෂේඨ නිලධාරින්  කාර්ොල රාජකාරි කරන්‍ නිසා එයසේ 
අන්‍න්‍යතාවෙ සඟවා යෙන්‍ සිටීම අවශ්‍ය න්‍ැති ෙවත්  යපයන්. උදාහරණෙේ  යලසට 

SIS අධයේෂක DIG නිලන්ත ජෙවර්ධන්‍ මහතා මීට ඉහතදී විවෘත උසාවියේ පැවැති 

න්‍ඩුවකට සාේි දීමට පවා යොසේ  තියබ්. යම් SIS අධයේෂ ී මට යපර වුවද නිලන්ත 
ජෙවර්ධන්‍ න්‍මැති පුද්ෙලො ෙැන්‍ පිටසේතරයින්  දැන්‍ යෙන්‍ සිට ඇත. 

91. 2019 අයේේ  21 ප්‍රහාරෙ ෙැන්‍ යතාරතුරු යපාලිසේපතිට අයේේ  09 චැනිදා 
ලැබුන්‍ පසු අයේේ  10 යපාලිසේපති නිකුත්  කල උපයදසේවලට අනුව සහරාන් 
අත් අඩිංගුවට ෙන්න්‍ා යලස පවසා තිබුන්‍ත්  ආරේෂක අමාතයිංශ්‍යෙන්  යම් ෙැන්‍ 
ක්‍රිොත්මක විෙ යුතු ආකාරෙ ෙැන්‍ යහෝ යමයහයුම්  ෙැන්‍ කිසිම උපයදසේ  

යන්‍ාලැබුන්‍ ෙව චර්තමාන්‍ TID අධයේෂ DIG වරුන්‍ ජෙසුන්දර මහතා ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කරයි. 
යම් නිසා ලැබුන්‍ යතාරතුයර් ෙරපතලකමට අනුව කිසියවකු විසින් ප්‍රතික්‍රිො දේචා 
න්‍ැත. ආරේෂක අමාතයාිංශ්‍යේ පැත්යතන්  (ආරේෂක අමාතයවරො) විශ්‍ාල 
වෙකීම්  පැහැර හැරීමකි. 

92. TID අධයේෂ DIG වරුන්‍ ජෙසුන්දර මහතා විසින් පිලිෙන්නු ලැබුයව් යමම 

ලැබුණු යතාරතුරට නිසි ප්‍රතිචාර දැේීමට CID යහෝ TID වැනි ආෙතන්‍වලට 

පමන්‍ේ  යන්‍ාහැකි ෙවත් අනිවාර්ෙයෙන්ම යුදහමුදාව හා STF වැනි යසේන්‍ාවේ  
රාජකාරිෙට යෙදවිෙ යුතුව තිබුණු ෙවත් ෙ. එෙ ආරේෂක ඇමතිවරො ආරේෂක 
මේඩලෙ හරහා කලයුතුව තිබුන්‍ කටයුත්තකි. 

93. TID ප්‍රධානිො වන්‍ DIG න්‍ාලක සිේවා ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ඝාතන්‍ෙ වැනි 
තවමත්  ඔේපුී න්‍ැති යචෝදන්‍ාවේ  නිසා අත් අඩිංගුවට ෙත්  නිසා මාන්‍සික 

පසුෙෑමකට ලේී සහරාන්ලාට විරුද්ධව ත්‍රසේත විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාශ්‍ෙ (TID) 
කරයෙන්‍ ආ යමයහයුම්  අඩාලී තියෙන්‍වා. යම් කාලෙ තුල ත්‍රසේත විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ 

යකාේඨාශ්‍ෙ (TID) භාවිතා කල සමහර සිංයව්දී බුද්ි රාජකාරී වලට පාවිචිචි කරන්‍ 
උපකරණ පවා නිදහයසේ භාවිතා කිරීමට යන්‍ාහැකිී තියෙන්‍වා. 

94. වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ ෙලකායේ (STF) ප්‍රධානී නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති ලතීෆේ මහතා 
පවසන්‍ ආකාරෙට පරිපාලන්‍ නිලධාරියෙකු ආරේෂක යේකම්  වුවයහාත්  ත්‍රසේතවාදී 
යමයහයුම්  වලට උපයදසේ  දීමට ඔහුට ඇති හැකිොව අේප ෙ. 

95. වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ ෙලකාෙට (STF) අයේේ  21 ප්‍රහාරෙට යපර යහෝ ඉන්පසුව 
වුවද සහරාන්  අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීමට යහෝ අනුොමිකයින්  ඇේලීමට උපයදසේ  
කවදාවත්  ඉහල තැන්වලින්  ලැබී න්‍ැත. යමයින්  යපයන්‍න්යන් යමම උවදුර ෙැන්‍ 
ආරේෂක ඇමතිවරොට යහෝ නිතිෙ භා සාමෙ පිළිෙඳ ඇමතිවරුන්ට ඉව 
යන්‍ාවැටුන්‍ ෙවත්  තවද එවැනි උවදුරේ  ඇතිවිට යමාවුන්  ඇේලීම යහෝ වින්‍ාශ්‍ 

කිරීමට වියශ්‍ේෂ පුහුණුව ලො තියෙන්‍ වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ ෙලකාෙ (STF) යෙදීමටවත්  
ඔවුන්ට දැනුමේ  යන්‍ාතිබුන්‍ ෙවෙ. 
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96. මත්ද්‍රවය වැටලීම්  නිසා පාසේකු ප්‍රහාරෙ සිදුවුවා ෙයි ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ප්‍රකාශ්‍ 
කලත්  මත්ද්‍රවය වැටලීයම් රාජකාරියේ පුර්ණ කාලින්‍ව යෙදී සිටි වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ 

ෙලකායේ (STF) ප්‍රධානිොද පවසන්යන් එෙ අසතයෙේ  ෙවෙ. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 
ත්‍රසේත ප්‍රහාරෙ නිසා රට පත්වූ විපත්තිදාෙක තත්ත්වයෙන්  යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍ වාසිෙේ  
ලො ෙැනීමට උත්සහා කරයි. 

97. රයේ යුද්ධෙේ  යහෝ ත්‍රසේතවාදී තර්ජන්‍ ෙැන්‍ චාර්තා ී යන්‍ාතිබුණු 
කාලෙකදී (ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පවසන්‍ අන්දමට දැන්‍ටද ත්‍රසේතවාදී තර්ජන්‍ෙේ  න්‍ැත) 

වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ ෙලකායේ (STF) 8900 කට ආසන්න්‍ භට පිරියසන්  2245 ේ  

ප්‍රභූවරුන්  තුන්යදයන්‍කු (ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්, අෙමැතිතුමා, විපේෂ න්‍ාෙක) ආරේෂා 
කිරීමට යොදා යෙන්‍ තියබ්. යමයින්  හරි අඩකටත්  වැි ප්‍රමාණෙේ  යොදා යෙන්‍ 
සිටින්යන් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ආරේෂා කිරීමටෙ. යමෙ ජාතික අපරාධෙකි. යමාවුන්  
රයේ/ජන්‍තාවයේ ආරේෂක රාජකාරිවලට යෙදවූවා න්‍ම්  ජන්‍තාවට මීට වඩා 
ආරේෂාවේ  ලැයබ්. 

98. පාසේකු ප්‍රහාරෙට යපර කවදා යහෝ සහරාන්යේ ජාතික තවුහිත්  ජමාත්  

(NTJ) යහෝ ජයමයිතුේ  මිේලයන් ඊබ්‍රාහිම්  (JME) සිංවිධාන්‍ ෙැන්‍ වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ 

ෙලකාෙට (STF)  එක දැනුවත්  ී යන්‍ාමැත. මින්  යපයන්‍න්යන් ආරේෂක 
මේඩලෙ සහරාන්  මැඩලීමට ෙත හැකි සිෙලුම ක්‍රිොමාර්ෙ ෙැනීමට ක්‍රිො යකාට 
න්‍ැති ෙවයි. 

99. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පත්  කල මලේයොඩ කමිටුවට පලමුව ලැබුණු සති 
යදකත්  යදවැනිව ලැබුණු සති තුන්‍ත්  වූ කාලෙ යන්‍ාසෑයහන්‍ නිසා පාසේකු ප්‍රහාරෙ 
ෙැන්‍ ෙැඹුරින්  අධයෙන්‍ෙ කිරීමට යන්‍ාහැකි ී තියබ්. 

100. දර්ො න්‍ෙරයේ 2014 දී යොදු ෙල යසේන්‍ාව විසින්  යෙන්‍ ගිෙ ක්‍රිොමාර්ෙෙ 
නිසා සහරාන්යේ ජයමයිතූේ  මිේලයන් ඊබ්‍රාහිම්  සිංවිධාන්‍ෙ එෙට විරුද්ධව 
න්‍ැයෙන්‍හිර ක්‍රිොත්මක ීමට සැලසුම්  කල ෙැවින් එවකට න්‍ැයෙන්‍හිර යුධ හමුදා 
අඥාපති යම්ජර්  යජන්‍රාේ  ලාේ  යපයර්රා සහරාන්  හා අනුොමිකයින්  යෙන්වා 
අන්‍තූරු අඟවා තියේ. සහරාන්යේ ත්‍රසේතවාදයේ ආරම්භක අවසේථාව යමෙයි. 

101. 2014 සිටම මාස යදකකට චරේ  පැවැත්යවන්‍ ආරේෂක යේකම්යේ 
න්‍ැයෙන්‍හිර යමයහයුම්  සාකච්ඡායව්දී පවා යම්ජර්  යජන්‍රාේ  ලාේ  යපයර්රා 
සහරාන්යේ ක්‍රිොකාරකම්  ෙැන්‍ සාකච්ඡා කලච සහරාන්ට විරුද්ධව පිෙවරේ  
ෙැනීමට එවකට හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්යෙන්  උපයදසේ  ලැබී යන්‍ාමැත. 
සහරාන්යේ ක්‍රිොකාරකම්  ජාතික ආරේෂාවට තර්ජන්‍ෙේ  යව් ෙයි එහිදී යන්‍ාසිතූ 
ෙව ප්‍රකාශ්‍ යව්. තදෙල ආරේෂක ක්‍රිොන්වන්හි කඩා වැටීමකි. 

102. යොදු ෙල යසේන්‍ා සිංවිධාන්‍යේ යේකම්  ිලන්ත ෙමයේ මො පවසන්‍ 
අන්දමට යොදු ෙල යසේන්‍ා සිංවිධාන්‍ෙ යොඩ න්‍ො ඇත්යත් බුද්ධාෙම ආරේෂා 
කිරීමට සහ යපෝෂණෙ කිරීමටෙ. ඉහත අරමුණු සඳහා අයන්‍කුත්  ආෙම්  සමඟ 
ෙැටලු ඇති කර ෙැනීමට අන්‍වශ්‍යෙ. තවද ඉහත පරිදි බුද්ධාෙම ආරේෂා කිරීමටත්  
යපෝෂණෙ කිරීමටත්  අති පුජය  මහා සිංඝරත්න්‍ෙ මුළුමනින්ම යපළ ෙැසී සිටින්‍ 
නිසාත්  සිෙලුම යෙෞද්ධයින්  ඒ යවනුයවන්  කැප යවන්‍ නිසාත්  යවන්‍ත්  සිංවිධාන්‍ 
සාදායෙන්‍ කලහකාරීව හැසිරීම අවශ්‍ය යන්‍ායව්. තවද දර්ො න්‍ාෙරයේ සිද්ියේදී 
යොදු ෙල යසේන්‍ා ප්‍රධානි ෙලයොඩ අත්යත් ඥාන්‍සාර හිමිෙන් ආයව්ෙශීලීව කතා 
කිරීමද යන්‍ාෙැලපුණු ඛව ිලන්ත ෙමයේ පවසයි. 
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103. 2017 සහ 2018 ෙන්‍ වර්ෂවලදී  ත්‍රසේත විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාශ්‍ෙ (TID) මගින්  

සහරාන්යේ JME සමාජ ජාලෙ තහන්‍ම්  කරන්‍ ආකාරෙ ෙැන්‍ උපයදසේ  ඉේලා 
නීතිපති යදපාර්තයම්න්තුවට ලිො තිබුන්‍ද 2019 මාර්තු වන්‍ යතේද ඒ ෙැන්‍ කිසිම 
පිළිතුරේ  ලැබී න්‍ැත. තවද සහරාන්  ඇතුළු පුද්ෙලයින්  අත් අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ 
විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ෙේ  කල හැකි දැයි විමසා තිබුණු  න්‍මුත්  සහරාන්  අත්අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීමට 

නීතිපති යදපාර්තයම්න්තුව ත්‍රසේත විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාශ්‍ෙ (TID)  නිලධාරින්  කැඳවා 
වයරන්තුවේ  නිකුත්  කයේ 2019 මාර්තු මාසයේෙ. න්‍මුත්  යමම ක්‍රිොදාමෙට ෙත්  
දීර්ඝ කාලෙ යමවැනි ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්ට එයරහිව පිෙචර ෙැනීයම්දී සුදුසු යන්‍ායව්. 

104.  කාත්තන්කුි සිට පැමිණි මවුලවි සහලාන්  න්‍ැමැත්තා නීනිපති 
යදපාර්තයම්න්තුවට පැමිණ සහරාන්යේ හැසිරීම ෙැන්‍ පැමිණිේලේ  කලවිට එෙට 
වහාම ප්‍රතිචාර දැේවුයේ එයතේ  දුර යෙවා පැමින්‍ පැමිණිේල කලවිට එෙ හදවතට 
වැදුණු නිසා ෙයි නීතිපති යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් නියෙෝජය යසාලිසිටර්  යජන්‍රාේ  

දිලීප පිරිසේ  මහතා පවසයි. න්‍මුත්  යමාහු TID ඉේලීම්  ෙැන්‍ එතරම්  උන්‍න්දුවේ  
යන්‍ාදැේවිෙ. යමෙ සතුටුදාෙක තත්වෙේ  යන්‍ායව්. 

105. හිටපු ආරේෂක යේකම්  කපිල වවදයරත්න්‍ මහතා පවසන්‍ අන්දමට 
2018 ඔේයතෝෙර්  23 සිට යපාලිසේපතිවරො ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ රැසේීමට 
යන්‍ායෙන්වන්‍ යලස ආරේෂක අමාතය හා ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ඔහුට දැනුම්  දී තියබ්. 
යහේතුවේ  යන්‍ාදන්න්‍ා ෙව පවසයි. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පවසන්යන් යපාලිසේපතිවරොට 

ආරේෂක,මේඩලෙට යන්‍ාඑන්‍ යලස පැවසුයව් 18 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර්  18 සිට ෙව ෙ. දින්‍ 
පිළිෙඳව ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙේ  තියබ්. යකයසේ උවද ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යපාලිසේපතිවරොට 
ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට පැමිණීම අන්‍වශ්‍ය ෙව පවසා ඒ යවනුවට යවන්‍ත්අෙකු 
යෙන්ීමට යහෝ කටයුතු යන්‍ ාකර සිටීම වැරදි ක්‍රිොවකි. 

106.  තවද, කපිල වවදයරත්න්‍ මහතා ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ නිශ්‍ේචිත දින්‍ක 
නිශ්‍ේචිත යවලාවට යන්‍ාතැබූ ෙවන්  සහභාගී වන්න්‍න්ට ඒ ඒ යවලාවට දැනුම්  දුන්  
ෙවන්  පවසයි. න්‍ැවතත්  පිලියවලේ  න්‍ැනි ක්‍රිොදාමෙේ  ෙව යපයන්. 

107. සතිපතා බුද්ි සමායලෝචන්‍ රැසේීයම්දී අනිවාර්ෙයෙන්ම ආරම්භක 

යද්ශ්‍න්‍ෙ පවත්වන්යන් රාජය බුද්ි (SIS) ප්‍රධානිො ෙව කපිල වවදයරත්න්‍ මහතා 
ද සන්‍ාථ කරයි. 

108. තවද රාජය බුද්ි (SIS) ප්‍රධානිො සමහර අවසේථාවලදී යකලින්ම 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට කතා යකාට ෙම්  ෙම්  යද් පවසන්‍ ෙව කපිල වවදයරත්න්‍ මහතා 
ද පවසයි. එයින්  2019 අයේේ  21 දින්‍ සිටි ආරේෂක යේකම් වරො කිෙන්‍ යද් 

පැහැදිලි යව්. එයසේ හැකිොව හා සම්ෙන්ධෙ තිබිෙදීත් රාජය බුද්ි (SIS) ප්‍රධානිො 
අයේේ  4 යතාරතුර ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්න්ට දැනුම්  දුන්යන් න්‍ැතැයි පැවසීම 
පිළිෙැනීමට අපහසු යවයි. යකයසේ උන්‍ත්  එයසේ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට යන්‍ාකීවා න්‍ම්  

යමෙ රාජය බුද්ි (SIS) ප්‍රධානිො වෙකීම්  පැහැර හැරීමකි. 

109. ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ විපේෂයේ මන්ත්‍රීවරුන්  යන්‍ාසිටිෙ යුතු ෙව හිටපු 
ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොද පිලි ෙනී. 

110. කපිල වචදයරත්න්‍ මහතා පවසන්‍ පරිදි ඔහු රාජය බුද්ි (SIS) ප්‍රධානිොට 

2018 මැයි 15 වැනි දින්‍ ISIS ෙලපෑම්  මැඩලීමට ෙත හැකි ක්‍රිොමාර්ෙ ෙැන්‍ 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් දැනුවත්  කරන්‍ යලස ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කර ඇත. එයින්  හැයඟන්යන් රාජය 
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බුද්ි (SIS) යසේවයේ අධයේෂ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් වැදෙත්  කරුණු පිළිෙඳව දැනුවත්  
කරන්‍ ක්‍රමයව්දෙේ  තිබී ඇති ෙවයි. 

111. කපිල වවදයරත්න්‍ මහතායේ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ අනුවත්  රාජය බුද්ි (SIS) ප්‍රධානිො 
සෘජුවම ආරේෂක යේකම්ට කථා කරන්‍ අවසේථා තිබූ ෙව යපයන්. න්‍මුත්  2019 
අයේේ  4 එයසේ කථා යකාට ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාරෙ ෙැන්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් දැනුවත්  කිරීම 
යන්‍ාකලාද ෙන්න්‍ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙකි. 

112. 2018 යදසැම්ෙර්  6 දේවා රාජය බුද්ි (SIS) අධයේෂ යලස වැඩ ෙැලූ 
යපාලිසේ  අිකාරි ජෙත්  නිශ්‍ාන්ත පවසන්‍ ආකාරෙට නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති න්‍ාලක 

සිේවා 2017 මුේ  භාෙයේදී ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්  ෙැන්‍ යසීමට (Research and Analysis 
Board) පරීේෂණ හා විශ්‍ේයේෂන්‍ මේඩලෙේ  ආරම්භ යකාට මුසේලිම්  අන්තවාදෙ 
ෙැන්‍ 2017 මුේ  භාෙයේ පරීේෂණ ආරම්භ කර ඇත. 

113. ජෙත්  නිශ්‍ාන්න්‍ මො පවසන්‍ ආකාරෙට දිෙන්‍ සිිංහල මුසේලිම්  ෙැටුයමන්  
පසු මුසේලිම්  අන්තවාදෙ සීඝ්‍රයෙන්  පැතිරී තියබ්. 

114. නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති න්‍ාලක සිේවාට විරුද්ධව පැවැත්වූ 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ඝාතන්‍ පරීේෂණ නිසා ත්‍රසේත විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යකාේඨාශ්‍ෙට ජපන්  
රයටන්  යෙන්  වූ වියශ්‍ේෂ විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ වාහන්‍ෙ පවා පාවිච්චි කිරීම අපරාධ පරීේෂණ 

යදපාර්තයම්න්තුව (TID) මඟින්  න්‍ැවත්  වූ ෙව ජෙත් නිශ්‍ාන්ත මහතා පවසයි. 

යමයතේ  කිසිම ප්‍රිපලෙේ  න්‍ැති ජන්‍ාිපති කුමන්ත්‍රණ කතාවේ  නිසා TID 
ක්‍රිොකාරකම්  අඩපන්‍ වූ ආකාරෙ යමයින්  යපයන්. 

115.  ජෙත්  නිශ්‍ාන්ත මහතා පවසන්‍ ආකාරෙට නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති න්‍ාලක 
සිේවා අත් අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීම නිසා මුසේලිම්  ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්  ෙැන්‍ කර යෙන්‍ ගිෙ වැඩ 
පිලියවල අඩාල වුන්‍ ෙව යමාහු දන්වයි. 

116. 2019 අයේේ  21 යොම්ෙ පිපිරීයමන්  පසුව ත්‍රිවිධ හමුදා ප්‍රධානීන්ටත් , 
යපාලිසියේ ප්‍රධානීන්ටන් , ආරේෂක යේකම්ටත්  තමා හමු ීමට එන්‍ යලස 
පැවසුවද ඔවුන්  යන්‍ාපැමිණි ෙව අෙමැතිතුමා පැවසීෙ. එවකට හිටපු ආරේෂක 
යේකම්වරො පවසන්යන් එයසේ අෙමැතිතුමා හමුීමට යන්‍ාෙන්‍ යලසට 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් දැනුම්  දුන්  ෙවෙ. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යමෙ පිලියන්‍ාෙත්තන්  ඒ ෙැන්‍ 
සැකෙේ  පවතී. එයසේ න්‍ැතින්‍ම්  ඉහත යජයෂේඨ නිලධාරින්ට විරුද්ධව 

ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් වින්‍ෙ පිෙවර යන්‍ාෙත්යත් ඇයි ? 

117. අෙමැතිතුමා පවසන්‍ අන්දමට ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ නිසි ආකාරෙට නිසි 
පරිදි පවත්වා න්‍ැති අතර සමහර මාසවල මාසෙකට වරේ  යහා පවත්වා න්‍ැන්‍. 
යමයින්  න්‍ැවත යපයන්‍න්යන් ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් නිසි අවධාන්‍ෙ ලො 
යන්‍ාදුන්  ෙවෙ. 

118. අෙමැතිතුමා පවසන්‍ පරිදි 2018 ඔේයතෝෙර්  26 න්  පසුව ආරේෂක 
මේඩලෙ යකයසේවත්  පැවත්වුවාද ෙන්න්‍ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙකි. 2019 යපෙරවාරි මාසයේ 
පමණේ  පවත්වා ඇත. ඊට පසුව යොම්ෙ පිපියරන්‍ යතේම ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ 
පවත්වා න්‍ැත. 

119. අෙමැතිතුමා පවසන්‍ පරිදි 2018 ඔේයතෝෙර්  26 න්  පසුව ආරේෂක 
මේඩලෙට අෙමැතිතුමා කැඳවා යන්‍ාමැත. අෙමැතිතුමා 2019 යදසැම්ෙර්  මස 
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න්‍ැවත අග්‍රාමාතයතුමා යලස දිවුරුම්  දුන්  පසුවද ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට කැඳවා 
න්‍ැත. අෙමැතිතුමා යලසට රයේ ජන්‍තාවට තමායෙන්  ඉටුවිෙ යුතූ රාජකාරියෙන්  
යකාටසේ  ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට යන්‍ාෙෑම නිසා ඉටු කිරීමට අයපායහාසත්  වූ නිසා 
යම් ෙැන්‍ ෙරු අෙමැතිතුමා පාර්ලියම්න්තුවට යහෝ කැබින්‍ේ  මේඩලෙට දැනුම්  
යන්‍ාදීම වරදකි. 

120. අෙමැතිතුමාද පිළිෙන්න්‍ා පරිදි දියුණු රටවල නීනිෙ හා සාමෙ භාර 
ඇමතිවරු හැටිෙට පත්  කරන්යන් එම රාජකාරි හා වෙකීම්  ෙැන්‍ පළපුරුදදේ  යහා 
පසුබිම්  දැනුමේ  හා අත්දැකීම්  ඇති අෙෙ. එවැනි අෙ නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ ඇමතිවරුන්  
හැටිෙට පත්  කර තිබුන්‍ා න්‍ම්  රට මීට වඩා ආරේිතව පවත්වා යෙන්‍ ො හැකිව තිබූ 
ෙව යපයන්. 

121. නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ පිළිෙඳ ඇමතිවරුන්, ආරේෂක ප්‍රධානින්  හා 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ඇතුළුව යපාදුයව් මුසේලිම්  අන්තවාදෙ ෙැන්‍ කතා කරමින්  සිටිො 
මිස එෙ ත්‍රසේතවාදෙේ  ෙවට හැයරන්‍ ෙව යත්රුම්  යෙන්‍ න්‍ැත. යම් තත්ත්වෙ 
අෙමැතිතුමා විසින් ද පිළිෙනු ලැබුයව් ෙ. යමෙ ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ 
ක්‍රිොකරන්න්‍න්යෙන්  ෙලායපායරාත්තූ විෙ හැකි තත්වෙේ  යන්‍ායව්. 

122. ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රන්‍ෙ නිසි ආකාරෙට ක්‍රිො යන්‍ාකළ නිසා යෙෝම්ෙ පිපිරුව 
අෙමැතිතුමාට යහෝ නිසි යන්‍ාරතුරු ලැබී යන්‍ාමැත. 

123. සහරාන්  ත්‍රසේතවාදී ක්‍රිොවලට පුහුණුීම්  හා සුදාන්‍ම්ීම්  ආදිෙ දිෙටම 
කරයෙන්‍ ගිෙද අදාල බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ ඒවා ෙැන්‍ අවශ්‍ය යතාරතුරු යසාො යන්‍ාෙත්  ඛව 
අෙමැතිතුමා පවසයි. රාජය බුද්ි යසේවාව හා ප්‍රධානිො අසමත්  න්‍ම්  හා රාජය බුද්ි 
යසේවාව අසාර්ථක න්‍ම්  එහි ප්‍රධානිො ඒ ෙැන්‍ රටට උත්තර දිෙ යුතුයි. 

124. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් හා අෙමැතිතුමා ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්  මරා යහෝ අත්අඩිංගුවට 
යෙන්‍ අවසාන්‍ ෙයි පැවසුව ද එෙ පිළිෙැනීමට යන්‍ාහැකි වාතාවරණෙේ  තවම 
තියෙන්‍ ෙව පැහැදිලිෙ.  2019 ඔේයතෝෙර් මාසයේ පවා තවමත් ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්  
තැනින්  තැන්‍ අේලා ෙනු ලෙයි. යමෙ යමයසේ යන්‍ායවයි කිො සන්‍ාථ කිරීමට 
අෙමැතිතුමාට යහෝ යන්‍ාහැකි වූවා. 

125. රාජය ආරේෂක රාජය අමාතය රුවන්  වියේවර්ධන්‍ මහතාට ෙැසේ පත්‍රෙ 

මඟින්  පවරා තිබුයන් හමුදා පුහුණු මධයසේථාන්‍, රේන්‍ා ලිංකා ආරේෂා සමාෙම, 
රණවිරු යසේවා අිකාරිෙ, සිවිේ  ආරේෂක ෙලකාෙ හා ශිෂයා භට ෙලකාෙ පමන්‍ේ  
න්‍මුත්  ඔහුට රයේ ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ පාර්ලියම්න්තූවට වෙකීමට සිදුවිෙ. යමම තත්වෙ 
ෙටයත් රයේ ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ පාර්ලියම්න්තුව දැනුවත්  ී ම යහාඳින්  සිදු ී  යන්‍ාමැත. 

126. රාජය ආරේෂක ඇමතිතුමාද පසුගිෙ අවුරුදු 5 ට ආරේෂක යේකම්වරුන් 
පසේවතාවේ  මාරු වූ නිසා ආරේෂක අමාතයාිංශ්‍යේ ක්‍රිොකාරී ෙව දුෙලව පැවති ෙව 
පිළිෙනී. 

127. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් රටින්  ෙැහැර වන්‍ සමහර අවසේථාවල රාජය ආරේෂක 
රාජය අමාතය වරො ආරේෂක අමාතය යලස වැඩෙැලීමට යහෝ පත්කර යන්‍ාමැත. 
යමෙ ආරේෂාවට තදින්ම ෙලපාන්‍ කාරණාවකි. 2019 අයේේ  21 දා ද යමම 
තත්වෙ පැවතිණි. 

128. ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ සේිර කාලවකවානුවල යන්‍ාපැවත්වනු ෙවත්  
ආරේෂක මේඩලයේදී ඔේයතාෙර්  මාසෙට යපර කිසිවියටක සහරාන්යේ 
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ක්‍රිොකාරකම්  ත්‍රසේතවාදී ක්‍රිො යලස හඳුන්‍ා යෙන්‍ ඒවා මැඩලීයම් යමයහයුම්  
ක්‍රිොත්මක කිරීමට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් / ආරේෂක ඇමතිතුමන් උපයදසේ  දී න්‍ැත. 

129. ආරේෂක මාේඩලික ප්‍රධානි පන්‍ත අනුව ආරේෂක මාේඩලික ප්‍රධානිට 
ත්‍රසේත ක්‍රිො මැඩලීමට නියෙෝෙ දීම යහෝ යමයහයුම්  කිරීමට යහෝ ෙලතල යන්‍ාදී 
ඇති ෙව රාජය ආරේෂක ඇමැතිවරොද පිළිෙනී. යමෙ නිවැරදි කල යුතුයි. 

130. 2018 වර්ෂවලට යපර සිටි නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ භාර ඇමතිතුමා පැවසුයව් රාජය 

බුද්ි යසේවෙ (SIS) යපාලිසියේ යකාටසේ  වුවද පැවතුයන් ආරේෂක අමාතයාිංශ්‍ෙ 

ෙටයත් ෙවෙ. න්‍මුත්  රාජය බුද්ි යසේවෙ (SIS) කාට වාර්තා කලා දැයි යන්‍ාදැන්‍ සිටි 
ෙව ඔහු පවසයි. නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ ඇමතිවරෙකු යමවනි ක්‍රිොදාම ෙැන්‍වත්  යන්‍ාදැන්‍ 
සිටිො න්‍ම්  සම්පුර්ණයෙන්  අසාර්ථකෙ. 

131. සාෙල රත්න්‍ාෙක ඇමතිතුමා විසින් පිළිෙනු ලැබුවා නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ භාර 
ඇමතිතුමාට අදාල විෂෙන්  ෙැන්‍ පසුබිම්  දැනුමේ  තිබුන්‍ා න්‍ම්  පහල නිලධාරීන්යේ 
උපයදසේ  මත ෙැයපන්යන් න්‍ැනිව ඔවුන්  යමයහෙීමට හැකිොව තිබූ ෙව. යමවැනි 
ඇමතිවරුන් පත්  කිරීයම්දී උපරිම දාෙකත්වෙ ලො ෙැනීමට න්‍ම්  එවැනි පසුබිම්  
දැනුම ඇති අෙ පත්  කල යුතුයි. 

132. සාෙල රත්න්‍ාෙක ඇමතිතුමායෙන්  දිගින්  දිෙටම ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ කලත්  සහරාන්  
ආෙමික අන්තවාදියෙකු යලස මිස ත්‍රසේතවාදියෙකු යලස හඳුන්‍ාෙැනීමට 
යන්‍ාහැකිවූ ෙව පවසයි. යමවැනි යද්වේ  කලට යව්ලාවට යතෝරා යබ්රා 
හඳුන්‍ාෙැනීමට යන්‍ාහැකි ීම ආරේෂාව භාරව සිටින්‍ අෙයේ අසාර්කථභාවෙකි. 
තවද සහරාන්  ෙැන්‍ යසීමට උපයදසේ  දුන්න්‍ා ෙයි කීවද කිසිවියටක සහරාන්  
ඇේලීමට යහෝ වින්‍ාශ්‍ කිරීමට උපයදසේ  දී න්‍ැත. යම් සමඟ යපාලිසියේ උපරිම 
ශ්‍ේතිෙ යොදා යමයහයුම්  දිෙත්  කිරීමට ෙතයුතු පිෙවර යන්‍ායෙන්‍ යපාලිසේපති මත 
පමණේ  ෙැපීයමන්  යපයන්‍න්යන් ඇමතිතුමන්යෙන් ලැබිෙ යුතු න්‍ාෙකත්වෙ 
යන්‍ාලැබී ඇති ෙවෙ. අඩුම වශ්‍යෙන්  යමම කාර්ෙ සඳහා වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ ෙලකාෙ 

(STF) යෙදීමට යහෝ ඇමතිතුමා ක්‍රිොත්මක ී යන්‍ාමැත. 

133. මීළඟට 2018 මාර්තු මස සිට ඔේයතාෙර්  දේවා නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ 
ඇමතිතුමා යලස සිටි රිංජිත්  මද්දුමෙේඩාර ඇමතිතුමා මාස 6 ක කාලෙට 
ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට යොසේ  ඇත්යත් 3 වතාවේ  පමණේ  ීම අසතුටුදාෙක 
තත්වෙකි. 

134. නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ භාරව සිටි ඇමතිවරුන්  යදයදන්‍ාම පවසන්යන් එම 
අමාතයාිංශ්‍ෙට පුර්ණකාලීන්‍ ඇමතිතුමකු සිටිෙ යුතු ෙවෙ. යමයසේ පුර්ණකාලීන්‍ 
ඇමතිතුමකු යන්‍ාසිටි නිසා ත්‍රසේත මර්ධන්‍ ක්‍රිොවන්  අතපසුවුනු ෙව රිංජිත්  
මද්දුමෙේඩාර ඇමතිතුමා පවසා සිටිො. 

135. යකයසේ වුවත්  සහරාන්  අේලා ෙැනීයම් අවශ්‍යතාවෙ යත්රුම්  යෙන්‍ ඒ 
සඳහා අවශ්‍ය යමයහයුම්  දිෙත්  කිරීමට න්‍ාෙකත්වෙ ඇමතිතුමායේ මේටයමන්  සිදු 

ී යන්‍ාමැත. අවම වශ්‍යෙන්  යමම අවශ්‍යතාවෙ සඳහා වියශ්‍ේෂ කාර්ෙ ෙලකාෙ (STF) 
යෙදවිමටවත්  ඇමතිතුමා ක්‍රිො කර න්‍ැත. 

136. ත්‍රිපුද්ෙල මලේයොඩ කමිටුයව් සභාපති යශ්‍රේෂේඨාිකරණ විනිසුරු 
මලේයොඩ මැතිතුමායෙන්  හා සාමාජික විශ්‍රාමික යපාලිසේපති ඉලිංෙයකෝන්  
මහතායෙන්  ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ නිසි ආකාරෙට යන්‍ාපැවැත්ීම නිසා අයේේ  04 
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ලැබූ බුද්ි යතාරතුරුවලට අදාලව නිසි නීන්දු තීරන්‍ ෙැනීම සිදු යන්‍ාවූවා දැයි 
විමසුවිට යපාලිසේපති ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට වාර්තා යන්‍ාකලා ෙයි කීම හැර එම 
පසුෙැම්වලට ප්‍රධාන්‍ යහේතුව ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ යන්‍ාපැවැත්ීම ෙව පිළිෙැනීමට 
උන්‍න්දු වූයේ න්‍ැත. ඒ ෙැන්‍ යමාවුන්  යමම තත්ත්වෙ ෙැන්‍ එක අිංශ්‍ෙකින්  පමණේ  
ෙැලු ෙව යපයන්. 

137.  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පත්  කරන්‍ ලද යමම මලේයොඩ කමිටුවට නීතිමෙ 
ෙලෙේ  න්‍ැත.  සාේිකරුවන්  කැඳීම පවා නීතයානුකුල යන්‍ායව්. එම නිසා එම 
කමිටුයව් යසාො  ෙැනීම මත රජයේ නිලධාරින්  වූ ආරේෂක යේකම්  යහේමසිරි 
ප්‍රන්‍ාන්දු හා යපාලිසේපති පුජිත ජෙසුන්දර ෙන්‍ මහත්වරුන්ට විරුද්ධව නීතිෙ 
ක්‍රිොත්මක කිරීම නිතයානුකුල න්‍ැත. 

138. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පවසන්යන් 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර්  13 වැනි දින්‍ ආරේෂක 

මේඩලයේදී අපරාධ පරීේෂණ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් (CID) යපාලිසේ  පරීේෂක 

නිශ්‍ාන්ත සිේවා LTTE ෙට සම්ෙන්ධ නිලධාරිෙකු නිසා ඔහු එතැනින්  සේථාන්‍ මාරු 
කිරීමට ෙත්  තීරණෙ 2018 යන්‍ාවැම්ෙර්  18 දින්‍ම ලිපිෙකින්  යපාලිසේපතිවරො 
යපාලිසේ  යකාමිසමට ලිො යමම යපාලිසේ  පරීේෂකවරො මාරු කරන්‍ ෙව පැවසීම 
නිසාත් , යපාලිසේපතිවරො දුරකථන්‍ යදකේ ක්‍රිොත්මක කරමින් සිටින්‍ නිසාත්  
ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට යන්‍ායෙන්වූ ෙවයි. යකයසේ උවත් යපාලිසේපතිවරොද පවසා 
ඇත්යත් ඔහු ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට යන්‍ාකැඳවූයේ ඔේයතාෙර්  මස 23 වැනි දින්‍ 
සිටෙ කිොෙ. යමම දින්‍ෙ ෙැන්‍ පරසේපරභාවෙේ  තිබුන්‍ත්  යමම කාරණා 
යපාලිසේපතිවරො ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට යන්‍ායෙන්ීමට ප්‍රමාණවත් කරුණේ  
යන්‍ායව්. තවද යපාලිසේ  පරීේෂක වරයෙකු මාරු කිරීම වැනි පරිපාලන්‍ කටයුතු 
ආරේෂක මේඩලයේදී කථා යන්‍ාකළ යුතු කරුණු යව්. 

139.   ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පවසන්යන් 2015 සිටම සහරාන්ලායේ ක්‍රිොකාරකම්  
ආරේෂක මේඩලයේදී කතා යකාට තිබුන්‍ත්  යකාතරම්  විශ්‍ාල බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ තිබුන්‍ත්  
සහරාන්ලා ෙැන්‍ ආෙමික අන්තන්‍වාදෙේ  යලස වාර්තා උන්‍ා මිස ත්‍රසේතවාදෙේ  
කිො වාර්තා යන්‍ාවුණු ෙවෙ.  එයින්  අදහසේ  වන්යන් බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ අසාර්ථක ෙවෙ. 

බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ අසාර්ථක න්‍ම්  ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රන්‍ෙ අසාර්ථකෙ, ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රන්‍ෙ 
අසාර්ථක න්‍ම්  ආරේෂක ඇමතිතුමා වෙකිව යුතුෙ. එම නිසා යමම ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ 
විශ්‍ාල වින්‍ාශ්‍ෙේ  කිරීමට යපර එෙ වලේවා ෙැනීමට යන්‍ාහැකි ී ම ෙැන්‍ ආරේෂක 
ඇමතිතුමා වෙ කිව යුතු ෙයි පැවසු විට එතුමා විෂයෙන්  පිටතට යොසේ  2006 දී යුධ 
හමුදා මූලසේථාන්‍යේදී එවකට යුධ හමුදාපති වූ වර්තමාන්‍ ෆීේඩ්  මාර්ෂේ  සරත්  
යෆාන්යසේකාට මහතාට එේල වුන්‍ මරායෙන්‍ මැයරන්‍ ප්‍රහාරෙට යුධ හමුදාපති 
වෙකිව යුතු දැයි අසයි. යමම තන්වෙ ෙැන්‍ කථා කිරියමන්  රටට ආරේෂාව සැපයිෙ 
යුතු ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට වෙකීම්  වලින්  ෙැලවිෙ යන්‍ාහැකිෙ. යුධ හමුදා මුලසේථාන්‍ෙට 
2006 දි එේල වුනු ත්‍රසේතවාදි ප්‍රහාරෙ එේල වූයේ සටන්  විරාමෙේ  හා සාම සාකච්ඡා 
පවතින්‍ යව්ලාවකෙ. එම කාලවකවානු වල හමුදා බුද්ි යමයහයුම්  න්‍වතියි. 
ත්‍රසේතවාදී බුද්ි සාමාජිකයින්  පවා අත් අඩිංගුවට ෙැනීම න්‍වතියි. යම් නිසා යපාේටු 
අම්මාන්යේ ත්‍රසේත බුද්ි සාමාජිකයින්ට විශ්‍ාල නිදහසේ  ලැයබ්. හමුදා 
මුලසේථාන්‍ෙට පහර එේල කයේ නිතයානුකූල වූ සටන්  විරාමෙේ  කඩ කරමිනි. 
යකයසේ වුවත්  යම් වන්‍ විට හමුදාපතිවරො හමුදාව භාර යෙන්‍ මාස 4 කි. එයසේ වුවද,  
ඔහු යුධ හමුදා මුරෙ 200 සිට 400 දේවා වැි යකාට මුරෙ ොරව සිටි කර්න්‍ේ  
යවනුවට යම්ජර්  යජන්‍ාරාේ  යකයන්‍කුත්  යොදා තිබිනි. හමුදාව භාරයෙන්‍ පළමු 
මාස 4 ඇතුලත හමුදාපති සම්ූර්ණ කාලෙ ෙත කයේ ඉදිරි සටන්  යපරමුයේ ෙමන්  
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කරමින්  රණවිරුවන්ට අවශ්‍ය ශ්‍ේතිෙ යදමිනි. යකාළඹට ී යුධ හමුදා 
මුලසේථාන්‍යේ මුර යසෙළුන්  යහෝ ෙිංකර්  පරිේෂා කිරීම යුධ හමුදාපතියේ රාජකාරිෙ 
යන්‍ායව්. තවද ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් එතුමාට ෙයමේ  පැවසු සම්ූර්ණ මුසාවාදෙකට 
රැවටී ෆීේඞ  මාර්ෂේ  හමුදාපති කාලයේ යුධ යපරමුණට ෙැවු 1500 ේ  වු යසෙල 
කැලේ  කිසි දියන්‍ක ආපසු යන්‍ාආ ෙවද පැවසිෙ. යමෙ ෙයමේ  ලොදුන් සාවදය 
යතාරතුරකි. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් කිසිම යසාො ෙැලීමේ  යන්‍ාමැතිව යමම කතාව 
මාදුරුඔෙ වියශ්‍ේෂ ෙලකායේ යසෙළුන් අමතන්‍ යව්ලායව්දී ද මීට කලින්  පවසා 
තිබිනි. යසෙලුන්  යමවැනි කතා කිෙන්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යකයන්‍කුට ෙරු යන්‍ාකරනු 
ඇත. තවද යමවැනි යද් පැවසිම පාර්ලියම්න්තු කාරක සභායව් කටයුත්තකට අදාල 
යන්‍ායව්. 

යකයසේ වුවද ෆීේඞ  මාර්ෂේ  සරත්  යෆාන්යසේකා විසින්  එෙ යොරුවේ  ෙවත්  ඔහු 
අණ දුන්  අවුරුදු 2 මාස 10 යුද්ධයේදි වැිම සිංඛයාවේ  එකවර යුධ බියම් මිෙ ගිෙ 
අවසේථායව් මිෙ ගියේ මුහමායේ සටන්‍ක දි 150 ේ  පමණේ  ෙවත්  එම අවසේථායව් 
ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්  300 ේ  මිෙ ගිෙ ෙවත්  පැවසිෙ. තව ද එම සටන්‍ට අණ දුන්යන් 
වර්තමාන්‍ හමුදාපති යජන්‍රාේ  ශ්‍වින්ද්‍ර සිේවා හා යම්ජර්  යජන්‍රාේ  කමේ  
ගුණරත්න්‍ මහත්වරුන්ෙ. යමම සටන්‍ ෙැන්‍ මාධය මඩ ප්‍රචාර යෙන්‍ ෙන්න්‍ට 
උත්සාහ කල විට හමුදාපති එම සටයන් සම්පුර්ණ වෙකිම ඔහු භාරෙන්න්‍ා ෙව 
මාධයෙට පැවසීෙ. එහිදි හමුදාපති ආදර්ශ්‍මත්ව හැසිරුනු අතර වර්තමාන්‍ පාසේකු 
ප්‍රහාරයේදි යමන්  ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍යේ වරද කණිෂේඨෙන්  පිට දමා ප්‍රධානිො බිෙගුේයලකු යසේ 
පැන්‍ ොමට උත්සාහ කයේ න්‍ැත. තවද යකයසේ වුවත්  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විසින්  සටන්  
බියම්දි රණවිරුවන්  දිවි පිදු අවසේථා ෙැන්‍ එම කැපකිරිම්  අවතේයසේරු කරමින්  
ප්‍රකාශ්‍ කිරිම අෙරු ක්‍රිොවකි. 

140. 2019 අයේේ  4 ප්‍රහාරෙ ෙැන්‍ මිත්‍ර රටකින්  ලැබුනු බුද්ි යතාරතුරු ෙැන්‍ 
අයේේ  21 දින්‍ ප්‍රහාරෙ එේල වන්‍තුරුම ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට දැන්‍ ෙැනීමට 
යන්‍ාලැබුයන් එම කාලෙ ඇතුලත ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ යන්‍ාතිබුන්‍ නිසාෙ. යමෙට 
නිදහසට කරුනු යලස ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පවසන්යන් අයේේ  14 (අවුරුදු දින්‍යේ විෙ 
යුතුයි) ආරේෂක යේකම්  හා යපාලිසේපති ෙන්‍ යදයදන්‍ා හමුවුන්‍ ෙවත්  අයේේ  16 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් රටින්  පිටවන්‍ විට යපාලිසේපති ගුවන්  යතාටුපයේදි හමුවුන්‍ ෙවත්  
අයේේ  12 මඩකලපුයව්දි හා යවන්‍න්  සේථාන්‍වලදි යපාලිසේපති හමුවූ ෙවත්  යම් 
කිසිම විටක යමාවුන්  යමම යතාරතුර ෙැන්‍ තමා දැනුවන්  යන්‍ාකල ෙවත්ෙ.  තවද 
යමවැනි යතාරතුරේ  ලැබුයන්‍ාත්  පිෙවර ෙැනීමට ජන්‍පතිතුමන්යේ අවසරෙ අවශ්‍ය 
යන්‍ාවන්‍ ෙවත්  පවසයි. එතුමා පවසන්යන් යමචැනි අවසේථාවලදි ආරේෂක 
මේඩලෙ අන්‍වශ්‍ය ෙවයි. යමම උත්තරයෙන්  යපනි ෙන්යන් යමවැනි යතාරතුරේ  
ලද විට අවශ්‍ය පිෙවර ෙැනිමට ආරේෂක අිංශ්‍ වල සිෙළු යදන්‍ා කැඳවා සාකච්ඡා 
යකාට නියෙෝෙ දිෙ යුතු ෙව හා අදාළ යවන්  යවන් වූ අෙට යදන්‍ නියෙෝෙ එක 
සේථාන්‍ෙකදි සම්ෙන්ිකරණෙ විෙ යුතු ෙවත්  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට යන්‍ාවැටයහන්‍ 

ෙවෙ. යමම යතාරතුර අනුව අවශ්‍ය පිෙවර ෙත්තා න්‍ම් , කයතෝලික පේලි වලට 

ආරේෂාව සැපයිම, යහාටේ  වලට ආරේෂාව සැපයිම, ඉන්දිොනු මහ යකාමසාරිසේ  

කාර්ොලෙට ආරේෂාව සැපයිම, මාර්ෙ ොධක දැමිම, පුද්ෙලයින්  හා වාහන්‍ 
පරිේෂා කිරිම වැනි සිෙේල කල යුතූ යව්. 

යමවැනි යද් කරන්‍ විට ( සමහර විට අඳුරුනීතිෙ පන්‍වා ) අනිවාර්යෙන්ම ජන්‍තාවට 
හිරිහැර ොධා සිදුයව්. ඒ නිසා යමවැනි පිෙවර යපාලිසේපතිට යහෝ හමුදා ප්‍රධානින්ට 
නීරණෙ යකාට ෙත යන්‍ාහැකි වන්‍ අතර අනිවාර්යෙන්ම ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 
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මේටයමන්  ආරේෂක මේඩලයේදි ෙත යුතුෙ. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට යමෙ තවමත් 
යන්‍ාවැටයහන්‍ ෙව යපයන්.  එයසේ න්‍ැත්න්‍ම්  එතුමා යමෙ යත්රුම්  ෙැනිමට අකමැති 
වන්යන් යමෙ යත්රුම්  ෙතයහාත්  යමම වින්‍ාශ්‍යේ වෙකීම කනිෂේඨ නිලධාරින්  මත 
යන්‍ාදමා එතුමාට භාරෙැනීමට වන්‍ නිසා විෙ හැක. 

141. ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ ඕන්‍ැම රටක යුධ සමයේත් සාමෙ ඇති විටත්  එක 
තැන්‍ක නිශ්‍ේචිත දින්‍ක නිෙමිත යව්ලාවකට ( සතිෙකට වරේ  ) පවත්වන්යන් තද 
ෙල ආරේෂාවට අදාල තීන්දු තීරණ ෙන්න්‍ා යමම මේඩලෙට ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙ පළමු 
තැන්‍ දිෙ යුතු නිසාෙ. තවද එවැනි තීන්දු ෙැනියම්දී ආරේෂවට අදාල සිෙළු අිංශ්‍ වල 
ප්‍රධානින්  එහි සිටීම අතාවශ්‍යෙ. යම් ෙැන්‍ විමසු විට ආරේෂක අමාතය 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ වෙකීම්  රහිත පිළිතුර වුයේ යකායහේදි යහෝ යමම යතාරතුර 
ලැබුන්‍ා න්‍ම්  වහාම ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ කැඳවිෙ හැකිෙ තිබුන්‍ාෙ ෙන්න්‍ෙ. යමම 
උත්තරෙ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙට නිවැරදි උත්තරෙ යන්‍ායව්. 

142. 2019 අයේේ  4 හා 21 අතර කාලයේදි ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ රැසේී තිබුයේ 
න්‍ම්  අනිවාර්ෙයෙන් යමම යතාරතුරට අදාලව ක්‍රිොත්මක විමට තිබුන්‍ා යන්දැයි 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යෙන්  විමසු විට එතුමා පවසන්යන් අයේේ  9 පැවති බුද්ි 
රැසේීයම්දී පවා යම් ෙැන්‍ සාකච්ඡා කයේ න්‍ැහැ යන්ද ෙන්න්‍ෙ. යමම ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙ ඇසිෙ 
යුත්යත් එතුමා යන්‍ාව කාරක සභාව විසින් ෙ. අයේේ  9 යම් ෙැන්‍ කථා යන්‍ාකිරිම 

ෙැන්‍ රාජය බුද්ි (SIS) ප්‍රධානිො සම්ූර්ණ වෙකිම ෙතයුතුෙ. එයසේ වුවද අයේේ  9 
රැසේවියම්දී යම් ෙැන්‍ කතා කලත්  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ නියෙෝෙ එහිදි ලොෙත 
යන්‍ාහැක. 

143.  ආරේෂකමේඩලෙට යපාලිසේපති යන්‍ාපැමිනිෙ යුතු ෙව ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 
දන්වා ඇති අවසේථාවක ඒ යවනුවට යපාලිසියේ යදවනියෙකු යහෝ යන්‍ායෙන්වන්‍ 
අවිෙක යමවැනි භාරදුර යතාරතුරේ  ෙැන්‍ ෙත යුතු පිෙවර යපාලිසේපතිවරොට 
තනිෙම තීරණෙ කල යන්‍ාහැකිෙ. යම් ෙැන්‍ ආරේෂක ඇමතිතුමා පවසන්යන් 
ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ අමාතයාිංශ්‍යේ යේකම් වරො සිටි නිසා 
යපාලිසේපතිවරො න්‍ැතත්  අවශ්‍ය තීරණ ෙත හැකිව තිබුන්‍ ෙවෙ. න්‍මුත්  ඉහත 
යේකම්වරොට යපාලිසියේ යජයෂේඨ නිලධාරියෙකුට අදාල විෂෙ ෙැන්‍ තියෙන්‍ 
දැනුම යහා අත්දැකිම්  න්‍ැත්යත්ෙ. එම නිසා යපාලිසේපති යවනුවට යේකම්වරොට 
ක්‍රිොකල හැකිව තිබුයේ ෙයි පැවසීම වෘත්තීෙ නිපුණත්වෙට අදාල න්‍ැත. කරුණු 
එයසේ න්‍ම්  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට හමුදා ප්‍රධානින් ද ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට යන්‍ායෙන්වා 
ආරේෂක අමාතයාිංශ්‍යේ යේකම් වරො පමණේ  යෙන්විෙ හැකි විෙ යුතුෙ. 
ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ ආරේෂක අිංශ්‍ ප්‍රධානින්  සිටියමන්  යකලින්ම නියෙෝෙ හා 

යතාරතුරු ( First Hand Information) ලොදී ක්‍රිොත්මක වියම් හා සාකච්ඡා වියම් 
වැදෙත්කම ආරේෂක ඇමතිතුමාට යන්‍ාවැටහීම යේදවාචකෙකි. ඉහත අවශ්‍යතාව 
ආරේෂක කටයුතූ වලදි අතයවශ්‍යෙ. 

144. රයේ ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ කථා කරන්‍ ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 
විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ මන්ත්‍රීවරුන්  4 යදයන්‍ේ  යෙන්වා තියබ්. යුධ හමුදාපති පවා 
ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ සාමාජිකයින්  ඉන්න්‍ා විට ආරේෂාවට 
අදාල සිංයව්දි යතාරතුරු කථා කල යන්‍ාහැකි ෙව පිලිෙන්න්‍ා ලදි. යමම ක්‍රිොදාමෙ 
විිමත්  යන්‍ාවන්‍ ෙව ආරේෂක ඇමතිතුමාට පැවසූ විට එතුමා පහත සඳහන්  
හරෙේ  න්‍ැති යද් පවසා ඇත. 

• පාර්ලියම්න්තූයව් සිෙළු මන්ත්‍රීවරුන්  යදන්යන් එකම දිවුරුමෙ. 
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• රයේ ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ පේෂ විපේෂ සිෙළු යදන්‍ා යදන්යන් එකම දිවුරුම 
ෙවෙ. 

• විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ මන්ත්‍රීවරුන්ද යමම අවසේථායව් කලින්  ඇමතිවරුන්  
විදිෙට සිටි ෙවත්  අවුරුදු ෙණන්‍ේ  එකම ආේඩුයව් සිටි ෙවත් . 

• ඔවුන්  ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ කරන්‍ වියව්චන්‍ න්‍වත්වන්න්‍. ඔවුයන්‍ාවුන්  
ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ දැන්‍ෙත යුතුෙ. (යමෙ සිදුවන්යන් පාර්ලියම්න්තුව හරහා 
විෙ යුතුෙ.) 

ඉහත කරුණු නිසා විරුද්ධ පේෂ මන්ත්‍රීවරුන්  ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට යෙන්‍ ආ ෙව 
පවසයි. යමම යහේතු කාරන්‍ා පිළිෙත යන්‍ාහැකි අතර කිතූේ  ෙහට ගියේ තණයකාල 
කැපීමට ෙයි පැවසූවා වැනිෙ. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට කැමති අෙකු යෙන්විෙ හැකි ෙව 
ෙැසේ  පත්‍රයේ තියෙන්‍ ෙව එතුමා පැවසුවත්  එවිට යෙන්විෙ යුත්යත් අදාල අෙ 
පමණේ  ෙව එතුමා යත්රුම්  ෙත යුතූෙ. ආරේෂක මේඩලෙ කිෙන්යන් 
යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍ෙ කරන්‍ තැන්‍ේ  යන්‍ාවිෙ යුතුයි. විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ අෙ යෙන්විම 
සාමාන්‍ය යදෙේ  ෙයි ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පැවසිම ඉතා යොලඳ කන්‍ාවකි. ආරේෂක 
මේඩලෙට විරුද්ධ  පේෂයේ අෙ යෙන්වු විට ඔවුන්යේ ෙලපැම්වලට ලේවිෙ 
හැකිෙ ෙයි පැවසු විට  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පවසන්යන් විරුද්ධ පේෂෙයි ආේඩු 
පේෂෙයි කිෙන්යන් අප විසින් සාදාෙත්  යද්වේ  ෙවයි. විරුද්ධ පේෂයේ 
මන්ත්‍රීවරෙකු ෙයි කිෙන්යන් ත්‍රසේතවාදියෙේ  යන්‍ායව් ෙයි කිෙයි. යමම හරෙේ  
න්‍ැති කතා හරහා පාර්ලියම්න්තුව හා ආේු විරුද්ධ පේෂ වල වෙකිම්  ෙැන්‍ 
වයවසේථායවන්  කිෙයවන්‍ යද් අවතේයසේරු යන්‍ාකල යුතුෙ. 

145. 2019 අයේේ  21 උයද් 8.15 - 8.45 අතර කාලයේ රයේ ජන්‍තාවට 
භාොන්‍ක ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාර එේල විෙ. ජීවිත විශ්‍ාල ෙණන්‍ේ  අහිමි ී රටම යේ 
විලේ  ෙවට පත්ී තිබිනි. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යම් යව්ලායව් සිටියේ සිිංෙේූරුයව්ෙ. 

එදින්‍ සිිංෙේූරුයව් සිට ලිංකාවට හවස 4.26 ට UL303 (ශ්‍රී ලිංකන් ) ගුවන්  ොන්‍ෙත්  

රාත්‍රි 9.41 ට UL309 (ශ්‍රී ලිංකන් ) ගුවන්  ොන්‍ෙත්  පැමිණ තියබ්.  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 
ඉහත ගුවන්  ොන්‍ා යදයකන්ම ලිංකාවට යන්‍ාපැමිණ රාත්‍රි 12 ට පමණ ලිංකාවට 
පැමිණි සිිංෙේූරු එොර්  ලයින්  ගුවන්  ොන්‍යේ පැමිණියේෙ. කලින්  පැමිණි ශ්‍රී 

ලිංකන් UL ගුවන්  ොන්‍ා යදයේ ආරේෂක අමාතයතුමා යලසට වහාම ලිංකාවට 
යන්‍ාපැමිණියේ මන්දැයි ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යෙන්  විමසු විට එතුමා වවදය 
පරීේෂණෙකට ගිෙ ෙවත්  එන්‍මුදු සිිංෙේූරුයව් ශ්‍රී ලිංකා තාන්‍ාපති හරහා වියශ්‍ේෂ 
යජේ  ොන්‍ෙේ  යවන්  කරවා යෙන්‍ පැමිණීමට උත්සාහ දැරුවත්  එෙ ලිංකාවට 
එන්යන් සිිංෙේූරු ගුවන්  ොන්‍යෙන්  පසුව නිසා එෙ යවන්  කරවා යන්‍ාෙත්  ෙවත්  
පවසයි. යමයින්  යපයන්‍න්යන් වවදය පරිේෂණෙ න්‍වත්වා ලිංකාවට ඒමට 
හැකිොව එතුමාට තිබුණ ෙවයි. තවද එතුමා පැවසුයව් එම ගුවන්  ොන්‍ා යදකම පිරී 
තිබුණු ෙවයි. යමවිට පාර්ලියම්න්තු මන්ත්‍රී ෆීේඩ් මාර්ෂේ  සරත්  යෆාන්යසේකා මහතා 

එයසේ න්‍ම්  රයේ ආරේෂාව ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙ පළමුතැන්‍ නිසා කිහිපයදයන්‍කු UL ගුවන්  
ොන්‍ා වලින්  ෙසේසවායෙන්‍ ආ යුතුව තිබුන්‍ා යන්දැයි ඇසූ විට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 
හාසයජන්‍ක යලස පැවසුයව් ඔෙතුමන්ලා ඒවා කරන්‍වාද දන්යන් න්‍ැහැ ඒ කාලයේ 
ඒවා කරන්න්‍ ඇති මම න්‍ම්  කවදාවත්  එයහම කරන්යන් න්‍ැහැ ෙනුයවනි. න්‍මුත්  
ඇත්ත තත්වෙ යසාො ෙැලියම්දි ශ්‍රී ලිංකන්  ගුවන්  යසේවෙට අෙත්  ොන්‍ා යදයේ 

UL303 ොන්‍යේ වයාපාරික (business class) ආසන්‍ 6කුත්  පිරිමැසුම් (economy 
class) ආසන්‍ 5 කුත්  හිසේව තිබුන්‍ ෙවත්  UL309 ගුවන්  ොන්‍යේ වයාපාරික (business 
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class)  ආසන්‍ 3 කුත්  පිරිමැසුම් (economy class) ආසන්‍ 37 කුත්  හිසේව තිබුණු ෙවෙ. 
යමයින්  යපනී ෙන්යන් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් කාරක සභාව යන්‍ාමෙ ෙැවිමට විශ්‍ාල 
සාවදය කරුණේ කිවූ ෙවෙ. යමෙ එතුමන්ට යන්‍ාෙැලයේ. 

යකයසේ උවත්  ආසන්‍ යන්‍ාතිබුණා වුන්‍ත්  නිර්භිත තීරණෙේ  යෙන්‍ කායෙෝ අිංශ්‍ෙට 
යොසේ  න්‍ැෙ වහාම රටට ඒම ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් අනිවාර්ෙයෙන්ම කල යුතුව 
තිබුයන්ෙ. 

යමම පිළිතුරු අනුව ෙැලු විට යජේ  ොන්‍ෙේ  යවන්  කරවා ෙන්න්‍ උත්සාහ කලා ෙයි 
කීමද සාවදය විෙ හැකිෙ. 

146. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමාත් , අෙමැතිතූමාත්  2019 මැයි මස අෙ හරියේ සිටම රටට 
පැවසුයව් දැන්‍ට ත්‍රසේතවාදයේ 99% ේ  පමණ අවසන්  යකාට ඇති ෙවෙ. න්‍මුත්  
අපරාධ විමර්ශ්‍න්‍ යදපාර්තයම්න්තුයව් නියෙෝජය යපාලිසේපති  ජ පැවසුයව් ත්‍රසේත 
කඳවුරු 17 ේ  පමණ තිබි ඇති ෙවත්  ඒවායේ ත්‍රසේතවාදින්  750-1000 කට අතර 
ප්‍රමාණෙේ  පුහුණු වි ඇති ෙවත්  යමයින්  200 යදයන්‍කු පමණ ක්‍රිොකාරි ත්‍රසේතවාදින්  

ෙවත්ෙ. තවද රාජය බුද්ි යසේවයේ (ජ) ප්‍රධානිොයේ ප්‍රකාශ්‍ෙ අනුව යපනී ෙන්යන් 
2014 - 2017 වර්ෂ වල පිළියෙල කරන්‍ ලද යේඛන්‍ අනුව ත්‍රසේතවාදින්  127 ේ  සිටි 
ෙවත්  එයින්  54 ේ  අත් අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ හා 6 ේ  මිෙයොසේ ඇති ෙවත්ෙ. යමම 
යදයදන්‍ා සාේි දුන්යන් ජුලි 24 වැනිදාෙ. මීට යපර ජුනි 29 වැනි දින්‍ සාේි දුන්  
ආරේෂක යේකම් වරො ද පැවසුයව් යමෙ අවසාන්‍ ෙව කිො ඔහු යන්‍ාසිතන්‍ ෙවෙ. 
ඊට පසුව පුවත්පත් වාර්තා අනුව ජුලි 24 චැනිදා සිට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් සාේි දුන්  

සැේතැම්ෙර්  20 යතේ  (NTJ හා JME) ත්‍රසේතවාදින්  39 ේ  හා LTTE ත්‍රසේතවාදියෙකු 
අත් අඩිංගුවට යෙන්‍ තියබ්. ජුලි 24 න්  පසුව ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්  39 යදයන්‍කු අත්අඩිංගුවට 
යෙන්‍ තියබ්. 

ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් දැන්  මැයි මාසයේ අවසාන්‍ෙ වන්‍ විට ත්‍රසේතවාදින්යෙන්  99% ේ  
අවසාන්‍ ෙයි කිවත්  ඇත්ත වශ්‍යෙන්  අේලා යහෝ වින්‍ාශ්‍ කර ඇත්යත් ජුලි 24 ට 

යපර 54 යදයන්‍කුත්  ඉන්  පසුව 39 යදයන්‍කුත්  එකතුව 93 යදයන්‍කි. එවිට TID-DIG 
-DIG  පැවසු 127 යහෝ CID-DIG පවසන්‍ 200 යහෝ තවම අේලා යහෝ වින්‍ාශ්‍ කර 
යන්‍ාමැත විශ්‍ාල ප්‍රමාණෙේ  ක්‍රිොකාරි ත්‍රසේතවාදින්  නිදැේයේ සිටියි . පුහුණුව ලද 
ත්‍රසේතවාදින්  900 ේ  පමණ තවම නිදැේයේෙ. යමම යතාරතුරු පැවසු විට 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පහත සඳහන්  යද් කිමට පටන්  ෙත්යත්ෙ. 

• ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ න්‍ැවැත්ීමට ඇමරිකායව් යඩාන්‍ේඩ්  ට්‍රම්ේටවත්  ෙැරිෙ. 

• හමුදාපතිතුමාත්  දැන්  සහතික වන්‍වා කීවා දැන්  කිසි ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙේ  න්‍ැහැ 
කිෙලා. 

• ෆීේඩ්  මාර්ෂේ  සරත්  යෆාන්යසේකා තවම ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ ඉවර න්‍ැහැ කිෙන්‍ 

එක සිංචාරක වයාපාරෙටත් , පාසැේවලට ළමුන්  ෙැවිමටත් , පන්සේ  පේලි 

වලට ජන්‍ො ෙැමටත් , අයන්‍කුත්  වයාපාර වලටත්  ොධාවේ  යවන්‍වා ෙැයි 
පවසන්‍වා. 

• ෆීේඩ්  මාර්ෂේ  ආේඩුයව් මන්ත්‍රීවරයෙේ  හැටිෙට යම්වා එලිෙට කථා 
කරන්‍ එක වැරදි ෙැයි කිෙන්‍වා. 
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එතුමා පවසන්යන් ඇත්ත යන්‍ාවුවත්  ආරේෂාව තහවුරු ෙයි කිො ජන්‍තාවට යොරු 
කිව යුතු ෙවයි. න්‍මුත්  විෙ යුත්යත් ජන්‍තාව ඇත්ත තත්ත්වෙ ෙැන්‍ දැනුවත්  යකාට 
අවශ්‍ය ආරේෂාව සැපයිමයි. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පචසන්යන් යකයසේ වුවද යම් වන්‍තුරු 

යෙෝම්ෙ පිපිරුයව් න්‍ැති ෙවයි. LTTE ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ සමයේ අන්තිම යුද්ධයේ අවුරුදු 3 
කට යකාළඹ පිපිරුයන් යෙෝම්ෙ 4 ේ  පමණි. ත්‍රසේතවාදින්  දින්‍පතා පහර යන්‍ායද්. 
තවද ඔේයතෝෙර්  2 වැනිදා බුද්ි අිංශ්‍ ත්‍රසේත ප්‍රහාරෙේ  එේල විෙ හැකි ෙවට 

අන්‍තුරු ඇඟවුයේෙ. තවද ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පවසන්යන් LTTE ත්‍රසේතවාදෙ 
සමයේවත්  එේ  දින්‍ක යෙෝම්ෙ 9 ේ  පිපිරුයන් න්‍ැතැයි කිොෙ. යමයින්  

යපයන්‍න්යන් වර්තමාන්‍යේ රයේ ආරේෂාව ඉතා දුර්වල ෙවෙ. LTTE සමයේ රටට 
තිබු තර්ජන්‍ෙ ෙථාර්ථෙේ  යලස පිළියෙන්‍ අවශ්‍ය ආරේෂාව යොදවා මිස ජන්‍තාව 
රවටා උඩ ෙලා යන්‍ාසිටියේෙ. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් සිතනුයේ ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ 
ෙථාර්ථෙ ජන්‍තාවයෙන්  හඟවා ජන්‍ ජිවිතෙ ෙථා තත්වෙට යෙන්‍ ආ හැකිෙ කිොෙ. 

147. ආරේෂක යේකම්වරුන් 3 යදයන්‍ේ  ඉවත්  යකාටත්  4 යවනිොට පත්  කර 
ෙත්  ආරේෂක යේකම් වරො ද රාජකාරි පැහැර හැරිො කිො ඔහුයේ පිටම වරද දමා 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් අතයසෝදා ෙැනිමට තැත්  කිරීම රයේ ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙේ  යන්‍ායව්. ආරේෂක 
යේකම්වරුන් පත්  කර ෙන්යන් ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ෙ. එම ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් 
උත්තර යන්‍ාදුන්යන් එහි වරද යවන්‍ යකයන්‍ේ  පිට දැමිෙ යන්‍ාහැකි නිසාෙ. 

148. යමම අයේේ  21 දින්‍ සිද්ිෙ වන්‍ විට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ 
අමාතයාිංශ්‍ෙ භාරයෙන්‍ ෙත වුයේ මාස 5 ේ  පමණ ෙයි පැවසීෙ. න්‍මුත්  මීට ඉහත ද 
නීතිෙ හා සාමෙ අමාතයවරුන්  ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට පැමිණි නිසාත්  සිෙළුම 
ආරේෂක අිංශ්‍ ප්‍රධානින්  ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට පැමිණි නිසාත්  රයේ ආරේෂාව 
ෙැන්‍ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට වෙකීයමන් ෙැලීමට යන්‍ාහැකිෙ. ඒ කාලෙ තුල වුන්‍ත්  
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යමම ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙට අවශ්‍ය ප්‍රමුඛත්වෙ දී යන්‍ාතිබුනි. 

149. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යම් රයේ ආරේෂාව හා අන්‍ාරේිත භාවෙ ෙැන්‍ වෙකිව 
යුතු ෙයි ෆීේඩ් මාර්ෂේ  යෆාන්යසේකා මහතා පැවසු විට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පවසන්යන් 
එහි වෙකිම අෙමැතිතුමා භාරෙත යුතු ෙවයි. 2016 ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට බුර්කාව 
ඉවත්  කිරියම් යොජන්‍ාව යෙන්‍ ආ අවසේථායව් අෙමැතිතුමා ඊට විරුද්ධ වුනු ෙව 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පවසයි. 20106 දි බුර්කාව ඉවත්  කරන්න්‍ට යහේතුවේ  තිබුන්‍ාදැයි 
යන්‍ාවැටයහන්‍ අතර එෙ ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යේ ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ තියෙන්‍ වෙකියමන්  
ෙැලවිමට යහේතුවේ  යන්‍ායව්. අසන්‍ ලද ප්‍රශ්‍ේන්‍ෙට වැදෙත්  උත්තරෙේ  යන්‍ායදන්‍ 
ලදි. 

150. අෙමැතිතුමා ඔේයතාම්ෙර්  26 න්  පසු ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට 
යන්‍ායෙන්වුයේ මන්දැයි විමසූ විට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පවසන්යන් අෙමැතිතුමාට 
යන්‍ාඑන්‍ යලස යන්‍ාකිවු ෙවයි. න්‍මුන්  ඊට යපර සිදුවූ ආකාරෙට අෙමැතිතුමාට 
කිසිවියටක ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට ඒමට ෙයි දන්වා න්‍ැති ෙව යපනීෙයි. 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් ආරේෂක මේඩලෙට අෙමැතිතුමා යෙන්ීමට එපා කීයව් 
න්‍ැත්න්‍ම්  ඔහු යන්‍ාඑන්යන් මන්දැයි විමසීෙ යුතුව තිබුන්‍ා. අෙමැතිතුමා ෙනු 
ආරේෂක මේඩලයේ සිටිෙ යුතුම යකයන්‍කි. 

151. වර්තමාන්‍ ආරේෂක යේකම්  හා අයේේ  21 හිටිෙ යුද හමුදාපතිද පිළිෙත්  
ආකාරෙට ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොයේ  වෙකීම යුද්ධෙ ඇතිවිට යහා සමයේදී 

හමුදාවල ප්‍රමිතිෙ පවත්වායෙන්‍ ොමට අදාලව පරිපාලන්‍ෙ, සැපයුම්  හා යසේවා 

සම්ෙන්ධීකරණෙ කිරීමත්  , ප්‍රධාන්‍ ගිණුම්  තැබීයම් නිලධාරි යලස වැඩකිරීමත්  මිස 
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යමයහයුම් සැලසුම්  කිරීමට යහෝ යමයහයුම්  වලට නියෙෝෙ දීමට යන්‍ාවන්‍ නිසා 
අයේේ  4 බුද්ි යතාරතුර ෙැන්‍ අවශ්‍ය උපයදසේ / නියෙෝෙ දුන්යන් න්‍ැහැ කිො ඔහුට 
විරුද්ධව වින්‍ෙ පිෙවර ෙැනීම වැරදි යන්දැයි විමසූවිට ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පවසන්යන් 

ඔහු ගුවන්  හමුදායව් යසේවෙ කල යකයන්‍කු වන්‍ නිසාත්, පරිපාලන්‍ නිලධාරියෙේ  
යලසත්  යසේවෙ යකාට ඇති නිසාත් ඔහු ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොට අවශ්‍ය දැනුම 
ලොෙතයුතුව තිබුන්‍ ෙවයි. යකයසේ වුවද යහේමසිරි ප්‍රන්‍ාන්දු මහතා ගුවන්  හමුදායව් 
යන්‍ාව සේයව්ච්ඡා න්‍ාවික හමුදායව් යසේවෙ කල අයෙකි. යකයසේ වුවද ෙරපතල 
ආරේෂාව ෙැන්‍ ෙැටලුවකදී එවැනි නිලධාරිෙකුට අවශ්‍ය නියෙෝෙ ලොදීමට 
යන්‍ාහැකි ෙව ෙථාර්තෙකි. 

152. අයේේ  21 වැනි දින්‍ යෙෝම්ෙ පිපිරුනු අවසේථායව්දී අෙමැතිතුමා ආරේෂක 
යේකම්වරොට හා ආරේෂක ප්‍රධානීන්ට එතුමා හමුීමට පැමියණන්‍ යලස 
පැවසුවද ඔවුන්  පැමිණියේ න්‍ැත. ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් රයේ න්‍ැති යව්ලාවක වැඩෙලන්‍ 
ආරේෂකඇමති යකයන්‍කු යහෝ යන්‍ාමැති විටක අෙමැතිතුමායේයේ කැඳීමට 
ඔවුන්  පැමිණිෙ යුතුව තිබුණි. ආරේෂක යේකම් වරො පවසන්යන් ඔවුන්ට 
අෙමැතිතුමා හමුීමට යන්‍ාෙන්‍ යලස ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් පැවසූ ෙවෙ. 
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් යමෙ පිළියන්‍ාෙනී.එයසේ න්‍ැතිව ඔවුන්  යන්‍ාපැමින්‍ සිටිො න්‍ම්  එෙ 
විශ්‍ාල වින්‍ෙ කඩකිරිමකි. ආරේෂක ප්‍රධානීන්  එයසේ වින්‍ෙ කඩ කරන්‍ අෙ යන්‍ායව්. 
ඒ නිසා ආරේෂක යේකම් වරො කී යද් සතය විෙ හැකිෙ. න්‍ැතින්‍ම්  
ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්ට ආරේෂකප්‍රධානීන්ට විරුද්ධව ක්‍රිොකිරීමට සිදුයව්. යකයසේ වුවද 
යමයින්  යපනී ෙන්යන් ආරේෂක ොන්ත්‍රන්‍යේ තිබිෙ යුතු වින්‍ෙ ෙරුක ෙව ෙයමකු 
විසින්  පරිහානිෙට පත්යකාට ඇති ෙවෙ. 

153.  ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන් විසින්  පත්කරන්‍ ලද මලේයොඩ කමිටුවට නීතිමෙ 
තත්ත්වෙේ යන්‍ාතිබූ නිසා එහි වාර්තාවට අනුව ආරේෂක යේකම්වරොට හා 
යපාලිසේපතිවරොට විරුද්ධව නීතිෙ ක්‍රිොත්මක කිරීම නීතයානුකුල යන්‍ාවන්න්‍ේ 
යන්‍ායව් දැයි ජන්‍ාිපතිතුමන්යෙන් විමසූ විට එතුමා එෙට නීතයානුකූල පිළිතුරේ 
ලො යන්‍ායද්. දැන්‍ට යශ්‍රේෂේඨාිකරණයේ න්‍ඩු 5 ේ  තියෙන්‍ නිසාත්  යශ්‍රේෂේඨාිකරණ 
විනිසුරුවරෙකු කමිටුයව් සිටි නිසාත්  කමිටු චාර්තාව ප්‍රයොජන්‍ෙට යෙන්‍ න්‍ඩු වලින්  
නිවැරදි තීරණ යදනු ඇතැයි එතුමා පවසයි. න්‍මුත්  වන්‍තික ෙලෙේ  න්‍ැති 
වාර්තාවේ  පදන්‍ම්  කරයෙන්‍ නීතිෙ ක්‍රිොත්මක කිරීම වරදකි. 

ගරු ෆීල්්  මාර්ෂල්  සරත්  ප ාන්පස්කා (පා.ම.) 
කාරක සභා සාමාජික 
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2 වැනි පරිශිෂ්ටය 

இணைப்பு II 

Appendix II 

2019 මැයි මස 22 වැනි දින්‍ පාර්ලියම්න්තුයව්දී සම්මත වූ යෙෝජන්‍ාව 
 

පාර්ලිපම්න්තු පයෝජනා සම්මතය  

2019 අපේල් 21 වන දින ශ්‍රී ලංකාපේ විවිධ ස්ථානවල සිුවූ රස්තවාදී ප්‍රහාර පිළිබඳ පසායා 

බලා පාර්ලිපම්න්තුවට වාර්තා කිරීම සඳහා වන පාර්ලිපම්න්තු විපශ්ෂ කාරක සභාව 

ෙරු සුසන්ත පුිංචිනිලයම් මහතා  

ෙරු පිෙයසේන්‍ ෙමයේ මහතා 

ෙරු (මහාචාර්ෙ) ආශු මාරසිිංහ මහතා  

ෙරු මුජිබුර් රහුමාන් මහතා  

ෙරු (ආචාර්ෙ) ජෙම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න්‍ මහතා  

ෙරු (ආචාර්ෙ) හර්ෂ ද සිේවා මහතා 

ෙරු කරුණාරත්න්‍ පරණවිතාන්‍ මහතා  

ෙරු අජිත් මාන්න්‍ේයපරුම මහතා  

ෙරු හර්ෂණ රාජකරුණා මහතා  

ෙරු යේ. සී. අලවතුවල මහතා  

ෙරු ලකී ජෙවර්ධන්‍ මහතා  

ෙරු සන්දිත් සමරසිිංහ මහතා  

ෙරු මාවව යසෝ. යසේන්‍ාිරාජා මහතා  

ෙරු ඥාන්‍මුත්තු ශ්‍රීයන්සන් මහතා  

ෙරු ඉ. චාේසේ නිර්මලන්‍ාදන් මහතා  

ෙරු ඒ. ඩී. යේමදාස මහතා  

ෙරු විජිත් විජෙමුණි යසායිසා මහතා  

ෙරු මුහම්මදු න්‍සීර් මහතා  

ෙරු එම්. එසේ. යතෞෆිේ මහතා  

ෙරු පිෙිංකර ජෙරත්න්‍ මහතා  

ෙරු කුමාර යවේෙම මහතා  

ෙරු (ආචාර්ෙ) ී. රාධක්‍රිෂේණන් මහතා  

ෙරු (ආචාර්ෙ) එසේ. එම්. යමාහමඩ් ඉසේමායිේ මහතා  

ෙරු ඉෂාේ රහුමාන් මහතා  

ෙරු ඒ. එච්. එම්. ෆවුසි මහතා  

ෙරු (වවදය) න්‍ලින්ද ජෙතිසේස මහතා  

ෙරු සුනිේ හඳුන්යන්‍ත්ති මහතා  

ෙරු අජිත් පී. යපයර්රා මහතා  

ෙරු මයිේවාෙන්‍ම් තිලකරාජා මහතා  

ෙරු ලේෂේමන් ොපා අයබ්වර්ධන්‍ මහතා  

ෙරු අනුරාධ ජෙරත්න්‍ මහතා  

ෙරු නිමේ ලාන්සා මහතා  

ෙරු සී. බී. රත්න්‍ාෙක මහතා  

ෙරු අනුර ප්‍රිෙදර්ශ්‍න්‍ ොපා මහතා  
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ෙරු ටී. බී. ඒකන්‍ාෙක මහතා  

ෙරු ඒ. ඩී. සුසිේ යේමජෙන්ත මහතා  

ෙරු වාසුයද්ව න්‍ාන්‍ාෙේකාර මහතා  

ෙරු ධර්මලිිංෙම් සිද්ධාර්ථන් මහතා  

ෙරු උදෙ ප්‍රභාත් ෙම්මන්පිල මහතා  

ෙරු අරුන්දික ප්‍රන්‍ාන්දු මහතා,— 2019 අයේේ 21 වැනි දින්‍ ශ්‍රී ලිංකායව් විවිධ 

සේථාන්‍වල සිදුවූ ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාර පිළිෙඳ යසාො ෙලා පාර්ලියම්න්තුවට වාර්තා කිරීම සඳහා 

වන්‍ පාර්ලියම්න්තු වියශ්‍ේෂ කාරක සභාව,— 

2019 අයේේ 21 වැනි දින්‍ ශ්‍රී ලිංකායව් විවිධ සේථාන්‍වල සිදු වූ ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාර යහේතුයවන් 

250කට වැි පුද්ෙලෙන් ජීවිතේෂෙට පත්ී, පුද්ෙලෙන්ට හානි සිදු ී, යද්පළ වින්‍ාශ්‍ 

වූ යහයින් ද; 

(අ) එවැනි ප්‍රහාරවලට යපර ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් බුද්ි යතාරතුරු, නීතිෙ ක්‍රිොත්මක 

කරන්‍ ෙලධාරීන් යවත ලැබී තිබුයේද ෙන්න්‍ත්; 

(ආ) එවැනි ප්‍රහාර වැළැේීමට සහ / යහෝ ඒවා අවම කිරීමට අදාළ ෙලධාරීන් 

ප්‍රමාණවත් පිෙවර ෙත්යත්ද ෙන්න්‍ත්; 

(ඇ) එවැනි ප්‍රහාරෙන්යේ ෙලපෑම වැළැේීමට සහ / යහෝ අවම කිරීමට යන්‍ාහැකි 

ීමට යහේතුවූ රාජය ොන්ත්‍රණයේ අඩුපාඩු තිබුයේද ෙන්න්‍ත්; 

(ඈ) එවැනි ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාරවලට දාෙක වූ යවන්‍ත් කරුණු තියබ්ද ෙන්න්‍ත්; 

*(ඉ) ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්ට අනුෙල දුන් ඕන්‍ෑම පාර්ලියම්න්තු මන්ත්‍රීවරයෙකුට යහෝ 

ආේඩුකාරවරයෙකුට යහෝ ඕන්‍ෑම පුද්ෙලයෙකුට විරුද්ධව ඇති යචෝදන්‍ා සතය 

ද ෙන්න්‍ත්,  

(ඊ) අන්‍ාෙතයේදී එවැනි ප්‍රහාරෙන් සිදුීම වැළැේීමට ෙත යුතු ක්‍රිොමාර්ෙ 

කවයර්ද ෙන්න්‍ත්; සහ 

යපරකී දෑට සම්ෙන්ධ  යහෝ ආනුෂිංගික යවන්‍ත් කරුණු; 

පිළිෙඳව යසාො ෙලා පාර්ලියම්න්තුවට වාර්තා කිරීම සඳහා වන්‍ පාර්ලියම්න්තු වියශ්‍ේෂ 

කාරක සභාවේ පත්කළ යුතු ෙැයි යමම පාර්ලියම්න්තුව යෙෝජන්‍ා සම්මත කර සිටියි. 

2.  (අ) කථාන්‍ාෙකවරො විසින් කාරක සභාව සහ එහි සභාපතිවරො න්‍ම් කරනු ලැබිෙ 

යුතුෙ; සහ  

 (ආ) පාර්ලියම්න්තුයව් සේථාවර නියෙෝෙ 101හි විිවිධාන්‍ෙන්ට අනුව කාරක සභාව 

සාමාජික මන්ත්‍රීවරු යදායළාසේ (12) යදයන්‍කුට වැි ෙණන්‍කින් සිංයුේත 

යන්‍ාවිෙ යුතු ෙ. 

3.  එම කාරක සභාවට, — 

 (අ) සිෙ ෙණූරණෙ නිෙම කරෙැනීමටද; 

 (ආ) පාර්ලියම්න්තුව යහෝ සිෙ කාරක සභාව ඉදිරියේ යපනී සිටින්‍ යලස ෙම් 

තැන්‍ැත්තන් කැඳීමට ද, ෙම් යේඛන්‍ යහෝ වාර්තා ඉදිරිපත් කරන්‍ යලස නිෙම 

කිරීමට ද; එවන් පුද්ෙලයෙකුයේ පාලන්‍ෙ ෙටයත් තියෙන්‍ ෙම්කිසි පත්‍රිකාවේ, 

යපාතේ, වාර්තාවේ යහෝ යේඛන්‍ෙේ ඉදිරිපත් කරන්‍ යලස නිෙම කිරීමට ද; 
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 (ඇ) කාරක සභා යව් සභාපතිවරො යහෝ ඒ යවනුයවන් වියශ්‍ේෂයෙන් ෙලෙලත් 

පුද්ෙලයෙේ විසින් සිදුකරන්‍ දිවුරුම්දීමේ යහෝ ප්‍රතිඥාදීමේ මත සාේිකරුවන් 

පරීේෂා කිරීම සහ සාේිකරුවන්යෙන් වාචික පරීේෂණ මඟින් සේිරකර 

ෙැනීමට යහෝ නිශ්‍ේචෙ කර ෙැනීමටද;  

 (ඈ) පාර්ලියම්න්තුයවන් පිටත රයේ ඕන්‍ෑම තැන්‍ක රැසේීම් පැවැත්ීමටද; 

 (ඉ) කාරක සභායව් සහාෙ පිණිස අදාළ ේයෂේත්‍රෙන්හි වියශ්‍ේෂඥ දැනුමේ ඇති 

පුද්ෙලෙන්යේ සහ ප්‍රීණෙන්යේ යසේවෙ ලො ෙැනීමට; සහ 

 (ඊ) කලින් කල අන්තර්වාර වාර්තා ඉදිරිපත්කිරීමට ද, පාර්ලියම්න්තුව කේ තෙන්‍ 

ලද්යද් වුවද රැසේීම් පවත්වායෙන්‍ ොමට ද, 

ෙලෙ තිබිෙ යුතු ෙ. 

4.  කාරක සභාව තම පළමු රැසේීම් දින්‍යේ සිට මාස තුන්‍ේ (03) ඇතුළත යහෝ 

පාර්ලියම්න්තුව විසින් නිෙම කරන්‍ යවන්‍ත් යහෝ වැිමන්‍ත් කාල සීමාවේ තුළ තම වාර්තාව 

ඉදිරිපත් කළ යුතු ෙ. 

 

* 2019.05.23 දින්‍ ෙරු (ආචාර්ෙ) ජෙම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න්‍ මහතා, පා.ම. විසින් ඉදිරිපත් කරන්‍ ලදුව 

පාර්ලියම්න්තුව විසින් සම්මත කරන්‍ ලද සිංයශ්‍ෝධන්‍ෙ.   
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பாராளுமன்ற தீர்மானம் 

2019 ஏப்ரல் 21 ஆம் திேதி இலங்டேயின் பல்கவறு இைங்ேளில் இைம்பபற்ற 

பயங்ேரவாத தாக்குதல்ேள் பற்றி ஆராய்ந்து பாராளுமன்றத்திற்கு 

அறிக்டேயிடுவதற்ோன பாராளுமன்ற விகசை குழு 

பேௌரவ சுசந்த புஞ்சிநிலகம 

பேௌரவ பியகசன ேமகே 

பேௌரவ (கபராசிாியர்) ஆசு மாரசிங்ே 

பேௌரவ முஜிபுர் ரஹுமான் 

பேௌரவ (ேலாநிதி) ஜயம்பதி விக்ரமரத்ன 

பேௌரவ (ேலாநிதி) ஹர்ஷ த சில்வா 

பேௌரவ ேருணாரத்ன பரணவிதான 

பேௌரவ அஜித் மான்னப்பபரும 

பேௌரவ ஹர்ஷண ராஜேருணா 

பேௌரவ கஜ.சீ. அலவத்துவல 

பேௌரவ லக்ேி ஜயவர்தன 

பேௌரவ சந்தித் சமரசிங்ே 

பேௌரவ மாடவ. கசா. கசனாதிராசா 

பேௌரவ ஞானமுத்து ஸ்ரீகநசன் 

பேௌரவ இ. சாள்ஸ் நிர்மலநாதன் 

பேௌரவ ஏ.டி. பிகரமதாச 

பேௌரவ விஜித் விஜயமுணி பசாய்சா 

பேௌரவ முஹம்மது நசீர் 

பேௌரவ எம்.எஸ். பதளபீக் 

பேௌரவ பியங்ேர ஜயரத்ன 

பேௌரவ குமார பவல்ேம 

பேௌரவ (ேலாநிதி) வீ. இராதாேிருஷ்ணன் 

பேௌரவ (ேலாநிதி) சீ.மு. முேம்மட் இஸ்மாயில் 

பேௌரவ இஷாக் ரஹுமான் 

பேௌரவ ஏ.எச்.எம். பபௌஸி 

பேௌரவ (ைாக்ைர்) நளிந்த ஜயதிஸ்ஸ 

பேௌரவ சுனில் ஹந்துன்பனத்தி 

பேௌரவ அஜித் பி. பபகரரா 

பேௌரவ மயில்வாேனம் திலேராஜா 

பேௌரவ லக்ஷமன் யாப்பா அகபவர்தன 

பேௌரவ அநுராத ஜயரத்ன 

பேௌரவ நிமல் லான்சா 

பேௌரவ சீ.பீ. ரத்நாயக்ே 

பேௌரவ அநுர பிாியதர்ஷன யாப்பா 

பேௌரவ ாீ.பீ. ஏக்ேநாயக்ே 

பேௌரவ ஏ.டீ. சுசில் பிகரமஜயந்த 

பேௌரவ வாசுகதவ நாணாயக்ோர 

பேௌரவ தருமலிங்ேம் சித்தார்தன் 

பேௌரவ உதய பிரபாத் ேம்மன்பில 

பேௌரவ அருந்திக்ே பர்னாந்து,— 2019 ஏப்ரல் 21 ஆம் திேதி இலங்டேயின் பல்கவறு 

இைங்ேளில் இைம்பபற்ற பயங்ேரவாத தாக்குதல்ேள் பற்றி ஆராய்ந்து பாராளுமன்றத்திற்கு 
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அறிக்டேயிடுவதற்ோன பாராளுமன்ற விகசை குழு,— 

2019 ஏப்ரல் 21 ஆம் திேதி இலங்டேயின் பல்கவறு இைங்ேளில் இைம்பபற்ற பயங்ேரவாத 

தாக்குதல்ேள் ோரணமாே 250 இற்கும் கமற்பட்ைவர்ேள் உயிாிழந்து, ஆட்ேளுக்கு 

கசதகமற்பட்டு, பசாத்துக்ேளும் அழிவடைந்ததன் ோரணமாே; 

(அ) அத்தடேய தாக்குதல்ேளுக்கு முன்னர் அது பற்றிய புலனாய்வுத் தேவல்ேள், சட்ைத்டத 

அமுல்படுத்தும் அதிோாிேளுக்கு ேிடைத்திருந்ததா என்படதயும்; 

(ஆ) அத்தடேய தாக்குதல்ேடள தடுப்பதற்கு மற்றும் / அல்லது அவற்டறக் குடறத்துக் 

போள்வதற்கு சம்பந்தப்பட்ை அதிோாிேள் கபாதியளவில் நைவடிக்டே 

கமற்போண்ைார்ேளா என்படதயும்; 

(இ) அத்தடேய தாக்குதல்ேளின் பாதிப்புக்ேடளத் தடுப்பதற்கு மற்றும்/அல்லது 

குடறப்பதற்கு முடியாமல் கபானடமக்குக் ோரணமாே அடமந்த அரச 

பபாறிமுடறயின் குடறபாடுேள் ோணப்பட்ைனவா என்படதயும்; 

(ஈ) அத்தடேய பயங்ேரவாதத் தாக்குதல்ேளுக்குப் பங்ேளிப்புச் பசய்த கவறு 

விையங்ேடளயும்; 

* (உ) பயங்ேரவாதிேளுக்கு அனுசரடணயளித்த எந்தபவாரு பாராளுமன்ற 

உறுப்பினருக்கோ அல்லது ஆளுநருக்கோ அல்லது நபருக்கோ எதிராேவுள்ள 

குற்றச்சாட்டுக்ேள் உண்டமயானதா என்படதயும் ; 

(ஊ)எதிர்ோலத்தில் அத்தடேய தாக்குதல்ேள் இைம்பபறுவடத தடுப்பதற்ோே 

கமற்போாள்ள கவண்டிய நைவடிக்டேேள் யாடவ என்படதயும்;  

 (எ) கமற்கூறியவற்றுைன் பதாைர்புடைய அல்லது இடைகநர்விடளவான கவறு 

விையங்ேள் பதாைர்பாேவும்; 

ஆராய்ந்து பாராளுமன்றத்திற்கு அறிக்டேயிடுவதற்ோே பாராளுமன்ற விகசை 

குழுபவான்று நியமிக்ேப்பை கவண்டுபமன இப்பாராளுமன்றம் பிகரரடண நிடறகவற்றுமாே. 

2. (அ) குழு மற்றும் அதன் தவிசாளர் சபாநாயேரால் பபயர் குறித்து நியமிக்ேப்படுதல் 

கவண்டும்; 

 (ஆ) 101 ஆம் பாராளுமன்ற நிடலயியற் ேட்ைடளயின் ஏற்பாடுேளுக்கு அடமவாே குழு 

உறுப்பினர்ேளின் எண்ணிக்டே பன்னிரண்டிற்கு (12) கமற்பைாதவர்ேடளக் 

போண்டிருத்தல் கவண்டும். 

3. குழுவானது, 

(அ) அதன்  கூட்ை நைப்பபண்டண  நிர்ணயிப்பதற்கும்; 

(ஆ) எவகரனும் ஆட்ேள், ஏகதனும் பத்திரங்ேள் அல்லது ஏகதனும் பதிகவடுேடள 

வரவடழப்பதற்கும், பாராளுமன்றத்தின் முன் அல்லது குறித்த குழுவின் முன் கதான்றி 

அத்தடேய ஆளின் உடைடமயில் அல்லது ேட்டுப்பாட்டின் ேீழ் உள்ள ஏகதனும் 

பத்திரம், புத்தேம், பதிகவடு அல்லது ஆவணத்டத சமர்ப்பிக்குமாறு எந்தகவார் 

ஆளுக்கும் பணிப்புடர விடுப்பதற்கும்; 

(இ) குழுவின் தவிசாளர் அல்லது உாிய கநாக்ேத்திற்ோே குறித்துடரக்ேப்பட்ை 

அதிோரமளிக்ேப்பட்ை ஆளினால் சாட்சிேடள வாய்மூலம் விசாரடண கமற்போண்டு 
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உண்டம நிடலடய பவளிப்படுத்துவதற்கும் அல்லது கவறு விதத்தில் ஆராய்ந்து 

பார்ப்பதற்கும் சத்தியம் அல்லது உறுதியுடரயின் மீது சாட்சிேடள விசாாிப்பதற்கும்;  

(ஈ) பாராளுமன்றத்துக்கு பவளிகய நாட்டின் ஏகதனும் பகுதிேளில் கூட்ைங்ேடள 

நைத்துவதற்கும்; 

(உ) குழுவுக்கு உதவி வழங்குவதற்ோே பதாைர்புடைய துடறேளில் சிறப்பறிஞர்ேள் 

மற்றும் நிபுணர்ேளின் கசடவேடளப் பபற்றுக்போள்வதற்கும்; மற்றும் 

(ஊ) பாராளுமன்றத்தின் ஏகதனும் ஒத்திடவப்பினால் தடைபபறாது ோலத்திற்குக் ோலம்  

இடைக்ோல அறிக்டேேடளத் தயாாிப்பதற்கும் கூடுவதற்கும்; 

அதிோரத்டதக் போண்டிருத்தல் கவண்டும். 

4.  குழு அதன் முதலாவது அமர்வுத் திேதியிலிருந்து மூன்று (03) மாத ோலத்திற்குள் அல்லது 

பாராளுமன்றத்தினால் வழங்ேப்பைக்கூடிய அத்தடேய கவறு அல்லது கமலதிே 

ோலப்பகுதிக்குள் அதன் அறிக்டேடயச் சமர்ப்பித்தல் கவண்டும். 

• பேௌரவ (ேலாநிதி) ஜயம்பதி விக்ரமரத்ன,  பாராளுமன்ற உறுப்பினர் அவர்ேளினால் பிகராிக்ேப்பட்ை 

திருத்தம் 23.05.2019  ஆம் திேதியன்று சடபயினால்  நிடறகவற்றப்பட்ைது.  
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Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on the 

terrorist attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 

2019 

The Resolution of the above Committee was moved and adopted by Parliament on 

22 May 2019 with an Amendment, which was moved by Hon. Dr Jaymapathy 

Wickremaratne. 

Resolution of the Parliament 

Hon. Susantha Punchinilame 

Hon. Piyasena Gamage 

Hon. (Prof.) Ashu Marasinghe 

Hon. Mujibur Rahuman 

Hon. (Dr.) Jayampathy Wickramaratne 

Hon. (Dr.) Harsha De Silva 

Hon. Karunarathna Paranawithana 

Hon. Ajith Mannapperuma 

Hon. Harshana Rajakaruna  

Hon. J. C. Alawathuwala 

Hon. Lucky Jayawardana 

Hon. Sandith Samarasinghe 

Hon. Mavai S. Senathirajah 

Hon. Gnanamuthu Srineshan 

Hon. I. Charles Nirmalanathan 

Hon. A. D. Premadasa 

Hon. Wijith Wijayamuni Zoysa  

Hon. Mohamadu Nazeer 

Hon. M. S. Thowfeek 

Hon. Piyankara Jayaratne 

Hon. Kumara Welgama 

Hon. (Dr.) V. Radhakrishnan 

Hon. (Dr.) S. M. Mohamed Ismail 

Hon. Ishak Rahuman 

Hon. A. H. M. Fowzie 

Hon. (Dr.) Nalinda Jayathissa 

Hon. Sunil Handunnetti 

Hon. Ajith P. Perera 

Hon. Mylvaganam Thilakarajah 

Hon. Lakshman Yapa Abeywardena 

Hon. Anuradha Jayaratne 

Hon. Nimal Lanza 

Hon. C. B. Rathnayake 

Hon. Anura Priyadharshana Yapa 

Hon. T. B. Ekanayake 

Hon. A. D. Susil Premajayantha 
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Hon. Vasudeva Nanayakkara 

Hon. Dharmalingam Sithadthan 

Hon. Udaya Prabhath Gammanpila 

Hon. Arundika Fernando, - Select Committee of Parliament to look into and 

report to Parliament on the terrorist attacks that took place in different places in Sri 

Lanka on 21st April 2019, - 
  

Whereas the terrorist attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st 

April 2019 have resulted in loss of the lives of over 250 persons, causing injuries to 

persons, and damage of property; 

That this Parliament resolves that a Select Committee of Parliament be appointed 

to look into and report to Parliament on: 

(a)  whether law enforcement authorities had received intelligence reports 

relating to such attacks, prior thereto; 

(b) whether the relevant authorities took adequate measures to prevent and / or 

mitigate such attacks; 

(c) whether there were deficiencies in the state machinery that led to the inability 

to prevent or mitigate the effects of such attacks; 

(d) any other factors which contributed to such terrorist attacks; 

*(e) whether allegations levelled against any Member of Parliament, Governors 

or any other persons are true or not; 

(f) what action should be taken to prevent such attacks in future; and 

(g) any other matters connected or incidental thereto. 

2. (a) That the Committee and its Chair shall be nominated by Mr. Speaker; and 

 (b) That according to the provisions of Standing Order 101 of the Parliament, 

the Committee shall not consist of more than twelve (12) Members.  

3. That the Committee shall have the power to: 

(a) fix its quorum;  

(b) send for persons, papers or records, may order any person to attend before 

Parliament or before such Committee, and to produce any paper, book, 

record or document in the possession or under the control of such person;  

(c)  verify or otherwise ascertain by oral examination of witnesses and examine 

witnesses upon oath or affirmation which the Chair of the Committee or a 

person specially authorized for that purpose may administer;  

(d) conduct the meetings, in any parts of the country, outside the Parliament; 

(e) obtain the services of Specialists and Experts in the relevant fields to assist 

the Committee; and  
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(f) make interim reports from time to time and to sit notwithstanding any 

adjournment of Parliament.  

4.  The Committee shall present its Report within Three (03) months of the date of 

its first sitting or such other or further time period as Parliament may grant.  

*Amendment moved by Hon. (Dr) Jayampathy Wickremarathne, MP and adopted by the House on 

22/05/2019  
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3 වැනි පරිශිෂ්ටය 

இணைப்பு III 

Appendix III 

 

2019 අයේේ 21 වැනි දින්‍ ශ්‍රී ලිංකායව් විවිධ සේථාන්‍වල සිදුවූ ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාර 

පිළිෙඳ යසාො ෙලා පාර්ලියම්න්තුවට වාර්තා කිරීම සඳහා වන්‍ පාර්ලියම්න්තු 

වියශ්‍ේෂ කාරක සභාව: සාමාජිකෙන් න්‍ම් කිරීම 

2019 ஏப்ரல் 21 ஆம் திேதி இலங்டேயின் பல்கவறு இைங்ேளில் இைம்பபற்ற பயங்ேரவாத 

தாக்குதல்ேள் ோரணமாே இற்கும் கமற்பட்ைவர்ேள் உயிாிழந்து, ஆட்ேளுக்கு கசதகமற்பட்டு, 

பசாத்துக்ேளும் அழிவடைந்ததன் ோரணமாே: உறுப்பினர்ேள் நியமனம் 

SELECT COMMITTEE TO LOOK INTO AND REPORT TO PARLIAMENT ON 

THE TERRORIST ATTACKS THAT TOOK PLACE IN DIFFERENT PLACES IN SRI 

LANKA ON 21ST APRIL 2019: NOMINATION OF MEMBERS 

ගරු කථානායකතුමා 

(மாண்புமிகு சபாநாயேர் அவர்ேள்) 

(The Hon. Speaker)  

පාර්ලියම්න්තුයව් සේථාවර නියෙෝෙ 101, 103 විිවිධාන්‍ සහ 2019 මැයි 22 වැනි දින්‍ 

පාර්ලියම්න්තුව විසින් සම්මත කරන්‍ ලද යෙෝජන්‍ාව ප්‍රකාරව 2019 අයේේ 21 වැනි දින්‍ ශ්‍රී 

ලිංකායව් විවිධ සේථාන්‍වල සිදුවූ ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාර පිළිෙඳ යසාො ෙලා පාර්ලියම්න්තුවට 

වාර්තා කිරීම සඳහා වන්‍ පාර්ලියම්න්තු වියශ්‍ේෂ කාරක සභායව් යසේවෙ කිරීම සඳහා 

නියෙෝජය කථාන්‍ාෙක ෙරු යේ.එම්.ආන්‍න්ද කුමාරසිරි මහතායේ සභාපතිත්වයෙන් යුතුව 

මතු සඳහන් මන්ත්‍රීවරෙන් ම'විසින් පත් කරනු ලැෙ ඇති ෙවට දන්වනු කැමැත්යතමි. 

ෙරු රවුෆේ හකීම් මහතා 

ෙරු (වවදය) රාජිත යසේන්‍ාරත්න්‍ මහතා 

ෙරු රවි කරුණාන්‍ාෙක මහතා 

ෆීේඩ් මාර්ෂේ ෙරු සරත් යෆාන්යසේකා මහතා 

ෙරු (වවදය) කාවින්ද යහේෂාන් ජෙවර්ධන්‍ මහතා 

ෙරු (මහාචාර්ෙ) ආශු මාරසිිංහ මහතා 

ෙරු (ආචාර්ෙ) ජෙම්පති වික්‍රමරත්න්‍ මහතා 

ෙරු එම්.ඒ. සුමන්තිරන් මහතා 
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இணைப்பு IV 

Appendix IV 
 

2019 අයේේ 21 වැනි දින්‍ ශ්‍රී ලිංකායව් විවිධ සේථාන්‍වල සිදුවූ ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාර පිළිෙඳ 
යසාො ෙලා පාර්ලියම්න්තුවට වාර්තා කිරීම සඳහා වන්‍ පාර්ලියම්න්තු වියශ්‍ේෂ කාරක 

සභාව: සාමාජිකෙන් ආයද්ශ්‍ෙ සහ න්‍ම් කිරීම 

2019 ஏப்ரல் 21 ஆம் திேதி இலங்டேயின் பல்கவறு இைங்ேளில் இைம்பபற்ற பயங்ேரவாத 

தாக்குதல்ேள் ோரணமாே இற்கும் கமற்பட்ைவர்ேள் உயிாிழந்து, ஆட்ேளுக்கு: 

உறுப்பினர்ேமளப் பதிலீடு தசய்தல் க ற்றும் தபபயாிைல்  

SELECT COMMITTEE TO LOOK INTO AND REPORT TO PARLIAMENT 

ON THE TERRORIST ATTACKS THAT TOOK PLACE IN DIFFERENT 

PLACES IN SRI LANKA ON 21ST APRIL 2019: SUBSTITUTION AND 

NOMINATION OF MEMBERS 

ගරු කථානායකතුමා 

(மாண்புமிகு சபாநாயேர் அவர்ேள்) 

(The Hon. Speaker)  

2019 මැයි මස 23 වැනි දින්‍ නියව්දන්‍ෙ ප්‍රකාරව, පාර්ලියම්න්තුයව් සේථාවර නියෙෝෙ 101, 

103 විිවිධාන්‍ සහ 2019 මැයි 22 වැනි දින්‍ පාර්ලියම්න්තුව විසින් සම්මත කරන්‍ ලද 

යෙෝජන්‍ාව ප්‍රකාරව 2019 අයේේ 21 වැනි දින්‍ ශ්‍රී ලිංකායව් විවිධ සේථාන්‍වල සිදුවූ ත්‍රසේතවාදී 

ප්‍රහාර පිළිෙඳ යසාො ෙලා පාර්ලියම්න්තුවට වාර්තා කිරීම සඳහා වන්‍ පාර්ලියම්න්තු වියශ්‍ේෂ 

කාරක සභායව් යසේවෙ කිරීම සඳහා පත්කරන්‍ ලද ෙරු (වවදය) කාවින්ද යහේෂාන් 

ජෙවර්ධන්‍ මැතිතුමා එම කාරක සභායවන් ඉේලා අසේී ඇති ෙැවින්, ඒ යවනුවට ෙරු 

(වවදය) රාජිත යසේන්‍ාරත්න්‍ මහතා ද, ඊට අමතරව ෙරු (වවදය) න්‍ලින්ද ජෙතිසේස 

මහතා ද එම වියශ්‍ේෂ කාරක සභායව් යසේවෙ සඳහා ම විසින් න්‍ම් කරන්‍ ලද ෙව දන්වනු 

කැමැත්යතමි. 
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இணைப்பு V 

Appendix V 

2019 මැයි මස 25 වැනි දින්‍ ප්‍රසිද්ධ පුවත්පත්වල පළකරන්‍ ලද දැන්ීම 

දිවයින්‍, ලිංකාදීප, දින්‍මිණ, ද අයිලන්ඩ්, යඩ්ලිනිවුසේ , ීරයේසරී හා තින්‍කරන් ෙන්‍ 
පුවත්පත්වල පළකරන්‍ ලදී. 

--------------------- 
 

2019 අපේල් 21 වැනි දින ශ්‍රී ලංකාපේ විවිධ ස්ථානවල සිුවූ රස්තවාදී ප්‍රහාර පිළිබඳ පසායා බලා 

පාර්ලිපම්න්තුවට වාර්තා කිරීම සඳහා වන පාර්ලිපම්න්තු විපශ්ෂ කාරක සභාව 

2019 අයේේ 21 වැනි දින්‍ ශ්‍රී ලිංකායව් විවිධ සේථාන්‍වල සිදු වූ ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාර යහේතුයවන් 250කට 
වැි පුද්ෙලෙන් ජීවිතේෂෙට පත්ී, පුද්ෙලෙන්ට හානි සිදු ී, යද්පළ වින්‍ාශ්‍ වූ  යහයින් ද; 

(අ) එවැනි ප්‍රහාරවලට යපර ඒ සම්ෙන්ධයෙන් බුද්ි යතාරතුරු, නීතිෙ ක්‍රිොත්මක කරන්‍ ෙලධාරීන් 
යවත ලැබී තිබුයේද ෙන්න්‍ත්;  

(ආ) එවැනි ප්‍රහාර වැළැේීමට සහ/යහෝ ඒවා අවම කිරීමට අදාළ ෙලධාරීන් ප්‍රමාණවත් පිෙවර 
ෙත්යත්ද ෙන්න්‍ත්; 

(ඇ) එවැනි ප්‍රහාරෙන්යේ ෙලපෑම වැළැේීමට සහ/යහෝ අවම කිරීමට යන්‍ාහැකි ීමට යහේතුවූ 
රාජය ොන්ත්‍රණයේ අඩුපාඩු තිබුයේද ෙන්න්‍ත්;  

(ඈ) එවැනි ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාරවලට දාෙක වූ යවන්‍ත් කරුණු තියබ්ද ෙන්න්‍ත්; 

(ඉ)  ත්‍රසේතවාදීන්ට අනුෙල දුන් ඕන්‍ෑම පාර්ලියම්න්තු මන්ත්‍රීවරයෙකුට යහෝ ආේඩුකාරවරයෙකුට 
යහෝ ඕන්‍ෑම පුද්ෙලයෙකුට විරුද්ධව ඇති යචෝදන්‍ා සතය ද ෙන්න්‍ත්; 

(ඊ) අන්‍ාෙතයේදී එවැනි ප්‍රහාරෙන් සිදුීම වැළැේීමට ෙත යුතු ක්‍රිොමාර්ෙ කවයර්ද ෙන්න්‍ත්; සහ; 

(උ) යපරකී දෑට සම්ෙන්ධ  යහෝ ආනුෂිංගික යවන්‍ත් කරුණු;  

පිළිෙඳව යසාො ෙලා පාර්ලියම්න්තුවට වාර්තා කිරීම සඳහා වන්‍ පාර්ලියම්න්තු වියශ්‍ේෂ කාරක සභාවේ 
පාර්ලියම්න්තුව විසින් පත් යකාට ඇත. 

ඉහත කී කාරක සභාවට නියෙෝජන්‍ ඉදිරිපත් කිරීමට කැමති පුද්ෙලෙන්, සිංවිධාන්‍, යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍ පේෂ 

යහෝ ආෙතන්‍ යවයතාත් තම නියෙෝජන්‍ 2019 ජුනි මස 07 වැනි දින පහෝ ඊට පපර  

“2019 අයේේ 21 වැනි දින්‍ ශ්‍රී ලිංකායව් විවිධ සේථාන්‍වල සිදුවූ ත්‍රසේතවාදී ප්‍රහාර 
පිළිෙඳ යසාො ෙලා පාර්ලියම්න්තුවට වාර්තා කිරීම සඳහා වන්‍ පාර්ලියම්න්තු 
වියශ්‍ේෂ කාරක සභායව් යේකම්, 

ශ්‍රී ලිංකා පාර්ලියම්න්තුව, 
ශ්‍රී ජෙවර්ධන්‍පුර යකෝේයේ." 

ෙන්‍ ලිපින්‍ෙට ලැයෙන්‍ පරිදි ලිඛිතව ඉදිරිපත් කරන්‍ යලස යමයින් ඉේලා සිටිනු ලැයබ්. කාරක සභාව 
වාචික සාේි කැඳීමට අයේේෂා කරන්යන් න්‍ම් වාචික සාේි ඉදිරිපත් කිරීමට අදාළ පුද්ෙලෙන්ට, 
සිංවිධාන්‍, යද්ශ්‍පාලන්‍ පේෂ යහෝ ආෙතන්‍වලට ඒ ෙව ෙථා කාලයේදී දැනුම්යදනු ලැයබ්. මීට අදාළ 

වැි විසේතර www.parliament.lk ෙන්‍ යවබි අඩවියෙන් ද ලොෙත හැකිෙ.   

ටිකිරි පක්. ජයතිලක 

කාරක සභාපේ පල්කම් සහ සහකාර මහ පල්කම් 

ශ්‍රී ලිංකා පාර්ලියම්න්තුව, 
ශ්‍රී ජෙවර්ධන්‍පුර, යකෝේයේ. 
2019 මැයි මස 25  වැනිදා  
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2019 ஏப்ரல் 21 ஆம் திேதி இலங்டேயின் பல்கவறு இைங்ேளில் இைம்பபற்ற 

பயங்ேரவாத தாக்குதல்ேள் பற்றி ஆராய்ந்து பாராளுமன்றத்திற்கு 

அறிக்டேயிடுவதற்ோன பாராளுமன்ற விகசை குழு 

2019 ஏப்ரல் 21 ஆம் திேதி இலங்டேயின் பல்கவறு இைங்ேளில் இைம்பபற்ற பயங்ேரவாத 

தாக்குதல்ேள் ோரணமாே 250 இற்கும் கமற்பட்ைவர்ேள் உயிாிழந்து, ஆட்ேளுக்கு 

கசதகமற்பட்டு, பசாத்துக்ேளும் அழிவடைந்ததன் ோரணமாே; 

(அ) அத்தடேய தாக்குதல்ேளுக்கு முன்னர் அது பற்றிய புலனாய்வுத் தேவல்ேள், சட்ைத்டத 

அமுல்படுத்தும் அதிோாிேளுக்கு ேிடைத்திருந்ததா என்படதயும்; 

(ஆ) அத்தடேய தாக்குதல்ேடள தடுப்பதற்கு மற்றும் / அல்லது அவற்டறக் குடறத்துக் 

போள்வதற்கு சம்பந்தப்பட்ை அதிோாிேள் கபாதியளவில் நைவடிக்டே 

கமற்போண்ைார்ேளா என்படதயும்; 

(இ) அத்தடேய தாக்குதல்ேளின் பாதிப்புக்ேடளத் தடுப்பதற்கு மற்றும்/அல்லது 

குடறப்பதற்கு முடியாமல் கபானடமக்குக் ோரணமாே அடமந்த அரச 

பபாறிமுடறயில் குடறபாடுேள் ோணப்பட்ைதா என்படதயும்; 

(ஈ) அத்தடேய பயங்ேரவாதத் தாக்குதல்ேளுக்குப் பங்ேளிப்புச் பசய்த கவறு 

விையங்ேகளதும் இருந்ததா என்படதயும்; 

(உ) பயங்ேரவாதிேளுக்கு அனுசரடணயளித்த எந்தபவாரு பாராளுமன்ற 

உறுப்பினருக்கோ அல்லது ஆளுநருக்கோ அல்லது நபருக்கோ எதிராேவுள்ள 

குற்றச்சாட்டுக்ேள் உண்டமயானதா என்படதயும்; 

(ஊ) எதிர்ோலத்தில் அத்தடேய தாக்குதல்ேள் இைம்பபறுவடத தடுப்பதற்ோே 

கமற்போள்ள கவண்டிய நைவடிக்டேேள் யாடவ என்படதயும்; மற்றும் 

(எ) கமற்கூறியவற்றுைன் பதாைர்புடைய அல்லது இடைகநர்விடளவான கவறு 

விையங்ேள் பதாைர்பாேவும்; 

ஆராய்ந்து பாராளுமன்றத்திற்கு அறிக்டேயிடுவதற்ோே பாராளுமன்ற விகசை குழுபவான்று 

பாராளுமன்றத்தினால் நியமிக்ேப்பட்டுள்ளது . 

கமற்படி குழுவுக்கு பிரதிநிதித்துவங்ேடள பசய்வதற்கு விருப்பமான ஆட்ேள், அடமப்புக்ேள், 

அரசியல் ேட்சிேள் அல்லது நிறுவனங்ேள் இருப்பின் தமது பிரதிநிதித்துவங்ேடள 2019 யூன் 

மாதம் 07 ஆம் திேதி அல்லது அதற்கு முன்னதாே  

“2019 ஏப்ரல் 21 ஆம் திேதி இலங்டேயின் பல்கவறு இைங்ேளில் இைம்பபற்ற 

பயங்ேரவாத தாக்குதல்ேள் பற்றி ஆராய்ந்து பாராளுமன்றத்திற்கு 

அறிக்டேயிடுவதற்ோன பாராளுமன்ற விகசை குழுவின் பசயலாளர், 

இலங்டேப் பாராளுமன்றம் 
ஸ்ரீ ஜயவர்தனபுர கோட்டை” 

என்ற முேவாிக்கு ேிடைக்ேத்தக்ேவாறு எழுத்துமூலமாே சமர்ப்பிக்குமாறு இத்தால் 

கோரப்படுேின்றது. குழு வாய்பமாழிமூல சாட்சிேடள அடழக்ே விரும்பின் வாய்மூல 

சான்றுேடள முன்டவப்பதுைன் பதாைர்பான ஆட்ேள், அடமப்புக்ேள், அரசியல் ேட்சிேள் 

அல்லது நிறுவனங்ேளுக்கு அது குறித்து உாிய ோலத்தில் அறிவிக்ேப்படும். இது பதாைர்பான 

கமலதிே விபரங்ேடள www.parliament.lk எனும் இடணயத்தளத்தினூைாேவும் 

பபற்றுக்போள்ளலாம் . 

டிேிாி கே. ஜயதிலக்ே 

குழுவின் பசயலாளரும் உதவிச் 

பசயலாளர் நாயேமும் 

இலங்டேப் பாராளுமன்றம், 

ஸ்ரீ ஜயவர்தனபுர, கோட்டை 

2019 கம மாதம் 25 ஆந் திேதி  
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Select Committee of Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on 

the terrorist attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st 

April 2019 

Whereas the terrorist attacks that took place in different places in Sri Lanka on 21st 

April 2019 have resulted in loss of the lives of over 250 persons, causing injuries to 

persons, and damage of property, Parliament has appointed a Select Committee of 

Parliament to look into and report to Parliament on: 

(a) whether law enforcement authorities had received intelligence reports 

relating to such attacks, prior thereto; 

(b) whether the relevant authorities took adequate measures to prevent and/ 

or mitigate such attacks; 

(c) whether there were deficiencies in the State machinery that led to the 

inability to prevent or mitigate the effects of such attacks; 

(d) any other factors which contributed to such terrorist attacks; 

(e) whether allegations levelled against any Member of Parliament, 

Governor or any other persons are true or not;  

(f) what action should be taken to prevent such attacks in future; and 

(g) any other matters connected or incidental thereto. 

Persons, organizations, political parties and institutions desiring to make 

representations to the Committee are hereby requested to send such representations 

in writing to - 

“Secretary to the Select Committee of Parliament to look into and 

report to Parliament on the Terrorist Attacks that took place in 

different places in Sri Lanka on 21st April 2019,  

Parliament of Sri Lanka, 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte." 

to reach on or before 07 June 2019. If the Committee desires of hearing oral 

evidence from those making representations, such persons, organizations, political 

parties or institutions will be called upon to present themselves before the 

Committee to make oral representations. Further information of the above 

Committee is accessible via www.parliament.lk 

Tikiri K. Jayathilake 

Secretary to the Committee and 

Assistant Secretary-General 

Parliament of Sri Lanka, 

Sri Jayewardenepura Kotte, 

25 May 2019. 
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6 වැනි පරිශිෂ්ටය 

இணைப்பு VI 

Appendix VI 
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7 වැනි පරිශිෂ්ටය 

இணைப்பு VII 

Appendix VII 
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8 වැනි පරිශිෂ්ටය 

இணைப்பு VIII 

Appendix VIII 
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9 වැනි පරිශිෂ්ටය 

இணைப்பு IX 

Appendix IX 

List of names of the people/organizations made written submissions 

# Name Organization/ Address 

1 Hon. Rishad 
Bathiudeen 

Minister of Industry & Commerce, Resettlement 
of Protracted Displaced Persons, Co-operative 
Development, Vocational Training & Skills 
Development 

2 Mr. Ranga 
Wijewickrema 

16D, Sigera Road, Kimbulawwela 
Junction, Madiwela 

3 Mr. H.H. 
Thilakeratne 
Vidyalankara. 

Vidya Mandiraya, 325, Kithuldeniya 
Waththa, Alapalawa - Handessa, 
Peradeniya. 

4 Mr. K.M.D. 
Anuradha 

Namal, Ganegama East, Baddegama 

5 Mr. Aluthge 
Nandasena 

329/9, Pitipana North, Homagama 

6 Col. V. A. 
Siriwardana USP 
(Retd) 

53/23B, Buthgamuwa Road, Welikada, 
Rajagiriya. 

7 Mr. Jayasiri 
Samaratunga 

162, “Parisara”, Kandy Road, Dalugama, 
Kelaniya. 

8 Col. W. M. Jayavi 
Fernando 

90/7, Jayagath Road, Navinna, 
Maharagama 

9 Mr. Gallege 
Punyawardena 

262, Densil Kobbakaduwe Rd, 
Battaramulla 

10 Desha Shakthi 
Jayatissa Athukorala 

Sanasuma, 49 Town Council Rd, Elpitiya, 
80400 

11 Mr. Ruchira Dilan 
Madushanka 

Journalist, thimbiriwewa, Bingiriya 

12 Mr. H.H.A. Dias 
Samarasiri 

111B, Monaravila, Pallepola, Matale. 

13 Mr. Jayantha 
Rajawickema 

‘Pared’ organization, 109/04/24, 
Mabulgoda, Pannipitiya 
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# Name Organization/ Address 

14 Mr. Rishvin Ismath 72, 2nd Maligakanda lane, Colombo-10 

15 Dr. Janaka 
Mudalige, Phd 

Former Director (Information 
Technology/ 118 Emergency), Ministry 
of Defence 

16 Ven. Ampitiye 
Sumanarathana 
Thero 

Sri Mangalarama Vihara, Batticaloa 

17 Mr. Dilantha 
Withanage 

Chief Executive Officer, Bodu Bala Sena 

18 Mr. A.K. Hisham, 
M.I.Sc. 

President, Sri Lanka Thawheed Jama’ath 

19 Hon. M.H.A. 
Haleem, M.P. 

Member of Sri Lanka Parliament 

20 Hon. Ranjan 
Ramanayaka, M.P. 

Member of Sri Lanka Parliament 

21 Mr. Abdul Razik Ceylon Thawheed Jama’ath 

22 Mr. Prasad 
Kariyawasm 

Former Secretary, Ministry of foreign 
Affairs 

23 Mr. P.R. 
Dahanayake 
Bandara 

No. 36, Uthuwankanda, MAwanella 

24 Mr. A. Ranjith 
Abhaya de Silva 

190/1, Gate Junction, Malamulla, 
Panadura 

25 Mr. D.D.W. 
Chandradewa 

No. 5, Devala lane, Ethul Kotte 

26 Mr. Ananda Sunil 
Bandara 

No. 549/C, Hurigahamula, Minuwangoda 

27 Mr. Pradeep 
Sanjeewa 

former Assistant of Prevention, 
Treatment & Rehabilitation Unit, 
National Dangerous Drugs Control Board 

 


